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COMPANY OVERVIEW

Times China Holdings Limited (“Times China” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”), one of the
Top 50 Real Estate Companies in China and China Fortune 500, has
its shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “SEHK” or the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code:
1233). Founded in 1999, the current principal business of Times
China is development and management of residential, commercial
properties, industrial parks and featured small towns. Times China
expanded its business to Guangzhou, Foshan, Jiangmen, Dongguan,
Huizhou, Zhuhai, Zhongshan, Qingyuan and Changsha, in which
economies are well-developed, and had a total of 79 projects in
various stages. By the end of 2017, the Group had a total assets of
approximately RMB101.4 billion.

Times China has perfectly combined life and art by adhering to
the corporate strategy of “Regional Focus, Cities Penetration and
Product Diversification” and upholding the people-oriented design
concept; and continues to improve product quality by actively
promoting industrialisation process of the whole production chain;
and strives to meet customer needs by continuously providing full-
cycle property services.

As a life stylist in the real estate sector, Times China continues
to pursue the core values of “Love, Focus and Create”, in order
to provide consumers with better products and services, creates
greater returns for its shareholders, and strives to become the best
real estate enterprise in China so as to enable more people to live
with the lifestyle they aspire to.
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DNERBLE
CORPORATE MILESTONES

/-i&)\ilF'ﬁﬁi% B REBE - WTRN - EmET]
B b 28 B RS

Entered Jiangmen market, adhering to the corporate
strategy of “Regional Focus, Cities Penetration and
Product Diversification”

o E—FEHEFHIME N RIE /WM R REE
Transformed from a traditional property company to a
service provider for urban development

2017

2016

/- SREERBARBE_BNATZER
Contracted sales surpassed RMB29.3 billion

EARY - BN RETS  ER=AHRHEMTE
Entered Shenzhen, Huizhou and Dongguan markets so
as to have a more comprehensive layout in the in Pearl
River Delta

o HEH[BRFAC o SROR/NA JBIIS - By I BIR A EE XA 4L
Introduced the “Times e Future Towns” strategy so as
to facilitate the transformation and upgrade of national

industry

/-_/E\llﬂﬁﬁ%?éﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%—ﬁh-f—ﬂ%ﬁ

/KRR PR £

Successfully listed on the
Main Board of the Stock
Exchange

s SRHERWMARKBRAH

Contracted sales surpassed

RMB10 billon —/

/ [ ]
s ARBEERWARE—BAHET

Contracted sales surpassed
RMB15 billion

s EEBBITEEELE2.25E
First issuance of bonds of USD225
million in Hong Kong

B

Contracted sales surpassed
RMB19.5 billion
s EEINEITEEARKE20E

First issuance of bonds of RMB2

billion in China —/

RRPEZERAERAR 2017 FEHE




NEIKRE4LE CORPORATE MILESTONES

/S UATEFEMRIRREEN -

IR B 2 B B
/. o R Positioned itself as “Life Stylist”

* LE\AﬁHEéE%\m% ERIEE and started to establish its
mEREIRD own competitive strength
Successfully entered Hunan . _/
Changsha market, bringing I
successful products to Changsha e

o AL (RY)

Times King City (Changsha) _/ i AT - B R
! ESE

Entered Foshan market, focusing
on the development of residential
property projects

o RACAESE (B8 1L)

Times King City (Foshan)
? _/
[ ) [ ]

2011 2004

CEAFIL  BERKEBEEMERETS - IR °
BIEYHIER
Entered Zhongshan, Qingyuan and Zhuhai residential

property development markets, focusing on the

o B AR BRI AN 19994 + B
REHEER

development of residential property projects Times China was established

o B (2 BRAE (2R |nt1 tggs ahd engaged in real
estate business

Times Laguna (Zhuhai)

o B ERAE(HRIL)
Times Mont Blanc (Zhongshan)

o BRI OBR)

Times King City (Qingyuan) /

2017 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 5
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AWARDS WON BY THE COMPANY

20175%2A
o FhEIAmALKIRE

2017%3A

o 2017 B #hEE 2 #1004

o 017THEIEHERBECXGEERE10E(FHT
i)

o 2017 BEME "M% (5E330)

o 2017 BEH ER B> 5058 (554007 )

2017558

o 2017HBEEHE FHARLAE 5058 (539
i)

2017588

o hEIRZDES50054

February 2017
e The 5th Red Rose Award for Public Charity

March 2017

e 2017 Top 100 Outstanding Real Estate Enterprises in China

e 2017 Top 10 China Real Estate Development Enterprises in
Comprehensive Development (Rank No.7)

e 2017 Top 100 China Real Estate Companies (Rank No. 33)

2017 Top 50 China Real Estate Developers (Rank No.40)

May 2017

e 2017 Top 50 China Real Estate Listed Companies in Comprehensive
Strength (Rank No. 39)

August 2017

e Top 500 Chinese Private Companies

BRPBEERERAT 2017 £ERE



ARIFTERIE AWARDS WON BY THE COMPANY

2017594 September 2017

o 2017HEIMERBEEIESELMEDLE e 2017 Leading Chinese Brand Company in Professional Property
Service Operation

o FEYEEECEREEB24E e Top 24 Chinese Property Management Enterprises in Brand
Value

o FEYEERGEENAR(EITA) e Top 100 Chinese Property Management Enterprises in

Comprehensive Strength (Rank No. 17)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Guan Jianhui

Mr. Bai Xihong

Mr. Li Qiang

Mr. Shum Siu Hung

Mr. Niu Jimin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jin Qingjun

Ms. Sun Hui
Mr. Wong Wai Man

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Lui Wai Pang
Ms. Lai Siu Kuen

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Li Qiang
Mr. Lui Wai Pang

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Wai Man (Chairman)
Mr. Jin Qingjun

Ms. Sun Hui

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Ms. Sun Hui (Chairman)

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung

Mr. Wong Wai Man
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman)

Mr. Jin Qingjun

Ms. Sun Hui

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 1350

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

IN THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA
36-38/F, Times Property Center

410-412 Dongfeng Zhong Road

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province
PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Suites 4706-4707, 47/F

Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

TIMES CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 1350

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 1350

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong and U.S. law:

Sidley Austin

Level 39, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong

As to PRC law:

Commerce & Finance Law Offices
6F, NCI Tower

A12 Jianguomenwai Avenue
Chaoyang District

Beijing

China

As to Cayman Islands law:
Appleby

Rooms 2206-19, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong



ARIERE CORPORATE INFORMATION

BB A INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
LK ETAN BT Ernst & Young

MEGEAD Certified Public Accountants

BB 22/F, CITIC Tower

IR 1 Tim Mei Avenue

INEBI Central

FERE22E Hong Kong

B 94K 5% STOCK CODE

1233 1233

YNGIE Bl COMPANY’S WEBSITE
http://www.timesgroup.cn http://www.timesgroup.cn
FEFREIT PRINCIPAL BANKERS

A TRERITIRMD BIRA A Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
R ERTT Agricultural Bank of China

B R ERTT China Construction Bank

FEERTT Bank of China

FEERERRT Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
FRIBITRDBR AR Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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B AEESEREEN T hRHEEUR
ERLBERRITRNESZ  BRE
FRHEEHEARKB416.3FT - BH
EREFAEFEEEE  BEFER
41.9% °

For the year ended 31 December
2017, the Group, benefiting from the
advantage resulted from the quality
land reserve and differentiated
competition strategy, achieved a
contracted sales amount of RMB41.63
billion, exceeding the contracted sales
target for the entire year, representing

an increase of 41.9% over last year. )

EMARER - Dear Shareholders,

AANBEREARDEE([EZ)E([EEE])) On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)

AR EAERAHEZE-—E—+FE+-_A=+—~8” of the Company, | am pleased to present the annual results of

IEFE([HREARN DN FELE - the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Reporting
Period”).

12 BERFEZRERAR 2017 FERS



4 | NN
Ly u

| 2 amd

s«ﬁi

ll‘«a

_—5

HE-_T—+F+-_A=+—HBLFE  X£H
FEREEBARB23110.08 8T FEMEA
AR¥ES,3409B 8L« ADREEE ABLFEE
ARMB26672BET BREARFNAEARKE
1515 - BREERNAARKE145D - EFGR
FHRERABREFTRAREA1.430 - R=ZF—+
F AEEBEHARBEESEARE4163ET
BEFHEEA1.9% -

FREHE CHARMAN'S STATEMENT

1. RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded turnover
of RMB23,110.0 million; profit for the year amounted to RMB3,340.9
million; profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to RMB2,667.2 million; basic earnings per share was RMB151
cents; diluted earnings per share was RMB145 cents. The Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB41.43 cents
per share. In 2017, the Group achieved a contracted sales amount
of RMB41.63 billion, representing an increase of 41.9% over last
year.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FREHE CHARMAN'S STATEMENT
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2. REVIEW OF THE YEAR 2017

In 2017, the strategic arrangements of the 19th CPC National
Congress set out a clear strategic direction on China, a country that
has embarked on its development from a fresh historical position
and a new starting point. The real estate sector underwent a period
of intensive regulation and control, which led to slower growth in the
transaction volume of commercial properties nationwide, historic new
highs of sales amount and area, as well as steady and quality growth.
According to the data from the National Bureau of Statistics, the
sales area of commercial properties reached 1,694.08 million sg.m.
nationwide and increased by 7.7% on a year-on-year basis, which
represented a decrease of 14.8 percentage points in growth rate
compared with the corresponding period of last year. The transaction
volume of commercial properties amounted to RMB13,370.1 billion
and increased by 13.7% on a year-on-year basis, representing a
decrease of 21.1 percentage points in growth rate compared with
the corresponding period of last year. In 2017, resources continued
to flow to and concentrate in outstanding property developers, with
faster industrial integration, frequent mergers and acquisitions, and
intensified industrial concentration.

The Group actively seized market rhythm and adopted flexible
strategies to achieve rapid growth in sales and profit. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Group achieved a contracted sales
amount of RMB41.63 billion, exceeding its annual contracted sales
target and representing an increase of 41.9% compared with the
same period of last year. In addition, profit for the year increased
substantially to RMB3,340.9 million, representing an increase of
68.5% over last year.

In terms of land reserves, the Group actively expanded its land
reserves through various channels, including participation in
government public auctions, urban redevelopment projects,
cooperation and company acquisition. A total of 25 new projects
were acquired, with a total planned GFA of 4.985 million sg.m.,
which laid a solid foundation for a sufficient supply of land reserves.
As of the end of 2017, the total land reserves of the Group reached
16.84 million sg.m..

The Group has made new progress in urban redevelopment
projects, with the existing ones running proactively. Meanwhile, the
Group continued with its “Times ® Future Towns” strategy. In 2017,
the Group entered into 21 framework agreements on town co-
development with the local governments of Guangzhou, Foshan,
Zhongshan and Dongguan.
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FREHE CHARMAN'S STATEMENT

In addition, while ensuring sufficient land reserves and supply of
available-for-sale units, the Group has adopted stable and robust
financial strategies to further improve its financial structure and
reduce finance costs. In 2017, the net gearing ratio of the Group was
57.6%, which was still a reasonable debt level. The consolidated
average finance costs of the Group decreased from 8.3% in 2016 to
7.6% in 2017.

3. OUTLOOK FOR THE YEAR 2018

2018 is the first year of practicing the spirit of the 19th CPC National
Congress. The Chinese economy is expected to maintain its steady
growth, as the country maintains its prudent and neutral monetary
policy and a proactive fiscal policy.

It is expected that China will be consistent and stable with its policy
on regulating the real estate market and sustain differentiated
control measures, to ensure the stable development of the real
estate industry. The financial deleveraging policy is also expected to
stay, which will bring new opportunities on industry integration and
development.

With continuous population inflow and further infrastructure
improvement, primary city clusters will enjoy even greater value and
advantages, offering sustainable drive to industry development.

In response to the country’s call for quality development as a
basic requirement, the Group has repositioned itself as an “Urban
Development Service Provider”, in a bid to serve the development of
real economy and adapt to urban development and the upgrade of
market consumption demand. In the future, we will stress our role as
an “Urban Development Service Provider” in extending our business,

serving both urban dwellers and the cities where they live.

Committed to providing multi-dimensional services for urban
development, we will, on the basis of ensuring sustainable and
robust development of our core business, take steps to grow such
business segments as urban redevelopment, industry, commerce,
long-term rental apartments, community services, logistics and
warehousing, education, furniture and home decorations.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FREHE CHARMAN'S STATEMENT

AREHEREIRESHRBE - SEHE 8B
MAEE - BESRENORATERRE - K
RIFER TSR - I AEE R KK
o785 2 0T o

HFMBERFBEORERE  BBEZ TN
N BEGER REEN R -

I ARBERBREREM SR - BEE&RH
E o tReEREE - ISRRENEL B
BERRZTRERE °

LIS E )
AANBURREFERHBE—F - SUBFHH
BrXE:  2RET  EBBHLIKREL  HR
IR STRAEE

AR BRPESEERT EES ABREBEN
E e - BERR RERBETES - RS

REERE NEEED 0 REUBRAEE AN
BE  RBAETREEFHOERER -

EFETE  HITEFERITHABEH
Ex il

—E—-N\F=—A=+N\H

RAMEZERARAT 2017 FEHE

The Group will closely follow the national strategies on regional
development. More specifically, it will continue to establish its
presence across the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay
Area, take an active part in urban redevelopment of the region, boost
its market share in regions where the Group has made its presence,
and extend its layout across Guangdong Province and to other cities
with high growth potential.

We will maintain prudent investment strategies, and acquire sufficient
and quality land reserve through a wide array of approaches.

In addition, the Group will flexibly respond to market changes to
procure sales proactively and strengthen cash flow management.
We will stay attentive to the changes of financial environment and
actively explore diverse financing channels.

4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
our gratitude to the proprietors, all employees, business partners and
investors of Times China for their support and trust for the past year.

Looking ahead, Times China will adhere to its mission of “empowering
more people to live with a lifestyle they aspire to” and continue to
pursue its operational philosophy of “surprising our customers with
quality and moving our customers with our services”. Meanwhile,
we will strive to create more value for our shareholders and provide
better products and services to our proprietors.

Shum Chiu Hung
Chairman of the Board, Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer

28 February 2018
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BE+T-A=+—HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

Bz —B—tE T AF g
Notes 2017 2016 Change
ERGE Contracted sales
AREESHE(AREFEL) Contracted sales (RMB million) 41,629 29,328 41.9%
AFEIHEREmME(FHK)  Contracted GFA* (sg.m.) 2,822,000 2,473,000 14.1%
ERIHEE FHEE
(ANRH T, FHHK) Contracted ASP** (RMB/sg.m.) 14,752 11,859 24.4%
TEHKER Selected financial information
EHAMANREBEIT)  Recognised revenue (RMB million) 23,110.0 16,206.5 42.6%
EMAREEST) Gross profit (RMB million) 6,449.9 4,250.2 51.8%
FEAHE Profit for the year
— BiEIEIER s — Including non-controlling interests
(ARBHETT) (RMB million) 3,340.9 1,982.4 68.5%
e WNGIL DN L — Attributable to owners of the
(AR®BEET) Company (RMB million) 2,667.2 1,955.0 36.4%
ZINEMEAREEET) Core net profit (RMB million) 1 3,203.0 1,833.3 74.7%
R=ZB—+tF RZT—RF
t=A=t+—8H +=ZA=+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Mt ARBEET AREHET
Notes RMB million RMB million
BERR Total assets 101,379.1 69,088.9
BERRE Total liabilities 73,4335 52,898.0
HE RIRTTEER Cash and bank balances 2 17,206.8 11,880.7
FTERITER K Interest-bearing bank loans and
HAbfER other borrowings
—n# — current 6,030.0 1,956.1
—3ERH - non-current 27,259.1 18,532.4
AMRESFEES S Debt component of the convertible
bonds = 242 .4
3 33,289.1 20,730.9
R Total equity 27,945.6 16,190.9
RARIEE AEGRER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 15,571.5 9,132.0

© RmER
“ FEE

ok

Gross floor area

Average selling price

2017 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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IR ZE FINANCIAL HIGHUGHTS

BE+T-A=1t—HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December

ird —E—+F —E—RF
Note 2017 2016
FEHKLEE Selected financial ratios
FEFI= Gross profit margin 27.9% 26.2%
RS Net profit margin 14.5% 12.2%
2O F R = Core net profit margin 4 13.9% 11.3%
BRERRF - AR%ES Basic earnings per share,
RMB cents 151 113
FRESERT - ARESD Diluted earnings per share,
RMB cents 145 107
R-B—+F RIE—RF
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
As at As at
i3 31 December 31 December
Note 2017 2016
mEhEL = Current ratio 2.0 1.8
BERE Gearing ratio 5 57.6% 54.7%
FTEZEBEHE Selected operating data
FERTHEEEE Total land bank at end of the year
(BEmE - FHXK) (GFA, sg.m.) 16,835,512 13,064,459
Kiaz Notes:

i 2L FE RN BER RN -
AMBRESITET AR /Aﬁtfﬁ@xﬁﬁ hiz
MR ARELEHEZE - RAEREREREMR
NEVEE M&IH&Z%I@VE&%W%QE%H
BEMEELNRESIER

TEEREWMER 1.

2. BE MRITERBRBZRFBITFRALES 23
MRS FEEY)

3. FERITER &/HJ’M%TJK HEEEEARR - 3.
ABiRESEESD R AF %%

4., 120 3 )88 S T AR #5420 B Bk A B TSR UK 4k
N B

5. BEEERDREFRRANEENEBFEGHE B

RITESRREAMEFTAAENGE S MIRTTHER)
BRAVFEERTE -

RRPEZEREMRAR 2017 FEHE

Core net profit represents profit after tax excluding changes in fair
values of investment properties and the derivative component of the
convertible bonds, net of the impact of the related deferred tax, the
premium paid on early redemption of senior notes and gain or loss
incurred from acquisition or deemed disposal of subsidiaries and joint
ventures.

Cash and bank balances include restricted bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents.

Total interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings include senior
notes, the debt component of convertible bonds and corporate
bonds.

Core net profit margin is calculated based on core net profit over total
recognised revenue.

Gearing ratio is calculated by the Group’s net debts (total interest-
bearing bank loans and other borrowings, net of cash and bank
balances) over net assets at the end of each year.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (% &%) (“Mr. Shum”), aged 47, is the
founder of the Group. He has been the chairman of the Board,
chief executive officer and Director since November 2007 and
was re-designated as the executive Director in February 2008.
Mr. Shum is also a director of other members of the Group as well
as the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of
the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Shum started
his business career in real estate development in 1999, and has
experience in trade, finance and real estate development. In 1999,
he founded Guangzhou Sweetland Real Estate Development
Company Limited (“Sweetland Real Estate”), a company engaged in
residential property development project in Guangzhou. In 2001, he
founded Guangzhou Times China Group Co., Ltd. (“Times Group”),
a subsidiary of the Company, and served as the president, primarily
responsible for the strategic development and overall operations of
Times Group’s business. Mr. Shum has led the Group to become
a leading property developer in the PRC. He has over 18 years
of experience in the PRC real estate industry. He graduated from
Fudan University (18 B X£2) with an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree (“EMBA”) in June 2006.

Mr. Shum was recognised as an “Innovative Individual in China’s
Real Estate Industry in 2005” (20054 /& 1 Bl = 2= 87 A 47”), by
a number of media outlets including Beijing Youth Daily Group ({1t
REFR)), Guangzhou Daily (&N H#)) and China Business
News (£ —814%) ), an “Outstanding Leader of Mainstream Chinese
Real Estate Companies in 2005” (‘20054 E R B £ it ELE H 4B E
A¥”) by China Properties Economic Mainstream Summit (92 B i
ELBE X RIES) and one of the “100 Most Influential Entrepreneurs
in China’s Real Estate Industry in 2004” (“20044F [E &2 £ B = it &
100fZ 122 5") by Media and Promotion Alliance for Real Estate in
China (R BT 22 & F /R 4E S FH B). Mr. Shum was recognised
as an “Excellent Entrepreneur in China’s Real Estate Industry” (“F
BEEHEEFPEZK") and was awarded the “Golden Horse Award
of Excellent Entrepreneur in China’s Real Estate Industry in 2007”
(“2007TH I EHEEBF L EREEF R by the Urban Development
and Environment Research Center of the Chinese Academy of
Social Science (H Bt & &} 22 b i Th 2% R B3R 3R 9T 1), China
National Real Estate Enterprise Association (2B EE D
%4 &) and China Real Estate Entrepreneur Association (475 1&
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#R1€) in 2006 and 2007, respectively. He was also awarded
the “Top 10 Figures with Outstanding Contributions in 30 Years of
China’s Real Estate Industry” (‘A Bl Z i E30F + KA HE BEELA YY)
in 2008 by Nanfang Media Group (/7 $h 2 & H £ [F) and 30 Years
of China’s Real Estate Industry Summit Organizing Committee (F
B EIF S EmIEBAZEZE), “11th Guangzhou Outstanding Youth”
(“E+—EEMEEEFE”) in 2010 by the People’s Government of
Guangzhou (B ARB), “Most Influential Figures in China’s
Real Estate Industry” (‘“RFBIE#ETESESZE HAY) in 2010
by the Ministry of Housing and Urban Policy Research Center ({E
B A A0 2 SR SRR R 90 A ), National Federation of Real Estate
Chamber of Commerce (2B T EHZE <) and Guangdong
Real Estate Chamber of Commerce (ER & MER ), “The 1st Top
10 Outstanding Cantonese Youth” (“EfEt R EMN A+ AL HSE”)
in 2013 by The 1st Global Conference of the Cantonese Organizing
Committee (& @ttt REFAAXEHES), “The Award of Outstanding
Person of the Year” (“FE#H A¥IAEE") in 2014 by The Annual
Meeting of China Real Estate (“/ff B EF=2"), “Annual Top 10 Most
Influential Leading Figures in China Real Estate” (“GFE &+ K&
EHEE AP in 2015 and “4th Guangdong Outstanding Chinese
Socialism Enterprise Builders” (‘BRAEFNEEEFTESELEeE
BREEERE") In2016.

Mr. Shum has been appointed as a standing member of the
Guangzhou Committee of the 11th, 12th and 13th Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (P A RBUAIE €% E +—
& F+E B+=ZEEBRMNTEZEGEHKZEE) since 2007 and
executive chairman of Guangzhou Chamber of Commerce of Private
Enterprises (EM M REZM%¥E€). Mr. Shum has been the vice
chairman of the 14th and 15th executive committee of Guangzhou
Federation of Industry and Commerce (E/MN ™ L EEASE) and
Guangzhou General Chamber of Commerce (B 7 &) since
September 2011. Mr. Shum has been appointed as a deputy of 12th
and 13th People’s Congress of Guangdong Province (B&=& ARK
KRXEF+_fF - FT+=FERKRK). Mr. Shum has been the president
of Guangdong Young Entrepreneur Association (BR & & F 1%
K &) since 2016. Mr. Shum is the elder brother of Mr. Shum Siu
Hung, the executive Director.
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Mr. Guan Jianhui (B8 &) (“Mr. Guan”), aged 53, was appointed
as the Director in January 2008 and was re-designated as the
executive Director in February 2008. He has been a vice president
of Times Group since January 2002. He is currently the head of
corporate management center of Times Group and is primarily
responsible for information management, human resources,
administration and fund affairs. Mr. Guan assisted Mr. Shum to
found Sweetland Real Estate in 1999 and joined Times Group in May
2001. From 2002 to 2006, Mr. Guan was responsible for finance,
funding and cost management. He has over 18 years of experience
in real estate corporate management. Mr. Guan graduated from
South China Normal University (27 Bl &3 X 28) with a bachelor’s
degree in arts in December 1994, and obtained an EMBA from
Peking University (1t R AE) in July 2009. Mr. Guan was a member
of the 14th Guangzhou Yuexiu District Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (R EI A RBUA G253
FHUEREMNTHERZES). Mr. Guan is currently a member of
15th People’s Congress of Guangzhou (BMME+HEARRERA
2).
Mr. Bai Xihong (A #374) (“Mr. Bai”), aged 50, was appointed as
the Director in January 2008 and was designated as the executive
Director in February 2008. He has been a vice president of Times
Group since January 2002. He has also been the general manager
of the Guangzhou regional office of Times Group since January
2002 whereby he is primarily responsible for project research and
development, designing, procurement and project management
in Guangzhou. Mr. Bai joined Sweetland Real Estate in 1999 and
joined Times Group in May 2001. Mr. Bai has over 18 years of
experience in real estate corporate management. He graduated from
Guangdong Radio & Television University (BREFEEHR KE) in
industrial enterprise operation management in 1990 and obtained an
EMBA from Sun Yat-Sen University (77 |1/ X&) in December 2009.
In 2005, Mr. Bai was recognised as an “Outstanding Contributor
to Guangzhou Real Estate in the Past 20 years” (“BMiE—=1+
FELEEFE BB A by the “Guangzhou Real Estate in the Past 20
Years’ event organizing committee” (BEMhE — +F KBS
%), Guangzhou Real Estate Organization (BN &= HE %%
@) and Guangzhou Real Estate Guide Union (it EE T)+t). He
was awarded the “2006 Outstanding CEO (Diamond Award) in
Mainstream Real Estate in China” (‘20067 & & i S8 E HE
EACEQ”) in 2006 by China Mainstream Real Estate Economy Summit
(AP R = 48 £ IE &), “Innovative and Meritorious Individual in
China’s Real Estate Industry in the 60 years since the Founding of
the PRC” (“ZBI604F A B 5 b 2 & S5 AIIFT I 8 & A”) in 2009 by the
7th China Real Estate Economy Summit (55 & & B #b 2= &7 3 7k
I&=) and “Real Estate Pioneers Award” (“iE /8% A #)42”) in 2010
by Xin Kuai News (¥T15%R). Mr. Bai was a member of the Guangzhou
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(FEARBAEEZEMMZ EE). Mr. Bai is currently the
chairman of Guangzhou Nansha New District Association of Real

Property (B fa Y #1[& 5 HE ).
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Mr. Li Qiang (Z3&) (“Mr. Li”), aged 43, was appointed as the
Director in January 2008 and was designated as the executive
Director in February 2008. He has been a vice president of Times
Group since July 2009. He is currently also the head of the Audit
Supervision and Legal Center of Times Group and is primarily
responsible for audit, supervision and legal matters. Mr. Li joined
Times Group in July 2005 as an assistant to the president. Mr. Li has
over 12 years of experience in real estate corporate management.
Mr. Li obtained a master’s degree in law from Hunan Normal
University (7417 B &8 A £2) in June 2000, and an EMBA degree from
Sun Yat-Sen University (4 [ AX28) in December 2007. He was
admitted as a lawyer in the PRC in June 1998. Mr. Li was a member
of the 15th People’s Congress of Guangzhou Yuexiu District (/)N
BERETHEARRKEZAS).

Mr. Shum Siu Hung (2 Jk#) (“Mr. Shum Siu Hung”), aged 43,
was appointed as the executive Director in November 2013. He
has been a director of the investment and development center of
Times Group since May 2012, responsible for land development and
project pre-planning work. Mr. Shum Siu Hung joined Sweetland
Real Estate as a project assistant in 1999 and was promoted as
a manager of the development department in May 2001 and a
manager of the tender department of Times Group in September
2009. Mr. Shum Siu Hung was the general manager of the Qingyuan
regional office of Times Group between December 2010 and May
2012. Mr. Shum Siu Hung is a younger brother of Mr. Shum, the
executive Director, the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company.

Mr. Niu Jimin (4#%&ZX) (“Mr. Niu”), aged 38, was appointed as
the executive Director in November 2013 and is currently the head
of the financial costing and funding department of Times Group,
responsible for planning and management of financial accounting,
funding operation and taxation matters. Prior to joining the Group
in 2011, Mr. Niu worked in the finance management department of
Guangzhou Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd. (BM & RIEHEBR A7)
(“Guangzhou Vanke”) as regional finance manager from December
2005 to December 2007. He was head of operation analysis of
the operation management department and a senior manager of
the project development department of Guangzhou Vanke from
December 2007 to April 2008 and from November 2010 to March
2011, respectively. He was head of finance department of Wuhan
Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd. (f)£H &RE#EAR A7) from May
2008 to October 2010. Mr. Niu obtained a bachelor’s degree in
management from Sun Yat-Sen University (F 1K) in June 2001
and a master of business administration degree from Hong Kong
Baptist University in November 2012. Mr. Niu graduated from School
of Finance of Renmin University of China (1B A R A28 4 BhE2
B) with an EMBA degree in January 2015.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jin Qingjun ($TEE) (“Mr. Jin”), aged 60, was appointed as
the independent non-executive Director in October 2015. Mr. Jin
is currently a senior partner of King & Wood Mallesons. His major
areas of practice include securities, finance, investment, corporate,
insolvency as well as foreign-related legal affairs. Mr. Jin has solid
jurisprudence theory base and extensive legal practice experience.
He has been adhering to work on major jobs in the past two
decades, winning a higher reputation in the industry and among
peers.

Mr. Jin is one of the first lawyers who are granted Security
Qualification Certificate in the PRC, focusing on securities-related
legal affairs for more than 20 years. Mr. Jin has previously worked
as general counsel of Shenzhen Stock Exchange and a member of
its Listing Supervisory Council, and he is currently a legal counsel for
various financial institutions, securities companies, listed companies
at home and abroad. In 2012, he was named as one of the Top
10 PRC Lawyers of the Year and PRC Securities Lawyer of the
Year. Mr. Jin also serves as an independent director of Guotai
Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 601211), a director of Konka Group Co., Ltd.
(@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
000016, 200016), external supervisor of China Merchants Bank Co.,
Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3968;
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600036) and an independent non-executive director of Sino-Ocean
Group Holding Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 3377). Mr. Jin had been an independent non-executive
director of China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd.
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2039; a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
000039), an independent director of Xi'an Dagang Road Machinery
Co., Ltd (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 300103), an independent director of Gemdale Corporation
(a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600383) and an independent director of Tianjin Changrong Print and
Packing Equipment Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 300195).
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Mr. Jin is the adjunct professor at China University of Political Science
and Law and the School of Law, Renmin University of China; co-
tutor for students of master’s degree at the School of Law, Tsinghua
University; Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration and Shanghai
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission, mediator
of Shenzhen Securities and Futures Dispute Resolution Centre; and
the PRC legal counsel of US Court of Appeals for the Washington
D.C Circuit. Mr. Jin obtained his B.A. in English from Anhui University
in 1982. He received his master’s degree in International Law from
China University of Political Science and Law in 1987. Mr. Jin also
received a graduate diploma from the John F. Kennedy School of
Government, Harvard Kennedy School in 2009.

Ms. Sun Hui (%) (“Ms. Sun”), aged 56, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director in November 2013. She has
been a partner of Shanghai Huanzhong Law Firm (=& 38 2E0
FHFT) since July 1996, a chairman of Zengcheng Jianglong Electric
Power Co., Ltd. (&% T3 E /) B R 7)) since 2009. Ms. Sun
graduated from the school of law of East China University of Political
Science and Law EEFEBUEZR) in 1983. She obtained a degree in
law from Georgetown University in 1992. Ms. Sun is a member of the
Association of Registered Independent Directors, United Kingdom.

Mr. Wong Wai Man (E{#X) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 49, was
appointed as the independent non-executive Director in November
2013. From August 1991 to April 1996, Mr. Wong worked as an
auditor with Ernst & Young. Mr. Wong had been an executive
director of China Household Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 692) and a non-executive director
and the company secretary of QPL International Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 243). Mr. Wong
obtained a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 1991 and a master of
science degree in financial economics from the University of London
in December 1997. Mr. Wong is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tao Chengjiang (F/;I) (“Mr. Tao”), aged 49, has been
the general manager of Shenzhen office of Times Group since
September 2016. He joined Times Group in May 2001 as a manager
of its finance department and was promoted as the finance director
in January 2004. He later became the head of the funds center of
Times Group in December 2006 responsible for capital financing
of the Group. Prior to joining us, from November 1999 to March
2001, Mr. Tao worked in the finance department and corporate
management department of Kingold Group Companies Limited (&
ZEBARAT]). Mr. Tao has been a qualified accountant in the
PRC since April 1997 and he is a non-practising member of the
Guangdong Provincial Institute of Certified Public Accountants (&
RAFMMEETEIHE) since 2010. Mr. Tao graduated from Xi’an
Petroleum College (Fa% A M2 FT) with a bachelor’s degree in
economics in June 1992 and obtained an EMBA degree from Sun
Yat-Sen University (| LA Z2) in December 2008.

Mr. Lui Wai Pang (Z{&#) (“Mr. Lui”), aged 44, has been the
chief financial officer, the joint company secretary and the authorised
representative of the Group since March 2015. He is responsible for
the Group’s financial reporting and investor relations related matters.
Mr. Lui has over 19 years of working experience in accounting,
corporate finance and investor relations. Mr. Lui is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
holds a bachelor degree of Business Administration in Accounting
from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. During
September 2006 to March 2015, he worked with Agile Property
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 3383) with his last position as a financial controller. He also
worked in several listed companies in Hong Kong, during which he
participated in initial public offering projects and was responsible for
matters relating to corporate finance and financial reporting.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 14
November 2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law”).
The Company’s ordinary shares (the “Shares”) were listed on the
Stock Exchange on 11 December 2013 (the “Listing” or the “Listing
Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is one of the leading property developers in
Guangdong Province, focusing on the development of mid-market
to high-end residential properties. Main business comprises three
areas: (i) property development, i.e., the development of residential
and commercial properties for sale, (ii) property leasing, i.e., the
development, leasing and sub-leasing of commercial properties
owned by the Company or independent third parties, and (iii)
property management, i.e., the provision of property management
services to our customers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

For 2017, the Group’s operations recorded a revenue of
RMB23,110.0 million, representing an increase of 42.6% when
compared with that of 2016. Profit for 2017 amounted to
RMB3,340.9 million, representing an increase of 68.5% when
compared with that of 2016. The core net profit for 2017, excluding
changes in fair values of investment properties and the derivative
component of the convertible bonds, net of the impact of the related
deferred tax, the premium paid on early redemption of senior notes
and gain or loss incurred from acquisition or deemed disposal of
subsidiaries and joint ventures, increased to RMB3,203.0 million,
representing an increase of 74.7% when compared with that of
2016. Profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
RMB2,667.2 million, representing an increase of 36.4% as compared
to that of 2016. Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per
share for 2017 were RMB151 cents (2016: RMB113 cents) and
RMB145 cents (2016: RMB107 cents), respectively.
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Property Development

The Group focuses on the major core cities in the Pearl River
Delta area. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had in total 79
major projects on various stages, including 77 projects in major
cities of Guangdong Province, namely, Guangzhou, Foshan,
Jiangmen, Dongguan, Huizhou, Zhuhai, Zhongshan and Qingyuan,
and 2 projects in Changsha, Hunan Province. For 2017, with its
outstanding operating capability and high quality projects situated
in prime locations, the Group still managed to accomplish expected
contracted sales for the year. For 2017, the Group’s contracted
sales” amounted to approximately RMB41.63 billion with total GFA
of approximately 2,822,000 sg.m.. The Group focuses in its projects
on peripheral facilities, seeking to enhance customers’ experience in
art and to fulfill needs of the middle to upper class households.

Note 1: Contracted sales is summarised based on sale and purchase

agreements and purchase confirmation agreements.

The table below illustrates the contracted sales achieved by the
Group by region for 2017:

AftHE
HEHA BEMEEE BEHESRE SHMNL

Available for
sale project Contracted Contracted Percentage of
EE Region numbers sales area sales amount amounts

(FFK) (ANE¥EEET)
(sq.m.) (RMB million) (%)
BEM Guangzhou 15 656,000 12,925 31.0
1L Foshan 12 794,000 14,166 34.0
wE Zhuhai 8 273,000 4,586 11.0
==ITl Zhongshan 5 130,000 1,257 3.0
BIR Qingyuan 3 312,000 2,434 5.9
&S Changsha 1 415,000 2,903 7.0
Ol Huizhou 2 34,000 3T 0.9
R Dongguan 3 208,000 2,981 72
&t Total 49 2,822,000 41,629 100.0
et —ZE— \FEHEREE BEYN A ARES50E The contracted sales target for 2018 is expected to be of

o

=l

approximately RMB55.0 billion.
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Properties for Leasing and Sub-leasing

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held a GFA of approximately
25,114 sq.m. and 234 car parking spaces at Times Property
Center and a GFA of approximately 37,567 sg.m. at Block No. 26
of Times King City (Zhongshan) for rental purposes and the GFA
for Guangzhou Times Commercial Management Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiary for sub-leasing purposes was approximately 376,234
sg.m.. For 2017, the Group’s rental income amounted to RMB289.5
million, contributing to 1.3% of the total income.

Property Management Services

Property management fee income represents revenue generated
from property management services provided in relation to delivered
properties. For 2017, the Group provided property management
services for 81 project phases. The Group’s revenue from property
management services increased from RMB288.2 million for 2016 to
RMB347.4 million for 2017. This increase was primarily due to the
increase in the number of project phases that the Group managed
with the delivery of the properties we made in 2017.

Land Reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total land reserves of
approximately 16.8 million sg.m., which the Group believes will be
sufficient to support the Group’s development need for the next
three to five years. The table below sets forth the information of land
reserves in major cities that the Group has established footholds:

TiEE AT
EiE Region Total land reserves
(FHK)

(sq.m.) (%)
= Guangzhou 2,144,579 12.7
Bl Foshan 2,394,016 14.2
7LF9 Jiangmen 1,085,236 6.4
b7 Nis) Zhuhai 1,090,996 6.0
== N1 Zhongshan 1,134,730 6.8
BB Qingyuan 5,697,485 gee
=W Changsha 1,771,356 10.5
= Dongguan 504,353 3.0
B Huizhou 1,112,761 6.6
a5t Total 16,835,512 100.0

RAMEZERARAT 2017 FEHE
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The following table sets forth the GFA breakdown of the Group’s
land reserves by planned use as at 31 December 2017:

T EE SR
sTEIR% Planned Use Total land reserves
(FHK)

(sq.m.) (%)
e Residential 11,709,069 69.5
[HES Commercial 875,295 52
HAith (i) Others (Note) 4,251,148 25.3
&5t Total 16,835,512 100.0

Hiet - AT EeREEEREERE -

YIRFABREAS
TEPR-ZZ—+F+-A=+—BMYEHE
HEMAARNBEER -

Note:  Others mainly comprises car parks and ancillary facilities.

Portfolio of Property Development Projects

The table below is a summary of the portfolio of property
development projects as at 31 December 2017,

BAT GELYET
Under development/ future
Completed development
BR /i g Hitgs Hit fie&
ER HRER BIAH HEEE BEEEe R0 BEEEe  EFEEEO o
Actual/expected Ownership
Project Project type completion dates Site area GFA for sale®®  Other GFA® GFA®  Other GFA® interest®
(B5K)  (FEK) (FEK) (ERK)
(sq:m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
M
Guangzhou
RN EEREE ZT-ZFETRF 92,123 - 30,520 - - 9
Times Bund Residential and 2013-2016
commercial
BREE TEREE “F—FE-Z-1F 354,156 1,325 23,170 - - 91
Ocean Times Residential and 2011-2015
commercial
BMXAER (REHER) Tko fFE S - - - - 51
Guangzhou Tianhe Project Industrial® Pending
(Pige Factory Project)
BNRHIEE (EHAREER) TI%0 #E = = - - - 42
Guangzhou Tiansi Project Industrial® Pending
(Qingchu Shiliu Gang Project)
BEMEFhARER N ST “E-Hf 17,480 - 630 - - 50
Guangzhou Wuyang Paint Apartment and 2015
Factory Project commercial
EREE (M) TEREE “ERF 45,593 - 6,160 - - 100
Times Cloud Atlas Residential and 2016
(Guangzhou) commercial
SRR (530 EEREE —I—tfF 93,756 - 91,350 - - 100
Times Bridges (Zengcheng) Residential and 2017
commercial
AR (M) REREE T+f 70,648 - 74,199 - - 100
Times Centralpark Living Residential and 2017
(Guangzhou) commercial
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BRI R/ ARER
Under development/ future
Completed development
BB /Rt HEE Hitg Hit fiEE
EH HEER BIAM BEREE BEERe EEo BEERY  BEER0 B&e
Actual/expected Ownership
Project Project type completion dates Site area GFA for sale®¥  Other GFA® GFA“4  Other GFA® interest®
(FAx) (FAx) (FAK) (FAK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m) (sq.m.) (%)
BRES(EM) TEREE ZE-RFEZZ)N\F 71,310 - 1,715 143,323 51,765 100
Times Long Island (Guangzhou) Residential and 2016-2018
commercial
BREB(EH) TEREZ e 29,959 - - 85,661 24,151 100
Times Cloud Port (Huadu) Residential and Pending
commercial
B AEAR (M) TEREE —TNE 45,837 - - 157,224 57,284 60
Times Park Laurel (Guangzhou) Residential and 2018
commercial
BRRRL(EM) TEREE “I-N\F 64,374 - - 158,363 79,372 60
Times Aerobic City (Guangzhou) Residential and 2018
commercial
BT [EE3 E 18,279 - - 82,256 - 45
Huangpu Chemical Commercial Pending
R A B2-24 IR TEREE 2 )\FERZZ-NE 61,145 - - 149,276 59,490 45
B2-2 land parcel, Sino-Singapore Residential and 2018-2019
Knowledge City commercial
SN TEREE ZE-\FEZZ-NE 108,890 - 5,246 202,744 67,091 60
Times Horizon Residential and 2018-2019
commercial
BRRB(1E#) FERES ZZ+ET)N\F 31,665 69,613 22,443 25,577 - 100
Times Cambridge (Huadu) Residential and 2017-2018
commercial
BRRAREKIER FEREE “Z-TF 20,211 - - 39,654 44192 70
Project of Shigang Road, Residential and 2020
Haizhu District commercial
BREM(TER) TEREE —I-N\F 20,076 - - 58,340 17,483 91
Times Fairy Land Residential and 2018
commercial
BREEE) TEREE —E-N\EF 20,177 - - 74,688 36,199 100
Times Forture Residential and 2018
commercial
BRESRE(EN) TEREE —Zo%F 53,985 - - 138,035 56,040 100
Guangzhou Times The Shore Residential and 2020
commercial
Bl
Foshan
FrR A (BE) FEREE ZE-REECTF 125,782 = 73,804 = = 100
Times King City (Shunde) Residential and 2016-2017
commercial
G TEREE “E-TFRIT—tF 505,776 - 131,601 - - 100
Times City (Foshan) Residential and 2010-2017
commercial
AR (BB ) E - TEREE ke SN2 12,860 - 6,125 - - 100
Times City (Foshan) Phase Vand VI Residential and 2016
commercial
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[E}: an EELVES
Under development/ future
Completed development
BB /Eit g Hitg Hitr FiE%E
ER HRER BIAM HBEE BEEERR [ BEERY  BEER0 Eze
Actual/expected Ownership
Project Project type completion dates Site area GFA for sale®®  Other GFA® GFA“4  Other GFA® interest®
(FAx) (FAK) (FAK) (FFR)
(sq.m.) (sq.m) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (%)
EREE(FBIL) TEREE “E-RFRIZRE 58,149 - 23,870 - - 100
Times Cloud Atlas (Foshan) Residential and 2015-2016
commercial
BB (Bl TEREE —T-Rf 34,308 - 355 - - 100
Times King City (Foshan) Phase IV Residential and 2015
commercial
BRI () TEREE —T—+tF 20,464 - 2,310 - - 100
Goden Lotus (Foshan) Residential and 2017
commercial
BREZ(fBI) TEREE E—tE 17,148 - 910 - - 100
Times Prime (Foshan) Residential and 2017
commercial
B ROKE (BRIl TEREE —E—tF 64,697 - 74,692 - - 51
Times Riverbank (Foshan) Residential and 2017
commercial
BREEHEGL) TEREE e 51,457 - 43,880 - - 100
Times The shore (Foshan) Residential and 2017
commercial
EREZ () TEREE —F-N\E 35,383 - - 92,087 28,185 55
Times Classic (Foshan) Residential and 2018
commercial
BRKE=H TEREE - \FEZT-NEF 111,658 - - 448,965 109,279 75
Times Riverbank (Foshan) Phase Il Residential and 2018-2019
commercial
Er R (BRI —H TEREE —E-)\E 105,553 - - 333,076 79,792 100
Ocean Times (Foshan) Phase | Residential and 2018
commercial
BRE(HE) TEREE —I-NE 40,794 - - 141,030 40,677 60
Timing Home Residential and 2019
commercial
BRI (FRIL) = TEREE —E-NE 89,927 - - 289,576 69,038 60
Ocean Times (Foshan) Phase |l Residential and 2019
commercial
BB (1) TEREE —ZNE 117,893 - - 304,560 99,304 90
Mt. Tittlis (Foshan) Residential and 2019
commercial
1M
Jiangmen
BREHE TEREE —E-NE 90,034 - - 182,539 45,755 100
Central Park Living Residential and 2019
commercial
B (B TEREE —“F-NE 120,804 - - 295,620 82,210 70
Times King City (Heshan) Residential and 2019
commercial
L TEREE S 3 316,980 - - 402,613 76,499 51
Lake Forest Residential and 2019
commercial
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BRI R/ ARER
Under development/ future
Completed development
BB /Rt g Hitg Hit fiEE
EH HEER BIAM BEREE BEERe [EEER BEERY  BEER0 B&e
Actual/expected Ownership
Project Project type completion dates Site area GFA for sale®¥  Other GFA® GFA“4  Other GFA® interest®
(FAx) (FAx) (FAK) (FAK)
(sg.m.) (sq.m,) (sg.m) (sq.m) (%)
b3
Zhuhai
KBS TEREE ZE3-CFE-T-MF 51,003 - 525 - - 100
Eolia City (Zhuhai) Residential and 2013-2014
commercial
BB (%) TEREE —T-HF 81,393 - 8,750 - - 100
Times Harbor (Zhuhai) Residential and 2015
commercial
B RIEA 058 — ) FEREZ —Z-1% 52,950 - 6,615 - - 100
Times King City (Zhuhai) Phase | Residential and 2015
commercial
BRIESCRE) = = 5 TEREE “ERERCT 198,204 - 27,860 - - 100
Times King City (Zhuhai) Residential and 2016-2017
Phases Il lll and IV commercial
BRESRR(RE) TEREE ZEAFEITtF 119,169 - 41,160 - - 100
The Shore (Zhuhai) Residential and 2016-2017
commercial
RABRIEESFER TEREE I 77,206 1,495 - - 16,478 49
Baoli Xiangbin Huayuan Project Residential and 2017
commercial
HERE T#e e 100,331 - - - - 100
Zhuhai Baisheng Industrial® Pending
KEBRAHEER TEREE “F-N\F 85,363 - - 217,951 49,318 63
West of Tin Ka Ping Secondary Residential and 2018
School, Zhuhai commercial
HBINERE FEREE —F-N\E 53,963 - - 115,044 38,852 60
Times Eolia City (Zhuhai) Residential and 2018
commercial
FrRIER (2K8) R FEREE ZE-0\F 17,791 - - 38,888 14,660 80
Times King City (Zhuhai) Residential and 2018
Phase V commercial
BRENTRES (HE) TEREE “E-NFRIZC-F 60,138 - - 259,114 85,308 25
Top Plaza Residential and 2019-2021
commercial
HEFPREERRETHIAR FEREZ “I-NE 20,000 - - 41,202 9,504 60
West of Heyi Road (Middle), Baijiao  Residential and 2019
Township, Doumen District, Zhuhai  commercial
B RRE(-) REREE —I-hE 11,393 - - 28,623 10,698 100
Times Horizon () Residential and 2019
commercial
BRXE(D) TEREE it Sl 23,712 - - 61,032 17,919 100
Times Horizon (1) Residential and 2019
commercial
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[E}: an EELVES
Under development/ future
Completed development
LY b g Hitg Hitr FiE%E
ER HRER BIAM HBEE BEEERR [ BEERY  BEER0 B&e
Actual/expected Ownership
Project Project type completion dates Site area GFA for sale®®  Other GFA® GFA“4  Other GFA® interest®
(FAx) (FAK) (FAK) (FFR)
(sq.m.) (sq.m) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (%)
AL
Zhongshan
BB (L) TEREE Z3-CFE-T-T1F 101,821 - 33,775 - - 100
Times King City (Zhongshan) Residential and 2013-2015
commercial
BREE (L) TEREE “E-RFREIZAF 46,667 - 567 - - 100
Times Cloud Atlas (Zhongshan) Residential and 2015-2016
commercial
g YIER FEREE ZZC-%F 125,065 - - 355,392 143,237 56
Jin Sha Project (Zhongshan) Residential and 2020
commercial
BRERFH TEREE ZZ-\FEIZ-E 104,430 - - 313913 97,225 49
Royal City (Zhongshan) Residential and 2018-2021
commercial
BREELE TEREE —F-NE-F-FF 54,725 - - 86,105 - 29
Times Byland (Zhongshan) Residential and 2014-2020
commercial
FIL=ZMIER TEREE “E-NE 39,351 - - 75,131 29,385 100
Sanxi Village Project (Zhongshan) Residential and 2019
commercial
BE
Qingyuan
BRENEER) EEREE “T-NFE-TNE 301,368 - 31,815 441,581 92,182 100
Times King City (Qingyuan) Residential and 2014-2019
commercial
BRIEA(EER) -1 TEREE ZIRF 70,650 - 33,086 - - 100
Times Garden (Qingyuan) Phase | Residential and 2016
commercial
BRI (BE) 8 TEREE “E-NE 84,440 - - 235,556 77,921 100
Times Garden (Qingyuan) Phase Il Residential and 2019
commercial
BRAKER FEREE “ERE 551,087 - - 1,090,746 43,896 100
Fogang Shilian Project Residential and 2026
commercial
BRETCHER TEREE —Z-NE 477,020 - - 905,245 301,747 100
Fogang Huanghua Lake Project Residential and 2019
commercial
BREERF(ER)EE TEREE “E-FE 91,127 - - 331,765 11,191 100
RRMEE Residential and 2020
The Shore Il (Qingyuan) Jiada commercial
Feilai Lake Project
BRESRE(FR)EEAER REREE —T-hE 68,840 - - 253,323 80,827 90
The Shore (Qingyuan) Wanda West ~ Residential and 2019
Project commercial
BRER(ER)NB(RIBER) TEREE 23 42214 - - 159,470 56,470 100
Times King City (Qingyuan) Phase IX  Residential and 2019
(Heshun Project) commercial
EEBRMREER FEREE —Z-%F 118,164 - - 358,874 119,290 70
Fogang Songfeng Project Residential and 2020
commercial
BREGRFE_H(ER) TEREE —E-NE-F-TF 133,102 - - 475,085 158,732 100
BERTAEE Residential and 2019-2020
The Shore Il (Qingyuan) Hengda commercial

Feilai Lake Project
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BRI R/ ARER
Under development/ future
Completed development
BB /Rt g Hitgs Hit fiEE
EH HEER BIAM BEREE BEERe [EEER BEERY  BEER0 B&e
Actual/expected Ownership
Project Project type completion dates Site area GFA for sale®¥  Other GFA® GFA“4  Other GFA® interest®
(FAx) (FAx) (FAK) (FAK)
(sg.m.) (sq.m,) (sg.m) (sq.m) (%)
BRRREHRIER TEREE —T-hEF 23,137 - - 69,927 28,173 100
Feilai south road Project (Qingyuan)  Residential and 2019
commercial
BRER(FER) TEREE “T-NE 28,620 - - 97,403 23,200 100
Times Sweet (Qingyuan) Residential and 2019
commercial
Changsha
BRER(RD) TEREE TR F 649,362 - 96,016 1,306,853 183,171 100
Times King City (Changsha) Residential and 2013-2021
commercial
BREE(RD) TEREE “ECTE 48,017 - - 144,051 41,065 55
Times Prime (Changsha) Residential and 2020
commercial
R=
Dongguan
BRI (R%) TEREE - \FEZTNE 55,792 - - 160,310 26,837 52
Times King City (Dongguan) Residential and 2018-2019
commercial
BRAE(RE) TEREZE —I-0\F 79,190 - - 148,841 39,120 55
Times Realm (Dongguan) Residential and 2018
commercial
BRXE(RR) TEREE —I-0\F 42,519 - - 108,723 20,522 100
Times Thriving City (Dongguan) Residential and 2018
commercial
M
Huizhou
LEYEELR EEREE ZT-NER-TCTE 284,414 - - 493,193 181,575 49
Desai Land Parcel of Gutang'ao Residential and 2019-2020
commercial
BREZS o BEEMN) TEREE It Sl 23,459 - - 77,092 25,796 80
Golden Totus (Huizhou) Residential and 2019
commercial
BMEEEER FEREE “E-FF 71,274 - - 93,539 43,048 100
Vantin Casa (Huizhou) Residential and 2020
commercial
R E=FMAEHEA TEREE k- <2 62,000 - - 151,872 46,646 80
Sanhe Road Housing Estate (Huizhou) Residential and 2020
commercial
23t
Total 7,865,002 82,433 893,149 12,501,931 3,357,999
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The table above includes properties for which (i) the Group has
obtained the relevant land use rights certificate(s), but have not
obtained the requisite construction permits or (ii) the Group has
signed a land grant contract with the relevant government authority,
but have not obtained the land use rights certificate(s). The figures
for total and saleable GFA are based on figures provided in the
relevant governmental documents, such as the property ownership
certificates, the construction work planning permits, the pre-sale
permits, the construction land planning permits or the land use rights
certificate. The categories of information are based on our internal
records.

Certain completed projects have no GFA available for sale by the
Group as all saleable GFA have been sold, pre-sold or rented out.

“Other GFA” mainly comprises car parks and ancillary facilities.

“GFA for sale” and “GFA under development and GFA held for future
development” are derived from the Group’s internal records and
estimates.

“Ownership interest” is based on the Group’s effective ownership
interest in the respective project companies.

The Group is in the process of applying for the conversion of the land
use for Guangzhou Tianhe Project from industrial use to residential
and commercial use.

The Group is in the process of applying for the conversion of the land
use for Guangzhou Tiansi Project from industrial use to residential
and commercial use.

The Group is in the process of applying for the conversion of the land
use for Zhuhai Baisheng to residential and commercial use.

Acquisitions of Land Parcels during the year 2017

The Group continued to expand its land reserves through various

channels, including participations in government public auctions,

urban redevelopment projects, primary development, cooperation

and acquisitions.

For 2017, the Group acquired 25 parcels of land in Guangzhou,

Foshan, Zhuhai, Jiangmen, Zhongshan, Changsha, Qingyuan and

Huizhou, and the land acquisition costs amounted to a total of

approximately RMB16,915 million.
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HB B WREE BAEEEEE 48 + 3 B A<

BB T Number of Expected total Total

Location (City) of Projects projects Site area GFA land costs

(FF2K) (FAK) (AREEZT)

(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million)

=0 Guangzhou 5 179,948 518,715 5,428

#B11 Foshan 2 207,820 758,296 4,917

b7 Nis] Zhuhai 2 35,105 87,763 709

7P Jiangmen 3 527,818 1,000,431 1,248

A Zhongshan 3 306,120 519,095 441

ED Changsha 1 48,017 185,316 577

BIR Qingyuan 6 414,092 1,529,896 2,428

=N Huizhou 3 156,733 385,750 1,167

a5t Total 25 1,875,653 4,985,262 16,915
3% [ B8 Market Review
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During the Reporting Period, the real estate sector maintained a
stable growth in both transaction volume and price. According to
the data from the National Bureau of Statistics, the saleable area of
commercial properties reached 1,694.08 million sgq.m. nationwide
and increased by 7.7% on a year-on-year basis, representing a
decrease of 14.8 percentage points in growth rate compared with
the corresponding period of last year. The transaction volume
of commercial properties amounted to RMB13,370.1 billion and
increased by 13.7% on a year-on-year basis, representing a
decrease of 21.1 percentage points in growth rate compared with
the corresponding period of last year. In particular, the saleable area
of commercial residential properties was 1,447.89 million sg.m.,
accounting for 85.5% of the sales area of commercial properties
and representing a year-on-year increase of 5.3% (17.1 percentage
points lower than last year in growth rate). The sales of commercial
residential properties amounted to RMB11,024 billion, accounting
for 82.5% of the sales of commercial properties and representing a
year-on-year increase of 11.3% (24.8 percentage points lower than
last year in growth rate). Under unwavering and stringent regulatory
policies, the sector has grown at a slower pace, with the return of
a rational market and stable real estate growth. The government’s
regulatory policies aim at further bringing the real estate sector back
to a rational state and preventing the real estate market from risks,
which will benefit the long-term, sustainable development of the
sector.
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Prospects

2018 is the first year of practicing the spirit of the 19th CPC National
Congress. The Chinese economy is expected to maintain its steady
growth, as the country maintains its prudent and neutral monetary
policy and a proactive fiscal policy.

It is expected that China will be consistent and stable with its policy
on regulating the real estate market and sustain differentiated control
measures, to ensure a stable development of the real estate industry.
The financial deleveraging policy is also expected to stay, which will
bring new opportunities on industry integration and development.

With continuous population inflow and further infrastructure
improvement, primary city clusters will enjoy even greater value and
advantages, offering a sustainable drive to industry development.

In response to the country’s call for quality development as a
basic requirement, the Group has repositioned itself as an “Urban
Development Service Provider”, in a bid to serve the development of
real economy and adapt to urban development and the upgrade of
market consumption demand. In the future, we will stress our role as
an “Urban Development Service Provider” in extending our business,
serving both urban dwellers and the cities where they live.

Committed to providing multi-dimensional services for urban
development, we will, on the basis of ensuring sustainable and
robust development of our core business, take steps to grow such
business segments as urban redevelopment, industry, commerce,
long-term rental apartments, community services, logistics and
warehousing, education, furniture and home decorations.
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The Group will closely follow the national strategies on regional
development. More specifically, it will continue to establish its
presence across the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay
Area, take an active part in urban redevelopment of the region, boost
its market share in regions where the Group has made its presence,
and extend its layout across Guangdong Province and to other cities
with high growth potential.

We will maintain prudent investment strategies, and acquire sufficient
and quality land reserves through a wide array of approaches.

In addition, the Group will flexibly respond to market changes to
procure sales proactively and strengthen cash flow management.
We will stay attentive to the changes of financial environment and
actively explore diverse financing channels.

Financial Review

Revenue

The Group’s revenue is primarily generated from property
development, property leasing and sub-leasing and property
management services, which contributed about 97.2%, 1.3% and
1.5% respectively of the revenue of 2017. The Group’s revenue
increased by RMB6,903.5 million, or 42.6%, to RMB23,110.0
million for 2017 from RMB16,206.5 million for 2016. This increase
was primarily attributable to the increase in revenue from the sale of
properties.



TREFIAEERATRIZES D #BE D WA
A

EEGWE REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue by operating
segments as indicated:

—E—tEE —T-RFE

Year 2017 Year 2016

(AR¥EET) (AREBZET)
(RMB in millions) (%) (RMB in millions) (%)
YEHE Sale of properties 22,4731 97.2 15,620.1 96.4
THEWA Rental income 289.5 1.3 208.2 1.8
YEEEEBWRA Property management 347.4 1.5 288.2 1.8

fee income
23,110.0 100.0 16,206.5 100.0
Y E3 4 Property development

REBKREBMEHEENRAB-_ZT—RFHA
E#156200 1 BB T ME_T—LFHARK
224731B &L EMAR®6853.08&8 T -
I8 /43.9% © ZIEMEERHRAFERMNF
HEERSMNEBEEHLERS -RZZT—EFARX
SEFRERPANIEL X ERFRHAEBE (E
) BREE (D) 8 BREBE(EMN)—
B BAROKE (B — B RERE SRR (FIL)
—Hi% o

VB ENER

AEBRSAWAR —T—RFHARK2982H
BRI E—T—LFMARK28958ET B
DPARESTEHETT  BIER2.9% ° LR EER
HRFARIREVEESER -

YEEERE
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347T4BETT HMARB2HET - IR
205% c ZEMFEZERHRAEEER ZIHEAH
EREEEMEL -

SHEMA
REBEERAIAAZE—NFHARK11,956.2
BETENE=ZT—+FHARK16,660.18 5
JC - EIMARK4,703.98 & T ¢ HEIRA39.3% °
ZEMEZEZERMEHES LA -

The Group’s revenue from sales of properties increased by
RMB6,853.0 million, or 43.9%, to RMB22,473.1 million for 2017 from
RMB15,620.1 million for 2016. The increase was primarily due to the
higher percentage of projects with higher average unit price delivered
for the year. The projects that contributed substantially to the
Group’s revenue for 2017 mainly include Time Bridges (Zengcheng),
Phase Il of Times King City (Changsha), Phase | of Central Park
Living (Guangzhou), Phase | of Times Riverbank (Foshan), and Phase
| of Times The Shore (Foshan).

Property leasing and sub-leasing

The Group’s gross rental income decreased by RMB8.7 million,
or 2.9%, to RMB289.5 million for 2017 from RMB298.2 million
for 2016. The decrease was primarily due to the transfer of some
investment properties to owner-occupied properties for the year.

Property management services

The Group’s revenue from property management services increased
by RMB59.2 million, or 20.5%, to RMB347.4 million for 2017 from
RMB288.2 million for 2016. The increase was primarily attributable
to the increase in the number of projects and areas that the Group
managed.

Cost of sales
The Group’s cost of sales increased by RMB4,703.9 million, or
39.3%, to RMB16,660.1 million for 2017 from RMB11,956.2 million
for 2016. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase of
property sales.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by RMB2,199.7 million, or
51.8%, to RMB6,449.9 million for 2017 from RMB4,250.2 million for
2016. For 2017, the Group’s gross profit margin increased to 27.9%
from 26.2% for 2016. The increase was primarily due to the increase
in recognised income from products with higher gross profit margin as
compared with 2016.

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income and gains increased to RMB818.2
million for 2017 from RMB362.9 million for 2016 which is primarily
due to the increase in gain on bargain purchase of a joint venture,
the increase in fair value gains on investment properties and bank
interest income.

Selling and marketing costs

The Group’s selling and marketing costs decreased by RMB34.6
million, or 5.3%, from RMB657.5 million for 2016 to RMB622.9
million for 2017. The decrease was mainly due to strengthening the
cost control on selling and marketing costs.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by RMB195.2
million, or 36.3%, to RMB732.3 million for 2017 from RMB537.1
million for 2016, which was primarily due to the increase in the
number of employees resulting from business expansion of the
Company.

Other expenses

The Group’s other expenses increased by RMB364.3 million to
RMB448.5 million for 2017 from RMB84.2 million for 2016. The
increase was primarily due to the premium paid on early redemption
of senior notes, the fair value loss of the derivative component of the
convertible bonds and an increase in donation.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by RMB161.0 million, or 67.1%,
to RMB400.9 million for 2017 from RMB239.9 million for 2016. The
increase was primarily due to an increase in the amounts of bank
facilities in relation to the Group’s land acquisitions and expansion of
property developments.
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Income tax expenses

The Group’s income tax expenses increased by RMB769.1 million,
or 65.3%, to RMB1,947.3 million for 2017 from RMB1,178.2 million
for 2016. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in
the Group’s taxable profit in 2017.

Profit for the year

The Company’s profit for the year increased by RMB1,358.5 million,
or 68.5%, to RMB3,340.9 million as of 31 December 2017 from
RMB1,982.4 million as of 31 December 2016. Basic earnings per
share and diluted earnings per share for 2017 were RMB151 cents
(2016: RMB113 cents) and RMB145 cents (2016: RMB107 cents)
respectively.

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company increased by
RMB712.2 million, or 36.4%, to RMB2,667.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 from RMB1,955.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016. Core net profit attributable to the
owners of the Company increased by RMB722.9 million, or 40.0%
to RMB2,532.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 from
RMB1,809.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources

Cash position

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying balance of the Group’s cash
and bank deposits was approximately RMB17,206.8 million (31
December 2016: RMB11,880.7 million), representing an increase
of 44.8% when compared with that of 31 December 2016. Under
relevant PRC laws and regulations, some of the Group’s project
companies are required to place a certain amount of pre-sale
proceeds in designated bank accounts as guarantee deposits for
construction of the relevant properties. These guarantee deposits
may only be used for payments to construction contractors in the
project development process and for other construction-related
payments, such as purchase of materials. The remaining guarantee
deposits are released when certificates of completion for the relevant
properties have been obtained. In addition, a portion of the Group’s
bank deposits represented loan proceeds in the monitoring accounts
designated by the banks, in which case the use of the restricted
bank deposits, subject to the banks’ approval, is restricted to the
purposes as set out in the relevant loan agreements. The remaining
restricted deposits were primarily time deposits. As at 31 December
2017, the Group’s restricted bank deposits was RMB2,943.8 million
(81 December 2016: RMB2,958.0 million).
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Borrowings and pledged assets

The Group had aggregate interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings of approximately RMB33,289.1 million as at 31
December 2017. Borrowings that are due within one year increased
from RMB1,956.1 million as at 31 December 2016 to RMB6,030.0
million as at 31 December 2017, and approximately RMB25,093.0
million of borrowings are due within two to five years and
approximately RMB2,166.1 million of borrowings are due in over five
years. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s outstanding borrowings
were secured by certain of its property, plant and equipment,
interests in joint ventures, properties under development, investment
properties and prepaid land lease payments with carrying values of
approximately RMB368.4 million, RMB949.5 million, RMB4,811.8
million, RMB726.9 million and RMB946.1 million, respectively.

Details of the equity or debt securities issued by the Company and/
or its subsidiaries are set out below:

(a) USD 6.6% Senior Notes due 2023

On 30 November 2017, the Company issued 6.6% senior
notes due 2023 (“USD 6.6% Senior Notes due 2023”) in
a principal amount of USD300,000,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB1,981,020,000). USD 6.6% Senior Notes
due 2023 are listed on the SEHK and bear interest from and
including 30 November 2017 at the rate of 6.6% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears.

(b) RMB 8.2% Non-Public Domestic Corporate Bonds
due 2022

On 8 September 2017, EMMRARIZHREEFR A A
(Guangzhou Times Holdings Group Co., Ltd.*) (“Guangzhou
Times”, formerly known as EM MR RMEEEHGR A A
(Guangzhou Times Property Group Co., Ltd.*)) issued 8.2%
non-public domestic corporate bonds due 2022 (“RMB
8.2% Non-Public Domestic Corporate Bonds due 2022”) in a
principal amount of RMB1,100,000,000. Guangzhou Times
is entitled to adjust coupon rate at the end of the third year,
while investors are entitled to sell back. RMB 8.2% Non-
Public Domestic Corporate Bonds due 2022 are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange and bear interest from and
including 8 September 2017 at the rate of 8.2% per annum,
payable annually in arrears.
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RMB 7.75% Non-Public Domestic Corporate Bonds
due 2020

On 8 September 2017, Guangzhou Times issued 7.75% non-
public domestic corporate bonds due 2020 (“RMB 7.75%
Non-Public Domestic Corporate Bonds due 2020”) in a
principal amount of RMB500,000,000. Guangzhou Times is
entitled to adjust coupon rate at the end of the second year,
while investors are entitled to sell back. RMB 7.75% Non-
Public Domestic Corporate Bonds due 2020 are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange and bear interest from and
including 8 September 2017 at the rate of 7.75% per annum,
payable annually in arrears.

USD 5.75% Senior Notes due 2022

On 26 April 2017, the Company issued 5.75% senior notes
due 2022 (“USD 5.75% Senior Notes due 2022”) in a principal
amount of USD225,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB1,549,013,000). USD 5.75% Senior Notes due 2022
are listed on the SEHK and bear interest from and including
26 April 2017 at the rate of 5.75% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears.

USD 6.25% Senior Notes due 2020

On 28 January 2017, the Company issued 6.25% senior
notes due 2020 (“USD 6.25% Senior Notes due 2020”)
in a principal amount of USD375,000,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB2,571,450,000). USD 6.25% Senior Notes
due 2020 are listed on the SEHK and bear interest from and
including 23 January 2017 at the rate of 6.25% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears.
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(A

(g)

(h)

RMB 7.88% Non-Public Domestic Corporate Bonds
due 2019

On 18 January 2016, Guangzhou Times issued 7.88% non-
public domestic corporate bonds due 2019 (“RMB 7.88%
Non-Public Domestic Corporate Bonds due 2019”) in a
principal amount of RMB3,000,000,000, with the option to
redeem by Guangzhou Times at the end of the second year.
RMB 7.88% non-public domestic corporate bonds due 2019
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and bear interest
from and including 18 January 2016 at the rate of 7.88% per
annum, payable annually in arrears.

RMB 7.85% Non-Public Domestic Corporate Bonds
due 2018

On 26 October 2015, Guangzhou Times issued 7.85% non-
public domestic corporate bonds due 2018 (“RMB 7.85%
Non-Public Domestic Corporate Bonds due 2018”) in a
principal amount of RMB3,000,000,000. RMB 7.85% non-
public domestic corporate bonds due 2018 are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange and bear interest from and
including 26 October 2015 at the rate of 7.85% per annum,
payable annually in arrears.

RMB 6.75% Public Domestic Corporate Bonds due
2020

On 15 July 2015, Guangzhou Times issued 6.75% public
domestic corporate bonds due 2020 (“RMB 6.75% Public
Domestic Corporate Bonds due 2020”) in a principal amount
of RMB2,000,000,000. Guangzhou Times shall be entitled to
increase the coupon rate after the end of the third year and
the investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds. RMB
6.75% public domestic corporate bonds due 2020 are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and bear interest from
and including 15 July 2015 at the rate of 6.75% per annum,
payable annually in arrears.
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USD 11.45% Senior Notes due 2020

On 5 March 2015, the Company issued 11.45% senior
notes due 2020 (“USD 11.45% Senior Notes due 2020”)
in a principal amount of USD280,000,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB1,722,784,000). USD 11.45% Senior
Notes due 2020 are listed on the SEHK and bear interest
from and including 5 March 2015 at the rate of 11.45% per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.

On 16 July 2017, the Company fully redeemed an aggregate
principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000 of 10.375% senior
notes due 2017 at a redemption price of RMB1,577,173,500,
which equals to 100% of the principal amount of such notes
plus the accrued and unpaid interest to the due date.

Convertible Bonds

On 7 July 2014, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Schiavona Investment Holdings Ltd. (the
“Investor”), pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to issue convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HKD388,000,000 due 2019 (approximately
equivalent to RMB308,369,000) (the “Bonds”) at the price of
100% of their principal amount. The Bonds bear interest at
the rate of 8% per annum and payable quarterly in arrears.
Subject to the terms of the Bonds, the bondholders have the
right to convert their Bonds into shares (the “New Shares”)
to be allotted and issued by the Company upon conversion
of the Bonds at any time during the conversion period.
The Bonds are jointly and severally guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Group. The Company intended to use the
net proceeds for refinancing, redemption or other repayment
of existing financial indebtedness. The initial conversion price
is HKD3.50, representing a premium of approximately 12.9%
of the closing price of HKD3.10 per share as quoted on the
SEHK on 7 July 2014.
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On 19 May 2017, the Investor exercised the conversion
right attaching to the Bonds in a principal amount of
HKD65,000,000, and 18,571,428 New Shares were allotted
and issued to the Investor at an initial conversion price of
HKD3.50 per share. Upon conversion, the aggregate principal
amount of the Bonds was reduced to HKD323,000,000.

On 24 August 2017, the Investor exercised the conversion
right attaching to the Bonds in a principal amount of
HKD323,000,000, and 92,285,714 New Shares were allotted
and issued to the Investor at an initial conversion price of
HKD3.50 per share. Upon conversion, all the Bonds had
been fully converted.

(|) On 21 March 2017, the Company redeemed an aggregate
principal amount of USD305,000,000 of all of the outstanding
12.625% senior notes due 2019 (“USD 12.625% Senior
Notes due 2019”) at a redemption price of USD343,507,775,
which equals to 106.313% of the principal amount of such
notes plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption
date.

Other Performance Indicators

Net current assets and current ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to approximately RMB45,689.0 million (31 December 2016:
approximately RMB25,576.1 million). As at 31 December 2017, the
Group’s current ratio, calculated as current assets divided by current
liabilities, was approximately 2.0 times as compared with 1.8 times as
at 31 December 2016.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net debts (total interest
bearing bank loans and other borrowings, including the debt
component of the convertible bonds, net of cash and bank balances)
over net assets was 57.6% (31 December 2016: 54.7%).
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Financial Guarantee

As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding guarantee mortgage
loans that domestic banks provided to purchasers of the Group’s
properties amounted to approximately RMB20,223.5 million (31
December 2016: approximately RMB18,098.3 million). These
guarantees are released upon the earlier of (i) the relevant certificates
of registration of mortgage or the certificates of other interests with
respect to the relevant properties being delivered to the mortgagor
banks; and (ii) the settlement of mortgage loans between the
mortgagor banks and the purchasers of the Group’s projects. If
a purchaser defaults on a mortgage loan before the guarantees
are released, the Group may have to repurchase the underlying
property by paying off mortgage. If the Group fails to do so, the
mortgagor bank may auction the underlying property and recover
any outstanding amount from the Group if the amount of outstanding
loan exceeds the net foreclosure sales proceeds from the auction. In
line with industry practices, the Group do not conduct independent
credit reviews of our customers but rely on the credit reviews
conducted by the mortgagor banks.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The following section lists out the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other
risks and uncertainties further to the principal risk areas outlined
below. Besides, this report does not constitute a recommendation
or an advice for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company
and investors are advised to make their own judgment or consult
their own investment advisors before making any investment in the
securities of the Company.
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Risks pertaining to the property market in the PRC and, in
particular, in Guangdong and Hunan Provinces

All of the Group’s property portfolio is located in the PRC and all of
the Group’s revenue is derived in the PRC. As at 31 December 2017,
we had a total of 79 residential property projects at various stages
of development, 77 of which are located in Guangdong Province.
As such, the Group is therefore subject to the risks associated with
China’s property market. The Group’s operations in the PRC may
also be exposed to the risks of policy change, interest rate change,
demand-supply imbalance and the overall economic conditions,
which may pose an adverse impact on the Group’s business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Operational risks

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to property development and property related businesses.
Default on the part of its buyers, tenants, sub-tenants and strategic
business partners, and inadequacies or failures of internal processes,
people and systems or other external factors may have various
levels of negative impact on the results of the Group’s operations.
Additionally, accidents may happen despite systems and policies set
up for their prevention, which may lead to the Group’s financial loss,
litigation, or damage in reputation.

Property development is capital intensive. The Group finances its
land acquisitions and property developments through a combination
of internally generated funds and external financing. Its ability to
obtain external financing in the future is subject to a variety of
uncertainties, including the conditions of the financial markets
and economic conditions in the PRC. If the Group fails to secure
adequate financing or renew its existing loans prior to their expiry as
a result of these governmental actions and policy initiatives, there
may be a material adverse effect on the business operations and
financial condition of the Group.

Risks pertaining to the property leasing and sub-leasing

The rental rates and the occupancy rates will depend on various
factors, including but not limited to, prevailing supply and demand
conditions, economic conditions as well as the quality of the
properties. There is no assurance that the Group is able to look for
new tenants and/or sub-tenants within a short period of time or
procure new leases or renew existing leases and/or sub-leases at
the prevailing market rates.
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Foreign Currency Risks

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and conducts its operations
mainly in Renminbi. The Group will closely monitor the fluctuations
of the Renminbi exchange rate and give prudent consideration
as to entering into any currency swap arrangement as and when
appropriate for hedging corresponding risks. As at 31 December
2017, the Group had not engaged in hedging activities for managing
foreign currency risk.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures,
and Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other significant
investments held, no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year, nor was
there any plan authorised by the Board for other material investments
or additions of capital assets at the date of this report.

Events After the Reporting Period

The Group has the following material subsequent events:

On 17 January 2018, the Company issued 6.25% senior notes due
2021 (“USD 6.25% Senior Notes due 2021”) in a principal amount of
USD500,000,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB3,216,750,000).
USD 6.25% Senior Notes due 2021 are listed on the SEHK and bear
interest from and including 17 January 2018 at the rate of 6.25% per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The Company has received
net proceeds of RMB3,167,212,000 by the date of approval of this
report.
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On 15 January 2018, a special resolution was passed by the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) to approve the
change of the English name of the Company from “Times Property
Holdings Limited” to “Times China Holdings Limited”; and the
adoption of the Chinese name of “BRFA A EIZARFR A F]" as the
dual foreign name of the Company in place of its existing Chinese
name “BFHIBEIERGE A7) (the “Change of Company Name”).
The Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name was issued by
the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands on 15 January
2018 regarding the Change of Company Name with effect from 15
January 2018. The Certificate of Registration of Alteration of Name
of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by the Hong
Kong Companies Registry on 6 February 2018 certifying that the
new name of the Company has been registered in Hong Kong.
Following the Change of Company Name, the stock short name of
the Company for trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange has
been changed from “TIMES PPT” to “TIMES CHINA” in English and
from “BrRHE" to “BrXPEIEAL” in Chinese with effect from 27
February 2018. The debt securities short names of the Company
have also been changed with effect from 27 February 2018, details
of which were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22
February 2018.

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 7,492 employees
(31 December 2016: 6,016 employees). The remuneration of
the employees is commensurate with their performance, skills,
knowledge, experience and the market trend. Employee benefits
provided by the Group include provident fund schemes, medical
insurance scheme, unemployment insurance scheme and housing
provident fund. The Group reviews the remuneration policies and
packages on a regular basis and will make necessary adjustments
that accommodate the pay levels in the industry. In addition to basic
salaries, the employees may be offered with discretionary bonuses
and cash awards based on individual performances. The Group
also provides training programs for the employees with a view to
constantly upgrading their skills and knowledge. Further, the Group
adopted the share option scheme on 19 November 2013 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) as incentives or rewards for the employees’
contributions to the Group. Further information of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of
this annual report. The Group’s employee benefit expense (excluding
Directors’ remuneration) is approximately RMB593.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB491.2 million).
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Emolument Policy

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

Environmental Protection

Environmental Policies and Performance

Information on the environmental policies and performance of the
Company is set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Group has complied with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations of the places where the Group has business operations.
The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time
and will consider implementing further measures and practices in the
Group’s business operations to enhance sustainability.

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability from office
throughout the property portfolio. As a responsible developer, the
Group strives to ensure minimal environmental impacts by carefully
managing its energy consumption, water usage, property design and
waste production. In addition, we engaged construction contractors
with sound environmental protection and safety track records and
have closely monitored the project at every stage to ensure the
construction process is in compliance with environmental protection
and safety laws and regulations, and would require construction
contractors to immediately resolve any defect or non-compliance,
where necessary.

The Group has always paid great attention to and has maintained a
good working relationship with its suppliers of raw materials, and has
been providing satisfactory customer services. The aforementioned
suppliers and customers are good working partners creating values
to the Group. In addition, the Group also values the knowledge and
skills of its employees, and continues to provide career development
opportunities for its employees.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group, particularly in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations, in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group. The audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”) is delegated by the Board to
monitor the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and such policies are regularly
reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Charitable Donations

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group made
charitable and other donations in a total amount of RMB66.9 million.

Key Relationships with the Group’s Employees,
Customers and Suppliers

Workplace quality

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not
discriminate on the basis of personal characteristics. With an aim to
enhancing the quality of the Board’s performance by diversity, the
board diversity policy was adopted. Details of such board diversity
policy are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report — Board Diversity Policy”. Further, the Group has employee
handbooks outlining terms and conditions of employment,
expectations for employees’ conduct and behaviour, employees’
rights and benefits. The Group establishes and implements policies
that promote a harmony and respectful workplace.

The Group believes that the Directors, senior management and
employees are instrumental to the success of the Group and that
their industry knowledge and understanding of the market will enable
the Group to maintain the competitiveness in the market. Therefore,
the Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 19
November 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to Eligible Participants (as defined below) who contributed to the
success of the Group’s operations.
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The Group provides on-the-job training and development
opportunities to enhance its employees’ career progression. Through
different trainings, staff's professional knowledge in corporate
operations, occupational and management skills are enhanced.
The Group also organised charitable and staff-friendly activities for
employees, such as annual dinner, to promote staff relationship.

The Group provides a safe, effective and congenial working
environment. Adequate arrangements, trainings and guidelines are
implemented to ensure the working environment is healthy and
safe. The Group provided health and safety communications for
employees to present the relevant information and raise awareness
of occupational health and safety issues.

The Group values the health and well-being of its staff. In order to
provide employees with health coverage, its employees are entitled
to medical insurance benefits.

Relationships with the Group’s other stakeholders

The Group maintains good relationships with existing and potential
customers as understanding of the market trends would enable
the Group to monitor and review the credit quality of the customers
and timely adjust its operating strategies, which are crucial to the
development and success of the Group. The Group places effort to
build up and maintain good relationships with various commercial
banks and financial institutions as the businesses of the Group are
capital intensive nature and require on-going funding to maintain
continuous growth.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its financial institutions
and/or customers.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 146 of
this annual report.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB41.43 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: RMB31.51 cents) to the Shareholders. The final dividend, if
approved, will be payable on or around 3 July 2018 and is subject to
the approval of the Shareholders at the annual general meeting to be
held on 18 May 2018 (the “AGM”).

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and paid in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”). The final dividend payable in HKD will be
converted from RMB at the average exchange rate of HKD against
RMB announced by the People’s Bank of China on 18 May 2018.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities for the last
five financial years are set out on pages 327 to 328 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds from the listing of the Company (after deducting
underwriting fees and related expenses) amounted to approximately
HKD1,477.4 million, which shall be applied in compliance with the
intended use of proceeds set out in the section headed “Future
plans and use of proceeds” of the prospectus of the Company dated
29 November 2013 (the “Prospectus”), of which, approximately
33.3% of the net proceeds were utilised for settling part of the
outstanding installments under the Restructuring Deed (as defined in
the Prospectus) and approximately 55.1% of the net proceeds were
utilised for financing new and existing projects, including the land
acquisition and construction costs of potential development projects.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 5.3% of the total sales of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 and sales from the largest customer accounted
for 3.83%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 31.0% of the total purchase for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and purchase from the largest supplier
accounted for 13.1%.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the number of the issued Shares) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note
13 to financial statements in this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 15 to
financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no changes in the number of the issued Shares during
the year ended 31 December 2017. Details of the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 33 to financial statements in this annual
report.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the convertible bonds of the Company are set forth in the
section headed “Business Review — Liquidity, Financial and Capital —
Borrowings and pledged assets” and note 32 to financial statements
in this annual report.

SENIOR NOTES

Details of the senior notes of the Company are set forth in the
section headed “Business Review — Liquidity, Financial and Capital
— Borrowings and pledged assets” and note 31(f) to financial
statements in this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme (as defined below) and the
New Shares issued upon the exercise of the conversion rights
attaching to the Bonds as disclosed in the section headed “Liquidity,
Financial and Capital Resources — Borrowings and pledged assets”
in this report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing Shares, or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares, were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out on page 150 in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of this annual report and in note 50 to
financial statements in this annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, amounted to approximately RMB750.1 million (as
at 31 December 2016: RMB902.1 million).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and
the Group as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 31 to financial
statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Guan Jianhui

Mr. Bai Xihong

Mr. Li Qiang

Mr. Shum Siu Hung

Mr. Niu Jimin

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Jin Qingjun
Ms. Sun Hui
Mr. Wong Wai Man

In accordance with articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”), one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) will retire from office by rotation and will
be eligible for re-election and re-appointment at every annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition will hold office until the next following general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment.

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Guan Jianhui, Mr. Bai Xihong and Mr. Li Qiang will retire by rotation
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as the
Directors at the forthcoming AGM.
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Circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company will be despatched to the
Shareholders in due course.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 19 to 25 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company received confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of their independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Board considered all
of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 18 November 2016 for a term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2016 and may be terminated
pursuant to the respective terms of the service contracts.

Ms. Sun Hui and Mr. Wong Wai Man, the independent non-executive
Directors, have signed a letter of appointment on 18 November 2016
for a term of three years commencing from 11 December 2016. Mr.
Jin Qingjun, an independent non-executive Director, has signed a
letter of appointment on 28 October 2015 for an initial term of three
years commencing from 28 October 2015.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year or
at the end of the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2017.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Prior to the Listing, the Company conditionally adopted the Share
Option Scheme on 19 November 2013 which became effective and
unconditional upon the Listing. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to the Eligible
Participants (as defined below) as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. Details of the Share Option Scheme are
set out below:

(a) Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and
is established to enable the Company to grant options to
the Eligible Participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution they had or may have made to the Group. The
Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with
the view to achieving the following objectives: (i) motivate the
Eligible Participants to optimise their performance efficiency
for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attract and retain or
otherwise maintain on-going business relationship with
the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.

(b)  Eligible Participants

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance
with paragraph (e) below to: (i) any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries; (i) any directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
(i) any advisers, suppliers, customers, distributors and
agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and (iv) any
such other persons who in the sole opinion of the Board, will
contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Eligible Participants”).
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Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under
any other share option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately following the completion of the Global Offering
(“the Hong Kong Public Offering and International Offering”)
(but taking no account of any Shares which may be allotted
and issued pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment
Option), being 183,381,714 Shares, representing 10% of
the issued Shares as at the date of this report, excluding for
this purpose Shares which would have been issued on the
exercise in full of options in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme (or any other share option schemes
of the Company, but not canceled, lapsed or exercised).
Subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the
approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time, the Board may: (i) renew this limit at any time to
10% of the Shares in issue as of the date of the approval by
the Shareholders in general meeting; and/or (i) grant options
beyond the 10% limit to Eligible Participants specifically
identified by the Board.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
options shall be granted under any schemes of the Company
(including the Share Option Scheme) if this will result in
the 30% limit being exceeded. The maximum number of
Shares in respect of which options may be granted shall be
adjusted, in such manner as the auditor of the Company or
an approved independent financial adviser shall certify to be
appropriate, fair and reasonable in the event of any alteration
in the capital structure of the Company whether by way of
consolidation, capitalisation issue, rights issue, sub-division or
reduction of the share capital of the Company but in no event
shall exceed the limit prescribed in this paragraph.
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(d)

(e)

Maximum number of options to each Eligible
Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as
of the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess
of this 1% limit shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular
by the Company which shall comply with Rules 17.03(4) and
17.06 of the Listing Rules containing the identity of the Eligible
Participant, the numbers and terms of the options to be
granted (and options previously granted to such participant)
the information as required under Rules 17.02(2)(d) and the
disclaimer required under 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules; and
(i) the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/
or other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules
from time to time with such Eligible Participant and his/her
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from
voting. The numbers and terms (including the exercise price)
of options to be granted to such participant must be fixed
before the Shareholders’ approval and the date of the Board
meeting at which the Board proposes to grant the options to
such Eligible Participant shall be taken as the date of grant
for the purpose of calculating the subscription price of the
Shares. The Board shall forward to such Eligible Participant
an offer document in such form as the Board may from time
to time determine.

An option may be accepted by an Eligible Participant not later
than 30 days after the date of the offer for the grant of the
option. Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay
HKD1.00 (or an equivalent amount in RMB) to the Company
by way of consideration for the grant.

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will be at less the higher of: (i) the official
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a
day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business
of dealing in securities; (i) the average of the official closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of a
Share.
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Granting options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the options). If the Board proposes to grant options to a
substantial Shareholder or any independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) which will result in the number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, canceled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant: (i) representing in aggregate
over 0.1% or such other percentage as may be from time to
time provided under the Listing Rules of the Shares in issue;
and (i) having an aggregate value in excess of HKD5 million or
such other sum as may be from time to time provided under
the Listing Rules, based on the official closing price of the
Shares at the date of each grant, such further grant of options
will be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and
the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting by way
of a poll at which all connected persons of the Company shall
abstain from voting in favor of the resolution concerning the
grant of such options at the general meeting, and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time. Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the
grant of such options shall be taken as a poll.

Time of exercise of Option and duration of the
Share Option Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon
which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and
prior to the expiry of ten years from that date. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option
may be exercised more than ten years after it has been
granted. No option may be granted more than ten years after
the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. Subject
to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years from the date of its
adoption.
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(h)  Termination of the Share Option Scheme

The Company may by resolution in general meeting or the
Board at any time terminate the Share Option Scheme
and in such event no further option shall be offered but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force
to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
option granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be required
in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme. Options granted prior to such termination but not
yet exercised at the time of termination shall continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.

()  Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Share Option
Scheme becomes unconditional and has a remaining term
of approximately 5 years and 9 months as at the date of this
annual report.

()  Details of any options granted

As at the date of this report, no share options of the
Company has been granted under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to financial statements in this
annual report.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this report, there is no change in information of the
Directors subsequent to the date of the 2017 interim report of the
Company required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short position of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of

BERRE) » BB B 5 LSRN E352185 Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they
BN ZIEP A B 2 M - SRR E AR Bl b 8% were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
+RTE BT AESEETT ‘”%x%ﬂ’jﬁ <F Al which would be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
(MEXESFAI ) B e NN T R EE A P fE s 3k entered in the register referred to therein, or which would be required
REITR : to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”), were as follows:
) KREROHER (i) Interest in Shares
HE T
BRAD BB
EEnA ERME REBEM BRBEDL
Approximate
percentage of
Number of total issued
Name of Director Nature of interest Sharest Shares
=l REEGER R 1,195,072,000 (L) 65.17%
Shum Chiu Hung®@ Interest in a controlled corporation
BEiEe BB 3,276,000 (L) 0.18%
Guan Jianhui® Interest of spouse
EnEAA 43,074,000 (L) 2.35%
Beneficial owner
B #53te [ 2,017,000 (1) 0.11%
Bai Xihong® Interest of spouse
BEHEERA 43,074,000 (L) 2.35%
Beneficial owner
& BE=EBA 2,880,000 (L) 0.16%
Li Qiang Beneficial owner
=Y EREAA 1,318,000 (L) 0.07%

Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner
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(ii

wis -

FEH[LIREZEEOGR «

R-E—+F+-A=+—8 248
P A R AR AT 1,195,072,000 A% BE 15

BAED  HERARRBEITRAL
65.17% - @ HEBRAF(TEH])
#461,195,072,000 8% & 17+ miEH &
BERAR([EREE]) KEast Profit
Management Limited ( 3 | & 12 5 R 2
A (TRAM ) D RIEA S+ HI60% &
40% o LR AL ERGERIRE -

R-T—+F+-A=+—8  BEE
e HE O R A PR OZ B8 22 1274 3,276,000 %
DGR - BREBREWIRAR
ZERDP AR ©

R-ZT—+F+-A=+—8 " A&
SRR B & AR 742,017,000 %
DR iEAER - AR ERE AR
ZERMDPEAERS -

RAE B L B B

Notes:

The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Shum Chiu Hung is deemed
to be interested in 1,195,072,000 Shares, representing
approximately 65.17% of the issued share capital of the
Company. 1,195,072,000 Shares were held by Asiaciti
Enterprises Ltd. (“Asiaciti”), which is 60% and 40% owned
by Renowned Brand Investments Limited (“Renowned
Brand”) and East Profit Management Limited (“East Profit”)
respectively. Renowned Brand is wholly owned by Mr. Shum
Chiu Hung.

As at 31 December 2017, Ms. Chen Jie Yan, the spouse
of Mr. Guan Jianhui is interested in 3,276,000 Shares. Mr.
Guan Jianhui is deemed to be interested in those Shares.

As at 31 December 2017, Ms. Wan Zhi Ning, the spouse
of Mr. Bai Xihong is interested in 2,017,000 Shares. Mr. Bai
Xihong is deemed to be interested in those Shares.

Interest in associated corporations

WA E
R E A
B HEEE EEME RS EE BROADHL
Approximate
percentage in
the registered
capital of the
Number of associated
Name of Director Associated Corporation Nature of interest shares corporation
Z§ 1k g REEGLEE RS 120 60%
Shum Chiu Hung® Asiaciti Interest in a controlled
corporation
=yl EERE EmfAA 1 100%
Shum Chiu Hung® Renowned Brand Beneficial owner
Hrat - Note:
1. ERIREREE LER60% - MERRE 1, Asiaciti is owned as to 60% by Renowned Brand which is in

HEEEREDERR -

Y EHES

*

For identification purpose only
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(ili) Interest in debentures of the Company

EENSR ERME BEIFNETE EEZNEMRE
Principal amount Unit size of
Name of Director Nature of interest of debentures debentures
Z 50 f B 3,000,000% 7T 1,000
Shum Chiu Hung"@ Interest of spouse USD3,000,000
Kiat - Notes:
1. RZE—+tF=A=+—H ' &ARQ7A 1. The USD5,000,000 debentures previously held by Ms. Li
EERZEEEENRBET L+ Yiping, the spouse of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, bearing interest
B A IRF A E12.625% 5 88 at a rate of 12.625% per annum were redeemed by the
5,000,000F 7T 2 (E#EFE © Company on 21 March 2017.
2. 3,000,000 T EREFERFT —F 2+ 2. The USD3,000,000 debentures are held by Ms. Li Yiping.

B o SRR AN S EREE
R R o B ERENEE75%5"
B ABEFIN—R RZT==
FMAZ+"BRE -

Br R FTEEEE N RZT—+F+_A=+—
B BEARTEENESTRABRARRRK
HiRBOzE (& R EH BB RHIFEXVER) B
7 - RO RERET  BEOELRRERES
FAEGRPIEISGRA T FEMNELMA - (i)
IRIREST RIZE R 1T A& AN R B) M B <2 P 9 (R AT 4

A SN %
RECK

ESREERONEEZNEF

o

m

RRAFRABREESN  REE-_T—tF+=
A=t—BLFERERKRE @ AQ7] - EKHE
RE - BERARKFARNER A ES B IR
b BEERFEBEAATSEMEMEAR
BRI S EREFER -

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung is deemed to be interested in those
debentures. The debentures bearing interest at a rate of
5.75% per annum payable semi-annually, will mature on 26
April 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company has any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were (i) recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO, or (ii) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2017 was the Company, its subsidiaries,
holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he may incur or sustain in
or about the execution of his duties in his office. The Company has
arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors and officers.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
the following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) were taken or deemed to have an interests and/or
short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:

RBRBHER Long positions in Shares
LB RT
BB E
28 nE B REmtE RGOHEO BHAESHE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of total issued
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares Shares
= —%e REZ G EE R RS 1,195,072,000 (L) 65.17%
Li Yiping® Interest in a controlled corporation
g5 EmBEAA 1,195,072,000 (L) 65.17%
Asiaciti® Beneficial owner
FZIREO REESDEE R 1,195,072,000 (L) 65.17%
Renowned Brand® Interest in a controlled corporation
RAe RZ I EE R S 1,195,072,000 (L) 65.17%

East Profit®

Interest in a controlled corporation
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HERT

IR HBEH

=18 B HERME RHEHEO BMYBE

Approximate

percentage of

Number of total issued

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares Shares

FIG Corp.4® R EB R S 102,813,142 (L) 5.61%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Asian Investment Holdings REZ I SEE A S 102,813,142 (L) 5.61%
L.P.61e©) Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress IFC Asian Investment R H)EE S 102,813,142 (L) 5.61%
Holdings GP LLCBemN® Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress IFC Asian Investments RE S EE R S 102,813,142 (L) 5.61%
Holdings L.P.6 Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Investment Group LLC®W® RZEGEE R S 102,813,142 (L) 5.61%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Japan Opportunity || GP MRZEHEE R 102,813,142 (1) 5.61%
L.P.®© Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Japan Opportunity Il GP AR HEE A = 102,813,142 (L) 5.61%
LLCH®e) Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund I RE S EE R S 102,813,142 (L) 5.61%
(Dollar) Holdings L.P.©@eis) Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il R EE R S 102,813,142 (L) 5.61%
(Yen A) Holdings L.P.@@ex Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Operating Entity | L.P.®® RZPEHEE AR 102,813,142 (L) 5.61%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Hybrid GP Holdings LLC®© AR BE B AR 102,813,142 (L) 5.61%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Schiavona Investment Holdings Ltd.0© Ez#EA A 102,813,142 (L) 5.61%

Beneficial owner
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Wo_Z—tF+-_F=+—8 Z8lfEkrs
) BC 18 2 — ¥ 2 AR & 52 1,195,072,000 ik
R EEER  HERADABDBETRELD
65.17% » LEa45H1,195,072,0000% 815 + MiE
FIE RRA D RIEE & T #960% [ 40% o &
— LT RERERT -

FEREERRF D B4 H L E60% KM 40% HE
HoHAMN FESERKRARLTMEEN
1,195,072,0000% A& 17 # FEE #ES ©

Fortress Japan Opportunity Il GP LLC /i Hybrid
GP Holdings LLC & & # & - T Hybrid GP
Holdings LLC Rl fh Fortress Operating Entity |
L.P.2& A ° Fortress Operating Entity | L.P.f
FIG Corp.({EREREZA)HEE0.01% » MFIG
Corp. 8l #1 Fortress Investment Group LLC & &
WA -

Fortress Asian Investment Holdings L.P.FiFortress
IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC({E& %8
A% A) - Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen
A) Holdings L.P. }2Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund
Il (Dollar) Holdings L.P. % 5l # & & & #90.01% -
34.34% K 44.42% °

Schiavona Investment Holdings Ltd.FaFortress IFC
Asian Investments Holdings LP. 2 & # & -+ i
Fortress IFC Asian Investments Holdings L.P.Bl/f
Fortress Asian Investment Holdings L.P. &2 Fortress
IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC({E& iR
BN DREEEHIT74.99%50.01% °

Fortress IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC F5
Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen A) Holdings

LP. Kz Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Doller) Holdings
LP.2 RIMER & H #934.34% :44.42% °
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

As at 31 December 2017, Ms. Li Yiping, the spouse
of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, is deemed to be interested in
1,195,072,000 Shares, representing approximately 65.17%
of the issued share capital of the Company. 1,195,072,000
Shares were held by Asiaciti, which is 60% and 40% owned
by Renowned Brand and East Profit respectively. East Profit is
wholly owned by Ms. Li Yiping.

Renowned Brand and East Profit held 60% and 40% equity
interest in Asiaciti respectively. As such, each of them is
deemed to be interested in 1,195,072,000 Shares held by
Asiaciti.

Fortress Japan Opportunity Il GP LLC was wholly owned by
Hybrid GP Holdings LLC, which was in turn wholly owned
by Fortress Operating Entity | L.P.. Fortress Operating Entity
| L.P. was owned as to 0.01% by FIG Corp. as general
partner, which was in turn wholly owned by Fortress
Investment Group LLC.

Fortress Asian Investment Holdings L.P. was owned as to
0.01% by Fortress IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC
as general partner, 34.34% by Fortress Japan Opportunity
Fund Il (Yen A) Holdings L.P. and 44.42% by Fortress Japan
Opportunity Fund II (Dollar) Holdings L.P., respectively.

Schiavona Investment Holdings Ltd. was wholly owned by
Fortress IFC Asian Investments Holdings L.P., which was
in turn owned as to 74.99% by Fortress Asian Investment
Holdings L.P. and 0.01% by Fortress IFC Asian Investment
Holdings GP LLC as general partner, respectively.

Fortress IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC was owned
as to 34.34% by Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund I (Yen A)
Holdings L.P. and 44.42% by Fortress Japan Opportunity
Fund Il (Dollar) Holdings L.P., respectively.



8. Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen A) Holdings
L.P. X Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Dollar)
Holdings L.P.% FFortress Japan Opportunity Il GP
LP.({EREBEA) BB 0.01%  ifiFortress
Japan Opportunity Il GP L.P. Rl B Fortress Japan
Opportunity | GP LLC(E A ERE R A) HHE
0.01% °

9. AEFMAFAREARFIANHA =T —ME+ A
+tHEMASEFIAEEAARARASE - AR
BEHRERZE—NFLAZ+HAZKRE -
REBEE_T—tF+_A=+—HLLFE"
Schiavona Investment Holdings Ltd. 2 Z¥I4(E
1 8 AR AR 199 3.507 7T 78 BRI # i# AR AT 68 ) AT 4R
&S o

B LT REEN Rt F+t - A=1—
B ARAEERETERABRTAEFEM
HAL(RARRBEFHEZSHITRABRIN VK
AR D PR A RS IR B MR AR A

AR LG IRPIE336IFFENECMA -

BE - HEIER LTRSS
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TZA=T—BLLFE AR EEX%TETEJW%/A
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BrEERE
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BABERNEX  BARTBANREREE
H IR 2 B R AR

TE2RE REPORT OF DIRECTORS

8. Each of Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen A) Holdings
L.P. and Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Dollar) Holdings
L.P. was owned as to 0.01% by Fortress Japan Opportunity
Il GP L.P. as general partner, which was in turn owned as to
0.01% by Fortress Japan Opportunity Il GP LLC as general

partner.

9. Capitalised terms used in this paragraph shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the announcement of the
Company dated 7 July 2014. Completion of the subscription
of the Convertible Bonds took place on 25 July 2014. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, Schiavona Investment
Holdings Ltd. had converted all the outstanding Convertible
Bonds at the initial price of HKD3.50 per Share.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company are not aware of any other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who had interests or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Save as previously disclosed in this report, there was no purchase,
sale and redemption of any listed securities of the Company by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

A deed of non-competition dated 21 November 2013 (the “Deed
of Non-Competition”) was entered into between the Company and
the controlling Shareholders, including the Directors namely Mr.
Shum Chiu Hung, Ms. Li Yiping, the spouse of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung,
Renowned Brand, East Profit and Asiaciti, who have undertaken to
the Company that they will not (1) directly or indirectly, either on their
own account, in conjunction with, on behalf of or through any person,
body corporate, partnership, joint venture or other contractual
arrangement and whether for profit or otherwise, participate, acquire
or hold any right or interest, provide any support to, financial or
otherwise, or otherwise be interested, involved or engaged in any
business that directly or indirectly competes with Restricted Business
(as defined below), or acquire or hold shares or interests (in each
case whether as a Shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and
whether for profit, reward or otherwise) in any company or business
that competes directly or indirectly with the Restricted Business (as
defined below); and (2) engage, invest, participate or be interested
(economically or otherwise) in any property development business
involving the development of residential and commercial properties
for sale; property management business involving the provision
of property management services to the Company’s residential
customers; and property leasing business involving the development,
leasing and sub-leasing of commercial properties owned by the
Company or independent third parties (the “Restricted Business”).

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each
of the controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance by them
and their associates with the Deed of Non-Competition.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed of
Non-Competition and assessed whether the controlling Shareholders
have abided by the non-competition undertaking. The independent
non-executive Directors confirmed that the controlling Shareholders
have not been in breach of the non-competition undertaking during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors held any interests in
any business that competes directly against the Company or any of
its jointly controlled entities and subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2017.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance between the controlling shareholders
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Group has been
made during the year ended 31 December 2017.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with “related parties” as
defined under the applicable accounting standards, which include
transactions that constitute connected/continuing connected
transactions for which the requirements under the Listing Rules have
been complied with.

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 is contained in
note 44 to financial statements in this report.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Please see the section headed “Business Review — Liquidity,
Financial and Capital — Events after the Reporting Period” in this
report for a summary of the major events that have occurred in

relation to the Company since the balance sheet date.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board has established the Audit Committee which comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Wai
Man (chairman), Mr. Jin Qingjun and Ms. Sun Hui.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual report and the audited
consolidated annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 in conjunction with the Company’s management.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and the internal control systems of the Company and
considers the risk management and internal control systems to be
effective and adequate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance.

The Company has been conducting its business according to the
principles of the CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. Save for the deviation disclosed in this report, in the opinion
of the Directors, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2017.

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Shum currently assumes
the roles of both the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Shum is one of the founders of the Group and has
extensive experience in property development. The Board believes
that by holding both roles, Mr. Shum will be able to provide the
Group with strong and consistent leadership and allows for more
effective and efficient business planning and decisions as well as
execution of long-term business strategies of the Group. As such,
the structure is beneficial to the business prospects of the Group.
Furthermore, the Directors had regular discussions in relation to
major matters affecting the operations of the Group and the Group
has an effective risk management and internal control systems in
place for providing adequate checks and balances. Based on the
foregoing, the Board believes that a balance of power and authority
has been and will be maintained.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON
THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS UNDER
RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 31 July 2017, the Company (as borrower), certain financial
institutions (as mandated lead arrangers, lead arrangers, arrangers
and bookrunners) and a facility agent entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) in relation to USD and HKD dual-currency transferable
term loan facility (the “Facility”). The original total commitment is
USD185,000,000, with an commitment increment option of not more
than USD100,000,000.

Under the Agreement, it will be an event of default if (i) Mr. Shum and
Ms. Li Yiping, the spouse of Mr. Shum, in aggregate, do not maintain
50% or more beneficial interest in the Company; (i) Mr. Shum and
Ms. Li Yiping, individually or together, do not remain as the largest
beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of the Company;
(iii) Mr. Shum does not remain as the chairman of the board, the
chairperson of the nomination committee and in a position to appoint
or nominate the majority of the board of directors of the Company; or
(iv) Mr. Shum does not retain the management and policy control of
the Company. If an event of default has occurred and is continuing,
the facility agent may cancel all or part of the total commitments,
declare all or part of the loans, together with accrued interest, and
all other amounts accrued or outstanding to be immediately due and
payable.

Further details of the Facility and the foregoing specific performance

obligations are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 31
July 2017.
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STATUS OF THE RECTIFICATION

Lease registration

As disclosed in the Prospectus, as at 22 November 2013, the Group
entered into 572 lease agreements as lessors with different tenants,
out of which 330 lease agreements had yet to be registered with the
relevant government authorities. Through the rectifying measures
as disclosed in the Prospectus, no lease agreements had yet to
be registered with the relevant government authorities as at 31
December 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 15
May 2018 (Tuesday) to 18 May 2018 (Friday), both days inclusive, in
order to determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled
to attend the forthcoming AGM. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming AGM, all transfer accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
before 4:30 p.m. on 14 May 2018 (Monday).

The record date for qualifying to receive the proposed final dividend
is 29 May 2018 (Tuesday). In order to determine the right of the
Shareholders entitled to receive the proposed final dividend, which is
subject to the approval by the Shareholders in the forthcoming AGM,
the register of members of the Company will also be closed from 25
May 2018 (Friday) to 29 May 2018 (Tuesday), both days inclusive. All
transfer accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 24 May 2018
(Thursday).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2017 and at any time up to date of this report.
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B D INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
TXEBIHMEEMEEZEZE _Z—+F+—-HA The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
=T RUEFENGAFHRE - December 2017 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

TXGFTAMEFEMEREERRAFRE LR Ernst & Young shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being
F - TREERLKESERBET BEEBLTK eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
ERRE S S iV VNCIE VR G S the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as independent auditor of the

EERRERFTFRY EERE - Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
REESE On behalf of the Board

FiE Shum Chiu Hung

=81 Chairman

BE B \F-_A=1+N\H Hong Kong, 28 February 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance.

The Company has been conducting its business according to the
principles of the CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. Save for the deviation disclosed in this report, in the opinion
of the Directors, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2017.
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three
Board committees including the Audit Committee, the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
(collectively, the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to
the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises 9 members,
consisting of six executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Guan Jianhui

Mr. Bai Xihong

Mr. Li Qiang

Mr. Shum Siu Hung

Mr. Niu Jimin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jin Qingjun
Ms. Sun Hui
Mr. Wong Wai Man

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/

her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.
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All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited
to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.

The Directors have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other, except that Mr. Shum Chiu
Hung, chairman, executive Director and chief executive officer of the
Company, is the elder brother of Mr. Shum Siu Hung, an executive
Director of the Company.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring Directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as their
identity and the time involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to
disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules,
legal and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business
and governance policies. The Company also provides Directors
with updates on latest development and changes in the statute
and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the Company’s business and governance policies
from time to time. The Directors are also provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.



RIRERNBETE AR E  2REFCE
FEZXER YRARRRHEEE T
TZA=T-"BLFEEERRZE
ERAFE 2 EIREFINIT

ﬁ\ﬁ
Sl

PEtek - BE

PEERHE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

To develop and refresh the knowledge and skills, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development and provided
a record of training they received for the year ended 31 December
2017 to the Company. The training record of each Director for the
year is set out below:

EERER
H{HEIRE B RN
Briefings on

the responsibility
of directors and

EEHR Name of Director other relevant topics
ZELESRE Mr. Shum Chiu Hung v/
oS = Entas Mr. Guan Jianhui J/
SEYies Mr. Bai Xihong v/
=X Mr. Li Qiang v
BRI A Mr. Shum Siu Hung v/
RS Mr. Niu Jimin 4
FEELEE Mr. Jin Qingjun /
REL L Ms. Sun Hui v/
EHENXSEAE Mr. Wong Wai Man v/
FERITHAR Chairman and Chief Executive
DEEATIEXEAAIERE » THEMITH The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
BRENABCEERY - TEAR—AEE - 24 chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
WhRAE(TZh4E ) REFETARAREFRITHE  performed by the same individual. Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (“Mr. Shum”)
H o ZBAERAEBRAMAZ — RUEERER currently assumes the roles of both the chairman and the chief
HEELYELS ESgRESEEREERER executive officer of the Company. Mr. Shum is one of the founders

TRARERAEBRMAMIBRNEE - KM
BERREIRHIFT ZBRRARETARER
EETERES - Ft - WRBANAEEEBA
oM EFTEHRMPEARERENER
£H BARBEHRAERNEREERAEE
RGARBT R AFE - AR LliEh - B
ZERERRE BRI ERE S T -

of the Group and has extensive experience in property development.
The Board believes that by holding both roles, Mr. Shum will be
able to provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allows for more effective and efficient business planning and
decisions as well as execution of long-term business strategies of the
Group. As such, the structure is beneficial to the business prospects
of the Group. Furthermore, the Directors had regular discussions in
relation to major matters affecting the operations of the Group and
the Group has an effective risk management and internal control
systems in place for providing adequate checks and balances.
Based on the foregoing, the Board believes that a balance of power
and authority has been and will be maintained.
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 11
December 2016 and may be terminated in accordance with the
respective terms of the service contracts.

Both of Ms. Sun Hui and Mr. Wong Wai Man, the independent
non-executive Directors, have signed a letter of appointment for a
term of three years commencing from 11 December 2016. Mr. Jin
Qingjun, an independent non-executive Director, has signed a letter
of appointment for an initial term of three years commencing from 28
October 2015.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall offer himself/
herself for re-election by the Shareholders at the first general meeting
of the Company after appointment and any new Director appointed as
an addition to the Board shall offer himself/herself for re-election by
the Shareholders at the next following annual general meeting of the
Company after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring the appointment, re-election and succession planning of
Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly. Notices of not less than fourteen days will be given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other committee meetings, fourteen days notice will be given
by the Company. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the Directors or committee members at least three
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and
given an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman
prior to the meeting.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings will be
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and
the committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and
committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, four Board meetings
were held and the attendance of each Director at these meetings is
set out in the table below:

BHERH

ATHERE

Attended/

EEHE Name of Director Eligible to attend
E 44 Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 4/4
REErE Mr. Guan Jianhui 4/4
SEYies Mr. Bai Xihong 4/4
3 St Mr. Li Qiang 4/4
SRR Mr. Shum Siu Hung 4/4
GE|IEAE Mr. Niu Jimin 4/4
FEEZ+ Ms. Sun Hui 4/4
SEB LA Mr. Jin Qingjun 4/4
EHENXSEAE Mr. Wong Wai Man 4/4

ETRSXZNERESTA
ARRTERNEBEFTESFXHNITRTH -
HAIGRE E RSB LM BETAESE
TRHFR SRS R (MRETA ) 8RR E
BRERZEE - RARBFELERERR - 28
EEERRERHEE_T—tF+_A=1+—H
I FERETRESTA -

ARBFERMEEEE (KEREARERRAN
ARBHEEFOAR) E,\\)EE$ AIEFHITT
ASTR . BARSERISEST AP A R E R E R
BRig -

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). All Directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the Company’s
securities by relevant employees, who are likely to be in possession
of inside information in relation to the Company or its securities,
on no less exacting terms than the required standard set out in the
Model Code.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. Directors
could seek independent professional advice in performing their duties
at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and delegated the corporate
governance duties to the Audit Committee which include:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(o) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the
Company;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Company. Details of the remuneration of each
of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in
note 8 to financial statements in this report.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report. Remuneration paid to the senior management (excluding the
Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2017 is within the range
of RMB800,001 to RMB6,000,000 each in this report.

Directors’ Liability Insurance

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in
respect of legal action against its Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (chairman), Mr. Jin Qingjun and Ms.
Sun Hui, two of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of Directors and assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as education background, experience, skill and ability
to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision.

The terms of reference of Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, a meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held and the attendance of the
Nomination Committee members is set out below:

EHERE

T R

Attended/

EENE Name of Director Eligible to attend
BT AE Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 1/1
SEE LA Mr. Jin Qingjun 11
- Yegun Ms. Sun Hui 11
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination
Committee has assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and made recommendation to the Board in
relation to the re-election of retiring Directors at the annual general
meeting.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” in relation to the
nomination and appointment of new directors, which sets out: the
selection of board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model
and specific needs, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
language, cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience.

The above measurements were also reviewed and adopted when
the Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the Board.
After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and experience
to the Company’s business, the Nomination Committee considered
that the existing Board was appropriately structured and no change
was required. The Nomination Committee will review and monitor
the implementation of board diversity on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness on determining the optimal composition of the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Ms.
Sun Hui (chairman), Mr. Shum Chiu Hung and Mr. Wong Wai Man,
two of them are independent non-executive Directors.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board for approval on the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and
the senior management, to determine, with delegated responsibility,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management/to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate
in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

HE_Z—+FE+-_A=1+—"HIFE  HFHE During the year ended 31 December 2017, a meeting of the
BePRT—NeEH MFNEZEaeKELFE Remuneration Committee was held and the attendance of the
REFI T Remuneration Committee members is set out below:
EHERE
AT ERE
Attended/
EEHNE Name of Director Eligible to attend
FRELL Ms. Sun Hui 1/1
I AE Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 1/1
BHEXSE Mr. Wong Wai Man 1/1
FHEEeE R T EEEE L RERE The Remuneration Committee has reviewed performance and the
BRRRERFMNEBER  URAQFRZEEERS remuneration of Directors and senior management for the year 2017,

REIRBRF BN ER M ARE -

as well as the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

85



86

PEERHE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BREEE

ERZEgH-_RKEMEK  EEXEE(E
) FEERERRBELL - KEHRBULIFH
TEE -BERZZEENIEREBRATRA

v

— RAERERREESMHHRERBE SN
SRR R

%

p=11]

- RERARERSMESRINEZBEEEE
URENZBIEFESAY - WENMZE
T {ERISA AT SE SN X BRED 5 i iR BRI E
REENARBHRET

- HARFPBERRES  RAREERA
ERRR(BREARB & MM E R
EENTENER  BTEERER - HIlR
BLEERERR)RERELREHIELE
A e

ERZBEERARENRREE AT R
o RAEFERETMEAFEMMESTSELY

BEizEk B2 H) B S0 B OB XX P S AR R R A A ]
HER -

BE_Z—+F+-A=+—RHIFE  EKZ
BERRITMAEH MBERZBEGNEZHFE

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Wong

Wai Man (chairman), Mr. Jin Qingjun and Ms. Sun Hui, all of them are

independent non-executive Directors. The main duties of the Audit

Committee include the following:

To review the financial statements and reports before
submission to the Board;

To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard and discuss with
external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems, including the adequacy of the resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions.

The Audit Committee oversees the risk management and internal

control systems of the Group, reports to the Board on any material

issue and makes recommendations to the Board.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are available on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two meetings of the Audit

Committee were held and the attendance of the Audit Committee

members is set out below:

EHERE

A H IR

Attended/

EEHA Name of Director Eligible to attend
=ENXSE Mr. Wong Wai Man 2/
FELT Ms. Sun Hui 2/2
SEE AL Mr. Jin Qingjun 2/
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee
reviewed the annual results and annual report for the year ended
31 December 2016, interim results and interim report for the
six months ended 30 June 2017, financial reporting system,
compliance procedures, risk management and internal control
systems (including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions), and the
re-appointment of the external auditor. The Board has not deviated
from any recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed interim and final results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the fiscal year as well as the audit
report prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting issues
and major findings in course of audit.

General Meeting

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two general meetings
were held and the attendance of the individual Directors at the
general meetings is set out in the table below:

XS PN
Extraordinary
General Meeting®

BRBERG
Annual
General Meeting"

DHERE BHERE

] HE R E Al R &

Attended/ Attended/
EEHNS Name of Director Eligible to attend Eligible to attend
EE A Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 1/1 11
RAiEIE ST Mr. Guan Jianhui 1/1 1/1
Sk e Mr. Bai Xihong 1/1 1/1
TR E Mr. Li Qiang 1/1 11
SIS Mr. Shum Siu Hung 1/1 11
HRIESE Mr. Niu Jimin 1/1 11
SETLE Mr. Jin Qingjun 1/1 1/
FEEZ+ Ms. Sun Hui 1/1 1/1
=ENXSGE Mr. Wong Wai Man 1/1 11
Kt Notes:
1 RZE—tEFRA= /AL l Held on 26 May 2017
2 R_ZF—+F+A+HBT 2 Held on 10 October 2017
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides
all members of the Board with monthly updates on Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor of the Company
regarding their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on page 138 of this annual report.

RISK. MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group and to only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

During the 2017 reporting period, the Board supervised the
management’s design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems, and reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis; such review
covered all major control aspects of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control systems covered
each operation department, to ensure that the Group could
effectively manage the key factors that might affect the Group in
achieving its strategic objectives, such factors including events,
accidents or behaviors with a material impact on the Group’s
reputation, assets, capital, profit or liquidity.

The Company has established three lines-of-defence structure for
risk management. In the risk governance structure, the first line
of defence consists of the business departments and responsible
individuals, with the Group’s business and functional centers serving
as the second line of defence and the internal audit team as the third
line of defence. The first line of defence bears risks and shoulders the
direct responsibility for risk management and it identifies, measures
and controls the risks in respective business fields and operating
activities. The second line of defence formulates rules and standards
as business guidance to subsidiaries/business units, and supervises
their execution to ensure that risk management takes place for the
Group, with continuous control of relevant work. The third line of
defence is responsible for monitoring, with an emphasis on providing
independent monitoring over the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
solutions and measures by combining the monitoring over the risk
management and internal control systems.

Based on the risk management conducted in previous years, the
management of the Company continues to identify and evaluate the
risks of the Group. The management has analysed the changes to
core risks by paying attention to market and industry changes and
communicating with the company president and relevant senior
management. In addition, the control of core risks is also under
continuous monitoring through quarterly/annual risk management
reports, which are consolidated from quarterly self-inspection
and evaluation by each risk management department regarding
respective core risks. Besides, the risk management system has
been further amended and enhanced, which specifies the roles
and responsibilities of the management and the Board in risk
management work. On the basis of the improved system, continuous
monitoring has taken place in relation to the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Company has the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. In practice,
employees of the Group who become aware of any events and/
or matters which he/she consider potentially inside information,
will report to the designated personnel of the Company who, if
considered appropriate, will pass such information to the Board
for the purpose of considering and deciding whether or not such
information constitutes inside information and disclosure of which
shall be made immediately.
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The Group’s internal audit team plays an important role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The internal audit team
mainly monitors and reviews the matters relating to the internal
control and compliance of the Company, and provides regular risk-
oriented internal audits for its branches and subsidiaries. The internal
audits cover project obtainment, procurement tendering, sales,
financial reporting and information security and so on. The internal
audit team reports to the Board twice a year.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee has received a report of risk management
and internal control prepared by the internal audit team, and has
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
remain adequate and effective throughout the year ended 31
December 2017 with no material issues to be brought to the Board'’s
attention.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total remuneration paid
or payable to the Company’s independent auditor, Ernst & Young,
for audit and non-audit services amounted to RMB4,820,000
and RMB3,982,600, respectively. The non-audit services mainly
consisted of tax advisory, review and other reporting services.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Lui Wai Pang (“Mr. Lui”), one of the joint company secretaries of
the Company, was responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters and ensuring that the Board policies and
procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and regulations were
followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws,
the Company also engaged Ms. Lai Siu Kuen, an associate director
of TMF Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider),
as another joint company secretary to assist Mr. Lui to discharge his
duties as company secretary of the Company. The primary corporate
contact person at the Company is Mr. Lui, one of the joint company
secretaries of the Company.

Mr. Lui and Ms. Lai have undertaken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training respectively in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable the Shareholders
and investors to make the informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting provides opportunity for the
Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
Chairman of the Company and the respective chairman of the
Board Committee will attend the annual general meeting to answer
the Shareholders’ questions. The external auditor of the Company
will also attend the annual general meeting to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and contents of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company and
the Shareholders and maintains a website at www.timesgroup.cn,
where up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each general meeting.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings and
Putting Forward Proposals

In accordance with the Articles of Association, an extraordinary
general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings.
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Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the joint
company secretaries of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, the Shareholders who
wish to propose resolutions may follow article 64 of the Articles
of Association for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting
and including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements
and procedures are set out in the section headed “Convening of
Extraordinary General Meetings and Putting Forward Proposals” in
this report.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could email their enquiries to Mr. Lui Wai
Pang at his email address: januslui@timesgroup.cn.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

An amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association
was adopted by the Company on 19 November 2013 and became
effective on the Listing Date. There was no amendment made to the
constitutional documents of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2017.

COMPETING BUSINESS

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each
of the controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance by them
and their close associates with the Deed of Non-Competition. For
further details, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Interest
in Competing Business” in the directors’ report.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Overview

As the second Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) report published by Times China, this report
primarily discloses the information on the economic,
social and environmental performance of the
Company from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017
(the “reporting period”). This report is prepared on an
annual basis.

Basis of Preparation

This report is prepared in accordance with Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules.

The content of this report is determined according
to a set of systematic procedures which includes
identifying and ranking major stakeholders and
ESG-related issues, defining the boundary of the
ESG Report, collecting relevant materials and data,
conducting data cleansing and aggregation, and
examining the data of this report.

Scope and Boundary of this Report

This report aims to provide a balanced representation
of Times China’s ESG performance and covers the
operations of the Group.

Reference Terms

For the convenience of presentation and reading, the

“Company”, “we”/“us”/“our” and “Times China” all
refer to “Times China Holdings Limited” in this report.

Source of Information and Reliability
Assurance

Information and cases in this report are primarily
extracted from the statistical reports and relevant
documents of the Company. The Company
undertakes that the report contains no false
representations or misleading statements, and
assumes responsibility for the truthfulness, accuracy
and completeness of its contents.

Confirmation and Approval

Upon confirmation by the management, this report
was passed by the Board on 28 February 2018.
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MESSAGE FROM SENIOR MANAGEMENT

This is the second ESG report published by Times China
Holdings Limited, through which we presents a clearer picture
of our ESG performance to investors and stakeholder groups.

On the basis of complying with the governance rules of
listed companies, Times China consciously incorporates the
concept of sustainability into its corporate philosophy and
operational mechanism as a listed company. Constantly
following its core values of “Love, Focus and Create” and
people-oriented design concept, Times China delivers a
perfect combination of life and art, pursues sustainable,
robust and quality growth, and assumes responsibility for
stakeholders including customers, shareholders, employees
and communities, striving to be a responsible corporate
capable of continuously creating value for stakeholders.

This year, Times China continued to sort out its ESG work
during the preparation of its ESG report. By further applying
the concept of sustainable development to its general
operation and management, the Company and its staff
acquired a deeper understanding of such concepts as
environmental protection, personnel training and inclusive
communities. By combining its environmental responsibility
with business, Times China insists on green building and
construction to contribute its share to protect the environment
we rely on. Meanwhile, the Company maintained stringent
control over product quality and continuously optimised
property management, with great attention paid to the rights
of its staff members and their career progression.

Looking ahead, the real estate sector will embrace fresh
opportunities, as China enters a new stage in its economic
and social development. We will stay committed to our
mission of “empowering more people to live with a lifestyle
they aspire t0”, keep on creating value for and delivering great
experience to our shareholders, customers, staff members,
suppliers and other stakeholders.
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RESPONSIBLE GOVERNANCE

As a responsible corporate citizen, Times China emphasises

high-standard corporate governance, striving for corporate

value enhancement meanwhile pursuing all rounded,

sustainable development. On the basis of complying with

the governance rules of listed companies, Times China

consciously follows the concept of sustainable development

and the key corporate values of “Love, Focus and Create”,

endeavoring to realise its vision of becoming a “Global Top-

500 Company” and its mission of “empowering more people

to live with a lifestyle they aspire to”.

3.1

ESG Policies

Committed to maintaining high-standard corporate
governance, Times China stresses corporate value
enhancement, doing its best to safeguard shareholder
interests. The Company has adopted the Corporate
Governance Code (set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules) as its code of corporate governance,
and has operated its business according to the
requirements of the code. All along, Times China has
been devoted to all rounded sustainable development
and actively undertaken corporate social responsibility,
by consciously and organically incorporating ESG
concepts into the Company’s mission, value, business
and system as well as the process of daily operation
and risk management.

The Company has identified and prioritised the ESG
issues in respect of environmental and social aspects,
taking into consideration the five objectives stated in
the section headed “ESG Objectives”, its long-term
strategies for safeguarding shareholder interests and
improving corporate value, and other matters.
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ESG Governance Structure

REIEUL

3.2 ESGERER 3.2
AFERRES/E
Times China Leadership Team for Sustainable Development
HEEE IREEE
Overall planning and Decision-making and
leadership depolyment

Planning and approval

AIFERRE TN E
Sustainable Development Working Group

R HEZERAR

d kiR BB RE mEERE
Communication and Implementation of Preparation of
coordination resolutions reports

BHEEBAR BH T A E

HITIE

Execution
(i BRAFEESGEARBEES
RE( - HA2016FERRE)
AEARBRABERRES B

HEE R FIHESGEIE TE - R
BARRISHERERESGE R
RE » RAPEBESGERE TIFR
HBESIES] - R - BB BEKE
ERIERAMEE  AELAL
BEHPEEBE  BEETESR
B ABERBP L - TTERRES
Lo HBEEPRL  MBRESD
L~ AR B S R L DA R R IT 88
FLE - ARESFERKTEER
ESGEBRMER LMEME - ARA
HEABEREI/EES  JAEETL
ERBBREE - EMEIHESG
FEEmETE2EAAHEEDN
B -

NE 2017 FERE

Functional departments and branches in different cities

LB R
Information reporting

(Note: The ESG governance structure is the same as that
for 2016, as no major changes occurred to the
structure this year)

To fully apply the concept of sustainable development
and promote efficient ESG management of the
Company, Times China has the Company’s senior
management as the decision-makers on ESG
management that offer strategic guidance on the
Company’s overall ESG management. Meanwhile,
based on the current management structure, Times
China specifies the specific functions of departments
including the audit and inspection centre, human
resources centre, administration service centre,
project management centre, material purchase centre,
branding and marketing centre, and design, research
and development centre. Given such specification,
each department clearly understands its responsibility
in the overall ESG management and practice of Times
China, apply such clear understanding to day-to-day
work of the department, effectively execute relevant
work, and ultimately attain all rounded and targeted
management in each ESG aspect.
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3.3 FFBBEABRNER 3.3 Identification of and Communication with
Stakeholders
Flz BT BBEAR
Stakeholders Means of Communication
BEE(EERER) EEE BRI R4
Clients (Lessors and Lessees) Sales department Client service hotline
B 77 HE BPREERAS
Official website Client satisfaction survey
B 7 s R s B
Official Weibo and WeChat Client interview
#P 2 FAPP
Linlibang (6 £2 38) Application
8T N BN EBEE AR AS BTIg#
Staff Intranet Staff meeting
BTIETEME BTEH
Staff e-mail Staff activity
BT 8 1553
Staff interview Staff training
WEERAE
Online opinion survey
BT HilB)! NDEE)
Government Interview Public event
wik
Meeting
MRER BRI E BEREE s ERE
Shareholders and Investors Shareholder meeting Financial report
B 7 A8k ST B R
Official website Analyst’s briefing
NGEE]
Public report
HEm HEBRDH FEEZ LG
Suppliers Direct communication and interview Annual audit and assessment
HEBSE BIRIZEE
Supplier meeting Tendering
WMEERAE
Online opinion survey
DAl REFBAE RilEE b
Charities Charity event cooperation Interview and investigation
TEHEREE ERZmERIE EEE G
Industry and trade associations Industry communication and forum Mutual interview
e Henime HABERG
Media Press conference Media interview
e
Media visit
EAfth M ERRAE =)
Others Online opinion survey Visit
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3.4 ESCGEEMZEE

Importance to stakeholders

B AR B 2016 F FERHIESGE &
MEBEOWER L WEAKRFEN
EEBRE - H2017EESGE A M
EEETTER  KMBEETAT
REZ R - EP20EZE AR
A R ANEB A AR A E EE

ESG#& °

3.4 Major ESG Issues

Based on its analysis of major ESG issues recognised
in 2016, Times China integrates the business
development of the year into its review of the major
ESG issues in 2017, which led to the conclusion of
the following materiality matrix. It sets out 20 ESG
issues that are of great importance to the Company
and its external stakeholders.

R El
ESGHE EEMIER
Times China
A ESG Materiality Matrix 5
4
6
o
(15] o "o
2 O
3]
0 = :
b SEEEMEE
E% Issues of high importance
i)
2 PEE R
Issues of medium importance
BEEEMZE
Issues of low importance
HRARABERNEEM
Importance to Company’s business
O =auEsZe 0@ zamamERLR O vemmmmn O mwpeEzn
Product quality and safety HIEA Principles of supplier employment Waste management
O EZERBIEF Types of investments in 0w KERERER
Complaints on products and services social issues and the Supplier’s situation Management of water
O suEimwe Company's participation 2 peERETR®RELE resource consumption
Protection of intellectual property rights @ srnampsE Avoidance of employing chid labour and jaareice:
4 CHBEEEZZRENL Staff safety and health forced labour Emissions management
Safety and privacy of consumer information B BTEIRBE B sTimKx YIRHE R E IR
5 BSERRERASHEE Staff training and Percentage of staff tumover Material consumption
Cormuption situation and measures for anti-comuption development Q wrmrEn management
EEENER Energy consumption management AERBEER
Basic situation of @ BERAARER Management of greenhouse
employment Environment and natural resources gases

(77 HRANEETEBESAEL -
H2016FE DR )

RAMEZERARAT 2017 FEHE

(Note: The analysis results were the same as those of 2016,
as no major changes occurred to the business this
year)
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ESG#E1g 3.5 ESG Awards
ERAH
RIELH Name of Award Date of Award
017TFREMERBIE BBV E Star of 2017 Top 100 China Real Estate Companies 201783 A
March 2017
2017 BRI ES#HI00EENEELES  Guangzhou Top 10 in Comprehensive Strengths, 2017 Top 100 201743 A
£ 11058 QOutstanding Real Estate Enterprises in China March 2017
017 hEFEHERECFEAER10% 2017 Top 10 China Real Estate Development 201743R
Enterprises in Comprehensive Development March 2017
2017 P BB EREREA S S 2017 Outstanding Chinese Real Estate Business Model 201783 A
March 2017
2017 B St E 3 (0 505 2017 Top 50 China Real Estate Developers 201743 A
March 2017
017 hEEHERBME 2017 Top 100 China Real Estate Companies 20174 3A
March 2017
2017THEFIE F A SR A B 1505 2017 Top 50 China Real Estate Listed Companies 2017%5A
in Comprehensive Strength May 2017
2017 B R & £50058 2017 Top 500 Chinese Private Companies 201748 A
August 2017
017THEMEER X miEEE24%E 2017 Top 24 Chinese Property Management 201749R
Enterprises in Brand Value September 2017
017TFEMERBELELELMECE 2017 Leading Chinese Brand Company in 201749R
Professional Property Service Operation September 2017
B E 1 ETOP100 Top 100 Chinese Commercial Real Estate Companies 2017%11 A
November 2017
HERNELEKET 4-Star Commercial Building in Yuexiu District 2017811 A
November 2017
BREHSEMAR - BNTERESLE  Grade 5A Guangdong Social Organisation - Guangzhou 201747 A
Times Foundation(& 5 & 4t & 4 45A %~ July 2017
BMNmERESS)
BREMSHEMIAR - BREFREME Grade 4A Guangdong Social Organisation — Guangdong 2017%7H
Times Art Museum (BER & 1 S4B H4AAT-BRER M) July 2017

BREA

R BB AR B T BISOE AR
BRBGEZRBELNRAENER
B THEESEREHNE £
B HE > BB REEER
AZIRRIERBEBRLZT - HRAF]
RSP FLEREE  DAMEGRFL - BI5%
B OERBRSSEEL  ER
BIEITR BERABE  KEF
HTEERBRARBRNRBITS - #
HARBFTERTOETERBES
MER ° I - ARIERE FFIH
MINEPERIRRE - BBEREESE
RBTRHEREFETROKEN

s
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3.6

Governance

Anti-corruption and Promoting Good

Times China strictly complies with national laws and
regulations, and give an importance role to anti-
corruption in its corporate governance. The Company
keeps improving its rules and regulations, and has
incorporated measures of prevention, education,
supervision, reward and punishment into its
management system. Internally, the Company’s audit
and inspection centre strictly monitors, investigates
and punishes various breaches of laws, regulations
and discipline, such as malpractice, abuse of power
for personal gain, corruption and bribery and misuse
of authority, as well as dereliction of duty that causes
considerable damage to the Company’s reputation
and economy. In addition, the Company has set up
special reporting channels for internal and external
reporting, such as the whistleblower mailbox, to
facilitate the information collection and monitoring on
various malpractices.
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3.7
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3.7

During the reporting period, Times China has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company, in relation to the
prevention of bribery, extortion and money laundering.
No such litigation occurred that involved corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. In
2017, the audit and inspection centre of Times China
provided a total of ten sessions on anti-corruption
training with 650 staff participated.

ESG Objectives

Times China takes the initiative to translate ESG
concepts into action, and continues to work on the
following five major objectives:

° Quality products and services: To continue to
provide quality, safe and green products and
quality services for customers.

° Responsibility and management of supply
chains: To continue to provide positive value
and demonstration for supply chain partners
and industry peers.

° Staff development and care: To continue
to provide a healthy and friendly working
environment and fair and broad room for
development for the staff.

° Green development and environmental
protection: To continue to prevent and control
the negative impacts of business operations on
the environment, and treat natural environment
in a friendly manner.

° Social welfare and philanthropy: To sustain
its commitment to investing in community
development, public welfare, philanthropy, and
volunteer services.
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QUALITY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

In addition to its strict compliance with the “Product
Quality Law of the PRC” ((tPEARLMBEERRE
7%) ) and national policies, Times China has formulated
a series of internal management policies based on the
quality management and control system, thus establishing
an effective mechanism for supervision, management and
control. Times China believes that its corporate mission
is to enable more people to live with a lifestyle they aspire
to, which requires the provision of not just quality housing
products, but satisfactory and excellent services to
customers. Times China perfectly combines life and art by
adhering to the corporate strategy of “Regional Focus, Cities
Penetration and Product Diversification” and upholding the
people-oriented design concept. Times China is continuously
committed itself to providing consumers with better products
and services, creating greater returns for shareholders, and
striving to “become a Fortune Global 500 company”.

4.1 Lean Quality

4.1.1 Product philosophy

Given its mission of “enabling more people to
live with a lifestyle that they aspire to”, Times
China never ceased its efforts to produce
products of good function and durability,
visual simplicity and an elegant artistic taste.
Upholding craftsmanship, Times China
continuously upgrades its residential products,
which has evolved from Industrialisation 1.0
system to 2.0 system, making substantial
progress in the level of industrialisation
and standardisation. By optimising the
management and control model, Times China
regularly launches new reserved product lines
on top of the existing ones, increasing the
efficiency and adaptability of product iteration
and upgrading.
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4.1.2 Quality standard

According to national policies such as the
“Opinions of the General Office of the State
Council on Promoting the Sustainable and
Sound Development of the Construction
Industry” (BBt R BB RN R E AR %
HEREZRENZR)), Times China has
established three working systems on product
quality, including a standardised product
system, a purchase and supply system
for materials, parts and equipment, and a
stringent quality control and management
system, which provides all rounded and
strict control throughout the product lifecycle
to ensure product quality. In 2017, Times
China upgraded its housing construction
process according to its internal “Industrialised
Construction System” (( T ¥ b @isne
Z)). Meanwhile, by taking “Times China
Construction Quality Assessment and
Management System” ({Ertrh & T2 E:7
HEIRH|E)), Times China delivered effective
supervision and control on product quality,
satisfying the pursuit of high quality.
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4.1.3 Quality control and management

Times China selects equipment and material
strictly according to such standards that are
no less stringent than national and industrial
ones, and ensure that only high-quality
materials are selected during three key stages,
namely, design, tendering and procurement,
and construction.

Guidance on material random testing
Prepared by Times China in 2017, the
“Guidance on Material Random Test” ({#f
FHte T/EFE3])) can effectively regulate
the material random testing at project sites
and manufacturing plants. To strengthen
the monitoring of material quality and ensure
its property quality, Times China appointed
a third-party testing agency to test all the
construction materials.

Such strict monitoring has laid the foundation
for the high quality of Times China projects.
Based on the customer satisfaction with
product quality, the Company surpassed the
industrial average in respect of housing quality,
daily maintenance and other performance
indicators. In particular, 68% of customers are
satisfied with public areas, which is higher than
the industrial average of 63%. (source: FG
Consulting (M%), a third-party research
agency).

During the reporting period, Times China has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company,
in relation to the health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters of its products
and services and remedial methods.
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4.2

Customer satisfaction

Times China has meticulously set up a comprehensive
customer service system to ensure that customers
can enjoy quality service from pre-sale, after-sale,
delivery to living. By adhering to the customer-
oriented spirit in service provision, Times China strives
to become the best operator of integrated community
service in China.

In respect of internal management, Times China has
prepared systematic documents, such as “Times
Property Customer-Housekeeper Line Operation
Instructions” ((BRYEFPEREEXIEEE)),
which set forth detailed standards and processes for
nearly 100 types of property work to ensure premium
living experience for customers.

4.2.1 Quality customer services

Following the service philosophy of “Caring for
You for a Lifetime”, Times Neighbourhood (#%
R H#BE) stresses both customer experience
and the quality of product and service. With
the adoption of “Quality Service + Products
on Demand + Home Life Platform” came a
“1+N” industry chain that is based on property
services and covers the entire lifecycle. All
this is designed for enhancing product quality
continuously and developing products and
services that cater to customer demand.

Times China, is committed to improving
service quality and user experience, continuing
to provide its customers with a convenient
and efficient lifestyle. Times China has applied
the highly responsive “Big Data” cloud system
from online and professional technical support
from the offline international community, to
build a number of smart systems, including
the “Management and Control System for
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Smart Communities”, the “New Property
Management System” and the “National
Integrated Management and Control System”.
Such systems equip communities with
“smart” functions, including smart community
property management and automatic control
for buildings. In particular, the New Property
Management System features the application
of information-based systems to improving the
work efficiency of property and construction
staff as well as the quality of onsite property
service. Further, the application of the National
Integrated Management and Control System
ensures that the headquarters of the Company
can deliver “vertical” management and control
of its residential properties. With terminal
equipment installed in its management and
control projects, the management and control
centre of the headquarters can check the
conditions of such projects live and quickly
respond to abnormalities.

LinLiBang (#5.2 75)

Times China has developed an online
application “LinLiBang” as a community service
platform and opened an offline life experience
centre, rolling out a variety of boutique
services to fulfill the demands of different age
groups. So far, LinLiBang has covered over
2,000 communities in China, with 1,500,000
registered users and an average of 40.55%
active online users. It leads the industry in
terms of user growth, activeness and other
aspects, ranking it as the 15 on the Rank of
Chinese Community Service Applications in
2016.

In March 2017, LinLiBang, with its outstanding
popularity, industrial leadership and
comprehensive strength, won the award
“Top 10 Happy E-Merchants”, and obtained
the “2016 Best Business Model and Service
Innovation Award” for a second time. In the
future, LinLiBang will combine advanced
technology in exploring innovative service
areas and bringing more diverse, convenient
and comfortable life services to communities.
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QiYeBang (12 #5)

QiYeBang provides assistant service in four
main areas, i.e., startup, supporting service,
interaction and growth, which correspond to
four types of demands — basics, life, sharing
and growth. QiYeBang features a holistic
ecosystem for smooth business development,
with highly integrated internal and external
resources. The platform provides green
office environment and a complete range
of ancillary services, including industrial and
commercial administration, legal affairs and
taxation, information technology, intellectual
property rights, finance and human resources.
Furthermore, QiYeBang offers professional
solutions for all participating companies so that
they can focus on business development.

Other than providing quality service to
commercial customers, Times Commerce
is also ready to help small and micro
businesses and grow with them. As a tech
firm incubator of national level, Zhide Tech
Business Incubator (EZRME b ML),
a company owned by Times Commerce,
has been conferred such qualifications and
honours as the Demonstration Base of
Entrepreneurship and Innovation for Small and
Micro Enterprises in Guangdong Province (&
RE/NEIBAPREIREIF REELM), the
Provincial Demonstration Platform of Public
Technology Service for Small and Medium-
sized Enterprises (& #/ P AEIFITRBE R
&3¢ &) and the Municipal Demonstration Base
for Start-ups (T &l 2 R &5 E ).
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4.2.2 Handling of customer complaints

According to the “Procedures for Handling
Customer Complaints” of Times China Services
(R BCEERFERIETIERIZ)) specific
staff shall reply to the complaints from various
channels, including telephone, customer
feedback, official email and online, within 24
hours upon receiving such complaints. All
the complaints should be timely processed in
line with standard procedure, whereas those
of greater significance would be followed by
the general manager of the local subsidiary.
In addition, according to the “Procedures for
Customer Interview” of Times China Services
(B RAPBECEP I IIERE)), all property
managers shall strictly work on customer
interviews and quality supervision, to learn
the customers’ views and suggestions to the
departments of the Company during such
regular interviews, rectify the existing problems
promptly and instruct the housekeeper
department to inform the customers of such
rectification.

In 2017, Times China received a total of 1,315
complaints on 45 of its residential properties
(totalling 103,398 households), averaging 0.013
complaint per household.
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4.23

4.2.4

4.2.5

Client satisfaction survey

In 2017, Times China appointed the research
agency FG Consulting, as an independent
third party, to conduct satisfaction surveys
on proprietors in all or part of its residential
properties. The survey results have been
included into the results of annual performance
appraisal for each local company. The overall
satisfaction score for 2017 is 74 points (higher
than the industrial average), with a score of
82 points for the satisfaction with subscription
service.

Customer information security

Times China understands that the Company
has the responsibility to ensure the security
of the customer information on hand, and
accordingly has formulated the “Information
Management Procedures for the Customers of
Times China” ({FFRAPBIRPERERRE)).
According to the procedure, all the property
staff has the responsibility and obligation to
keep customer information confidential; those
who leak customer information deliberately
or accidentally shall receive corresponding
punishment, and under serious conditions, the
staff shall be dismissed and held accountable
for economic and legal liabilities. In addition,
an anti-leakage system has been adopted
to prevent such data leakage as the illicit
transmission and copying of customer
information, which effectively ensures
information security for customers.

Caring for customers

“Surprising our customers with quality and
moving our customers with service” is the
operation philosophy of Times China. In its
communities, all staff members stick to their
posts, ready to offer the optimum service
to every customer. It is such perseverance
and passion that enabled Times China to
receive from customers one after another
honor banner and acknowledgement letter, as
records of sincere praise for the passion of the
service personnel.



R g REVREE ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RONBE KRR ESE - 2
TVAEEREEE - BEREA
B

B ON B8 IR 2151302 55 3
FHEEBRRZFATRIER
BRTHFTeETE - T
Rk ERFEL/E - 8§
RONEYIZEN B RO E KX
ExBmEEL/E - 2017
FI1I0ATHE  ZEEXERTR
HEBBIORE L 58
B BERTHEET&EE
g R EEREE - 1B
MR BRINEM S —
FrEmATEMRATEERN
BB — EEEBRARE
SR EETRRTHE -
EFRERAHHEFRING
MIFERET BRAVKN o

Times Bund building wheelchair access to help
disabled customer to enter the swimming pool

Mr. Hu is the proprietor of Room 1302,
Unit 2, Block 8 of Times Bund. A car crash
that happened years ago left his lower
body paralysed, reducing him to wheelchair
commuting in and out of his community with
the assistance from the property staff of Times
Bund. In late October 2017, the proprietor
expressed his wish to lose the weight of his
upper body through swimming. However, there
is N0 wheelchair access along the route from
the underground car park to the clubhouse.
Having learnt the situation, the property service
of Times Bund at once building a wheelchair
ramp at the stairs of the above route, removing
the difficulty for the proprietor efficiently. In
response, Mr. Hu and his family members
expressed sincere gratitude to the property
service of Times Bund.
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SUPPLY CHAIN RESPONSIBILITY
MANAGEMENT

Times China’s burgeoning development is closely related
to its suppliers. On a fresh journey to achieving its goal of
RMB100 billion in revenue, the Company seeks to work with
excellent partners for common development and mutual
benefit, deepen and broaden its strategic partnerships with
them, and create a virtuous ecosystem for industry players to
coexist and thrive together.

During the overall management of its supply chains,
Times China sticks to its procurement principle of “Robust
Procurement for Value Creation” and the cooperation
concepts of being simple, transparent, open and fair for
a win-win outcome. Apart from strict compliance with the
“Tender and Bidding Law of the PRC” ({#2E A R F1E 1%
1Z7%)) and national policies, the Company has formulated a
series of internal policies, such as “Times China Procurement
Concepts” (PR A B EREBIE ) ), with an aim to establish a
responsible supply chain management platform.

During supplier admission, Times China strictly complies with
such regulations as the “Admission Standard for Material
Suppliers” ({FEHMEFER E ALY ) and the “Management
System for Material Suppliers” (i EHEFERGEIRHIE ), with
its staff members trying the best to engage in every material
procurement by themselves. As of the end of 2017, Times
China as a primary purchaser, had procured a total of 86
types of construction material, which represented 95% of all
the materials purchased and ranked No.1 within the industry.

As for the admitted suppliers, Times China would carry out
regular review to ensure that the products, projects and
materials purchased from such suppliers meet its quality
control standards. Times China conducts annual inspection
and authentication on its suppliers strictly according to the
“Manual of Supplier Inspection Guidelines” ({f#tfErgE 22
F 1)), reviewing their qualifications, results, reputation,
technology and capital, to ensure the supplier’s quality. The
Company also evaluates its suppliers in environmental, social
and moral aspects, to facilitate the sustainable development
of supply chains.
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During the cooperation with its suppliers, Times China also
attaches great importance to protecting the intellectual
property rights of both sides, strictly complies with the laws
and regulations on protecting intellectual property rights, and
protects such rights of its own according to law. Meanwhile,
we respect our partners’ intellectual property rights and apply
them strictly within the authorised scope.

During the reporting period of 2017, Times China selected
a total of 832 construction and material suppliers, 83% of
which were located in Southern China.

Times China Partners Meeting 2017

On 13 April 2017, Times China Partners Meeting 2017 was
held at Baiyun International Convention Centre in Guangzhou.
For this event, Times China invited a total of over 600
strategic partner representatives from home and abroad,
spanning construction, material and equipment, and design.
During the meeting, Times China commended 60 partners
for their excellent performance in design, construction and
material during 2016 cooperation.

STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND CARE

Times China believes that excellent talents are always the
most important drive for sustainable corporate development.
Times China fully respects each staff member, seeks to
explore their value and potential to the greatest extent,
and strives to provide all staff members with a fair and just
environment for employment and a career platform where
they can put their talent and creativity to use.

6.1 Employment overview

As of the end of 2017, Times China has a total
of 7,492 staff members (including approximately
34.0% of female staff and approximately 47.7% staff
aged below 30 years old) and a staff turnover rate
of 22.36%, which is within the normal range of the
industry.
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6.2

On the basis of strictly complying with the relevant
national laws and policies, such as the “Labour Law
of the PRC” ({fr#E AR KB4 E)%)), Times China
has formulated the “Times China Talent Management
Manual” ({FRHPE AT EEFM)) and other
internal policies to specify provisions on staff
recruitment, promotion, benefits, vacation and anti-
discrimination, as standards of talent management
and human resources of the Company. Times China
explicitly opposes and takes strict measures against
the employment of child labour or forced labour.
In respect of recruiting new staff, the Company will
consider the candidate’s employment background,
professional competence, personality and potential,
and ensure that no unfair treatment would occur
throughout the recruitment process due to the
candidate’s gender, age, race and religion.

During the reporting period, Times China has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Company in relation
to employment matters such as preventing child
labour and forced labour, including but not limited to
the “Labour Law” ({#&);%)) and the “Law on the
Protection of Minors” (R F AREED ).

Remuneration and Benefits

Times China provides and maintains competitive
remuneration in the market, with attention also paid
to internal fairness and motivation of remuneration
entitlement, to meet the demand of talent growth
and development and support the sustainable
development of the Company’s business. The
Company has a staff restaurant to satisfy staff
members’ dining demand, as well as a staff activity
centre and other facilities to enrich their life in
spare time. Moreover, the Company places much
importance on staff festival benefits. Apart from its
strict compliance with such internal policies as the
“Standard for the Application of Staff Benefits” (&
TRAPIRFZA) ), the Company issues cash gifts
for birthday, festival gifts, condolence money, and
implements the staff care scheme.
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6.3 Training and Development

6.3.1 Staff training policy and system

In the talent training principle of “Focusing on
internal training, complemented by external
recruitment”, Times China is visionary to
train its talents in a progressive and diverse
approach, with plans and steps to explore,
develop and train the future team of talents.
Staff members of different rankings are
provided with targeted plans for training and
development. The company also formulated
the individual training management system to
support staff members applying for external
training courses organised by external
professional training institutions or colleges,
learning professional technical skills and
management knowledge, and enhancing
individual capability. Furthermore, with clear
internal standards of talent evaluation in place,
the Company provides regular evaluation
on the competency, performance and
development potential of its staff members, to
facilitate their growth and development.

In 2017, Times China provided an aggregate
of 34,098 hours of training for a total of 3,489
staff members, averaging 9.77 hours per
training session.

Times University

Establishing Times University is an important
part of work for the human resources centre
of Times China in 2017. Closely centered on
its role of “cradle of talent supply”, “business
development partner” and “cultural promotion
platform”, Times University formulated
corresponding work strategies and carried out
key projects in line with the talent development
strategy of the Company, who focuses on
optimising its talent management mechanism,
exploring the potential of its talents and
accelerate talent development.
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6.4

6.3.2 Career path

Times China designs a two-way, multi-stage
career path for staff of different positions and
ranks, including those in management and
professional fields. As an effective reference for
staff self-positioning, growth and promotion,
the career path specifies the employment
levels that staff of different positions and ranks
can reach in the Company and the abilities
and qualities required for realising such career
objectives.

Health and Safety

Times China strictly complies with a series of laws,
regulations and national policies, such as the “Law
on the Protection of Labour Rights and Interests”
((BE)EREZSREE)) and the “Labour Law of the
PRC" ((RZEARKEFELE) X)), to ensure the
occupational health and safety of each staff member.

6.4.1 Occupational safety and health protection
In order to protect the occupational health
of its staff, Times China provided its formal
members of staff with commercial insurance in
addition to normal social insurance, to ensure
that they can receive a higher proportion of
medical reimbursement and compensation
in the event of an accident. On top of that,
the Company offered annual routine physical
examination for its staff members to ensure
that they are timely updated on their physical
condition.
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6.5

6.4.2 Safe production management and training
Attentive to building and managing its
safe production system, Times China has
formulated internal policies, such as the “Safety
Management System of Times China” ( (&%
R EZ2EIEREZK)) to ensure the safety
and stability of business operation, project
construction and communities, prevent and
reduce production safety accidents, and
ensure the safety of the staff, customers and
company assets. The system comprises
three main parts, namely, comprehensive
safety management for office facilities,
project construction safety management, and
community safety management. To ensure
effective operation of the safety management
system, Times China organised a number
of safe production training sessions and
drills in 2017, in relation to fire safety, anti-
theft, prevention of and escape from natural
disasters, road safety and the safety of public
activities.

Times China strives to ensure the safety and
health of each staff member. As of the end of
2017, the Company had 7,492 staff members
and incurred a total of 29 work-related injuries
(subject to verification by social security
authorities) and no work-related death.

Staff Care

Internally, Times China has been promoting a healthy
lifestyle, in an effort to help its staff to cultivate a
good habit for life. In 2017, a comprehensive ban on
smoking took place from the headquarters to projects,
which has been written into the regulations of the
Company to create a healthy working environment for
the staff.

In order to promote work-life balance among its
staff, Times China plans and conducts a wide range
of cultural and sports activities to enrich the life of
its staff beyond the work. The staff of Times China
has opportunities to participate in various regular or
irregular activities held by the Company each year,
including annual meeting, sports meets, staff talent
contests and celebrations.
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When its staff members and their families encountered
difficulties, Times China wishes to do all it can as
an employer, to help them overcome difficulties.
The Company was active in helping its staff through
difficulties by establishing staff care fund and other
means. Since 2010, Times China established a staff
care fund for all the staff members of the Company,
their immediate family and siblings who are under 18,
as a gesture to help the staff through difficulties. So
far, the fund has supported 36 staff members or their
family for treating serious diseases, the amount of
fund amounting to RMB681,000.

Staff activities held in 2017 include:

o The Sixteenth Times China Staff Sports Meet

° “Leading a New Journey with Wisdom” —
The Fifth Times China Sports Meet for the
Management

o “Song and Drama Dance” — 2017 Times China

Staff Talent Contest

° “Joining Hands and Building Dreams for Times
China” — The League Construction Activity of
Times China

° “New Goal, New Journey” Times China Annual
Meeting
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a long-term advocate of green building development,
Times China integrates the concept of environmental
protection into its products and services, and provides the
public with ecofriendly building products that are conducive
to habitation and health. At the same time, the Company
commits its greatest efforts to minimise the environmental
impact caused by daily operation, contributing its share
to the eco-environment that we rely on for living. As for
environmental protection, energy-saving and emissions
reduction, Times China has enforced the “Law of the PRC
on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Wastes” ((H % A R F01 5 E 88 B 1))5 R RIRH
JAvA&) ) and followed the principle of reducing, recycling and
decontaminating solid wastes for prevention and control.
The Company has been continuously improving its internal
institutions by successively formulating such policies and
regulations as the “Energy Saving Standards” ({85 T {E
ZX)). In the meantime, all departments delivered active
cooperation, promptly identify the environmental impacts
caused by such pollutants as exhaust, waste water, solid
wastes and noise. Once an issue on environmental pollution is
confirmed, measures would be taken immediately, to reduce
its negative impact.

During the reporting period, Times China has complied with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Company in relation to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.
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Electricity

Carbon emissions management of Times China in

2017

In 2017, Times China emitted a total of 9,867.8 tonnes of
carbon dioxide (including direct and indirect emission), with
external electricity purchase serving as the main emission
source (accounting for approximately 93%).

7.1
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Green Building

The construction industry faces enormous challenges
in respect of low carbon, environmental protection,
energy saving and consumption reduction. Going
green in building and construction is an inevitable
requirement for the development of the industry
and its businesses. As an active response to the
Central Party Committee and the State Council’s
strategic deployment on green buildings, Times China
modifies its architectural design plans according to
local conditions, and delivers green buildings in such
aspects as natural ventilation and lighting, sunlight
and heat insulation, and rainwater collection. During
its construction process, the Company actively
applied new technologies, materials, products and
craftsmanship, together with innovative management
that features integrated execution of saving energy,
land, water and material as well as protecting the
environment.
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7.2

By the end of 2017, Times China obtained green
building certification for a total of 4 projects, namely,
Time Bridges (3G X EE1E), Times King City
(Guangzhou Nancun) (B /1 &+ 4EK), Times King
City (Shunde) Phase | (=5 835 —HA) and Times
Horizon (Guangzhou Huangpu) Zone 1A (BN & i
RRBIAR).

Green Construction

Practicing “Green Construction” for years, Times
China tries to maximise energy conservation and
environmental protection, optimise the rational
layout of green vegetation and building density, and
emphasise the integration of green construction
materials into the construction system. To enable
the Industrialisation 1.0 system project to take
place, Times China vigorously promoted the “Ten
New Techniques of the Construction Industry” and
applied new materials and technologies, such as new
aluminum alloy moulds and thin plaster for interior
walls, to construction projects, so as to facilitate
continuous product innovation, iteration and upgrade.

As for its architectural construction projects, Times
China sticks to a comprehensive environmental impact
assessment, with thorough control and treatment of
emissions, wastes and other factors that affect the
environment. In 2017, no event occurred that had
a material negative impact on the environment and
natural resources.

Time Park Laurel

Time Park Laurel, a project under Times China,
has adopted the green construction system and
fully applied the environmentally friendly concept of
“Green Construction”. The project made effective
control on flying dusts and ashes through sprinklers,
fog guns and spray system for dust removal. Its
standard buildings were constructed with aluminum
alloy moulds, 100% concrete walls, and high-
precision thin-layer construction technology, to cut
resource consumption and effectively reduce two
thirds of construction wastes. This fully showcased
the exemplary role and advanced characteristic of
Industrialisation 1.0 system of Times China.
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7.3

Times China advocates resource conservation and
rational utilisation. In 2017, its on-going projects
consumed a total of about 16 million kWh of
electricity, approximately 402,500 tonnes of steel
bars and 3.5 million m?® of concrete. In addition,
the Company’s construction projects particularly
focus on the recycling and reuse of waste water and
solid wastes. In 2017, under the green construction
concept advocated by the headquarters, the ongoing
construction projects of Times China recycled various
non-hazardous construction wastes, including 537.6
tonnes of steel bar, 3,024 tonnes of construction
wastes and 604.8 tonnes of metals. During its
construction for the whole year, the Company
consumed about 720,000 m? of water, and recycled
and reused 120,000 tonnes of waste water.

Note: Construction-related data represents the
environmental impact of construction contractors,
who manage and report such data according to
provisions of cooperation. Such data fall beyond
the content of environmental impact that should
be disclosed by Times China in this report.
Nevertheless, Times China disclosed such third-party
data for the purpose of presenting a comprehensive
assessment of its environmental impact, with no
guarantee for the accuracy of such data.

Green Property

Stressing the “people-oriented” model for green
property management, Times China is committed
to providing quality services for its customers and
advocating a new model of sustainable property
management, which improves the philosophy of
property management. By doing so, the Company
is working towards the goal of saving energy,
protecting the environment and creating a healthy and
comfortable living environment. As such, the Group
realizes both property management and green life. In
2017, Times China actively promoted green property
renovation, by installing energy-saving lamps in all
its mature residential property projects and charging
points in 80% of its projects for the proprietors to use.

Times China underlines the conservation of resources
and energy in managing residential and commercial
properties. In 2017, the Company incurred
approximately 8.635 million kWh of operation-related
electricity consumption from its property management
(including that from property management
offices and the part not shared by proprietors or
tenants), approximately 10,131.6 litres of gasoline
consumption from the administrative vehicles owned
by its properties, and approximately 708,363 ms3 of
operation-related water consumption (including that of
property management offices and the part not shared
by proprietors or tenants).



74

7.5

R g REVREE ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REBERABRLBARER 518
BTRASHER - EREHED
X REFATEMERERREE
BUR - RAEARE M BT AR

AN BIE T EK LR E R
B

RRFRBRGEERITHRCHRARE
2 BB THMEEFEE &9
BRI HEEEAA PN 0 2017
F - QAP AE B FEE 2 4506
ETEE  (THEWTDHEREELD
178 H - RAREFEE89,7603L
FAKE BN PRI E £ i
NEEARHI26ME - FE B B E 209
B ITENH R £34918 » FEESE
Me71F 5 - AREEF149TFTHH
BEETMEITEIU - ARRIE T EE
BYHREESHABTZE(GE:
IRIE R A B A 75 1 M B R 8
BEN  BEVIZEREENHA
REE  SBEE(REAREM
BlfsBaRE YR ER)EREZEY)) -

KRR BIBE

RREX  RERBRIFEEIT
PMEEXREAERRNEREY -
TERRTEERUREBLNESR
ARE D - BRPBEER4.08E
W RS 2WTET —EHE
WA BREN —RAORK/E
BEMEERT MEHERERE
SERAREHMAIFELER - K
AR PNRRL T — AR T 23R — 4%
W AR (h1-3F AR - A
BUEN - BIR - Bee - B - B
BABAIRKREE -

7.4

7.5

Green Office

The Company seeks to save its office expenses
and resources, guide its staff to be more aware of
saving resources, and build a conservation-oriented
company. With that in mind, multiple environmental
protection measures have been implemented across
the headquarters and regional offices of the Company
according to relevant environmental management
policies of Times China, to reduce the energy and
resources consumed by its offices.

As an advocate of practicing green office philosophy,
Times China encourages its staff to turn off lights
when appropriate and promote paperless office, all
in an aim to save resources. In 2017, the Company
consumed a total of about 5.96 million kWh in its
office areas, about 170,000 liters of gasoline due to
its administrative vehicles, and 89,760 m?3 of natural
gas. In addition, the office areas produced about 26
tonnes of used paper, a total of 209 waste fluorescent
tubes, 349 toner cartridges and 671 kilograms of used
batteries. Among them, 149 kilograms were recycled
by the Company, an effective move to reduce the
negative environmental impact from waste (Note:
According to the business nature and actual operation
of Times China, its waste mainly comes from daily
life and office, with no generation of waste under the
“National Hazardous Waste Inventory of the PRC” ((
£ AR KB ERREEYEER)).

Explore a New Type of Urbanisation

Times Industry is an organic product of integrated
development of cities and industries under the “New
Normal” of national development, and serves as a
key component for the strategic transformation of
Times China. Based on the “4.0 version for value
and cities” (4.01{&# ), Times China presents a
fresh model of new-type urbanization — Times Future
Town, where common prosperity and sustainable
development are achieved through “value sharing” in
urban construction and management. Located on the
peripheral area of first-tier and prominent second-tier
cities, such new towns occupy an area of 1-3 square
kilometres and are characteristic of their “vibrancy,
self-sustaining ecosystems, intelligence, low carbon,
and value-creation partners”.
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SOCIAL WELFARE AND COMMUNITY
INVESTMENT

While developing itself, Times China actively assumes
its social responsibility and cares for education, urban
development, healthcare and other areas of public welfare,
trying to set the benchmark as a responsible company.
Since its establishment, Times China has made social and
charitable donations with an accumulated amount of nearly
RMB400 million via the Company itself and through Times
Foundation, to support education, healthcare, poverty relief
and other charitable causes.

In 2017, Times China and Times Foundation made charitable
donations totaling RMB178.31 million, which was mainly
invested in education, health, aid and art.

8.1 Promoting the Development of Education

Education is a long-term focus area for Times China
and its charity foundation. Since 2007, Times China
has maintained its funding to the education enterprise
of Sun Yat-sen University for a decade, making its
contribution to Chinese education. In 2017, Times
China continued to support the “Village Teacher
Scheme for Hope” (“ 7 21 #4ET51#"), and hosted
a book donation activity themed “Sending Hope and
Sharing Childhood via Books”.

Caring for education: donating RMB100 million
to set up “Sun Yat-sen University Times
Development Fund”

In January 2017, Times China donated RMB100
million to set up “Sun Yat-sen University Times
Development Fund”, to respond to the national
strategic plan of innovation-driven development
and support the objective of building Sun Yat-sen
University into a world-class university. Caring for
both education and medicine, “Sun Yat-sen University
Times Development Fund” provides RMB80 million
to develop the education of Sun Yat-sen University
and RMB20 million to support the medical and health
services of the affiliated hospitals of Sun Yat-sen
University. In the future, Times Foundation will sustain
its close cooperation with Sun Yat-sen University,
to jointly facilitate the development of cultural,
educational, medical and health services.
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8.2

Promoting Green and Healthy Life

As a long-term participant of various public sports
activities and an advocate of healthy lifestyle, Times
China has hosted a number of prominent sports
events, including Foshan 50km Hiking (#1150 B
#£2#5), Qingyuan Marathon (j&#& BH#2) and Cross-
Mainland Public-Welfare Cycling (54t K 2Rl A 2555
77). On top of that, Times China has been supporting
grassroots ping pong projects for years.

2017 marked the second consecutive year of “Charity
Walk” (“AzsFHER"), an event organised by Times
Foundation which combined sports, health and low
carbon. “Charity Walk” exemplifies the diversity of
social welfare activities held by the foundation, who
attempts to convey the concept of low-carbon public
welfare through healthy lifestyle and practise its
mission to spread the positive energy of health and
environmental protection.

“The Fifth Times-China Cross-Mainland Public-
Welfare Cycling in 2017”

From June through October 2017, Times China
assisted the hosting of the “Fifth Times-China Cross-
Mainland Public-Welfare Cycling in 2017”, one of
the largest and most influential public-welfare sports
events nationwide. Centered on disseminating the
concept of environmental protection in public welfare,
the event sought to organise its participants to cross
the Chinese Mainland from south to north, using their
action to call on the public to adopt green commuting,
energy conservation and emissions reduction.
Featuring “low carbon, public welfare and health”, the
event perfectly matched “Life Stylist”, a role pursued
by Times China constantly; it reflected Times China’s
social responsibility and mission of spreading health,
environmental protection, happiness and positive
energy. The event was also supported by 10 senior
leaders of Times China who rode half-marathons for
seven consecutive days in support of environmental
protection, endeavoring to spread the environmentally
friendly concept of “green commuting, energy
conservation and emissions reduction” even further.
Composed of warm-up, formal and offline events as
well as online activities, the “Fifth Times-China Cross-
Mainland Public-Welfare Cycling in 2017” boasted a
total of 400,000 participants who cycled more than
100 million kilometres and saved carbon emissions
totaling over 20 million kilograms.
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8.3

Caring for Disadvantaged Groups

So far, Times China has sustained its poverty relief in
the poverty-stricken and backward areas of Qingyuan,
Zhongshan, Zengcheng, Meizhou and Raoping in
Guangdong Province. For instance, the Company has
been supporting “June 30 Guangdong Poverty Relief
Day” (B30EE &K H) for seven years in a roll. In
August 2017, Times China donated RMB10 million to
the government of Doumen District, Zhuhai City, for
the reconstruction work following Typhoon Hato. 2017
was also the eighth consecutive year of winter clothes
donation, an activity organised by Times Foundation.
It mobilised the staff and proprietors of Times China
as well as all walks of life to participate in the activity,
bringing warmth to poor villagers in Yunnan and
Xinjiang.

Never forget the origin: Donating RMB3 million
to establish “Nanhai Middle School Foundation
for Educational Development”

On 16 December 2017, the chairman of the Board
of Times China established “Nanhai Middle School
Foundation” for Educational Development together
with two alumni, donating RMB3 million to give
back to their alma mater and support its educational
development.
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8.4

Enriching Life with Art

For years, Times China has been hosting major
musical performances, in an aim to enrich people’s
spiritual life through a variety of artistic forms, sustain
an atmosphere of art and culture, and deliver its
concept of being a life stylist.

Based on the consensus and recognition of the city
and its culture, Times China has sponsored Canton
Temple Fair (EFFEIE) for three consecutive years,
as part of the efforts to support the city’s spiritual
development and inherit Cantonese culture. In
February 2017, Times China teamed up with Canton
Temple Fair once again, covering 16 locations with
44 themed activities and more than 130 theatrical
performances. The seven-day temple fair attracted an
excess of 6 million visitors.

In December 2017, Times China introduced
the Broadway classic musical “Jersey Boys” to
Guangzhou, staging 13 performances for nine days,
which attracted nearly 15,000 viewers. Information
and posters about the play were available across the
city’s public venues, reaching 7.86 million people.
The special performance enriched the culture and art
in urban life, and stimulated art appreciation among
urban dwellers.
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Guangdong Times China Art Museum

Founded by Times China in 2003, Guangdong
Times Art Museum was registered as a non-profit art
museum and open to the public in October 2010. So
far, the Museum has hosted a series of exhibitions
and public cultural activities, including the regular
“Community Cultural Festival” and “Art on Track”.
These events have closed the distance between art
and the public, bringing art to communities and closer
to life.

In 2017, Times Art Museum hosted a total of six
exhibitions for 24,421 visitors (including 7,693 free
admissions), 84 public projects for an audience
of more than 10,400 (including 82 projects free of
charge), and four free art and academic projects
with experts stationed locally. For six years in a row,
Times Art Museum hosted the forum series for the
international curators’ exhibition (EIFSZ % R), a
three-day sharing event attended by more than 10
famous curators from home and abroad. The event
also features free live broadcast via a professional art
application “Art on Air” (fE£2), with up to 3,500 visitors
online.
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9.1 BUXRFIR 9.1 Alist of policies

9 HWHEBRRGL 9

EFERHE

Compliance with National Policies

(R AR FEMEE BBREY))5 R IR
DIpI=y7 Y

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Wastes

(RETRGEHRITERE)

WEBEUR

Internal Policies

(ERBE TIERAEE)

ESGIEZ
ESG Indicator

A IRIE

A. Environmental Energy Saving Standards

(RERAZBERAE - BBIER
TR ZEH)

Evaluation Standard for Green List of Environmental Factors (Office,

B1. &%
B1. Employment

B2. @FREZTE
B2. Health and Safety

Construction of Buildings

(GEYNEE ST E) )
Labour Law of the PRC
(hEARKEMBILEERE)
Labour Contract Law of the PRC

(GEYNEE S S 7))

Law of the PRC on Employment
Promotion

(R AREMBIALEREIE)

Social Insurance Law of the PRC

(EIEFERETRED

Prohibition of Child Labour Provisions

(BBERDREL)

Law of the PRC on the Protection of

Labour Rights and Interests
(PEARAMBELEE)
Labour Law of the PRC

(REE A REMBUERE)

Fire Protection Law of the PRC
(REARFEMBLZEESE)
Work Safety Law of the PRC
(hEE AR HEFMBIB SR AE)

Real Estate Projects, Engineering
and Security)
(RRPBRATERFM)
Times China Talent Management Manual
(BFRABANEREEHEER)
Collection of Regulations on Human
Resources Management of Times
China
CEIRMPIREHE)
Standard for the Application of Staff
Benefits

(FRPBEZEEEER)

Safety Management System of Times
China

(IRERGIREITERREIRRE)

Implementation Standard on Remote
Video Surveillance System for
Construction Projects

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases

(TGRS

Regulations on Work-Related Injury
Insurance
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Tender and Bidding Law of the PRC

(PEE AR EFEEGEE)
Trademark Law of the PRC

(PEAREMBEESE)
Advertisement Law of the PRC

(pE AR FEFMBEEFE)
Patent Law of the PRC

(PEAREFMBEEREDEX)
Product Quality Law of the PRC
(hEARHENMBENEBEE ERREE)
Consumer Protection Law of the PRC

CEBER M AN E R EEFERE
ERNOBER)

Opinions of the General Office of
the State Council on Facilitating
Continuous and Healthy Development
of the Construction Industry

(EB M AEEN A ERE
Mg EER)

Guiding Opinions of the General Office
of the State Council on Promoting
Fabricated Construction

(AR HEEESERBERLRSETEE
aTER)

Certain Opinions Concerning the

[oEag =

Promotion of Industrialisation of Building

Materials to Improve Housing Quality

Times China Procurement Concepts

(RERAPEITRRERZERAE)

Times China Tendering Management
Regulations for Engineering Projects

(MM R E AR R EIREIE)

Admission Standard and Management
System for Material Suppliers

(FRAPBETREESMEEEE)

Times China Construotlon Quality
Assessment and Management System

CRER AP B TR 4R I IR HIE )

Times China “Construction Suspension”
Management System

(RRAPBETIRRE S RIHE)

Times China Reward and Punishment
System for Construction Quality

(IECERR)

Industrialisation of Construction System

(IRRBRGAEE RREMIRLE)

Implementation Standard on Remote
Video Surveillance System for
Construction Projects

T E RIEAE)

New Product Standard

(BRYMEREFPERBIEXEEE)
Times China Customer-Housekeeper
Line Operation Instructions

(RRYEIEBRBRIEXREE)
Times China Engineering Service Line
Operation Instructions
(BRYMERFIERIEXEEE)
Times China Customer Assistant Line
Operation Instructions
(RRYERSDREIBHE)
Times China On-site Hierarchical
Management Mechanism
(BFRYEBZBZHIE)
Times China Daily Appraisal System
CEBRFEIETERIZ)
Procedures for Handling Customer
Complaints
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(PEARAMBERPEZFEFE)
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
(AR LB EBRITROEITAE)
Interim Provisions on Prohibiting
Commercial Bribery

BREARIIFR 9.2 Tables of Key Performance
RIEFEEIIR
Environmental Data
ESGISZE By WABEE =M [EEL/ES Ea

Residential Commercial
ESG Indicator Unit Office Area Properties Properties Total

M2 BERBEHERERZEE

A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions and intensity

BEE_S(RFENE i 386.7 60.1 26.2 473.0
Direct CO, emissions Tonne

i — S iR E I 3,951.8 5,323.1 119.9 9,394.8
Indirect CO, emissions Tonne

—E bR R E 1A 4,338.5 5,383.2 146.1 9,867.8
Total CO, emissions Tonne

BEFRZAHRBERE e, 75K - - - 0.001
CO, emissions per m2 Tonne/m?

A1.3&A1.4 FRIEEEEY
A1.3&A1.4 Waste produced

RE B R BEE B 209 9,794 1,583 11,586
Waste fluorescent tubes [tem

FTENERR I & & 349 147 6 502
Toner cartridges [tem

Y T 671.1 214.7 27.8 913.6
Batteries Kilogram

FENEEES 1A 26.4 260.4 2.0 288.8
Office paper Tonne

FEEREME A 304.3 - - 340.3
Decoration material wastes Tonne
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RIBEHIBYIX
Environmental Data
ESGER B b NS EEWE [GE2/ES e
Residential Commercial
ESG Indicator Unit Office Area Properties Properties Total
A6 EEEEREEBEEYHR
A1.6 Results of handling hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
BHEKE(EE) TR 149.1 - - 149.1
Battery recycling (hazardous) Kilogram
oRmEWE (|E) B 6.5 - - 6.5
Paper recycling (non-hazardous) Tonne
A21 BERBEEREE
A2.1 Total energy consumption and intensity
e DR FFEF - - - 17,338.65
Comprehensive energy consumption 1000 kWh
PWAFEE TR 5,961,317 8,444,641 190,210 14,596,168.0
Office electricity consumption kWh
SORIBRE 7+ - 22,789 1,455 24,244.0
Diesel consumption Litre
FURHRES Ft 170,154.6 280 9,851.6  180,286.2
Gasoline consumption Litre
RARIEFEE SR 89,760 - - 89,760
Natural gas consumption m3
BRI ARGEEHE TRE, - - - 1.738
Comprehensive energy consumption ERHK
per m? kWh/m?
A22 KERHEHEREE
A2.2 Water resources consumption and intensity
R FK AV 4,860  705,730.8 2.682:20 igresely
Office water consumption m3
T KRN RE SMFKS - - - 0.0715

Water consumption intensity per m2 K
ms3/m?2
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HEEIEYIR
Social Data
ESGER B E4
ESG Indicator Unit Total
B1. {Ef&
B1. Employment
B1.1 EE AR - BRI - BEIEE - FaeR KR E 5
Number of employees by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region
EREBAH A 7,492
Total number of employees Headcount
(=% S A 4,941
Gender Male Headcount
7 A 2,551
Female Headcount
EfEEs RREIEE A 127
Employment Type Senior management Headcount
hAREIRE A 261
Middle management Headcount
EEET A 7,104
Entry-level staff Headcount
Fhe 295 LA TS A 3,575
Age 29 and below Headcount
30-495% A 3,376
30-49 Headcount
50 MIA A 541
50 and above Headcount
@ P EIAH, A 7,466
Geographical Region Mainland China Headcount
R A 26
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan Headcount
SN A 0
Overseas Headcount
B1.2 BERAE - RMH - EEEE - Fielnlk
@ &5
Employee turnover rate by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region
BIRKBAB(FARARAE) A 4,036 (22.36%)
Total employee turnover (combined turnover rate Headcount
for the year)
k3]l SHORKE) A 2,844 (23.36%)
Gender Male (turnover rate) Headcount
ZHE(RAE) e 1,192 (20.27%)
Female (turnover rate) Headcount
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HEEHIEYIR
Social Data
ESGIEE By Es
ESG Indicator Unit Total
FHe 203F KA T (R 2K ) A 2,238 (25.64%)
Age 29 and below (turnover rate) Headcount
30495 (k%) A 1,585 (19.68%)
30-49 (turnover rate) Headcount
50p% & A (RS 3 ) A 213 (16.79%)
50 and above (turnover rate) Headcount
@ PRI ORAR) A 4,032 (22.40%)
Geographical Region Mainland China (turnover rate) Headcount
ERE (RKE) A 4(8.12%)
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan (turnover rate) Headcount
INOREER) A 0 (0.0%)
Overseas (turnover rate) Headcount
B2.1 ETEBE ML T B A B &
Number and rate of work-related deaths
ETERE ML T AR A 0
Number of work-related deaths Headcount
AR % 0
Death rate
B2.2 ETEEATIERS
Number of work days lost due to work-related injuries
LTBETHEAR X 602.5
Number of days for average work-related injuries Day
TERE(LALIRARTE BfE) R 29
Number of work-related injuries (subject to verification Case
by social security authorities)
B3.1 ZHEE LB - R MERIAE B ERE 5
Percentage of employees trained, by gender and
employment type
PEREIAH AR 3,489
Total number of employees trained Headcount
M3 S (ZFNEF) NN 2,173 (62.2%)
Gender Male (percentage of members trained) Headcount
2 (Z L) AR 1,318 (37.8%)
Female (percentage of members trained) Headcount
EfEERE SREEE (XA N 32 (0.9%)
Employment Type Senior management (percentage of members trained) Headcount
RARERRE (I A) AR 300 (8.6%)
Middle management (percentage of members trained) Headcount
EEB T (ZINLA) AR 3,157 (90.5%)
Entry-level staff (percentage of members trained) Headcount
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HEEHIEIIR
Social Data
ESGER B E4
ESG Indicator Unit Total
B3.2 EEXIITHERE
Average number of training hours for employees
BRI N 34,098
Total number of training hours Hour
Esla aNis 19,186
Male Hour
g N 14,912
Female Hour
mRERE N 1,074
Senior management Hour
PARERE N 3,766
Middle management Hour
AEEBT aN:s 29,258
Entry-level staff Hour
B5.1 iR EI D HEREA
Number of suppliers by geographical region
HrEmBAR 832
Total number of suppliers
ER 1 118
Eastern China Entity
it @ 10
Northern China Entity
i & 692
Southern China Entity
Frp 1 6
Central China Entity
7ar & 6
Southwestern China Entity
B6.1 EERDEXEMBRETAL T EERITAMA
EN G ER N

Percentage of products sold or shipped subject to
recalls of safety and health reasons

EES % 0
Recycling rate
B6.2 BN E o M RIGHIREF BB AR EE A

Number of product and service-related complaints
received and how they are dealt with

MERF — BFIRE R 165
Property complaints on customer service Case
MR — TR N 239
Engineering-related property complaints Case
HEWERH /N 911
Other property complaints Case
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HEEEEIIR
Social Data
ESGIEZ By E
ESG Indicator Unit Total
B7.1 REEFHRPSES « IR - B1ER - BEFRIERIEN

FEARM
Number of legal cases involving corruption, bribery,

extortion, fraud and money laundering during the

reporting period
BISFARMMEE % 0
Number of legal cases involving corruption Case

B8 HEZ A EEIEEESAER

B8 Community Resources contributed to the focus area

Investment

NEAEREARA ARBETT 17,831
Total investment in charitable donations RMB10,000

it Notes:

1. C017EE 2 FIBIBEIR R ER 1. Environmental data for the whole year of 2017 cover
RPBERRHA R (BEEERR the operation-related data of the office areas of
BREHERR) - AERRARE Times China (including the group headquarters and
TUEEENEEMENEZE its regional subsidiaries) as well as the residential
MELEREE(BEYEER and commercial properties for which the Company
BRIEAEIHHIREEY - 82 provides property management, including the waste
TREEFE ~ BRI BERE) © from property management offices and the part not
BEIRERE - KERERE - RE shared publically, energy and water consumption,
REBEMNEBR A ST EEE and carbon emission. In respect of energy and water
E12(8 A A EHIEE - consumption as well as greenhouse gas emissions,

the statistics only cover such projects that have
operated for more than 12 consecutive months.

2. M EE R | LIRBER 2. Carbon emission merely refers to the emission of
£ TESETHBREER carbon dioxide, excluding the greenhouse gases,
MERR - SRS RERE such as methane and nitrous oxide, from other
A o emission sources.

g, AERBRPENERAS - & 3. Based on the business activities of Times China,
EEEREPAITEEREREE its exhaust emissions, including nitrogen and sulfur
W BEAE/LY  HEty oxides and other pollutants discharged under
REMZFRFERZLROIIRE national laws and regulations, are not significant
RS B R © during daily operation.

4. RIEISO 14064 R EREEEE 4. According to ISO 14064 Greenhouse Gas Inventory

R BEROBEREHM(EE
— )T ER KA NEBPTES
R EGIBEROR - 08 & P
BRZGRTRANBER - HER
EREBHR(EE ) YR
MEFRR - EBAENME
BRI 2R = RAEHEIA -

134 BRFEZRARLE 2017 FERS

Standards, direct greenhouse gas emissions
(Category 1) refer to the emissions from direct
sources owned and controlled by an organisation,
such as its own vehicles; and indirect greenhouse
gas emissions (Category ll) refer to the emissions
from indirect sources, such as electricity purchase.
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REBEREART (T EEMTT
EEERRERBHBZET A
mf IR (RT))8 — 8l
ETRE - HPIMNEENBER
AFRAErRHEEERS
FRAP BRI B B g
BEF)) -

RE(IRGREEFERA)
(GB2589-2008):TE B K EE
5 8m R RARSE
BIr AR (B TTEE) ©

BIRMAXRAELAN  F8T
MK ER=FE T AR (F
METRAB+F ABRE THE)
x100% -

Carbon dioxide was calculated according to the
“Accounting Methods and Reporting Guideline
for Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Enterprises of
Industry and Other Sectors (Trial)” ({ T3 £ b
TECEREREBERZREF ZEBEEE
(577) )) issued by the National Development
and Reform Commission. In particular, the emission
of electricity purchased from external sources
was calculated on the basis of “Baseline Emission
Factors of Regional Power Grid of the PRC” ({#
B [ i EAS B Z B A F) ) issued annually for
Southemn China Power Grid.

Comprehensive energy consumption (unit:
1,000 kWh), which is consolidated from the
consumption of electricity, diesel, gasoline and
natural gas, is calculated according to the “General
Principles of Comprehensive Energy Consumption
Calculation (GB2589-2008)”.

Calculation formula for employee turnover rate:
annual employee turnover rate = annual employee
turnover/(total number of employees at the beginning
of the year + total employee admissions of the year)
x100%.

BEEBMXA(RE e RER CONTENT INDEX OF SEHK ESG REPORTING

HESIDAB RS GUIDE

E1 e ES REEH Bx

Subject Guide Requirement Report Section Remarks

A B

A. Environmental

A1 HERY —REE e RRERR REHRELANEEMSUHEEER
HAATER

A1 Emissions General Disclosure Green Development and A1.1is not applicable, since gas emission

Environmental Protection is not a significant area for the operation
of the Company.
BRIHEUEIRAL2,
A1.3, A1.4, A1.5ZA1.6
Key Performance Indicators A1.2,
A1.3,A1.4,A15and A1.6
A2 ERER —RIEE RAEBHNERTREROEME
A2 5N
A2.5 is not applicable, since the products
of the Company’s business require no

packaging material.

RERRERR

A2 Use of Resources General Disclosure Green Development and

Environmental Protection

R MHERIRIZA21,
A2.2, A2.38A2.4

Key Performance Indicators A2.1,
A2.2, A2.3and A2.4
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E1 E5EXR EEH Bx
Subject Guide Requirement Report Section Remarks
A RERXAER

A3 The Environment and —RERE REBERERR

Natural Resources

B.#&
B. Social

B1 fEfE
B1 Employment

B2 REHZ2
B2 Health and Safety

B3 BR AL

B3 Development and Training

B4 % T XA

B4 Labour Standards

B5 {tEEERE
B5 Supply Chain Management

General Disclosure

TR I SRR IEAS.
Key Performance Indicator A3.1

—RHE
General Disclosure

BRIt B IEEB1.1KB1.2

Key Performance Indicators B1.1
and B1.2

—RE®E

General Disclosure

B HERIRIER2.1, B2.2]1B2.3

Key Performance Indicators B2.1,
B2.2 and B2.3

—RHE

General Disclosure

BRIt B AIEIRB3.1K%B3.2

Key Performance Indicators B3.1
and B3.2

—RIKE

General Disclosure

BRIt B AIEIRB4. 1 KBA.2

Key Performance Indicators
B4.1and B4.2

—RERE

General Disclosure

AR It MIE12B6.11B5.2
Key Performance Indicators
B5.1 and B5.2

136 EHAFEZRERAT 2017 FERSE

Green Development and
Environmental Protection

BT#RERET 6.1
Staff Development and
Care-6.1

BTHREREBRT 64
Staff Development and
Care-6.4

ETHREHEE 6.3
Staff Development and
Care-6.3

BTHREMEE 6.1

Staff Development and
Care - 6.1

HEEEEERE 5.1
Supply Chain Responsibility
Management - 5.1

REPANCETTEBHIEET - &5
SISHERIEHARABER
TENERER

During the reporting period, the Company
complied with the laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on such
employment aspects as the prevention
of child labour and forced labour
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E1 E5lER EEH Bix
Subject Guide Requirement Report Section Remarks
B6 EmEfE —REE BEEMERG KA ERE BREBRNIEHRAIZELEATER
BEEE-5.2 EmRRB LS - #B6.1NE
WEBREE S TARERRERS
ERER
B6 Product Responsibility General Disclosure Quality Products and B6.1 is not applicable, given no product
Services and Supply Chain and service recalls during the reporting
Responsibility Management period that had a significant impact
-52 on the operation of the Company; and
the Company strictly complied with
the relevant laws and regulations on
protecting intellectual property rights
during the reporting period
BRIHEREE
B6.2, B6.3, B6.4XB6.5
Key Performance Indicators
B6.2, B6.3, B6.4 and B6.5
BT R&S —REE BffgR REHNREIRES  BE PR
B RARBNFARGESE
B7 Anti-corruption General Disclosure Responsible Governance The Company did not incur any litigation
cases involving corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering
occurred during the reporting period
MR ItANIEIRB7.1 - B7.2
Key Performance Indicators
B7.1and B7.2
B8 #E —REE HEREHES
B8 Community General Disclosure Social Welfare and Community
iRl EiEIZBs.1 ' B8.2 Investment
Key Performance Indicators
B8.1 and B8.2
2 Note:
1. BN FERBEEEEEIIRESAEENE i Data concerning all the key performance indicators disclosed above

(BERAERRD R ) A R BUE

are available in Chapter IX (Tables of Key Performance).
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o
EY::

To the shareholders of Times China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Times
China Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Times Property
Holdings Limited”) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 146 to 326, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.



B BRAFREZRARATDZERR
(REIEHEZMA L ERLE])

FREZER
AREREHERERMNERHE - RAHAN
WAV BREANBERRSEENTH - LS
AREHGAMBREABEBETERLVKER
VE R TETTRIEMN - WPITHELRHEHRE
BHER - HAIY NS - FHEFEZH UM
S AL AL BB = o

BPIE BT ARE NEREI L F s & B HE
HEF BN EE  BREREEHEAH
MEE - Bt - HAINERTIEREREEF G
iR A TSR AR P B OREE AR IR RO R T AR R T A
T2 - BB ZREFNER(BREIEE T XE
HPITHIEFF ) AR PIBLEEM B4R & M 5 R HOE
ZER AR -

B BRI RS INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of Times China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on

the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

BREEXSBIE
Key audit matter

REZFRAEERRELZEANSX

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

o3 A FEALFOE ([ )+ 4 A

Land appreciation tax of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

EREAMMPEAM R T IIREN ([ LibBEB ) - THIRE
EERESREMEMERE SRR NSBERE T BABEHG
ERNERERMRENRRIELREMERAE - ERLHIE
ERABARTRMERERB RONEHEETE - &RKER
AR THENSEEMTR  MENEZELETEEZRE
RN IR E R X R ARRE AR o

BRBBESRALZEMBEREMTI0R27A -

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in
Mainland China which is calculated based on management’s
best estimates of the taxable amount of each of the
Group’s property development projects according to their
understanding of the prevailing requirements of the relevant tax
laws and regulations of the PRC. The actual land appreciation
tax liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon the completion of the property development
projects. The final outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences will
impact the land appreciation tax expenses and the related
provision in the period in which the differences realise.

The related disclosures are included in notes 10 and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RAEBRRMANALHBERSDAAEEERED
THIEEREE - O RS ERE MRS G 2R
KR - B YMEMABIARRIBESE - W hLit
BEREERLT IR - HAMERBNES B HRENE
HEEERERSAE -

We involved our internal tax specialists to test the LAT
calculation prepared by management, analysed and
evaluated the estimates and assumptions used by
management, such as the appreciation amounts of
each property development projects, and assessed the
adequacy of the LAT provision. We also considered the
appropriateness of the relevant disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.
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B BRABEZRARATDZEBRR
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REEXSEEA)

To the shareholders of Times China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT'D)

BRERSE REZPRMEEBERERSENAN
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEHERTEREE

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

REAB A RERA] IR ERTNERIALHEPE M EE
MIER N TR RECHAEE - EXEEEBHEHZIRE
R IR & ER TR A B O R BE By ] B P LA BOR SR VTR 15 AR B R AG
BEEA THERANELEHRAEENTHE

EEREREIZRERAKBHBARELENAABEHE -
EREREYMEE[RMESETENERARARDENBHRRE
RERIEERE - PR EE BB AR -

BRARBEHAGEMHHRERMTE20R -

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Deferred tax liabilities mainly resulted from the temporary
differences as a result of fair value adjustments arising
from acquisition of subsidiaries, revaluation of the Group’s
investment properties and taxes on undistributed profit of
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, which involve management’s
significant assumptions or judgements.

The related disclosures are included in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

140 BRFEZRARLT 2017 FERE

BPVATTIZ PP A IR AR R IE AR BRIERL IR - BFIE2
ZEMWMBERIOEREF A ERET AL - ]I
A 1 TR T ) fRR AR DA B TE 5 1B AR R B AR N T K 121
ERRRENAEENA RN - RRESEMERH
HIREEENBEIRARRANEE - RATFFEEF
HEMNEEE 2HWENEERBEE - RFTERE
BER2EFE B R BRI AR BIRBE LAV A AE
EBRBARRNBR LT ESEEHRER -

We performed procedures on understanding of
the process and controls over deferred tax. We re-
calculated the deferred tax balances by reference
to the local tax laws and regulations. We evaluated
management’s assumptions to determine the probability
that deferred tax assets recognised will be recovered
through future taxable profits, which is estimated
based on the expected revenue and costs generated
by the Group’s property development projects. We
also assessed whether such estimated profits will be
sufficient for the recoverability of the deferred tax assets.
We also involved our tax specialists to evaluate the
Group’s current tax planning strategies and to assess
whether the assumptions and methodology used to
determine the tax positions were consistently applied.
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B BRAFREZRARATDZEBRR
(REIEFHESFTMA LI BRI E])

FRELEEE)

To the shareholders of Times China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT'D)

BREREE REZPRMEBERERSENTN
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
WehEH1 /& 2 E]

Acquisition of subsidiaries

REBEE2-Z—+F+-_A=+—HBILFE E£EFLESE
EREBAHNETIE - AEZSWESENFBINGE
B 5 FR R MIE38 ©

ZEWEFERUEREMEBEX - W hABRBEERDE
MEAHE - BINEAEER BN EEEETE A SR EER
BEREBRYNAAEE  ETFRZEBR -

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
undertook certain acquisitions which were determined by
the directors as business combinations. Details of these
acquisitions are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

These acquisitions are material to the Group and involve
significant judgement in relation to the purchase price
allocation. Management were assisted by external valuation
specialists, in determining the fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities at acquisition dates which involves a
number of assumptions.

BB ZEFBE (BT EE)()FHE et RENEGE
o (WWERBRSARZEFRBERANE B HhE LA
BEXNZE W PAEEREANRE ¢ (i) HE T
BERBEMNBER (VS BRI EE LB ERED
SRAIEHBBENRAER (VA EREZRBINGE
HEFETHENEREEERN  RVBEHEZRZ2H
BBV FIEBE EMRANEEITNERERE AL
REMAEERIERXEMRBEERABNRAE
=0

TAITRRHE R AR & M F R M 138 A B B S IRAV I

BETARC o

Our audit procedures include, among others: (i) evaluated
the appropriateness of the accounting treatment; (ii)
obtained from management the respective agreements
relating to these acquisitions and agreed the payment
of purchase consideration to the terms as set out in
these agreements; (iii) evaluated the identification of
acquired assets and liabilities; (iv) assessed the fair
values of the identified assets and liabilities against
available market data; (v) evaluated the competency
and objectivity of the external valuation specialists
appointed by the Group to perform the valuations;
and (vi) involved our valuation specialists to assist us
in assessing the fair values of such acquired assets
and liabilities by considering the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies adopted and the assumptions
used by the Group.

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosure in

note 38 to the consolidated financial statements in
respect of these acquisitions.
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B BRAPEZRARATDZEERR
(REISFSFMA LA BRI E])

BRFHRAVEMER

BEAREFAHHEMESAR - HBEEBEH
RERNER - ETREEFEMHRER MK
ZEENRE -

ﬁﬁﬁfA%WﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁIT (EEAME
C BFIMTRE BRI A EE & o

RBEPIEGREPBRERNERM S - RANEE

REAEBEMER  EtMZEEMEEREERES
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To the shareholders of Times China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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B BRI RS INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of Times China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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To the shareholders of Times China Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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B BRI RS INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of Times China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hui Kin Fai, Stephen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

28 February 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HE-T—+tF+=-H=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2017

—E—tF —E—RF
2017 2016
Hiat AR¥TT ARBF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
WA REVENUE 5 23,109,961 16,206,451
SHERAR Cost of sales (16,660,052) (11,956,202)
EF Gross profit 6,449,909 4,250,249
H AU A R Wz Other income and gains 5 818,208 362,900
SHE RIS RER A Selling and marketing costs (622,915) (657,499)
THAX Administrative expenses (732,284) (537,144)
Habfx Other expenses (448,485) (84,164)
BhE A A Finance costs 7 (400,874) (239,857)
JEIEEEE AR R Share of profits and losses of
AEPEER associates and joint ventures 224,622 66,090
BR¥ A A HE PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 5,288,181 3,160,575
FriS B> Income tax expense 10 (1,947,271) (1,178,176)
FERE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 3,340,910 1,982,399
T IEFEL - Attributable to:
ViN/NETEZ 2SN Owners of the Company 2,667,154 1,955,020
IS e Non-controlling interests 673,756 27,379
3,340,910 1,982,399
EATEBEREEA EARNINGS PER SHARE
EhEREF ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY 12
E-9N Basic AR¥151% AREE1135
RMB151 cents RMB113 cents
s Diluted AR¥145% ARE1075
RMB145 cents RMB107 cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(2T —+F+=-A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2017

Bt —E—RHF
2017 2016
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEFE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 3,340,910 1,982,399
Htt2mEBA (EE) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS)
REBEHRESENHIEREZEN  Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Hih2mEEA(EH8) to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
HEIGINETSHIE =R Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations 409,132 (355,367)
FEHMZEBA (FHE) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 409,132 (355,367)
FEXHRAESE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 3,750,042 1,627,032
THEIEFEN Attributable to:
RAREEA Owners of the Company 3,061,147 1,599,653
JEIE R e Non-controlling interests 688,895 27,379
3,750,042 1,627,032
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—F—+F+=F=+—H8 31 December 2017

—E—+tF ZT—RF
2017 2016
i3 ARE T ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
E RSB Property, plant and equipment 13 1,378,936 1,241,692
TEff i EFIE Prepaid land lease payments 14 919,206 2,215,923
REYE Investment properties 15 1,498,330 1,598,076
kS Goodwill 16 201,765 47,230
H@rEE Other intangible assets 37,134 5,836
Re S bR ER Interests in joint ventures 17 4,698,830 2,331,872
NN Interests in associates 18 35,086 388,652
A ERE Avalilable-for-sale investments 19 485,402 546,558
BB E Deferred tax assets 20 789,426 351,484
TERIE  HeE R Prepayments, deposits and
Hfth fENRIA other receivables 24 932,768 1,707,506
IEREEELTE Total non-current assets 10,976,883 10,434,829
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
R T E TR Prepaid land lease payments 14 1,374,853 268,523
Y Properties under development 21 43,804,554 28,724,551
BRIFERENME Completed properties held for sale 22 4,083,628 3,977,431
FEWE Z7RIA Trade receivables 23 3,253,356 2,578,562
TBRRIE - ®mE R Prepayments, deposits and
H b e I other receivables 24 14,423,860 9,604,119
e &b TRIE Amounts due from joint ventures 25 4,985,166 658,593
JFE Ui B 2 R RO FRIE Amounts due from associates 26 465,810 421,647
TREF K Tax prepayments 27 804,225 539,945
R HRITIER Restricted bank deposits 28 2,943,774 2,958,017
RERBSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 14,262,982 8,922,727
BB EBEE Total current assets 90,402,208 58,654,115
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
ENEZRIEBEREE Trade and bills payables 29 3,837,132 3,195,843
= AN R e Other payables and accruals 30 28,474,399 26,383,573
EtE&EMTIEA Amounts due to joint ventures 25 4,155,306 92,337
SERITERK Interest-bearing bank loans and
E b g other borrowings 31 6,030,011 1,956,074
e Tax payable 27 2,216,360 1,450,197
mB B EARE Total current liabilities 44,713,208 33,078,024
RBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 45,689,000 25,576,091
EEATER TOTAL ASSETS LESS
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES 56,665,883 36,010,920
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AR CONSOLDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
—ZE—+F+=-"HA=+—8 31 December 2017

B+ —E—RF
2017 2016
et AR FT AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BEERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
BRBEE LIABILITIES 56,665,883 36,010,920
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FFERITERK Interest-bearing bank loans and
HfE other borrowings 31 27,259,076 18,532,468
AR E S Convertible bonds 32 - 312,562
BB & Deferred tax liabilities 20 1,461,192 974,958
ERBEERE Total non-current liabilities 28,720,268 19,819,988
BEFE Net assets 27,945,615 16,190,932
& EQUITY
ANBIHEE AE(h R Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
A% Zx Share capital 33 145,260 135,778
B Reserves 35 15,426,286 8,996,228
15,571,546 9,132,006
R M Non-controlling interests 12,374,069 7,058,926
AR Total equity 27,945,615 16,190,932

il 4+RR
Shum Chiu Hung Niu Jimin
EFE EF
Director Director
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GAEERDE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-T—+tF+=-H=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2017

KARERARR
Attributable to owners of the Gompany
R SR
Rx BhEER  gARS  ARRE NES EXRE  ARNE a3t e RagE
Share  Contribu- Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  premium ted Capital suplus — tranglation  Retained controling Total
capital  account Surplus Teene funds TeServe profts Totd  interests equity

NBRTT NGRTEL ARETT ARRTL ARETL ARETT ARRTL ARRTT ARBTL ARETR
RUBOOO  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RWBOOO  RWBOOO  RWBOOO  RWBOOD  RWMBOOD  RWBOOO  RWBOOD

Wiz) (Wissm)  (Basqn)  (Wsqe)
(note 33) (note 35b))  (note 3a(c))  (note 35(cl)
R-E-7E-A-H At1 January 2016 18,778 1,171,516 8,113 1,160,321 674413 (307362 4206949 7099728 2158267  9.2579%
EgriE Proftt for the year - - - - - - 199,020 1,995,020 21319 1,982,399
EREf2AEE Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - [35.%7) - (%) - (%)
FESERAES Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - (355367 1955020 1,599,653 2319 1627,082
ERSEENEA(ME)  Transfer to reserve funds note 35(d) - - - - 215589 - 15589 - - -
FERRRE Capital inection by
non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - - 2065700 2,065,700
BAENBLER Partil disposal of nterests
(A EERE) in subsidliaries without loss of control - - - 717,089 - - - 17000 2875217 3592316
WEHEBLA Acquistion of subsidiares - - = = = - - I
WE-B RS Aoquistion of a non-controling interest - - - (15040) - - - (15040 @000 (19.040)
BA-2FERRESAHRE  Dividend paic to anon-contraling shareholder - - - - - - - - (105150 (105,150)
BR-T-nEASRE Finel 2015 dividend declred ki . . 5 - - (easTy) - (eosTy)
RIF-ETZAZ1-H At 31 December 2016 136,778 902,142 8113 1.862%0°  890,002° (6627297 5996,380" 9132006  7,068926 16,190,932
* ZERERARESM IR RPIARERHEE - * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
ADFREAEL
Attributable to owners of the Company
‘ ieEH o
Bx ReEEE HARS  EREE 0 MEE  ERRE  GFAE it & EROE
Share  Contribu- Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  premium ted Capital ~ surplus translation  Retained controlling Total

capital  account  surplus  reserve funds  reserve profits Total interests equity

ABRTE ARRTR ARETn ARBTn ARETT ARETZ ARETr ARETn ARBTT ARETx
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000

W) (Wiissw)  (Hitsqe)  (Witsqy)
(note 33) (note 35(b))  (note 35(c))  (note 35(cl)

WE-7EFZAZT-AR  At31 December 2016 and

“3-t+F-f-A 1 January 2017 135,778 902,142* 8,113 1862320 890,002  (662729)* 5996,380* 9,132,006 7,038,926 16,190,932
FETiE Profit for the year - - - - - - 2,067,154 20667154 673,756  3,340910
EEEMRENA Qther compreensive income for the year - - - - - 303,003 - 33003 15130 400,132
EESENALE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 393993 2667154 3,061,147 688,805 3,750,042
ERTRENES () Transferto resene funds (note 35() - - - - 12590 - (12592 - - -
SERRE Capital inection by

non-controling shareholders - - - 2,702,900 - - - 2702900 4,781,100 7,484,000

ERTRRES (MR Conversion of the convertile bonds (note 32~ 9,482 390,760 - - - - - 400242 - 400242
BAMENBAAER Partil disposal of nterests

(GkESE) i subsderis withoutossof contl - - - 1ATI80 - - - 1ATIO0  104TAS0 2524500
WEHEBAT Acquistion of subsidiares - - - - = = = = 1,309 1,309
BfELERBAR Deemed disposals of subsidaries - - - (128 (3666 15139 33666 13841 (679 13269
W e Acaisiton of non-controling interests - - - (450558) - - (22240) (672798  (871,089) (1,543,837)
BR-%3HERREERMRE  Dhidend declared to anon-contraling

shareholder - - - - - - - - (382,000 (382,000

SRE-NERSRE (H511) Final 2016 cvidend declared (note 11) - (4284 - - - - - (54284 - (54284
R-E-+E+-A=1-A At 31 December 2017 145,260 750,060* 8,113+ 5590414+ 982,257  (263,507)* 8,349,030* 15,571,546 12,374,069 27,945,615
* ZERBRBVIEGRE MR TR T RS - * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BT —+tHF+=-A=+—HILFZ Year ended 31 December 2017

—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
Bt ARMTFT AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
RETHABHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B 52 AT A Profit before tax 5,288,181 3,160,575
FEE Adjustments for:
BhE Ak A Finance costs 7 400,874 239,857
E‘éf o) Hﬁ%%’& Ak Share of profits and losses of
HEPRERER associates and joint ventures (224,622) (66,090)
RITFEHA Bank interest income 5 (102,579) (46,835)
e Depreciation 6 128,656 90,013
& A Amortisation of intangible assets 6 4,588 3,603
FIEHENMEER Gain on transfer from properties
WEYENRE held for sale to investment
properties 6 - (189,522)
WEWME QR BEHES Changes in fair value of
investment properties 6 (46,220) (15,070)
HEWME - BELRE Loss on disposal of items of
HE®EE property, plant and equipment 6 692 863
RIER SN B R BRI E Gain on deemed disposals of
subsidiaries 5 (66,297) -
HEWE—HEEEN Gain on bargain purchase of
Wz a joint venture 5 (352,699) -
ENETEREGEDRE Remeasurement of
BrE#ER the pre-existing interest
in the joint venture 38(c) 59,017 -
& — B & R E RS Tﬁ Loss on disposal of an associate 6 - 10,242
AR ESFRNTE TS Changes in fair value of
NREBEEE) the derivative component of
the convertible bonds 6 127,064 4,388
TEAIE RS L EE Premium paid on early
Fri 89m 8 redemption of senior notes 6 129,709 -
HE—BEAHEERENKZE Gain on disposal of an
available-for-sale investment (1,840) -
5,344,524 3,192,024
TEhLiiﬂ_ﬁ =& Decrease/(increase) in
A (FEh0) prepaid land lease payments 2,261,164 (17,802)
F'aﬁﬁéqﬂ ES I Increase in properties under
development (11,730,170) (6,055,772)
ERITEELEEEEM Increase in completed properties
held for sale (557,188) (738,653)
FEWE 5 FRIEIE AN Increase in trade receivables (841,413) (567,136)
FERNRIE ek Increase in prepayments,
o Ath jE W kIR N deposits and other receivables (4,364,396) (4,256,070)
FEULE & 1> SR FRIRIE AN Increase in amounts due from
joint ventures (6,618,222) (451,440)
JE LS R B A SRIE I AN Increase in amounts due from
associates (44,163) (70,037)
FERTE S akIE R Eigiean Increase/(decrease) in trade and
R ) bills payables 179,695 (556,902)
FERT A &1 EE R FIRE A1 Increase in amounts due to
joint ventures 8,306,466 92,337
Ho{th FEAT FIE M FESTRUIEIE AN Increase in other payables
and accruals 5,603,791 10,653,789
R BRI T SOR Decrease in restricted bank deposits 14,243 949,851
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TeiemER CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE_Z—+HF+_A=1+—HIFE Yearended 31 December 2017

—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
Bt AREFTT ARBTFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(TR EENES Cash (used in)/ generated
from operations (2,445,669) 2,174,189
EHFE Interest received 5 102,579 46,835
ERFLE Interest paid (2,236,513) (1,453,332
B EMER Corporate income tax paid (1,600,928) (813,986)
B IGER Land appreciation tax paid (404,052) (512,471)
KB TRENE Y Net cash flows used in
REMEFRE operating activities (6,584,583) (558,765)
REZBDHENRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
BEYE  BELKEEE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (255,886) (79,568)
BEELEEE Purchases of intangible assets (32,222) -
BEAHELERE Purchases of available-for-sale
investments (100,500) (451,242)
HeE—IFa i ERER Proceeds from disposal of an
TS s available-for-sale investment 7,661 -
HEME  BERBREEBR Proceeds from disposal of items
Frf8 508 of property, plant and equipment 2,055 148
MEERETE Capital injection in joint ventures = (745,000)
W B BT B 2 &) Acquisition of subsidiaries 38(a) (515,233) (40,352)
W EE I B A F (TMESER) Acquisition of subsidiaries
that are not businesses (4,327,361) (657,999)
Ly B L [R] e Acquisition of joint operations (60,000) =
AEPEELHBR Change from a joint venture
to a subsidiary 38(c) 130,813 -
IR S &5 Acquisition of joint ventures (535,863) (1,956,224)
i /NE] Acquisition of associates (32,000) (40,774)
W R A i Acquisition of non-controlling
interests (877,244) (19,040)
RIEL BB AR Deemed disposals of subsidiaries 39 (461,083) =
& — A E Q) Disposal of an associate - 36,000
HE—RHEELE Disposal of a joint venture - 700,000
AR AR & AT FIE Prepayment of equity investments (259,530) (1,135,802)
ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ@*” Advance to business partners (733,229) -
BERT—HEEENE Loan to a joint venture (296,000) -
BRT—RFE=F Loan to a third party (150,000) =
TEEEFERD Net cash flows used in
REMEFR investing activities (8,495,622) (4,389,853)
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ZFEIReRER CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HE_ZT—+HF+_A=1+—HIFE Yearended 31 December 2017

—2-tF —B—REF
2017 2016
i3 AREFTT AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
METHFENRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
JHEARAR BF & Capital injection by non-controlling
shareholders 3,988,000 1,600,000
g S IRITER R EMET  New interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings raised 24,701,607 9,122,322
FTEIRITER K Repayment of interest-bearing
EMERAER bank loans and other borrowings (8,540,032) (4,742,076)
B — A IR AR R Dividend paid to a non-controlling
XTEERE shareholder (116,400) _
Hx SO Dividend distribution (542,842) (269,374)
AHENB A RERS Proceeds from partial disposal of
(I[ﬂEQEi% HlHE) interests in subsidiaries without
BIFT1SFRIR loss of control 2,524,500 3,592,316
FEFEAR AR R B EK Advances from non-controlling
shareholders - 400,000
(B IEEARAR R SRIA Repayment to non-controlling
shareholders - (696,000)
IRATEEHE L ZEAA%E  Premium paid on early redemption
of senior notes (129,709) -
BEREWENB AT Repayment to former shareholders
BIIRR 5KIA of subsidiaries acquired (1,322,202) -
MEEHEANIRSTEFEE  Net cash flows generated from
financing activities 20,562,922 9,007,188
RERBESLSEYHMELE  NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 5,482,717 4,058,570
FYRE MREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 8,922,727 4,841,360
EXFFHHTE - FHE Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net (142,462) 22,797
FRRERALEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR 14,262,982 8,922,727
ReRELEEMEH ST ANALYSIS OF BALANCES
OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
B MIRTTHE Cash and bank balances 28 17,206,756 11,880,744
R ZRREBIERITIE R Less: Restricted bank deposits 28 (2,943,774) (2,958,017)
Be MREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 14,262,982 8,922,727
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 14
November 2007 under the name of Times Property (Holdings)
Co., Limited as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands.
Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 24 January 2008,
the Company’s name was changed from Times Property
(Holdings) Co., Limited to Times Property Holdings Limited.
Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 15 January 2018,
the Company’s name was changed from Times Property
Holdings Limited to Times China Holdings Limited. The
registered office address is P.O. Box 1350, Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were mainly involved
in property development, property leasing and property
management in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Asiaciti Enterprises Ltd.
(“Asiaciti”), which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”), and the ultimate holding company is
Renowned Brand Investments Limited (“Renowned Brand”),
which was incorporated in the BVI. Renowned Brand is
wholly owned by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (“Mr. Shum”), the
founder of the Company and the Group.

The Company’s shares became listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK” or
the “Stock Exchange”) on 11 December 2013.



g MiEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—+F+=-"HA=+—8 31 December 2017

1. ARKREEER(E 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
EBEMBEARNER Information about subsidiaries
AAREBWBARMEBUOT ¢ Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:
FRRERS
HMAL/RY BRITEE/ EHAS
REEMHBY TR A Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEER
28 establishment registered B B#  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BHREBRAR ([EH]) (F) AEARRES 3XTT 100 - REBR
Wisdom Sharp Investments Limited BVI UsD3 Investment holding
(“Wisdom Sharp”) (note ())
Milion Sensor Management Limited RBERRES v - 100 REZR
(TMillion Sensor ) (fffz%(a)) BVI USD1 Investment holding
Million Sensor Management Limited
(“Million Sensor”) (note (a))
Grand Highway International Ltd. HEEARES e - 100  H®EZR
([Grand Highway |) (fif3(a)) BVI USD1 Investment holding
Grand Highway International Ltd.
(“Grand Highway’) (note (a))
Venus Tower Limited([ Venus Tower |) (fifz(a) RBERRHES ES - 100 AR
Venus Tower Limited BVI USD1 Investment holding
(“Venus Tower’) (note (a))
BERRERRR(RERR]) (M) EEERRES e - 100 RERR
Super Best Global Limited BVI USD1 Investment holding
(“Super Best’) (note (a))
BERERERAR([BRER]) (M) HEEBRES 1T - 100 REZR
Clear Strength Holdings Limited BVI USD1 Investment holding
(“Clear Strength”) (note (a))
SRARAA([EE])(Mika) REBARRES (e - 100 REARR
August Skill Limited BVI USD1 Investment holding

(‘August Skill’) (note ())
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B R M 5E NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—+F+=-HA=+—08 31 December 2017

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)

1. QXEAREEER(E) 1.

BEEKE A TNER (K)
ARTEEMBARFBEOT : (4)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)

KRRER
BRI,/ R BRTEE/ BEEML
REENHE ERRA Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
4% establishment registered B %  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
ER(FR)ERARAR(ER))(MEE) BE 900,000/ 7T - 100 RERR
Wah Tai (H.K.) Development Limited Hong Kong HKD900,000 Investment holding
(“Wah Tai") (note (a))
BERRREBRAR(BRRRRE]) (Hit@) BE 10,000%7T - 100 REBR
Hong Kong Times Investments Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000 Investment holding
(‘Hong Kong Times Investments’) (note (a))
BELEBXERARLA(LERE ) (MiE@) BB 10,0007 - 100 &KEZR
Steelmine Minerals (H.K.) Development Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000 Investment holding
(“Steelmine Minerals”) (note (a))
BRRERRAR ([ ]) (M) A 61,782,601 - 100  REZR
Profit City Investment Limited Hong Kong HKD61,782,691 Investment holding
(“Profit City”) (note (a))
KEEBAR () (Ha) BB 1T - 100 REBR
Times Bilion Limited Hong Kong HKD1 Investment holding
(“Times Billion”) (note (a))
RRBRAR(H%]) (M) B 1T - 100  RERR
Precision Time Limited Hong Kong HKD1 Investment holding
(‘Precision Time") (note (a))
RRMEERERAR ([ RABE]) (M) @) BB 1T - 100 REZRR
Times Property Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKD1 Investment holding

(‘Times Property’) (notes (a),(e))

156 BHAFEZRERAT 2017 FERSE



R EE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—ZE—+F+=-"HA=+—8 31 December 2017

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)

1. QEAIREEER(E) 1.

BEMEATNER (K)
ARREEMBRARNOFBENT  (8)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)
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EARER
BRERL,/ R BRTEE/ BEAML
REENH HMRA Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
£ establishment registered BE B3  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
RMERARAF (RN 1) (HEE) BB 28T - 100 RERR
Silver Boat Development Limited Hong Kong HKD2 Investment holding
(“Silver Boat") (note (a))
RRELSEARDA(RRESE] (M:N) BE BT - 100 REBRR
Times Industry Group Limited (“Times Industry’) (note (h)) Hong Kong HKDA Investment holding
BMmEREREEARAR(EMRR ) (o) o () FE/ FEr 203,000,000% 7T - 100  ®EZFR
Guangzhou Times Holdings Group Co., Ltd. PRC/ USD203,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Times”) (notes (b),(d),(f) Mainland China
BMMEREFHEREBRARA(BRLRLE]) E/REN  ARE205,000,0007T - 100 REZRR
(3@ ©) PRC/ RMB205,000,000 Investment holding
Guangzhou Times Enterprise Real Mainland China
Estate Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Times Real Estate”) (notes (a),(c))
BENTEABEREERARA(ENBE]) (Hie )  FE/PEXE AR1470,000,0007T - 100 DERELRREER
Guangzhou Times Shengyu Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB1,470,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Shengyu’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China and Investment holding
ERERBERHERZERAR((RRBE]) (Wit  ©) TE/HHERE  ARES0,000,0007T - 100 WEHFE
Guangdong Times Shengyu Real PRC/ RMB80,000,000 Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(“Guangdong Shengyu’) (notes (a),(c))
BATRABZCEERERAR(EMBE]) (Kt @) RE/FErE  ARE11,000,0007T - 100 REZRR
Guangzhou Times Linli Enterprise Management PRC/ RMB11,000,000 Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Linli") (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China



BA TSR MIEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E—+F+=-HA=+—08 31 December 2017

1. QXEAREEER(E) 1.

BEEKE A TNER (K)
ARTEEMBARFBEOT : (4)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)

KRRER
BRI,/ R BRTEE/ BEEML
REENHE ERRA Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
28 establishment registered B B#  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
HEP R REBRA R ([HEPHR ) (Hia) - () E/HERN  AR10,000,0007 - 100 WERE
Zhuhai Zhongzhu Century Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
(‘Zhuhai Zhongzhu’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
FEBFREERAR(HAET ) (FEE - (©) mE/ERN  ARES000,0007 - 100 ER%
Fogang Guanheng Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB5,000,000 Property development
(‘Fogang Guanheng”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BITHRERCEXRBRAA(HILHRE]) ME/RENE  AR32,000,0007T - 100 9%
(FisE@) * ©) PRC/ RMB32,000,000 Property development
Foshan Yudonglong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(‘Foshan Yudonglong’) (notes (a),(c))
BMTREFHERRARA(ENRED (M@ - ) E/RERN  AR¥KS64,307,7507 - 100 #ERE
Guangzhou Minhua Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB364,307,750 Property development
(“Guangzhou Minhua’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BRETASERIRARAR(HEER])(KEe @) &8/ F8xH  AR¥S 0000007 - 100 EMSERRIERE
Fogang Shengxin Water and PRC/ RMB3,000,000 Garden landscape design
Electricity Garden Engineering Co., Ltd. Mainland China and property decoration
(‘Fogang Shengxin’) (notes (a),(c))
RmmRREAHTRARA R HRAE ] (Hie - (©) mE/HERN  AR¥S 0000007 - 100  MEEE
Fogang Times Bairui Decoration Engineering Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB3,000,000 Property decoration
(‘Fogang Bairui’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
PLmEASEEEARAR([HLEED (HEe  ©)  FE/FEAE  AR%10,000,0007T - 100 #E6HE%
Zhongshan Times Kaixuan Asset Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
(“Zhongshan Kaixuan”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
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R EE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—ZE—+F+=-"HA=+—8 31 December 2017

1. ARKRKEEERE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
ERNEATNER (&) Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
ARRIEEMBAROFHBNT : () Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)
EARER
FMAL/ RY BRTEE/ ERAS
REENH HMRA Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
£ establishment registered BE B3  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
LT EERREERHEREBRAR RE/FERN  ARES0,000,0007 - 100 #9ERE
(IHILESEE]) (Wie  ©) PRC/ RMB30,000,000 Property development
Foshan Nanhai Times Shengyu Real Mainland China
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(Foshan Nanhai Shengyu’) (notes (a),(c))
ERSRIEREERAR ([ HHELE] (M) - () hE/ BN AR¥30,000,0007T - 100 #ERE
Fogang Times Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB30,000,000 Property development
(‘Fogang Real Estate’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BENRAESEREERAR ((ENRAD) (ke ©) &/ PEXN  AR¥K161,0758007T - 6896 MEME
Guangzhou Donghe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB161,075,800 Property leasing
(“Guangzhou Donghe’) (notes (), (c)) Mainland China
BNTHEEMK(ERAR((ENFR ) (@) )  +E/+EME  AR¥S500,0007T - 100 S84
Guangzhou Ruixian Landscaping Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMBS3,500,000 Landscape architecture
(“Guangzhou Ruixian’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
FEMBREEREERAR((HEEE) (i@ )  +E/FEXE  ARES50,000,0007 - 100 WERE
Zhuhai Times Fengzhuo Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB50,000,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Fengzhuo”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
RS EREBRAR([HRXE]) (M) () mE/HERS  AR10,000,0007 - 100 REZFR
Fogang Times Yongsheng Investment PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (‘Fogang Yongsheng’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
FRTEEXEREELAHRTED (M)  (©) mE/hERE  ARES000,000 - 100 ¥
Fogang Zhongyi Asset Development Limited PRC/ RMB8,000,000 Property development
Liability Company (‘Fogang Zhongyi’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
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7

1. ARAKRKEEERE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
ERNEATNER (&) Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
ARREEMBARIMFENOT : (8) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)
KRRER
BT/ RY BRTEE/ ERAD
REENHE ERRA Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
28 establishment registered B B#  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BT =KRERHERRERAT E/RERE  AR%48,000,0007T - 100 MR
([hLE]) (e - ©) PRC/ RMB48,000,000 Property development
Foshan Sanshui Yuhua Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(‘Foshan Yuhua’) (notes (a),(c))
BNMERNEERERAR(BANEEE ) (Hie)  ©) PE/ERM  AR¥K500,000,0007 - 100 ¥xEER
Guangzhou Times Property Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB500,000,000 Property management
(“Times Property Management’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BMTERXGZAERAR(ENRSR) (i@ ©)  +E/®ErE  AK%10,0100007T - 100 RERR
Guangzhou Times Tianyi Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,010,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Tianyi") (notes (),(c)) Mainland China
BAmERRAERAR(RMES)) (Hia) - ©) hE/RERNE  AR%20,000,0007 - 100 #gpE
Guangzhou Fujie Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB20,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Fujie”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
REMRSRAARAR(FESER]) () - () E/RENE  ARE100,000,0007T - 100 #E6E%E
Qingyuan Rongjing Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB100,000,000 Property development
(“Qingyuan Rongjing’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
FEMEREHEREA(FRER)) (i) - ©) REl/HRERM  AK300,000,0007T - 100  #rpe
Qingyuan Xilong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB300,000,000 Property development
(“Qingyuan Xilong’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
PN EREHEREERAD(PLER]) (e ©) TE/FEME  AR%45000,0007T - 100 9%
Zhongshan Wanlian Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB45,000,000 Property development
(“Zhongshan Wanlian”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China

160 BHAFEZRERAR 2017 FEHRSE



1. QEAIREEER(E)

BEMEATNER (K)
ARREEMBRARNOFBENT  (8)

R EE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—ZE—+F+=-"HA=+—8 31 December 2017

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONT'D)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Cont’d)

EARER
FMAL/ RY BRTEE/ ERAS
REENH HMRA Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
£ establishment registered BE B3  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
PIMAREHEREARAR((FUEE ) (ke ©) &/ FEAE  AK¥10,000,000T - 100 e
Zhongshan Tianyue Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
(“Zhongshan Tianyue”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BAMSRERAERAR ((RMEE ) (HiEa) - () mE/ERN  ARE10,010,0007T - 0 RERR
Guangzhou Junbao Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,010,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Junbao”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BINREAEERRAR (TEMKE ) (FE) - () mE/RENE  AR50,000,0007T - 100 #EREE
Guangzhou Tianlang Trading Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB50,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Tianlang’) (notes (),(c)) Mainland China
BHTEEHEARMERRAR((BMEE) (Mite) @) +RE/FEM  AR¥K360,0000007T - 9 WEHEE
Guangzhou Panyu Nanying Property Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB360,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Nanying’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BMmREEMERAR(EMKE ) () - (©) mE/ Rk ARES51,000,0007 - 51 MER%
Guangzhou Tianhe Construction Material Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB51,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Tianhe’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BEREEEXERARAA([ERES ) (M@ () ME/RERE  AR%42,300,0007T - 100 9%
Guangdong Guangchang Industrial Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB42,300,000 Property development
(“Guangdong Guangchang’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
HEREENEREERAR(HERE) (Mite ©) P&/ ®ERM  AK%543,800,0007T - 100 #gpE
Zhuhai Jingrun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB43,800,000 Property development
(‘Zhuhai Jingrun’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
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1. REAIREEER(E) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
REMBRRNER (&) Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARRIEEMBARNFHBNT : () Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)
KARES
BT/ RY BRTEE/ ERAD
REENHE ERRA Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
28 establishment registered B B#  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
WEMEBRHEREERAR(KEER]) (Mite ) *E/®ERM  AKH50,000,0007 - 100 #mE
Zhuhai Jiayu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB50,000,000 Property development
(‘Zhuhai Jiayu”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
WETBBEHERLERAR(KEHE]) (Fite ) &/ ®ERM  ARHB40,000,0007 - 100 %
Zhuhai Shenghui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB40,000,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Shenghui’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
ROYRERHERLERAR(RYPERA) (e ©) PE/+ERH  ARES50,000,0007 - 100  WERE
Changsha Meiguiyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB50,000,000 Property development
(‘Changsha Meiguiyuan’) (notes (a), (c)) Mainland China
BNTEHESERAF(RNEH]) (@)  ©) E/HERN  AR10,000,0007 - 100 EEgs
Guangzhou Fengdu Trading Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Dormant
(“Guangzhou Fengdu’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BMmERE SRR AR (EMER]) () - ©) E/ERN  AR10,000,0007 - 100 REZR
Guangzhou Zhuorui Trading Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Zhuorui’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BUTHRKTREERARD(HLXT]) (e ©)  #8/FERH AR¥300,000,0007 - 100 ¥
Foshan Times Yongheng Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB300,000,000 Property development
(‘Foshan Yongheng’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BNTRRBEERERAR(ENEE)) (Hit@ )  +E/®ERM  ARK120,000,0007T - 100 YF¥HERER
Guangzhou Times Commercial Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB120,000,000 Property leasing and
(“Guangzhou Zhide’) (notes (), (c)) Mainland China management
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R EE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—ZE—+F+=-"HA=+—8 31 December 2017

1. ARKRKEEERE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
ERNEATNER (&) Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
ARREEMBARIMFENT : (8) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)
EARER
BRERL,/ R BRTEE/ BEAML
REENH HMRA Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
£ establishment registered BE B3  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
FLTEEERYEERERAR(ZBER]) (Mt () TE/FERL  ARE65000,0007T - 100 #WXER
Foshan Zhide Zhengxing Property Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB65,000,000 Property management
(“Zhide Zhengxing”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BNMEENEERERAR(Z8NE) (Hite )  +E/®ERM  AR%80,500,0007 - 100 #EEE
Guangzhou Zhide Property Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB80,500,000 Property management
(“Zhide Property’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BMTEERBCEFICRERAR(ZENE]) E/hERE  AR%10,100,0007T - 100 YFEERER
(K@) ©) PRC/ RMB10,100,000 Property leasing and
Guangzhou Zhide Technology Business Incubator Mainland China management
Co., Ltd. (“Zhide Technology’) (notes (a),(c))
BMNTRENRCER S ERAR ([EMEE]) mE/ERS  ARES30,000,0007 - 55 WEHERER
(K@) ) PRC/ RMB30,000,000 Property leasing and
Guangzhou Chengze Technology Business Incubator Mainland China management
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Chengze’) (notes (a),(c))
HWEEARNEREERAR((HEER) (M@ ©)  +E/®EKME  AR¥S000,0007T - 100 #gmE
Zhuhai Guoji Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB5,000,000 Property development
(‘Zhuhai Guoji’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BMmREMEERERAR ((EMNRE D) (k@) - © @) PE/+EKM  AR¥K300,000,0007 - 2 nEER
Guangzhou Tiansi Property Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB300,000,000 Property management
(“Guangzhou Tiansi") (notes (a),(c),(g)) Mainland China
BN R ZEXARAR(ENGHAE]) (e @) +E/+ERM AR¥S50,000,0007 - 50 WEmE%
Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun Asset Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB350,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
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1. ARAKRKEEERE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
ERNEATNER (&) Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
ARREEMBARIMFENOT : (8) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)
KRRER
BT/ RY BRTEE/ ERAD
REENHE ERRA Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
28 establishment registered B B#  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
PLmERESEREERAR((PLER]) (e ©) FE/+EME  ARE250,000,0007T - 100 WERE
Zhongshan Hengsheng Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB250,000,000 Property development
(‘Zhongshan Hengsheng’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
FILTIRE L RN E HEERAR AT E/hER  AR1,200,000,0007 - 100  HERZ
(TiahzA ) (FE(e) - () PRC/ RMB1,200,000,000 Property development
Foshan Shunde Hongtaili Real Estate Development Mainland China
Co., Ltd. (‘Foshan Hongtaili") (notes (a),(c))
BMNMEEEnERRAR ([RMEE ] (M) - () E/HERN  AR10,000,0007 - 60 MER%
Guangzhou Zengyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Zengyuan’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BNmEAFHEREERAR) ([ENER]) (e () +E/PERKM ARKS00,000,0007 - 100 HERZ
Guangzhou Fengtuo Property Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB800,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Fengtuo”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BLTAREHEREARAA(HLERD(HFE @) +&E/FErH  ARE50,000,0007 - 100 #E6E%E
Foshan Chengtai Property Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB50,000,000 Property development
(‘Foshan Chengtai’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
e RARHEREERARRAHERE)) (Mia)  ©) 8/ PERKM AKE1,100,000,0007 - 100 YERE
Zhuhai Jinrong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB1,100,000,000 Property development
(‘Zhuhai Jinrong’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
ENTRABEEMEHNERRERAA RE/RER  AR¥10,000,0007T - 100 Emex
(TEMER]) (M@ - ©) PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Dormant
Guangzhou Times Zhiye Real Estate Sales Agent Co., Ltd. Mainland China

(“Guangzhou Zhiye’) (notes (), (c))
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1. QAFAKREEER(E) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
ERNEATNER (&) Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
ARFEBRMBARMFEAT : (&) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Cont’d)

EARER
BRERL,/ R BRTEE/ BEAML
REENH HMRA Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
£ establishment registered BE B3  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BILTRRRBEHERRERAT RE/HERN  AR¥200,000,0007T - 100 Mm%
(g ]) (e - ©) PRC/ RMB200,000,000 Property development
Foshan Times Rongjin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(“Foshan Rongjin”) (notes (a),(c))
BATHEABERBRERAR(ENBER]) (Wit ) RE/HERE  ARE10,000,0007T - 100 EEHMRSE
Guangzhou Linlibang Network Technology Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Information technology
(“Guangzhou Linlibang’) (notes (),(c)) Mainland China senvice
wEmLEEMEREERAR(HEMED) (HWite ) FE/FERL  AE%400,000,0007T - 60 WERE
Zhuhai Hongjia Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB400,000,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Hongjia") (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BILTRRREHERERRAT E/hEN  ARE600,000,0007T - 100 #MERE
(T3S ]) (MFFE) ~ ©) PRC/ RMBG600,000,000 Property development
Foshan Times Yujing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(“Foshan Yuijing’) (notes (a),(c))
BLTRREREHEGRAR([HLER])(HiEE ) &/ PEKM AXE1,860,000,0007 - 51 WER%E
Foshan Huatai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB1,860,000,000 Property development
(“Foshan Huatai") (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BMmaLAFEREER AR (TEMLE]) (e @) &/ HERkM  AR¥S800,000,0007T - 100 ¥R
Guangzhou Hongkai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB800,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Hongkai’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BNmSEEREERAR(EMAR]) (e @) &/ +EKM AR¥500,000,0007 - 60  PEmEE
Guangzhou Kaijun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB500,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Kaijun’) (notes (a),(c) Mainland China

2017 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 4165



B R M 5E NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—+F+=-HA=+—08 31 December 2017

1. ARAKRKEEERE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
ERNEATNER (&) Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
ARRIEEMBARNFHBNT : () Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)
KRRER
BT/ RY BRTEE/ ERAD
REENHE ERRA Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
218 establishment registered EE B#  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BmEBEENELERAR(EMEE]) (e ) &/ ®ERE  AKH15000,0007T - 80 MER%
Huizhou Huiyang District Nankai PRC/ RMB15,000,000 Property development
Industrial Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(“Huizhou Nankai’) (notes (a),(c))
BLTRREREHEREERAT E/RENE  ARE00,000,0007T - 100 %
(THhILES (e - ©) PRC/ RMB900,000,000 Property development
Foshan Times Shengjing Real Estate Development Mainland China
Co., Ltd. (‘Foshan Shengjing’) (notes (a), (c))
BAmEERAERAR(RMAE]) (Hza) - () hE/RERNE  AR%10,000,0007 - 100 HEER
Guangzhou Kaiheng Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Kaiheng”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BNTBEEREARAR(ENERR) (ke )  +E/+ERM AR¥KS57,000,0007 - 100 9%
Guangzhou Libaijia Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB357,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Libaijia”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BMNERREBRAR(TEMER ) (Hie) - (©) E/HERN  AR10,000,0007 - 100 Y¥HAERER
Guangzhou Jiayu Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property leasing and
(“Guangzhou Jiayu”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China management
HEmAEEFARAR ([ HERE]) () - (©) mE/ERN  AR62,316,0007T - 80.24  WERE
Zhuhai Shengjia Asset Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB62,316,000 Property development
(‘Zhuhai Shengjia’) (notes (), (c)) Mainland China
wETABHERARARA(HRERE]) (e  b) /R 8,500,000% 7 - 100 WER%
Zhuhai Baisheng Clothing Co., Ltd. PRC/ USD8,500,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Baisheng’) (notes (a),(0)) Mainland China

166 FHAFEZRERAR 2017 FERSE



R EE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—ZE—+F+=-"HA=+—8 31 December 2017

1. ARKRKEEERE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
ERNEATNER (&) Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
ARREEMBARIMFENT : (8) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)
EARER
FMAL/ RY BRTEE/ ERAS
REENH HMRA Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
£ establishment registered BE B3  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BMTRLCEERERAR((ENFE)) (M@ ©)  +E/®EKM  AK%10,000,0007T - 100 RERR
Guangzhou Bingfeng Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Bingfeng’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BNmEREHERLERAR(EMBR]) (FiEE) ) &/ ®ERM ARKS00,000,0007T - 100 #ERE
Guangzhou Qijun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB800,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Qijun’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
WEIESRERRAA ([ HEIER]) (M) - () REL/HEM  AK800,000,0007T - 625  REABR
Zhuhai Shunsheng Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB800,000,000 Investment holding
(“Zhuhai Shunsheng’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BNTERRFERERRARDA(ENRE) (it ©) &/ HEKM ARK476,908,0007T - 100 #%mE
Huizhou Times Ruiyu Investment PRC/ RMB476,908,000 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (‘Huizhou Ruiyu”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BNmERRE  EEFROBRAT E/hER  ARE200,000,0007T - 100
(TEMEE]) () - ©) PRC/ RMB200,000,000 Money lending
Guangzhou Times Rongxin Micro-credit Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(“Guangzhou Rongxin’) (notes (a),(c))
BILmRRERREERAR ((BWEER]) (i@ ©) P&/ ®EKM  ARK300,000,0007T - 100 REER
Foshan Hongtai Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB300,000,000 Investment holding
(‘Foshan Hongtai’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
HEERRREGRAA([HE&RR ) (M) - () mE/HERS  AR¥100,000,0007T - 100 REER
Zhuhai Xin Times Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB100,000,000 Investment holding
(“Zhuhai Xinshidai’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
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1. RAIREEER(E) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
HEAKE AR NER () Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARRIEFEMEAFOFELT : (8) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Cont’d)

KARER
BMAL/RY BRTER/ ERADL
REEMHY SRR Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company IEER
£%8 establishment registered B B#  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BILTRREREHEREERAR(HLBE] E/HERM  ARE4,600,000,0007 - 5 WERE
(H7E@) * (©) PRC/ RMB4,600,000,000 Property development
Foshan Times Hongyu Real Estate Development Mainland China
Co., Ltd. (‘Foshan Hongyu’) (notes (a),(c))
BILTRRESEHERERRAT E/HERN  AR¥E800,000,0007T - 55 MERE
([BLES] (e ©) PRC/ RMB800,000,000 Property development
Foshan Times Fuijin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(“Foshan Fujin”) (notes (a),(c))
BT ERERHEREERAR B/ HEME  ARE10,000,0007T - 100 #r#6E%
(IHILERE (e - ©) PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
Foshan Baiyingda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(‘Foshan Baiyingda”) (notes (a),(c))
REmIFREFRAR(TRZAR]) (FHiEe) - () hE/REN  ARE950,000,0007T - 52 MER%
Dongguan Kaiye Investments Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB950,000,000 Property development
(‘Dongguan Kaiye”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
ENEBENEERARAA(RNER)) () - (©) RE/HERE  ARM9,000,0007 - 100 WEER
Guangzhou Wanning Property Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB9,000,000 Property management
(“Guangzhou Wanning’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
REBENZERARLA(REEE ) (Mia) () hE/hER  ARE1,0000007 - 100 #¥ER
Dongguan Wanning Property Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB1,000,000 Property management
(‘Dongguan Wanning’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
WEMRENEERERARN(KERA)(Mite) ©)  FE/ HER AR#500,0007T - 100 #EEE
Zhuhai Yuanxing Property Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB500,000 Property management
(“Zhuhai Yuanxing’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
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1. ARKRKEEERE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
ERNEATNER (&) Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
ARREEMBARIMFENT : (8) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)
KRR
BMAL/ R BRITEE/ BRADL
REENHY BTN Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEER
£%8 establishment registered B B  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
fELTIEEARNEERERAR E/RERE ARE1,000,0007T - 100 WEEE
([BLEEER]) Q) - ©) PRC/ RMB1,000,000 Property management
Foshan Shunde Hetai Property Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China
(‘Foshan Shunde Hetai") (notes (a),(c))
BNTERRHEREERAR(ENER]) (FiEE () &/ FERKM AKE1,000,000,0007T - 60  WERE
Guangzhou Fusi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB1,000,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Fusi’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
EMaREEERAR(EMER]) (e - () RE /BN 250,000,000% 7T - 60 MEHEE
Guangzhou Kuntai Industrial Co., Ltd. PRC/ USD250,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Kuntai’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
HETREFHEREERAR(HERE) (MWika) ) HB/+ER7M ARKE310,000,0007T - 60  MERH
Zhuhai Changxin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB310,000,000 Property development
(“Zhuhai Changxin”) (notes (),(c)) Mainland China
BREZEHARLA(ERRZ ) (Wia) () mE/HERN  AR10,000,0007T - 0  BRZEREBRE
Guangdong Junan Elevator Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Elevator installation and
(“Guangdong Junan”) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China maintenance
BLEEERSREGRAR(HLEES))(MEe @) B/ FERN AR¥K149,2537317% - 665  MEmE
Foshan Xinglanwan Plaza Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB149,253,731 Property development
(‘Foshan Xinglanwan’) (notes (), (c)) Mainland China
FEmsRHEREERAR(RERE]) (e @) +E/+ERH AR¥1,400,000,0007T - 55 MEREE
Dongguan Yujing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB1,400,000,000 Property development
(‘Dongguan Yujing’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)

1. QXEAREEER(E) 1.

BEEKE A TNER (K)
ARTEEMBARFBEOT : (4)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)

KRR
BMAL/RY BRTER/ BREASN
REENHH BN Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company IEER
£%8 establishment registered B B#  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BENTEEIEEREERA R (EMEA ) (W@ ©) 8/ FER7t  AKE600,000,0007T - 60 MEHEE
Guangzhou Shichuang Real Estate Development PRC/ RMB600,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd (“Guangzhou Shichuang’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BRI REARAR ((ENNTER]) (Fe) ) +E/+ERt  AR¥148,000,0007 - 100
Guangzhou Keladini Clothing Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB148,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Keladini’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BERREREBRAA(ERRE]) (M) - (©) E/HERN  AR10,000,0007 - 100 RERR
Guangdong Baoquan Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangdong Baoquan’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BEMRERNEREBRAR(FEEE)) (WitE) () +E/+EMNE ARES64,000,0007T - 100 9%
Qingyuan Jiada Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB564,000,000 Property development
(“Qingyuan Jiada") (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BNTREERMERZERAR(EMNEE]) (FE) ) +E/+Erit  AR%10,000,0007 - 100  WER%
Guangzhou Junheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Junheng’) (notes (), (c)) Mainland China
BRETRRERREERAR(ERER)) (M@ ©)  +E/HEKM AXE1,000,000,0007 - 100 RERR
Qingyuan Times Hongjing Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB1,000,000,000 Investment holding
("Qingyuan Hongjing’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BMTREZRERRAR(EMNER]) () - ©) hE/RENE  AR%10,000,0007T - 0 RERR
Guangzhou Junhao Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Junhao’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)

KRR
BMAL/ R BRITEE/ BRADL
REENHY BTN Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEER
£%8 establishment registered B B  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
K (BN EHEREERAR(XBEN) ) (FEe  ©) $8/FER7E ARE516,1535157T - 100 #MER%Z
Horizon (Guangzhou) Property Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB516,153,515 Property development
(“Horizon Guangzhou’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BMmREEER AR AR (TEMEE]) (i) - ©) hE/HERN  AR¥200,000,0007T - 0 RERR
Guangzhou Aoju Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB200,000,000 Investment holding
(“Guangzhou Aoju’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BRAZEFHEREERAA(RREZ mE/HERN  AR10,000,0007T - 80 MERE
(Pt3E(e) * (c) PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
Guangdong Yingzhihuang Real Estate Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Guangdong Yingzhihuang’) (notes (a),(c))
BNmEREHEREERAR(EMNER])(MiEE @) &/ +EKM  AK%521,0000007T - 100 #ERE
Huizhou Darun Property Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB21,000,000 Property development
(“Huizhou Darun’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BMFEEtEARERAR(RMNFE]) (@ )  +E/+EME  AKE10,000,0007 - 100 #ERE
Guangzhou Lifeng Property Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Lifeng’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BNFHEERRERAR((EMNEM)) (i@ )  +E/+EAE  AKRE70,000,0007 - 100 ¥
Guangzhou Shilan Property Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB70,000,000 Property development
(“Guangzhou Shilan’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
BFEAERHEREERAR(BEERE ) (Hita )  +E/+Em  AR¥S000,000 - 100  #MERE
Qingyuan Tianfu Property Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB3,000,000 Property development
(“Qingyuan Tianfu’) (notes (a),(c)) Mainland China
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1. REAIREEER(E) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
BENEARNER (&) Information about subsidiaries (Cont’d)
ARREBRHBARMFENT « () Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Cont’d)
KRRER
BT/ RY BRTEE/ ERAD
REENHE ERRA Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
28 establishment registered B B#  Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BUTHRAFEHEREERAT ((HLXF]) hE/HERN  ARE1,250,000,0007T - 60 MERE
(M@ (©) PRC/ RMB1,250,000,000 Property development
Foshan Times Tianyu Real Estate Development Mainland China
Co., Ltd. (‘Foshan Tianyu”) (notes (a),(c))
BITRREEREREERAR ([HLEE]) E/HERN  ARE100,000,0007T - 90 MERE
(MizHa)  ©) PRC/ RMB100,000,000 Property development
Foshan Times Ruida Real Estate Development Mainland China
Co., Ltd. (“Foshan Ruida”) (notes (a),(c))
FILTRREEFERERRAR ([HLEE]) E/RER AR 1,000,000,007T - 60 MERH
(MzEa () PRC/ RMB1,000,000,00 Property development
Foshan Times Dehui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China

(“Foshan Dehui’) (notes (), (c))
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The English names of certain group companies registered in
the PRC represent management’s best effort to translate their
Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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—+F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2017

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONT'D)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Notes:

(@

The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries
were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
laws of the PRC.

Registered as domestic enterprises under the laws of the
PRC.

The statutory financial statements of Guangzhou Times were
audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP.

Ocean Time Inc Limited. changed its name to Times China
Holdings Limited on 4 August 2017. Times China Holdings
Limited changed its name to Times Property Holdings
Limited on 12 February 2018.

ENT R E £ B AR A T Guangzhou Times Property
MR PRI R
BBR /A "] Guangzhou Times Holdings Group Co., Ltd. on 26
September 2017.

Group Co., Ltd. changed its name to &

Guangzhou Junbao, a 70%-owned indirect subsidiary of
the Company, holds a 60% equity interest in Guangzhou
Tiansi. The Group considers that it controls Guangzhou
Tiansi even though it owns less than 50% of the voting rights
in Guangzhou Tiansi because the Group can exercise the
power of control over Guangzhou Tiansi through its control

over Guangzhou Junbao.

Rubin Max Limited changed its name to Times Industry
Group Limited on 22 June 2017.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which comprise all International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“lASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, an available-for-sale
investment, the embedded financial derivative component of
the convertible bonds and certain other payables included in
the other payables and accruals, which have been measured
at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2017.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(© the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax

Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to IFRS
12 Included in Annual

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Clarification of the
Improvements to IFRSs Scope of IFRS 12

2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to IASs has had a significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

Disclosure has been made in note 48(b) to the consolidated
financial statements upon the adoption of amendments to
IAS 7, which requires an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28 (2011)

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

IFRS 16

IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 40

IFRIC 22
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Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'!

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!

Clarifications to IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!

Leases?

Insurance Contracts?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement?

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Transfers of Investment
Property"

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONT'D)

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements. (Cont’d)

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to IFRS 1 and
IFRS 281

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to a number of
IFRSs?

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial
application. So far, except IFRS 16 Leases, the Group
considers that these new and revised IFRSs may result in
changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

Further information about IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below:
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONT'D)

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace IAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9.
The standard introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The
Group will adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group will
not restate comparative information and will recognise any
transition adjustments against the opening balance of equity
at 1 January 2018. During 2017, the Group has performed
a detailed assessment of the impact of the adoption of IFRS
9. The expected impacts relate to the classification and
measurement and the impairment requirements and are
summarised as follows:

(@) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of IFRS
9 will have a significant impact on the classification
and measurement of its financial assets. It expects
to continue measuring at fair value all financial
assets currently held at fair value. Equity investments
currently held as available for sale will be measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
as the investments are intended to be held for the
foreseeable future and the Group expects to apply
the option to present fair value changes in other
comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded
in other comprehensive income for the equity
investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss when
the investments are derecognised.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONT'D)

(b)  Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, lease receivables,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
that are not accounted for at fair value through profit
or loss under IFRS 9, to be recorded based on an
expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month
basis or a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the
simplified approach and record lifetime expected
losses that are estimated based on the present values
of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of
its trade receivables. Furthermore, the Group will
apply the general approach and record twelve-month
expected credit losses that are estimated based on
the possible default events on its other receivables
within the next twelve months.

IFRS 15, issued in May 2014, establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under IFRSs. Either
a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective
adoption is required on the initial application of the standard.
In April 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15 to
address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent
and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The
amendments are also intended to help ensure a more
consistent application when entities adopt IFRS 15 and
decrease the cost and complexity of applying the standard.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONT'D)

The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in IFRS
15 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the
new requirements only to contracts that are not completed
before 1 January 2018. The Group expects that the
transitional adjustment to be made on 1 January 2018 upon
initial adoption of IFRS 15 will not be material. During 2017,
the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the
impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 and did not anticipate a
material impact on revenue from sale of properties. However,
application of IFRS 15 may have impact on the following area:

Currently, the Group expensed off the cost associated with
obtaining the sale contracts with customers. Under the
requirement of IFRS 15, incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are eligible for capitalisation as deferred contract
costs if they meet certain criteria. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company expect a recognition of deferred contract
costs, resulting an increase in operating retained profit and
recognition of deferred tax liabilities at 1 January 2018.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONT'D)

The presentation and disclosure requirements in IFRS 15
are more detailed than those under the current IAS 18. The
presentation requirements represent a significant change
from current practice and will significantly increase the volume
of disclosures required in the Group’s financial statements.
Many of the disclosure requirements in IFRS 15 are new and
the Group has assessed that the impact of some of these
disclosure requirements will be significant. In particular, the
Group expects that the notes to the financial statements
will be expanded because of the disclosure of significant
judgements made on determining the transaction prices of
those contracts that include variable consideration, how the
transaction prices have been allocated to the performance
obligations, and the assumptions made to estimate the stand-
alone selling price of each performance obligation. In addition,
as required by IFRS 15, the Group will disaggregate revenue
recognised from contracts with customers into categories
that depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. It
will also disclose information about the relationship between
the disclosure of disaggregated revenue and revenue
information disclosed for each reportable segment.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONT'D)

IFRS 16, issued in January 2016, replaces IAS 17 Leases,
IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in IAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on
the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under IAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
IAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
The Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon
adoption and is considering whether it will choose to take
advantage of the practical expedients available and which
transition approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in
notes 42(b) and 42(c) to the consolidated financial statements,
at 31 December 2017, the Group had future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease
and subleasing arrangement in aggregate of approximately
RMB2,282,495,000 and RMB456,001,000 respectively.

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, certain amounts included therein
may need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to
determine the amount of new rights of use assets and lease
liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited to, any
amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short term
leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and
new leases entered into before the date of adoption.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 4183



B R M 5E NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—+F+=-HA=+—08 31 December 2017

2.4

TESHBREE

REBMENTAREGERHE

e RREAREFEREBETPR20%
BAFREN R Y A HEBEEX
TENNER BEAFENRAUSERE
BRI REBBFORE - MIFEHX
HREBZFBR °

BECRE-RBAERY  HLHEER
FIEHIENTOTBREHRERXNEE
FEEAEN - HEEHEREA RHE
B—IAR A ER - KEZEHHER
BRABEREEEFENTOEL —
HRAEWRERFE -

AEERBE QR RS ERERMERTIIA
AEBIREREDERIGFEEREMR
BEEENFE M BARRKRIIER

i HIRAE R AR BOR - AEFH
ABMLMELE -

AEBERIEBERRLREELEPWBERRE
BRHEMEEBADBE AREERER R
RAEEMEEBA - 1 - HREZE AT
HEEPENERERERLIRES - A
AEEENRA R REAELEEE
MR (HER)  AEEEAEBENFH
BECEEARHELENRER KK EIE
RAREBEREERAH A EEENER
RREHE - EWARBREERABEEE
RERERRERIN - WIEHE A G & D
EMELANBECERS—MOBREARSE
EREE QRN A EREAERNA

184 BRFEZRARLT 2017 FEHE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s interests in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associates or joint ventures, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s interests in associates or joint ventures.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

o its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the output

arising from the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to
the Group’s interest in a joint operation are accounted for in
accordance with the IFRSs applicable to the particular assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 4185



B R M 5E NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—+F+=-HA=+—08 31 December 2017

2.4

TESTHTBERME(E)

EBatREE(E)
EAKEWE -HEBE - @REARIK
K U B RO IR IR SRR IR 1
AHEERENEREENRAE - WMEHE
BN ERETR  EheERBREETE
BRPHRARITETREITORE

HEBA G OPREEETT - AR ARERA
RERERNKERRN AR EBEEHN
& EAMEMERSERSRTER -

Wi 77 i E R M S AR BRI A
MARBERER - DBERAEEXREMN
AREBRANEBENE  E2nEBEED
RIBaRAMER - DR REaH S RKE
TEHTEREREEEEET AR -

BEEBIRKAE  AEEBEERE -
FERESNERSBERARELAFE
MR E T BRAREN IR A EER
B ERER B FEERMAERE
Z R ZERE - IMEREMIERMEEE
R FEEN R AEE  REHTGH
BEZERNERRARRRZEWBEIK

e
o

RUAHERR - BB R AR REHR
BEEEFE  BEASFHERENR &
BEMBELELBNNERRREES AR
BER - A FATMETAR - AEH
Rt A=+—RE&ETHENFERER
& o BETRENR - BEBEHMEBA
MWEE e WER SRR EERBARE
HEENHRBETERNAEEZES
EABNSRECELEGHER - MER
SEEMEERREREE IR THEE
kA4 R -

186 EAFEZRARLT 2017 FEHRE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont'd)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont'd)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, an available-
for-sale investment, the embedded financial derivative
component of the convertible bonds and certain other
payables included in other payables and accruals at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, properties under development, completed
properties held for sale, prepaid land lease payments,
financial assets, investment properties and deferred tax
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

M
(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vil

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a) and () has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 4.75%
Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and office 19%
equipment
Motor vehicles 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Cont'd)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
investment properties are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement or
disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Investment properties (Cont'd)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
completed properties held for sale to investment properties,
any difference between the fair value of the property at that
date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end. The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Income rights of property 3-20 years
management contracts
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Operating leases

Leases, including subleases, where substantially all the
rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the
lessor are accounted for as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessor, for those assets owned by the
Group under operating leases, they are included in the non-
current assets and rentals receivable under the operating
leases derived from lease and sublease arrangements are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group only had financial assets classified as “loans and
receivables” and “available-for-sale financial investments”
during the year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in finance costs for
loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in other income and gains, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in other
expenses. Interest earned whilst holding the available-for-
sale financial investments is reported as interest income and
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as other income in accordance with the policy set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont'd)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial Investments (Cont’d)
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
required judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans
and other borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and other borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings
and convertible bonds.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss represent
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Loans and other borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Convertible bonds

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated
from its liability component. On initial recognition, the
derivative component of the convertible bonds is measured
at fair value and presented as part of derivative financial
instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is recognised as
the liability component. Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and derivative components of the
convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to
the liability and derivative components when the instruments
are initially recognised. The portion of the transaction costs
relating to the liability component is recognised initially as part
of the liability. The portion relating to the derivative component
is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments, representing prepayments for
leasehold land for development for future sale in the ordinary
course of business, are stated at lower of cost and net
realisable value, of which those within the normal operating
cycle are classified as current assets, while those out of the
normal operating cycle are classified as non-current assets.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for
sale after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to be beyond the normal
operating cycle. On completion, the properties are transferred
to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an
apportionment of the total land and building costs attributable
to unsold properties. Net realisable value takes into account
the price ultimately expected to be realised, less estimated
costs to be incurred in selling the properties.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Retirement benefit scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China (the “PRC subsidiaries”) are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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24 FESTHBEBE(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

e (&) Income tax (Cont'd)
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MIARE SR RE RBEREHIBEEENXE and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off

) AEB A AR EE E R AN current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred

HIEBENERERITHRER - BIELERH taxes assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes

BEENELERIEGEHERE — S E Y levied by the same taxation authority on either the same

E— RN BT RAERT BB (AR taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either

FREEELALRIEHMIBEBREENREE  FE to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
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WA TERR Revenue recognition
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(d) M2 5B AL ERE &RA (d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated
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(e) BB ELE R AREER SE5T (e) the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
% transaction can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

For the Group, revenue from the sale of completed properties
is recognised upon the signing of the property handover
letter, which is taken to be the point in time when the risks
and rewards of ownership of the property have been passed
to the buyer.

Deposits and instalments received in respect of properties
sold prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Property management fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered and the inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Group’s presentation currency. The functional currency of
the Company is the Hong Kong dollar while RMB is used as
the presentation currency of the financial statements of the
Company for the purpose of aligning with the presentation
currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries operating
outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange translation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of non-PRC entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of non-PRC entities which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased
out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Judgements (Cont'd)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties (Cont’d)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the management of the Group has reviewed
the Group’s investment properties and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors have
determined that the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered through
sale is rebutted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Judgements (Cont'd)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (Cont’d)
Accordingly, the Group recognises deferred tax in respect
of the changes in fair value of the investment properties
based on management’s best estimate assuming future tax
consequences through usage of such properties for rental
purposes, rather than through sale. The final tax outcome
could be different from the deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated financial statements should the investment
properties are subsequently disposed of by the Group, rather
than all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties are consumed substantially by leasing over time.
In the event the investment properties are being disposed
of, the Group may be liable for higher tax upon disposal
considering the impact of corporate income tax and land
appreciation tax.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.



3.

EXRSEHE R A ()

EEr T RERER(HE)
(@) HEREFMEB

AEBABANTERNBOEEMRS
B BRFTEHRE THESEER K
EEWRBERER  IAREE S
ZIEHM SRR BN FKIZE Al
BIEOBUA « AR R HE b HERE R
ETEBAAMAEG - MZEEE
MRERGERARVICEN TR
TR ZRETEZRERAML
PRSI R B E R - E— T FHIEH
JIRE AP HHRERT M EI0R

27 °

(b) HETHIEES

AEBZABATE AN T 1IRE
Bo LHIRERNBEEBEUEEER
IR AR P B BAR ROAMR S
B ) AR E O B2 AR PT VR H BV R EE (S 5T
REE - BRI IIRETAGEN T
R ERERB ROV KERE
o AEEEARE TYWERFAER
B EM SIS E TR AR A

BERR -

RRGERAIGEEFZIREN SR
Rl AEMZEFREEFEZRER
HART O & o 1 (B 7 5 S R AR R
o E—THBHEIINEGE A MR

FRAPRIMIFE10K27 o

3.

g MiEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—+F+=-"HA=+—8 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

(@)

(b)

PRC corporate income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in
Mainland China. Due to the fact that certain matters
relating to the income taxes have not been confirmed
by the local tax bureau, objective estimate and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws,
regulations and other related policies are required
in determining the provision for income taxes to be
made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will impact on the income tax and tax
provision in the period in which the differences realise.
Further details are given in notes 10 and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in
Mainland China. The provision for land appreciation
tax is based on management’s best estimates
according to its understanding of the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.
The actual land appreciation tax liabilities are subject
to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its land appreciation tax
calculations and payments with the tax authorities for
certain property development projects.

The final outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and any differences will
impact the land appreciation tax expenses and the
related provision in the period in which the differences
realise. Further details are given in notes 10 and 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT’D)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

()

(d)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Recognition and allocation of construction cost
on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as
properties under development during the construction
stage and will be transferred to completed properties
held for sale upon completion. Apportionment of
these costs will be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss upon the recognition of the
sale of the properties. Before the final settlement of
the development costs and other costs relating to the
sale of the properties, these costs are accrued by the
Group based on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide
the development projects into phases. Specific costs
directly related to the development of a phase are
recorded as the cost of such phase. Costs that are
common to phases are allocated to individual phases
based on the estimated saleable area of the entire
project.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

(d) Recognition and allocation of construction cost
on properties under development (Cont’d)
Where the final settlement of costs and the related
cost allocation is different from the initial estimates,
any increase or decrease in the development costs
and other costs would affect the profit or loss in future
years.

(e) Estimation of fair value of investment properties
In the absence of current prices in an active market
for similar properties, the Group considers information
from a variety of sources, including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties
of a different nature, condition or location,
adjusted to reflect those differences;

(ii) recent prices of similar properties on less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since
the dates of the transactions that occurred at
those prices; and

(iii) discounted cash flow projections based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by
external evidence such as current market rents
for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair

value measurement, are given in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into the
following reportable operating segments:

Development and sale of
properties

(@) Property development:

Property leasing (including lease
of self-owned properties and
sublease of leased properties)

(b) Property leasing:

(c) Property management: Provision of property management

services

The property development projects undertaken by the Group
during the year were all located in the PRC.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit
or loss before tax. The adjusted profit or loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax
except that bank interest income, changes in fair value of the
derivative component of the convertible bonds, finance costs,
share of profits and losses of associates and joint ventures, as
well as head office and corporate income and expenses are
excluded from this measurement.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived
solely from its operations in Mainland China. Except
for the Group’s certain available-for-sale investments
amounting to USD10,988,000 (approximately equivalent
to RMB72,902,000) (2016: USD12,000,000 approximately
equivalent to RMB80,444,000) and the Company’s
property, plant and equipment of RMB6,774,000 (2016:
RMB5,566,000), the Group’s non-current assets are located
in Mainland China. Except for the Group’s certain interest-
bearing bank loans and other borrowings of senior notes
and syndicated loan and convertible bonds total amounting
to USD1,389,012,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB9,076,080,000) (2016: USD836,504,000 approximately
equivalent to RMB5,802,826,000), the Group’s liabilities are
located in Mainland China.

Segment assets exclude interests in joint ventures, interests
in associates, available-for-sale investments, deferred tax
assets, amounts due from joint ventures, amounts due from
associates, tax prepayments, restricted bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude amounts due to joint ventures,
interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings, tax
payable, convertible bonds, deferred tax liabilities, and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
During the year, no revenue from transactions with a single

external customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s
total revenue (2016: Nil).

Segment revenue, segment results and other segment
information for the year 2017, and segment assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2017 are presented below:

s L WERE YEEE
BE-Z—tF Year ended Property Property Property g @it
+=A=1+—HILEE 31December2017 development leasing management  Elimination Total
ARBFLT ANR¥FT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2EBA Segment revenue
IR FIEE Sales to external customers 22,473,054 289,469 347,438 - 23,109,961
DEEEE Intersegment sales 314,241 25,466 146,912 (486,619) -
22,787,295 314,935 494,350 (486,619) 23,109,961
PEHEE Segment results 5,586,436 19,377 30,680 - 5,636,493
#k - Reconciliation:
HRITH LA Bank interest income 102,579
AHRIRESFTETA  Changes in fair value of the
HoR AR EEES derivative component
of the convertible bonds (127,064)
RO ES L Unallocated corporate
expenses (147,575)
BERA Finance costs (400,874)
=N Share of profits and
REgrEER losses of associates
and joint ventures 224,622
B IRNE Profit before tax 5,288,181
AEHEE Segment assets 68,511,635 3,264,159 128,594 - 71,904,388
HR Reconciliation:
AOEHEE Unallocated assets 29,474,703
BELR Total assets 101,379,091
PHERE Segment liabilities 26,502,971 425,746 266,702 - 27,195,419
HE Reconciliation:
AOEHEE Unallocated liabilities 46,238,057
BfEsE Total liabilities 73,433,476
Hith o ZpE R Other segment information
wE Depreciation (51,554) (72,404) (4,698) - (128,656)
B EEEN Amortisation of intangible
assets (3,533) (160) (895) - (4,588)
BEMER Fair value gains on investment
AR 6 properties - 46,220 - - 46,220
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4, EEHFHERE) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONT'D)
ZE—RFRDEA - o EbEE R EM Segment revenue, segment results and other segment
DEHERUAMR ZTE—RNF+_A=+— information for the year 2016, and segment assets and
Ao EHEERBEZINT : liabilities as at 31 December 2016 are presented below:

\ EEE MEHRE mEEE
HEZT % Year ended Property Property Property i 1@t
+=—A=+—HItFE 31 December 2016 development leasing management Elimination Total

ARETT  ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

2 EUA Segment revenue
INFRFIHE Sales to external customers 15,620,001 298,218 288,232 - 16,206,451
D EPEIEE Intersegment sales 27,167 16,353 86,290 (129,810) -
15,647,168 314,571 374,622 (129,810) 16,206,451
DEELE Segment results 3,184,232 154,966 43,180 - 3,382,378
#hk - Reconciliation:
HRITH BIA Bank interest income 46,835
AHRIRESSTETA  Changes in fair value of the
WOMAREMEEE  derivative component
of the convertible bonds (4,388)
RO ESH Unallocated corporate
expenses (90,483)
BEMKE Finance costs (239,857)
/NG| Share of profits and
ke&EtEERR losses of associates
and joint ventures 66,090
PR R Profit before tax 3,160,575
PEEE Segment assets 49,134,196 2,736,381 92,901 - 51,963,478
HER - Reconciliation:
AOTREE Unallocated assets 17,125,466
BEBEE Total assets 69,088,944
SEEE Segment liabilities 28,498,196 277,279 246,242 - 29,021,717
HR - Reconciliation:
KOEEMEE Unallocated liabilities 23,876,295
BfEeE Total liabilities 52,898,012
Hih 5 HE R Other segment information
nE Depreciation (35,965) (50,845) (3,2083) - (90,013)
B EERH Amortisation of
intangible assets - - (3,603) - (3,603)
REMER Fair value gains on
AR EERE investment properties - 15,070 - - 15,070
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the sale of properties, gross rental

income and property management fee income during the

year.

as follows:

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is

—E—+iF —E—RF
2017 2016
AR¥FTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue
VI E Sale of properties 22,473,054 15,620,001
KA T SENHEHERABEE Gross rental income from:
HEBAEWE lease of self-owned properties 47,592 59,386
ERAE Y sublease of leased properties 241,877 238,832
LESREE-TION Property management fee income 347,438 288,232
23,109,961 16,206,451
H g A Other income
HRITA WA Bank interest income 102,579 46,835
E A F SUA Other interest income 72,180 -
BEEBA Management fee income 47,782 -
wEMA Compensation income 47,660 22,880
B RA Consultancy fee income 21,550 -
Hth Others 61,241 23,723
352,992 93,438
Wan FEE Gains, net
BIEHENYEE LI EME Gain on transfer from properties held for
Ol sale to investment properties = 189,522
AWM QA EEWE(MEE15) Fair value gains on investment properties
(note 15) 46,220 15,070
BRIELEH B A alkas Gain on deemed disposals of subsidiaries 66,297 =
—EEELENEBIEE K Gain on bargain purchase of a joint venture 352,699 =
GNE JF U S Foreign exchange gain, net - 64,870
465,216 269,462
818,208 362,900
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6. KRFAIFIE 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEBEMBRBAFABE MR (G A) T The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
B8 (crediting):
—E—+tF —EREF
2017 2016
i3 ARBFT AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
O E A Cost of properties sold 16,206,966 11,589,682
REE @ IR EMER Direct operating expenses
BHEEERY (including repairs and
(BREHERIRE) maintenance) arising on
rental-earning investment
properties 3,350 4,711
EREBHERCERY Direct operating expenses
(R EEME (including rental and
EEE) depreciation of leasehold
improvements) arising on
the subleasing business 159,658 128,427
RIS IR RIEHI K A Cost of property management
services provided 290,078 233,382
e Depreciation 13 128,656 90,013
S E Amortisation of intangible assets 4,588 3,603
BIEHENYEE L Gain on transfer from properties held
KEMENWE for sale to investment properties - (189,522)
HEMERNRBENE Changes in fair value of investment
properties 15 (46,220) (15,070)
T BRI 3 B Auditor’s remuneration 7,656 6,385
B TRAFXZ Employee benefit expense
(TBEIEESHH) (excluding directors’
(MIzE8) - remuneration (note 8)):
e Wages and salaries 564,767 472,279
BRIREBETEIHR Pension scheme contributions 28,962 18,966
B PR YIENE AL EEE  Less: Amount capitalised in
properties under
development (269,447) (208,335)
324,282 282,910
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D)

—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
M AR¥FT AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
NEYHEREHEEZ Minimum lease payments under
HEMX 2 EEHE operating leases regarding
=EREFKIE office premises and leased
properties for the subleasing
business 141,064 96,484
BRIELEWB A FMES Gain on deemed disposals of
subsidiaries 39 (66,297) -
—HAEDERNZBWHEIE  Gain on bargain purchase of
a joint venture 5 (352,699) -
HEWE  MEMREEES Loss on disposal of items of
E518 property, plant and equipment 692 863
HE—EBE R F R EE Loss on disposal of an associate - 10,242
SN F Z =R Foreign exchange differences, net 23,036 (64,870)
FEWMERSIWARERZLLE  Rental income on investment
sz A R #3,350,0007T properties less direct operating
—ERF expenses of RMB3,350,000
AR#E4,711,0007T) (2016: RMB4,711,000) (44,242) (54,675)
IRATEEME A ZEATTAEE  Premium paid on early
redemption of senior notes 129,709 -
AR ESFITETASRSH Changes in fair value of the
N BEZE” derivative component of the
convertible bonds* 32 127,064 4,388
& NEEMAIMRESITETR S p The changes in fair value of the derivative component of the
REBEEEZHHAGGERRPHN T/H\ﬁﬂ convertible bonds for the current year are included in “Other
Fx] e expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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7. BERAK 7. FINANCE COSTS
—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
AR¥FTT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERAX Interest expense 2,229,046 1,665,267
o BRI S Less: Interest capitalised (1,828,172 (1,425,410)
400,874 239,857
8. EERERSITHAEEMH 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION
RIEEMRA - FF R &M 5 383(1) Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
@~ o) ) ROHEARAR(FEEESHE disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
BERD AP EMBHEENES RETTERA (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
BRFEHMAT 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
—E—tHF —E—REF
2017 2016
AR¥FT ARMFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ik Fees 873 720
Hib g - Other emoluments:
e KB Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 12,717 10,800
FIREMAIELT Performance-related bonuses 21,059 16,189
RIRE T EIfHK Pension scheme contributions 113 95
33,889 27,084
34,762 27,804

REE_TE—+FR_F—XRF+=A
Z+T—HLEFE BMESERESTHRA

BRERBEAE -
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For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
directors and chief executive were granted share options.
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8. EEREBESTHAETM(ZE) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT'D)

(a) BYEBITES (a) Independent non-executive directors
ERNEXNFBIIERTEENE The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
20T : during the year were as follows:

—E—tHF —ZE—RF
2017 2016
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRELt Ms. Sun Hui 291 240
EEXEAE Mr. Wong Wai Man 201 240
SEB LA Mr. Jin Qingjun 291 240
873 720
FRTEEMNBIIIFNTESNH There were no other emoluments payable to the
e (ZF—RF  ]&) - independent non-executive directors during the year
(2016: Nil).
b) HITEBERBESTHRAE (b) Executive directors and the chief executive
e R
REYRZ REHE B
Salaries, AL EEEE
allowances Performance Pension N4 %E
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

ARMTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BEZE—ZF—tH&+=-A Yearended 31 December 2017

=+—HLEFE
vl Mr. Shum 3,321 6,940 16 10,277
MEB A Mr. Guan Jianhui 2,196 3,219 21 5,436
HipsttE Mr. Bai Xihong 2,201 3,192 21 5,414
FREAE Mr. Li Qiang 1,893 3,257 21 5,171
ZIKEESEAE Mr. Shum Siu Hung 1,578 2,221 17 3,816
G RR&EE Mr. Niu Jimin 1,528 2,230 17 3,775

12,717 21,059 113 33,889
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8. EEREBETHAETM(ZE) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT'D)

b) HBTEERESITHAS(E) (b)  Executive directors and the chief executive
(Cont'd)
e - 2R

KRB FITE RIR®

Salaries, TE4T sTEIftR
allowances  Performance Pension AR RE
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration

AREFIT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

HE—_Z—/XF+-H Yearended 31 December 2016

=+t—HIEFE

¥t Mr. Shum 2,867 5,124 15 8,006
RE A Mr. Guan Jianhui 1,913 2,450 16 4,379
SE7P:S e Mr. Bai Xihong 1,913 2,467 16 4,396
ZoR i Mr. Li Qiang 1,548 2,619 16 4,183
IR A Mr. Shum Siu Hung 1,458 1,661 16 3,135
HREKE Mr. Niu Jimin 1,101 1,868 16 2,985
10,800 16,189 95 27,084

FAMBEEEARRTRAEREXRE There was no arrangement under which a director

NEEREFMAO L (ZF—RF - ]&) - or chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year (2016: Nil).
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9. FMNBRSESMWERESR 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FA - FHEENAZREEBE=-RES The five highest paid employees during the year included
(BEFREERITRAR)(ZE—XRF ' [ three directors, including the chief executive (2016: four
LEZ(ETPREESTHRAR))  Z5E directors, including the chief executive), details of whose
ENEHMEEEYN EatizE8 o FA - F remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
BB (ZE—RF: —Z)Fx=EE remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2016: one)
(R IERANRNESZS ESITHRAE)D highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
FMEFEWT executive of the Company are as follows:
—E—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e FMREDZE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,678 1,107
FIREMAIEAT Performance related bonuses 8,621 4,652
BRIRESE IR Pension scheme contributions 37 15
12,336 5774
10. FrfSBiREX 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

AEEEREREERELAIRNAE
BB ARIEMEEMERDEEERD
MBEBAAER REFSHELRABS
BRESRAERY  AEEEB(RFE
BB NEBER AR S ) BAM
ERAEHR - ARAKRERFALBER
BELTARRBEWA - HAKEHBA
REBEMFIER -

B SEATEH
RIpEPBEEEMEHR ([ EXHAES ) HE
BARIRITANR 2B RES  AERTE
MK EEBNEERSHRERBE—T
—tETZA=+—HALFEMAGERE
AR A E R G E o

BREMM BRI ER AR ([EMER
B BENMEHZEZERAGN([EME
BEENTEHESBER AR ([EMNE
BN BEZ_FT—tF+-A=1+—H
WEFE - ANEBETEF B A IE S K E b b
B A 7)¥5 ZE 12 25% H 1 2 FT 15 B Bt R 4K
o BMIRE - BEMEBREMNSmHDE
EFSBRREREERY - AMRES AR
ABEEM2.75% ~ 2.50% [2.50%F ©

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant
to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and BVI,
the entities of the Group which were incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and BVI are not subject to any income tax.
The Group was not liable for income tax in Hong Kong as the
Group did not have any assessable income arising in Hong
Kong during the year.

PRC corporate income tax

The PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”) in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at the
applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits for
the year ended 31 December 2017, based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Except for Guangzhou Ruixian Landscaping Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Ruixian”), Guangzhou Fengdu Trading Co.,
Ltd. (“Guangzhou Fengdu”) and Guangzhou Zhuorui
Trading Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Zhuorui”), other subsidiaries
of the Group operating in Mainland China were subject to the
CIT rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2017. CIT
for Guangzhou Ruixian, Guangzhou Fengdu and Guangzhou
Zhuorui was levied on a deemed basis on rates of 2.75%,
2.50% and 2.50% of their respective revenue amounts.
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10. Fri8#ip X (#& 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D)
A B £ I E B PRC land appreciation tax
BIE—NNLEF—A—BEUMAKFREAR According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
RN B A 3G E R BTG ) ([ 3l of the PRC on Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT”) (#E A R 4t
BOE—NMNEF—AZ+EBEHAKF B L3 IBERE 175D effective from 1 January 1994
= AR EFAE L I E B E TR0 B 4l and the Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional
BN ES: - 7Eh B O s s A + Regulations of the PRC on LAT (& A R FNE -t 38 E 7
i REREFREN — A (BIEE E1TiRFI B REAR) effective from 27 January 1995, all income
MENRESRERINGREY  BEEE from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights and
AR R YRR ) B EEN T LibigE buildings in Mainland China (being the proceeds from sales of
30%ZE60% H R 1T E AN+ HhIGET - properties less deductible expenditures including borrowing
M EEEFTENIEETBEE LR costs and property development expenditures) is subject to
TE B 48F120% + B2 E al EEA R RT o LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the
appreciation of land value with an exemption provided for
property sales of ordinary residential properties (ZiBiZA4EF
=ZE) if their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum
of the total deductible items.
FR - AEFREHLBYRREERER During the year, the Group estimated and made provision for
PR B st T IR ER A EH B - & LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant
BRIt EREERNMERZERRIE PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are
ASHEET MRS KREETN T subject to the determination by the tax authorities upon
10 7 ok B ET BT 4 Hb 3 (E B B PR IR Y completion of the property development projects and the LAT
REEBRTHA © determined by the tax authorities might be different from the
basis on which the provision for LAT is calculated.
—E—+tF —F—K
2017 2016
AREFTT ABR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BNES Current:
B EASH PRC CIT 1,866,871 811,089
T IRER LAT 598,749 487,933
PEFE (BI5E20) Deferred (note 20) (518,349) (120,846)
FEBIAX HEHE Total tax charge for the year 1,947,271 1,178,176
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D)

PRC land appreciation tax (Cont'd)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory tax rate to the tax expense at the
effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate
(i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as

follows:
—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
AREFT % AREFT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
BR % AT Profit before tax 5,288,181 3,160,575
BT RAENTIE  Taxat the PRC statutory tax rate 1,322,045 25.0 790,144 25.0
ETARTREREIER  Effect of different income tax regimes
% of certain companies (259) - 31 -
BRI AW Income not subject to tax (89,329) (1.7 (17,362) (0.5)
EOGIEi ;05 Expenses not deductible for tax 37,827 0.7 58,516 18
+ I (E R B Provision for LAT 547,969 10.3 377,103 11.9
T E R AT 2 Tax effect of LAT (136,992) (2.6) (94,276) 3.0)
RERNTIEER Tax losses not recognised 297,855 5.6 65,460 2.1
BT HEESFRTIEERE Taxlosses utiised from previous periods (7,571) (0.1) (10,933) 0.3
EEmERnaRk Profits and losses attributable to
RELEERR associates and joint ventures (59,432) (1.1) (16,523) (0.5)
FEIA B A R AR B Withholding taxes on undistributed
T EREME profits of the subsidiaries
in Mainland China 35,158 0.7 26,016 0.8
RAEEHERHXHER  Taxcharge at the Group’s
PEX effective rate 1,947,271 36.8 1,178,176 37.3
11. RE 11. DIVIDENDS

“EAFENEEZABBREERARSE
31519 (&£ AR¥542,842,0007T) B B
ARABERR-_F—tFAA-+BE
THOBRRBFRS LIE - YN -_FT—+
FLARE -

EEeRBREHE-_T—+F+ A
Z+—HIEFEORBRESBHRARE
41.43% A AR#759,708,0007( ==
—~F ARBES1.515) o

AEENEBRARSAFTARBABRER
FERER AT RS LHE - TAEER -

The proposed 2016 final dividend of RMB31.51 cents per
share, totalling RMB542,842,000 was approved by the
Company’s shareholders at the annual general meeting on 26
May 2017 and was distributed in July 2017.

The board of directors recommended the payment of
a final dividend of RMB41.43 cents per share totalling
RMB759,708,000, for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: RMB31.51 cents).

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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12 RAFEEEZIEAEAEMN 12, EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

BRER

BRERERFTIREBEANRLBEREE
ANEEFEFBRFERNDZEITLEBAM
115 %1,767,379,0000% ( —Z — /<4 -
1,722,960,0000%) 51 & °

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,767,379,000 (2016: 1,722,960,000) in

issue during the year.

—E—tHF —E—RF
2017 2016
RATERESEHEGAEENE  Profit attributable to ordinary equity
(ARBTT) holders of the Company (RMB’000) 2,667,154 1,955,020
BET T @R AT I8 Weighted average number of ordinary
(LAFET) shares in issue (in thousand) 1,767,379 1,722,960
BRERBI(BRARES) Basic earnings per share
(RMB cents per share) 151 113

EREERFSERBABRRNARLE
B E ABEFEEFEARBEITEIINE
L%M%$ﬁyuﬁ %EEE%%%@
fesEin AT @mARME ZF’&TE’]%ET%&
S kFEQT#hEﬁ SEERE
%%ﬂh EF“T%&@%Wﬁ%ﬁi
MR - WHARELAE - AEHEEHFE
BaRERNROF SR BNRRET 2%
ABMREFTETIABINAABEEZS
(fnsEmA) o

230 ERPEZRBRERAR 2017 FERSE

The diluted earnings per share amount is calculated by
adjusting the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The
Company’s dilutive potential ordinary shares are derived from
the convertible bonds. In calculating the diluted earnings
per share, the convertible bonds are assumed to have
been converted into ordinary shares, and the net profit is
adjusted to eliminate the interest expenses charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and changes in fair
value of the derivative component of the convertible bonds
less the tax effect, if applicable.
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—ZE—+F+=-"HA=+—8 31 December 2017

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

SREF(E) TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (CONT'D)
—E—+F —E—REF
2017 2016
AAR)E@EEREE AEEFRE  Profit attributable to ordinary equity
(ARETFIT) holders of the Company (RMB’000) 2,667,154 1,955,020
REREREBERIGRD Interest expenses charged to the
FEHZ(ARETIT) consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year (RMB’000) - -
AR EHITETAISDH Changes in fair value of the derivative
AREEEE(ARETIT) component of the convertible bonds
(M97E32) (RMB’000) (note 32) = 4,388
BARETESREERTIM Profit used to determine diluted
FMEARETT) earnings per share (RMB’000) 2,667,154 1,959,408
B 377 B Ay hE 19 21 Weighted average number of ordinary
(LAFET) shares in issue (in thousand) 1,767,379 1,722,960
R AT E ST TR Assumed conversion of the convertible
(BAF&H) bonds (in thousand) 66,438 110,857
ARETE RSB R TR Weighted average number of ordinary
LB E (AT &) shares for diluted earnings
per share (in thousand) 1,833,817 1,833,817
GIREERFN(FRARKS) Diluted earnings per share
(RMB cents per share) 145 107
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13. Y% BERRE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

&
HER
HELH# HEWME PLERE
EEgF #£{&  Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold fixtures RE
land and improve-  and office Motor #st
buildings ments  equipment vehicles Total
ANREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—ZE—+H+ZH=1+—H 31December 2017
PR Cost:
RZZ—+F—HA—H At 1 January 2017 560,204 856,787 121,256 34,848 1,573,095
INE Additions 240 151,742 60,712 7,275 219,969
=N Acquisition of subsidiaries 122,323 - 18,921 36,204 177,448
BIELERBAT Deemed disposals of
(BI7E39) subsidiaries (note 39) (108,530) (110,533) (29,833) (40,746) (289,642)
HE Disposals (13,794) - (9,345) (10,397) (33,536)
HERREME Transfer from investment
(BIzE15) properties (note 15) 145,966 - - - 145,966
RZE—tF+=A At 31 December 2017
=+—H 706,409 897,996 161,711 27,184 1,793,300
ZETE Accumulated depreciation:
R_E—+F—H—H At 1 January 2017 40,435 204,364 66,732 19,872 331,403
REEDEHNITE Depreciation provided
during the year 26,190 77,831 22,246 2,389 128,656
WS B A A) Acquisition of subsidiaries 25,261 - 9,737 24,371 59,369
BIELEHB AT Deemed disposals
(BF7E39) of subsidiaries (note 39) (12,735) (19,650) (16,106) (29,253) (77,744)
e Disposals (15,258) - (5,176) (6,886) (27,320)
RZB—+F+=A At 31 December 2017
==k 63,893 262,545 77,433 10,493 414,364
REFER Net carrying amount 642,516 635,451 84,278 16,691 1,378,936
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13. W% - BENSZE(E) 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONT'D)
A ~
RER
MELH BEME POERE
LgF #ix Furniture,
Leasehold  Leasehold fixtures "
land and improve- and office Motor st
buildings ments equipment vehicles Total

ARETIT ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

“E-X"E+ZHA=1+—H 31December2016

PR Cost:
RZZE—~"F—H—H At 1 January 2016 400,530 714,410 102,960 30,353 1,248,253
NE Additions - 54,062 18,919 6,319 79,300
WEEHTB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries - 88,315 763 - 89,078
k= Disposals - - (1,386) (1,824) (3,210)
EEEREYE Transfer from investment
(P45E15) properties (note 15) 159,674 - - - 159,674
R-E—XRE+=A At 31 December 2016
=+—H 560,204 856,787 121,256 34,848 1,573,095
ZETE Accumulated depreciation:
RZZE—RF—-H—H At 1 January 2016 20,984 149,544 55,180 17,254 242,962
REZCEREN Depreciation provided
e during the year 19,451 54,820 12,037 3,705 90,013
k= Disposals - - (485) (1,087) (1,572)
NZZ—XRE+=A At 31 December 2016
=l Fl 40,435 204,364 66,732 19,872 331,403
BR T F 58 Net carrying amount 519,769 652,423 54,524 14,976 1,241,692
R_ZTE—+F+_A=Z+—H EEFED At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s buildings with
AR ¥ 368,419,000 (=T —RF : AR¥ a net carrying amount of approximately RMB368,419,000
476,689,0007T) WA K EE TEFEFEEIF - A (2016: RMB476,689,000) were pledged to secure bank loans
RERTAEENRITER(FIF31() ° granted to the Group (note 31(c)).
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14. AL HEERER

14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

—E—tF —E-REF
2017 2016
it AERHFTT AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
N—A—HREESsE Carrying amount at 1 January 2,484,446 1,545,738
FERE Additions during the year 7,902,298 6,427,349
g 1= PN Acquisition of subsidiaries that are
(TMEBZER) not business 38(b) 4,752,631 920,906
RAEDEWB AT Deemed disposals of subsidiaries 39 (3,558,963) -
ER SRR Transfer to properties
under development (9,286,353) (6,409,547)
R+ZA=+—HBrEES£% Carrying amount at 31 December 2,294,059 2,484,446
R BNEAER 9 Less: Current portion (1,374,853) (268,523)
FEENER =R Non-current portion 919,206 2,215,923
ME+#HURAPE A BIZREAHE ST The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held
B MELIIRSEARNS - ELHB% under a long term lease, construction on which has not yet
IERA IS EE R T RS o commenced. Balances will be transferred to properties under
development when construction commences.
NR-E—+F+-_A=+—08 EFEESZE Certain parcels of the Group’s leasehold land with
HEEBA) B AR #5946,149,0007T ( —E — 7~ an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
F . AR®17,922,00070) K& TASE M RMB946,149,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
E+-#2/EETE - UEESETAEBRRNE RMB17,922,000) have been pledged to secure bank loans
TER(MIFE31(0) ° granted to the Group (note 31(c)).

15. REW=E

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—E—tF TE—RF
2017 2016
Mzt AR¥FT ARKEFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
R—A—BHRASE Carrying amount at 1 January 1,598,076 1,352,680
EEEERAME Transfer to owner-occupied
properties 13 (145,966) (159,674)
HE AP % TIHE Transfer from completed properties
HERYE held for sale - 390,000
REBEREMRA R Net gain from a fair value adjustment
W R AR EEERE recognised in other income and
FriS/E e gains in profit or loss 5 46,220 15,070
RT+-—A=+—H®EMm<E% Carrying amount at 31 December 1,498,330 1,598,076
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15.

REYE(E)
N2 B R 3% B Y E A R B i B 1% o HR
HERE REAMETIZERBELHER
FHETE=F  EZHBEHEHRES
B R R M sE42(a) ©

RZEBE—+F+=_A=+—H8 x%£E
BEMENNHAMERBILAEKEE
HEMAFEERTERARKRER
#m AR B ER A KR1,498,330,000
T(ZZF—7"F : AR®1,598,076,000
L) c AEEB¥FEELEE—RINE
HEMBEE RN EBYEEITIINEE
HBEEREMSAHE  BE BUMRk
EREFFEIEKE - REBNE B EHR
BRI T ER EZ A ER S ERR
HEERETEN  R_T—tF+_-A
=+—H  x&EBEL A ARET726,884,000
THETIRENE(ZZ—RF : ARK
1,598,076,0007T) EAEHE R - LEVSE T
REEMF BRITERREMER (M
31(@)) °

DREEER
NE—LERZF-AF A=+
A AEENREANEN AL BERASE
AT ABREHAMR (E=AHE -

ERN - F—FEE KAV EALEE
FTEER  NEAAEBEEEARE]
F=#(2016%F : ) o

g MiEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—+F+=-"HA=+—8 31 December 2017

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’'D)

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland
China and held under a medium term lease. The investment
properties are mainly leased to third parties under operating
lease arrangements, further summary details of which
are included in note 42(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 December 2017 at RMB1,498,330,000 (2016:
RMB1,598,076,000) by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited,
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, on an
open market, existing use basis. Every half year, the Group
decides to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group has discussions with the valuer on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed for financial reporting. At 31 December
2017, certain of the Group’s investment properties with
an amount of approximately RMB726,884,000 (2016:
RMB1,598,076,000) were pledged to secure the interest-
bearing bank loans and other borrowings granted to the
Group (note 31(c)).

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, fair values of the Group‘s
investment properties were measured using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil).
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15. BEWHE(E) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D)
IREBEER(E) Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)
HIREYEGET S N E A AR Below is a summary of the key inputs to the valuations of
EHIWOT - investment properties:
EXFTER Valuation Significant Range or
fEr:  BARE SERMETSE techniques unobservable inputs weighted average
ZE-tE 30 07 2016
BAMEDL EEEEE TEBMYER HI0E 40002 Times Property Center ~ Direct Comparison  Market unit sale rate 41,750t0 41,0000
-3 (BTRA(TR 83,500 82,000 - Retal Method (RMB/square metre 83,500 82,000
RARETL) (‘sqm.’)
BRUEDL ERMEE MREHEX(BT 30,350 30,000 Times Property Center ~ Direct Comparison - Market unit sale rate 30,350 30,000
-2 FRARET) -Offce Metiod RMBIsqm)
BROERD ERUBE TREMEEXR 450000 450,000 Times Property Genter ~ Direct Comparison  Market unit sale rate 450,000 450,000
-FE (5Esh) - Car parking Method (per one space)
BREMOAL) REE  FEHRGEERIE 3.50% 350% Block No. 26 of Timgs King Investment Tem yield 350%  3.50%
$0605 : EL 6 4.00% 400% Oty (Zhongshan): method Reversionary yield 400%  4.00%
-1E238 (§A(18R)) 615102 5158 - 1stto 3rd Floor Market rent 6110102 511085
§¥5R) (per sa.m. per month (‘pm.”)
BREM(AL) REE  ERNGEERIE 400% 400% Block No. 26 of Times King Investment Term yield 400%  4.00%
EE £m5He(ER) 4.50% 450% Ctty (Zhongshan): method Reversionary yield 450%  450%
-4g 58 HES5 YUEL - 4ifhto 5th Floor Market rent (p.m) 4to51  3dtod2
16. B& 16. GOODWILL
—E—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
AT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
K= H=H At 1 January 47,230 =
W EE M B A | (B EE38) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) 154,535 47,230
R+ A=+—HHKAK Cost and net carrying amount at
KERmEFEEE 31 December 201,765 47,230
=B =1—E At 31 December
D% Cost 201,765 47,230
ZENREESE Accumulated impairment = -
ARMEF 58 Net carrying amount 201,765 47,230
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16. BHE(E) 16. GOODWILL (CONT'D)

2 AR EDR Impairment test on goodwill

REBEBEKEHESHNRENEET The Group’s goodwill acquired through business
HINERSEESM([REEEEM]) I combinations was allocated to the following six cash-
ERERE - ZEXNEARSEEBMHT generating units (“CGUs”) for impairment testing. The
e ERBEREENEET A recoverable amounts of the six CGUs were determined based
IR REEANUEREE B AN on value-in-use calculations using cash flow projections
BEECRENE NFHRE) RE%E - based on financial budget covering four to six years’ periods

approved by senior management.

R-EBE—+E+=-HA=+—8 As at 31 December 2017
ReELEEN BE TEEB BB RESE REE BR=
Financial
budget Growth Discount
CGU Goodwill Principal business period rate rate
ANEEFT
RMB’000
RE(EM) ESEE NE TER
Horizon (Guangzhou) 144,047  Property development Six-year N/A 91.27%
BN A& ek NEF iR
Guangzhou Lifeng 10,488  Property development Six-year N/A 30.72%
BR# BERRERBIERE LS
Guangdong Junan 18,732  Elevator installation and maintenance Four-year 3%-10% 16.00%
e R E ES$ M4
Zhuhai Yuanxing 2,429  Property management Four-year 3%-5% 13.98%
HILIEEE SR MEERE M
Foshan Shunde Hetai 3,608  Property management Four-year 3%-5% 13.38%
BMNEE WMERER ks
Guangzhou Wanning 22,461  Property management Four-year 3%-5% 10.49%
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16. BHE(E) 16. GOODWILL (CONT'D)
B AR EDRE () Impairment test on goodwill (Cont'd)
HE RN —_E—+tFE+-_A=+—HR Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations of the
PEXBUNERAEEREEARK T above mentioned CGUs for 31 December 2017. The following
X EIRERRE S RETERLETRE describes each key assumption on which management had
ERENRFSMEENSEETEMRE based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:
BEIRR — HHAMAVIR R BAR - <A Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
BN A REERER reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.
ZrEigis — PEOGREELEBAETER Business environment — There was no major change in the
2R ) IR B UG ~ YRR R A AR T existing political, legal and economic conditions in the PRC in
BAREE - which the CGUSs carried on its business.
NIREEIKR - SBERT HIRSELS At the end of the reporting period, management determined
i (B2 ) B IR EDRUE - that there were no impairment of any of its CGUs containing
goodwill.
17. REELENESR 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
AR T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EIREEFE Share of net assets 4,166,451 1,894,554
WEEFTEE A T 2 Goodwill on acquisition 532,379 437,318
4,698,830 2,331,872
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17. REELENER(E) 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT'D)
REFBELENFEBOT : Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:
At
Percentage of
BRTER/
RA EeR RER HHAZ
HBR Issued Ownership interest Voting power Profit sharing
L ordinary/ +=A=t-A +ZA=1-A +ZA=t-H
Place of registered 31 December 31 December 31 December TEER
3 registration and share —E-t§ “T-xF ZE-tF T F ZE-tE -T—7F Principal
Name and business capital 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 activities
FERERATRAR e/ ARE 49 49 50 50 49 19 NERY
([#H ) PRC/ 337,780,000 Property
Zhuhai Xiangyue Mainland China ~ RMB337,780,000 Oevelopment

Investment Co., Ltd. "
(‘Zhuhai Xiangyue’)

BNEARRARERRAR e/ e ARH 51 51 50 50 51 51 f1EAE
([EMER )~ PRC/ 50,000,007 Property
Guangzhou Yungu Technology Mainland China ~ RMB50,000,000 leasing

Investment Co., Ltd. *
(‘Guangzhou Yungu’) *

BN BENRARAR hE/REME  ARE3750,000T 2 2 50 50 2 20 iR
([EMEE ) PRC/ RMB3,750,000 Technology
Guangzhou Youdong Intemet Technology  Mainland China Oevelopment
Co, Ltd."

(‘Guangzhou Youdong) *

EHEBRHERSERAT e/ ARE 75 75 50 50 7 5 NER%
([EMER )~ PRC/ 250,000,000 Property
Guangzhou Xingsheng Real Mainland China ~ RMB250,000,000 Oevelopment

Estate Development Co,, Ltd. "
(‘Guangzhou Xingsheng’) **

KB (B o /A ARE 100 75 100 50 100 5 NER%

Horizon (Guangzhou)*** PRC/ 516,154,000 Property
Mainland China ~ RMB516,154,000 Oevelopment

ENERneHRARAR /A 10,000,000%7C % 52 50 50 % 5 NERE
([ENES])" PRO/ USD10,000,000 Property
Guangzhou Fengding Mainland China development
Hardware Products Co., Ltd. *

(‘Guangzhou Fengding’) **

ENTERRARRAR /A ARE 2 2 50 50 2 0 RER
(RN ) PRC/ 200,000,007 Investment
Guangzhou Jingjun Mainland China  RMB200,000,000 holding
Investment Co., Ltd. *

(‘Guangzhou Jingjun’) **
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17. REELENER(E) 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D)
REEBESLENFEBOT : (8) Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:
(Cont’d)
BAl
Percentage of
BRTER/
kA HER hEE HAAE
BTN Issued Ownership interest Voting power Profit sharing
EENHE ordinary/ +ZA=1-A +ZA=t-H tZA=t-A
Place of registered 31 December 31 December 31 December ITEE
4 registration and share Z—E-tf& -ZE ZE-tf -Z-F ZE-tf -Z—%E Principal
Name and business capital 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 activities
ENRERERRAT PE /AR ARH 50 50 50 50 50 50 REMR
(TENAKE])- PRC/ 250,000,0007 Investment
Guangzhou Daye Investment Mainland China -~ RMB250,000,000 holding

Co., Ltd. * ("Guangzhou Daye’)

M- FeNERmERAR PE/hEA ARE 147 147 33 333 49 49 NERY
(TRYI-%g ) PRC/ 10,000,007 Property
Shenzhen Yinaocang Scientific Innovation  Mainland China~~ RMB10,000,000 development

Technology Co., Ltd. "
(‘Shenzhen Yihao Cang’) *

BNTBRZRREBRARN e/ REN ARE 9091 100 50 100 9091 100 9ERE
(BNRR ) PRC/ 56,000,0007 Property
Guangzhou Times Hongtai Investment ~ Mainland China~~ RMB55,000,000 development
Co., Ltd."

(‘Guangzhou Hongtai') 2%

BHmBREREREERAR e/ REN ARE 9091 100 50 100 9091 100 DERE
([ENER ) PRC/ 11,0000007 Property
Guangzhou Times Zichen Investment -~ Mainland China -~ RMB11,000,000 development
Co., Ltd."

(‘Guangzhou Zichen’) &'+

ENTRGREAIERELAT &/ RERM ARE 9091 100 50 100 9091 100 MERE
([RAREE ) PRC/ 2000007 Property
Guangzhou Longya Investment Mainland China RMB200,000 development

Consuttation Co., Ltd."
(‘Guangzhou Longya’) '

BATESIREERAT hE/mER N 9091 100 50 100 9091 100 ¥R
([N e PRC/ 484,000,000 Property
Guangzhou Tingkai Mainland China ~ RMB484,000,000 development

Investment Co., Ltd."
(‘Guangzhou Tingkai') #'*
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17. REELENER(E 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D)
REBESLENFEBOT : (8) Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:
(Cont’d)
BAL
Percentage of
BRTER/
AR LT 2R HAAE
TR Issued Ownership interest Voting power Profit sharing
EENHE ordinary/ +ZA=1-A +ZA=1-A +ZA=t-H
Place of registered 31 December 31 December 31 December ITER
4 registration and share ZE-tf ~“T-F ZE-tf -E-7E ZE-tf —FE Principal
Name and business capital 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 activities
ENTRRASRERRAR e/ REN ARE 9091 100 50 100 90091 100 MEmHE
([BRAR s PRC/ 56,000,0007 Property
Guangzhou Times Daye Mainland China ~ RMB55,000,000 development

Investment Co., Ltd."
(‘Times Daye’) @

BENBHEHERIARAT /R ARE % 100 50 100 % 100 MEmHE
([RRHE ) PRC/ 500,000,007 Property
Qingyuan Jinsheng Property Mainland China - RMB500,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd."

(‘Qingyuan Jinsheng’) "

LERRAA ([ RE)o Bk 10T 10 70 | 70 10 0 NER%

Angel Smooth Limited Hong Kong HKD10 Property
(‘Angel Smooth’) &°¢ development

ENREEZERAA hE/ B AE® 50 - 50 - 50 - NEFR
([ENRE ) PRC/ 20,200,007 Property
Guangzhou Dongkang Mainland China ~ RMB20,200,000 development

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd." (‘Guangzhou
Dongkang’) ¢ **

RS HEERAERAT R/ hEA ARK 56.49 - 50 - 5649 - DERE
(Tl |Jors PRC/ 122,128,000 Property
Zhongshan Jinsha Mainland China~~ RMB122,128,000 development

Industrial Co., Ltd."
(‘Zhongshan Jinsha’) 6

RERENERERRAA e/ A ARH 50 - 50 - 50 - WER%
([ )o PRC/ 25,000,007 Property
Zhuhai Junlong automotive Mainland China~~ RMB25,000,000 development

manufacturing Co., Lid. "
(‘Zhuhai Junlong’) & **
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17. REELENER(E)

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT'D)

REEBESLENFEBOT : (8) Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:
(Cont’d)
Al
Percentage of
BRTER/
ARE BEE REE HAAE
HRE Issued Ownership interest Voting power Profit sharing
EENY ordinary/ +=B=t-8 t-A=1-A t-A=t-A
Place of registered 31 December 31 December 31 December ITEE

4 registration and share Z—E-tf “T-F ZE-tf -E-7E ZE-tE —Z—E Principal

Name and business capital 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 activities

BEREEEERAR hE /PR ARE 10 - 50 - 10 - WERR
([ GafErHLeg |y PRC/ 50,000,007 Property
Fogang Songfeng Property Mainland China ~ RMB50,000,000 development
Co., Ltd."

(‘Fogang Songfeng’) 7 **

IFBERERRERAF hE /PR ARE 51 = 50 - 51 - ER%
(FIRRR ) PRO/ 102,041,0007C Property
Jiangmeﬂ meaﬂ Propeny Mainland China RMB102,041 ,OOO devebpment
Development Co., Ltd."

(‘Jiangmen Yinyan’) @ **

BHERBEARAT A/ AN ARE 75 - 50 - 15 - BARE
(TBMER ) PRC/ 10,000,000 Information service
Guangzhou Zaoju Mainland China~ RMB10,000,000
Technology Co., Ltd. "

(‘Guangzhou Zaojiu’) "
Bt - Notes:

o FEAR-_Z—tF+—A=+HKRA
R #457,000,000TT MR EREE E
EEB NI RE(EMN)25%HE -
Brkik - RE(BMRARERNE
A B R (HiEE38(c) °
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M The Group acquired a 25% equity interest in Horizon

(Guangzhou) from its joint venture partner at a total
consideration of RMB457,000,000 on 30 November 2017,

after the acquisition, Horizon (Guangzhou) became a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Group (note 38(c)).
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT'D)

Notes: (Cont’d)

@

The Group previously indirectly held 100% equity interests
in these companies through wholly-owned subsidiaries.
On 30 November 2017, part of the equity interest of these
companies were transferred to independent third party
shareholders, after the share transfer, these companies
became joint ventures of the Group. The disposals of equity
interests upon loss of controls were accounted for as

deemed disposals of subsidiaries (note 39).

On 30 November 2017, the Group entered into a cooperation
agreement with the previous non-controlling shareholder to
jointly control the company, which was accounted for as a

deemed disposal of a subsidiary (note 39).

The Group acquired a 50% equity interest in Guangzhou
Dongkang through the acquisition of a 100% equity interest
in Guangzhou Hengde Investment Guarantee Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Hengde”) from an independent third party at
a total consideration of RMB138,600,000 on 28 June 2017

to expand business in property development (note 38 (b)).

The Group acquired a 56.49% equity interest in Zhongshan
Jinsha from an independent third party at a total
consideration of RMB689,451,000 on 19 January 2017 to

expand business in property development.

The Group acquired a 50% equity interest in Zhuhai Junlong
from an independent third party at a total consideration
of RMB205,484,800 on 20 September 2017 to expand

business in property development.

The Group acquired a 70% equity interest in Fogang
Songfeng from an independent third party at a total
consideration of RMB57,784,700 on 22 September 2017 to
expand business in property development.

The Group acquired a 51% equity interest in Jiangmen
Yinyan from an independent third party at a total consideration
of RMB52,040,800 on 22 September 2017 to expand
business in property development.
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17.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT'D)

Notes: (Cont’d)

©

The Group acquired a 7.5% equity interest in Guangzhou
Zaojiu from an independent third party at a total consideration
of RMB12,000,000 on 15 December 2017 to expand the
Group’s business. According to the investment agreement,
the Group may at its option to exit from the joint venture, as
certain conditions are met, at the original investment price.
The early exit option is regarded as embedded derivative not
closely related to the host contract. The board of directors
is of the view that the fair value of this early exit option is
insignificant on initial recognition and as at 31 December
2017

The financial statements of these companies for the year
were not audited by Emst & Young, Hong Kong or another

member firm of the Emst & Young global network.

The English names of these companies represent the best
effort made by the directors of the Company to directly
translate their Chinese names as they do not register any

official English names.

Pursuant to the share transfer agreements entered into
between the Group and these companies’ shareholders
and in accordance with the articles of association and co-
operation agreements of these companies, the Group and
these companies’ shareholders have joint control over these
companies; and the decision about the relevant activities
of these companies requires the unanimous consent of the
Group and these companies’ shareholders. The investments
in these companies are, therefore, treated as investments in

joint ventures of the Group and the equity method is applied.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had outstanding
capital commitments to joint ventures amounting to
RMB858,516,000 (2016: Nil).
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17. AEELENER(E) 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’'D)
(a) EREGELENETBEERE (@) Summarised financial information of
= material joint ventures
HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=t+—HIt Zhuhai Xiangyue, Guangzhou Tingkai, Guangzhou
FE o BEER - BEINES - BN Hongtai and Qingyuan Jinsheng, which are considered
REREBRER(EEABRERN material joint ventures of the Group for the year ended
BAEEDLE )N ZZE—XRF: X8 31 December 2017 (2016: Horizon (Guangzhou)),
(EM)) Tah B A Y 2 R 2 g are property developers in Mainland China and are
A LA A AR © accounted for using the equity method.
TRINREBAEEDLENIEER The following table illustrates the summarised financial
WE  ERestBENTaEEgE information in respect of material joint ventures
AR KRS B HRERMRmE adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
HER - reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements:
b Visz =30 MR BMNESR gl
Zhuhai Guangzhou Guangzhou Qingyuan st
Xiangyue Tingkai Hongtai Jinsheng Total
ZB-tF ZB-tF Bt ZZB-t§f ZE-itF
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
ABEFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BHeMIREZEY Cash and cash equivalents 847,657 19,816 6,446 19 873,938
HitnE & E Other current assets 1,085,775 853,939 1,040,286 2,815,371 5,795,371
MENE A Current assets 1,933,432 873,755 1,046,732  2,815390 6,669,309
EREEE Non-current assets 161 719,148 47,769 947 768,025
EREBSH5E Trade payables (413,575) (58) (192,039) (110,770) (716,442)
HENZIENETZIE  Other payables and accruals (317,999) (516,280) (856,697)  (1,521,600)  (3,212,576)
FEf TR A Tax payable (283,048) - (18,254) - (301,302)
mEBE Current liabilities (1,014,622) (516,338)  (1,066,990)  (1,632,370)  (4,230,320)
BEHEEER Deferred tax liabilities and
FEREBERE non-current liabilities - (775,800) - (613,826)  (1,389,626)
BEFAE Net assets 918,971 300,765 27,511 570,141 1,817,388
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17. EPENERS(E) 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D)
() EXREGELENBHEERE (a) Summarised financial information of
E(E material joint ventures (Cont'd)
b7yisz 3 EMEESL BMNERR petide
Zhuhai Guangzhou Guangzhou Qingyuan @t
Xiangyue Tingkai Hongtai Jinsheng Total
Bt B+t Bt ZB-tF ZZ-tF
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EAEENEELEN Reconciliation to the Group’s
Tk interests in joint ventures:
REEFBREL Proportion of the Group’s
ownership interest 49.00% 90.91% 90.91% 90.00%
[EiEaahEm Share of net assets
BEFE of the joint ventures 450,296 273,425 25,010 513,127 1,261,858
WA Revenue 2,589,202 - - - 2,589,202
RITFIBUA Bank interest income 3,522 351 27,290 72 31,235
& R Depreciation and amortisation (37) (2,991) (43) - (3,071)
FTERiFY Income tax expense (425,658) - (26,851) 714 (451,795)
FEMNBRZEKA Profit and total comprehensive
(F518) 185 income/(loss) for the year 599,692 (8,510) (30,666) (125) 560,391
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17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT'D)

() EXREGELENBBEERE (@) Summarised financial information of
=(&) material joint ventures (Cont'd)
RE(EM)
Horizon (Guangzhou)
—E-RF
2016
ARMTFT
RMB’000
WENIRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 203,951
HimsEE Other current assets 1,397,883
MEVEE Current assets 1,601,834
IERBEE(TREEE) Non-current assets, excluding goodwill 1,752
WEEA &R A TEERNEE Goodwill on acquisition of the joint venture 148,589
BE 5708 Trade payables (40,717)
H b fE < 5018 2 JE AT RIE Other payables and accruals (44,893)
FERI TR Tax payable (49,000)
mERIE Current liabilities (134,610)
EIEHIEAENIERDAEHEAE Deferred tax liabilities and non-current liabilities (385,759)
BEFE Net assets 1,231,806
BEFE(TEERE) Net assets, excluding goodwill 1,083,217
HREEREGERFENERLE Reconciliation to the Group’s interest
in the joint venture:
NEBE AL Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 75%
REBEEEELENEETHE Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture,

(TEEEE) excluding goodwill 812,413
WEEFTEE AR 2 Goodwill on acquisition 148,589
HEREE Carrying amount of the investment 961,002
WA Revenue 765,709
RITHBUA Bank interest income 625
FE R Depreciation and amortisation (527)
s> Income tax expense (36,870)
FEFERZMBALRE Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 120,485
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17. REELENEZR(E) 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D)
(b) EHETERNEEERN (b) Aggregate financial information of joint
BB ER ventures that are not individually material
TRINERETEANARE S The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
BIRRMBMBEAR information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not
individually material:
—E—+tF —ET—RF
2017 2016
AR¥FT ARMFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHEECEFNEE Share of the joint ventures’ losses
for the year (33,363) (13,286)
FEREEREN Share of the joint ventures’ total
> HEERTE comprehensive losses (26,994) (13,286)
AEFREGETDEDN Aggregate carrying amount of the
R BRAEE Group’s interests in joint ventures 3,436,972 1,370,870
REBEHESEDENEBRNERE The Group’s balances with its joint ventures are
SR M 25 I R - disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.
RZB—+FRZT—REF+A At 31 December 2017 and 2016, certain of the
=+—H AEEREERENS Group’s interests in joint ventures were pledged to
Te=2EER - URERTEAE secure the bank loans and borrowings granted to the
ErIRITERRER(HFE31(C) ° Group (note 31(c)).
18. REEE N RIRVER 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
AR¥FT ARMTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB EFE Share of net assets 14,708 386,563
WEEFTEE £ U2 Goodwill on acquisition 20,378 2,089
35,086 388,652
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D)

Particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows:

B
RAESE D

Percentage of equity

CRITLE/ interest attributable
AR EEN AR A to the Group
ity Bk Issued +=A=+—H
Place of ordinary/ 31 December
E4 registration registered Z—T—tf TR TEER
Name and business share capital 2017 2016  Principal activities
BMTERAEREERERAF R E A, RMB 30 30 WEmME
([EMBRAE: PRC/Mainland 11,000,000 Property development
Guangzhou Times Hongwei China ARE
Investment and Development 11,000,0007T
Company Limited *
(“Guangzhou Times Hongwei")*
WEERRIREARAR) FEL R E A RMB 20 - WER%
(ImEBYSE]) PRC/Mainland 20,450,000 Property development

Zhuhai Maiteer Investment China AR

Co., Ltd. * (“Zhuhai Maiteer”) 20,450,0007t

AN FRBREERERAT BB A RMB 20 - MERE
([FREE|)er PRC/Mainland 10,000,000 Property development
Shenzhen Hengli Yingtong China AR
Investment Development Co., Ltd. * 10,000,0007T
(“Hengli Yingtong”) @*

BMEBCIARAR R E At RMB - 49 BUEE
(TEMEZHLT]) o PRC/Mainland 47,089,000 Manufacturing

Guangzhou Huangpu China NG
Chemical Co., Ltd. * 47,089,0007T
(“Guangzhou Huangpu

Chemical’) ®*
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18. MEE RRARER (&)
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D)

Notes:

U]

@

@

The Group acquired a 20% equity interest in Zhuhai Maiteer
from an independent third party at a total consideration of
RMB30,000,000 on 31 July 2017, with which the Group
could exercise significant influence in the strategic financial

and operating policy decisions of the company.

The Group acquired a 20% equity interest in Hengli Yingtong
from an independent third party at a total consideration of
RMB2,000,000 on 30 June 2017, with which the Group
could exercise significant influence in the strategic financial

and operating policy decisions of the company.

The Group previously invested in the associate of Guangzhou
Huangpu Chemical through a subsidiary of Guangzhou
Zichen, On 30 November 2017, the Group entered into a
share transfer agreement to transfer 9.09% equity interest in
Guangzhou Zichen to an independent third party. After the
share transfer, Guangzhou Zichen become a joint venture
of the Group, thus, the Group could no longer exercise
significant influence in the strategic financial and operating

policy decisions of Guangzhou Huangpu Chemical.

The financial statements of these companies for the year
were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another

member firm of the Emst & Young global network.

The English names of these companies represent the best
effort made by the directors of the Company to directly
translate their Chinese names as they do not register any

official English names.
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

BB TS &R - information of the Group’s associates that are not individually
material:
—E—tF —F—R
2017 2016
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB QR FE R Share of the associates’ losses for the year (137) (1,626)
FEIREEE R R R EEE Share of the associates’ total
4aza comprehensive losses (137) (1,626)
REERBE QT ERA Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
AR B interests in associates 35,086 388,652

AREBEEE N RN GRS B R
FRIFE26 HE5E

19. AMEHERE

The Group’s balances with its associates are disclosed in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

—E—tF —Z—X
2017 2016
AR¥TFTT ARMTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JELETESEETE - BAREE Unlisted trust plan, at fair value 220,500 220,500
JELETIRAIRE - LA Unlisted equity investments, at cost* 264,902 326,058
485,402 546,558

. FZEREURARINE - AZERELE
REMSREMR - EERR  R=-F
—tF+-A=+—R0 ZERENR
RBEREASETE - BZSRENH
AR EEL MERERAE -

These investments were stated at cost because the
investments did not have a quoted market price in an active
market. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of such
investments cannot be measured reliably and the underlying
fair values of these investments were not less than the
carrying values of these investments as at 31 December
2017.
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20. EEHEEENRERE 20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FRIEHRIBEE Deferred tax assets

HEHFRENIEEENEHNT The movements in deferred tax assets during the reporting
period are as follows:

JERH A

REMT

NAERHESR

Accruals

Ti#EH  and other

BREE B deductible  EEWA

Tax  Provision temporary  Deferred Hity @it
losses for LAT differences income Others Total
ARBTFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETZ
RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

R-Z—~F—F—H At 1 January 2016 106,421 121,873 48,487 - 1,170 276,951
FARGEERE Credited/(charged) to

SA/ (1) the consolidated

(KrE10) staterent of profit or loss

during the year (note 10) 45,795 36,085 (7,347) - - 74,533

RZZ—"E+-A=+—H At31 December 2016 and

ER=F—+F-A—0  at1Januay2017 151,216 157,058 41,140 - 1170 351,484
e PG Acaisition of subsidiaries

(B3E38() * (0)) (note 38(a),(c)) 12,684 = = - - 12,684
REHERBATF Deemed disposals of

(ME39) subsidiaries (note 39) (49,305) (2,614) (3,734) - - (55,653)
FARGAERE Credited/(charged) to the

VAt consolidated statement of profit or

(MzE10) loss during the year (note 10) 151,365 102,921 (13,564) 240,189 - 480,911
RZE—+F+-A=1+—H At31 December 2017 265,960 258,265 23,842 240,189 1,170 789,426
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20. EEHREBEEREE(E) 20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(CONT'D)
EEHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
WEHREERIBAENERNT The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the reporting

period are as follows:

i
3] WEAR
DREHM RABFHE
MABERE B8
Fair value RE Taxes on
adjustment MEERE undistributed
arising from Revaluation profits of the
acquisition of of investment subsidiaries @t
subsidiaries properties in the PRC Total
ARMTFT ARMTFT ARYMTFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-E—"F—F—H At 1 January 2016 758,657 216,138 49,117 1,018,912
DE NG Acquisition of subsidiaries 2,359 - - 2,359
FARNGEBRER (Credited)/charged to the
(RFA)/ B (BIFE10) consolidated statement of profit
or loss during the year (note 10) (123,477 51,148 26,016 (46,313)
RZE—RF At 31 December 2016 and
+-A=+-8% at 1 January 2017
RZZ—t5—A—H 632,539 267,286 75,133 974,958
WEWB AT Acquisition of subsidiaries
(FHE38() * () (note 38(a),(c)) 523,672 - - 523,672
FRARGAERER(GTA)/  (Credited)/charged to the
M (MzE10) consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year
(note 10) (84,151) 11,555 35,158 (37,438)
R-F—+F+-A=+—H At31 December 2017 1,072,060 278,841 110,291 1,461,192
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20.

ELEHBREERER(E)

EEREEE(E)
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BOZEVINERECESREIEREER
B BHUI0%MNTEIR - ZREE —FTF
NF-A—BRER  @ARE -_ZTTt
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R o
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20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(CONT'D)

Deferred tax liabilities (Cont'd)

The Group had certain tax losses arising in Mainland China
of RMB389,996,759 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB290,696,732), which can be carried forward for a
definite period from the year in which the losses arose for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the application rate
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

No deferred tax has been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of RMB5,707,188,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB4,066,486,000) that are subject to withholding taxes
of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future.



g MiEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—+F+=-"HA=+—8 31 December 2017

21. BEEHYIE 21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
—ZE—tF —E—RF
2017 2016
ARMTFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEEARN T AR A% THY Properties under development
R expected to be recovered:
—FR Within one year 28,690,234 10,457,550
—F1% After one year 15,114,320 18,267,001
43,804,554 28,724,551

22.

23.

AEBEFRABPYRBLNFEAML R
HHEAZNEE T

RZF—EFRZF—AFTZA=1—
A AEEETHRERDRDER TR
REMERA - WEBEE T AREART
BERRER(HFES)

ERTHEHENTE
AEBERRTHELR SO WERTEAN
it - A EIR TR ENMEIRAA
KA S FEME A BIEE I -

R_ZT—tF+-_A=+—8 " #BEBE
B ITHRHENENYEERRTRITIIEME
FA - UEBETFASENRITER G
H(ZE—RF + AR¥256,529,0007T )
(f45E31(0)) °

FEWE 5 =R

ARBHERESFBEERE DEH
& - BHENEOREABEERANE
BEG#EREN - BKESHEARS -

22.

23.

The Group’s properties under development are all located in
Mainland China and situated on leasehold land with long term
leases.

At 31 December 2017 and 20186, certain of the Group’s
properties under development were pledged to banks and
other lenders to secure the bank loans and borrowings
granted to the Group (note 31(c)).

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group’s completed properties held for sale are located
in Mainland China. All completed properties held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

At 31 December 2017, no completed properties held for
sale was pledged to banks and other lenders to secure the
bank loans and borrowings granted to the Group (2016:
RMB256,529,000) (note 31(c)).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trade receivables mainly arise from the sale
of properties. Considerations in respect of the properties
sold are payable by the purchasers in accordance with the
terms of the related sale and purchase agreements. Trade
receivables are interest-free.
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23. EWE ZFIE(E) 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONT'D)
REHARFEWE T IEERB ST An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of

the reporting period is as follows:

22—t —E-RF
2017 2016
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=EAR Within 3 months 2,522,264 1,550,171
N EE! 4 to 6 months 106,772 190,162
+Z&=+ @R 7 to 12 months 88,515 382,971
—E% Over 1 year 535,805 455,258
3,253,356 2,578,562
KRB EN—TE—RNE+_A=1+— The balances of the trade receivables as at 31 December
HEEINE 5 IE4 R R EE - TR 2017 and 2016 were neither past due nor impaired and
B BHEZEZFXATAEANRELER - related to a large number of diversified customers for whom
MiZER Pl B E: o there was no recent history of default.

24. FANFHIE - ZERHMmEY 24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

MIE RECEIVABLES
—E—tHF —E—RF
2017 2016
AR¥TFTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
%4 N H b fE Y zkE Deposits and other receivables 10,285,376 5,454,583
FEfT b E FE Prepayments for leasehold land 3,244,781 3,679,234
HipFEf I8 Other prepayments 1,826,471 2.177,808
15,356,628 11,311,625
BN 5 Current portion 14,423,860 9,604,119
JEBNERER Non-current portion 932,768 1,707,506
15,356,628 17,817 625
FERRIE -~ e R E A E W IR T E IR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are unsecured,
- TEE - BRBETEENRER - interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
TEAT -t 70 & SR IA$5 3L IE 72 A 55 T A Prepayments for leasehold land represent the prepayments
MRS T TR A - for leasehold land with the application of land use right

certificates in progress.
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25. B EAEELENTKIE 25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT

VENTURES
—E—+F ZE—RF
2017 2016
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERE &R Due from joint ventures:
—BIRIPE — Qingyuan Jinsheng 1,516,980 -
—BMNER — Guangzhou Zichen 1,074,871 _
—EINEESL — Guangzhou Tingkai 480,450 -
—Fes — Zhongshan Jinsha 415,469 -
— LFIiRfE — Jiangmen Yinyan 295,000 -
—BEINEZE — Guangzhou Hongtai 262,278 -
— ENE — Guangzhou Longya 260,597
—RiE — Angel Smooth 222,447 -
—EINAKE — Guangzhou Daye 222,055 -
—EMNEs - Guangzhou Fengding 100,049 100,000
— Rk E — Shenzhen Yihao Cang 77,755 293,149
— BRI IE — Fogang Songfeng 32,215 -
—EMNEB - Guangzhou Xingsheng 25,000 -
—ENIE® — Guangzhou Jingjun = 256,091
—EMNEA — Guangzhou Yungu = 9,221
—X#B(EM) — Horizon (Guangzhou) - 132
4,985,166 658,593
ERAEECEMNFEBNERT - 28 B The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, interest-
AR ESREFUE o 3% FE Uk FIBEHL KB B free and receivable on demand. These receivables are neither
SORIE ° past due nor impaired.
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25. FEW FENEEEMNFE  25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT

(%) VENTURES (CONT'D)
22—t —F—R
2017 2016
AR¥TFTT ARMFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEERE Due to joint ventures:
—BRIPE - Qingyuan Jinsheng 1,623,990 -
—EMNE% - Guangzhou Jingjun 822,879 28,970
—EINEZR - Guangzhou Hongtai 632,876 -
— B — Zhuhai Xiangyue 425,967 63,367
—EINEESL - Guangzhou Tingkai 313,635 -
—EMNER — Guangzhou Zichen 301,665 -
—BEMKRE - Guangzhou Daye 15,450 _
— RRAMAIE - Fogang Songfeng 11,490 -
—BEMNEA — Guangzhou Yungu 5,254 -
—EMNEE — Guangzhou Longya 2,000 -
—RiE — Angel Smooth 100 -
4,155,306 92,337
ENELCENTENEERT 28 A The amounts due to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-
REREEE - free and repayable on demand.
26. FEUREEE N BIRIRRIE 26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES
—E—+tF —T—X
2017 2016
AREFTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWEsE = A A Due from associates:
— BN AT AT - Guangzhou Times Hongwei 462,810 421,610
—=H &R — Hengli Yingtong 3,000 =
—EMERH{ET — Guangzhou Huangpu Chemical - 37
465,810 421,647
FEWEt S AR I - a2 0 B The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-
REKEEZ - EUEE A5 A FIEMER free and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the
H&BEEIERAREE - ZFEBGRIER amounts due from associates approximate to their fair values.
RiBEAZORE © These receivables are neither past due nor impaired.
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27. FEHHIENAPIE 27. TAX PREPAYMENTS/TAX PAYABLE
(a) FEHBK (a) Tax prepayments
Bt T RF
2017 2016
AR¥TT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEGDETER Prepaid CIT 163,297 106,520
TES A I (E R Prepaid LAT 640,928 433,425
804,225 539,945
(b) ENHE (b) Tax payable
5 —T—RHF
2017 2016
AR¥TT AEBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FER IS EEFTER CIT payable 1,183,302 818,367
FE T3 E R LAT payable 1,033,058 631,830
2,216,360 1,450,197
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28. BERBAESEFEBYURZR
HERITEK

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

—E—+tF —ZE-RF
2017 2016
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Be MIRTT4E Cash and bank balances 17,206,756 11,880,744
B ZRBIRTTE R (FRE(a) Less: Restricted bank deposits (note (a)) (2,943,774) (2,958,017)
B4 RIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14,262,982 8,922,727
AR EHE (M3ED)) Denominated in RMB (note (o)) 13,461,561 8,907,374
A i EEEEHE Denominated in other currencies 801,421 15,353
14,262,982 8,922,727
et - Notes:
(@) RIEFERRES - NEERNE TS @) Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, certain

FEARIENEERITELR TR —T
SR WTEESHIE - LS
BoRZE—tFF+ZA=+—0H %
LX B HIR S A ARYE2,414,369,000
T(ZZ—RF : AR¥2,335,303,000
TT) e

R-EB—+F+-A=+—HAELEEA
R #420,969,00070 ( ZF — /R 4F © A
R #546,318,0007T ) B Z R Hl R 17 7F
FIERIRITIEEMEITIRP A E KT
BIE - AEGERITIER - HREE
AZZREBRITER - SEEARE
108,436,000 L (Z T —~fF : AR
76,396,0007T ) B Tl 84 52 R 1 $R1T 17 3
EEZATHER -

ARBEAA AR BKEMEY - (&
2 ARIE AR BB AR B0 SN I
BEROER - NEBREE BERER
RINER HEBHIRTT - AR LK
PRE & o

FRRRITHR S RIBRITE A FHRAM R
BFBNERBABRA - RERBEE
B AR RS SRITEROMRE S BRZI
HERREE - |RITEREIRHRITER

B RN R K042 B S BRI
7o
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property development companies of the Group are required
to place certain amounts of pre-sale proceeds received
in designated bank accounts for specific uses. As at
31 December 2017, such restricted cash amounted to
RMB2,414,369,000 (2016: RMB2,335,303,000).

The restricted bank deposits as at 31 December 2017
amounting to RMB420,969,000 (2016: RMB546,318,000)
represented the loan proceeds in the monitoring accounts
designated by the banks, where the use of the restricted
bank deposits is subject to the banks’ approval. The
remaining restricted bank deposits amounting to
RMB108,436,000 (2016: RMB76,396,000) were primarily
time deposits.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, subject to the relevant rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest income at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents and the restricted bank deposits
approximate to their fair values. The bank balances and
restricted bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.
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29. EHESREREE 29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
HPNBEEHIRREHRENE FHE R An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
EHRMERER T ¢ end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:
—E—+tF T -RF
2017 2016
ARETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 3,157,584 2,351,123
—Fi% Over one year 679,548 844,720
3,837,132 3,195,843
ERESRBERERVERR T8 - The trade and bills payables are unsecured, interest-free and
BRIEBEEBIAANINEREEE - repayable within the normal operating cycle or on demand.
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—E—+F+=-HA=+—08 31 December 2017

30. HtENSFIERESFRIE 30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
—EB—4F —E—RF
2017 2016
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
DL & R IEW R IE Deposits received and receipts in advance 20,193,387 16,631,587
FEERIB R B EfT A (Mizka)  Accruals and other payables (note (a)) 4,158,563 3,410,699
UR BB N B FE T 5108 Payables for acquisition of subsidiaries 254,355 527,263
FERTFI B Interest payable 572,831 557,700

MIFEIEARAS SR S M E A e FIE  Other payables to non-controlling
(Mf3ED) shareholders (note (b)) 3,295,263 5,256,324
28,474,399 26,383,573
KBiaz - Notes:

(@) RZZE—RF - sTABTRIEREM
ERRIBHETHMEMNREBEARE
52,615,000 TR P W B BN (E#E © 1RBE
ferEEE RS - FRREN—B5 K
S E B ABMERTIZK T B EEER
155 T Y LA E T EMNERRAT
IR - BAEER2EHEYMENTE
Mmat e o« WERMNFIEN QAR BEZS)
REREBERET A R
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Certain other payables included in accruals and other
payables amounting to RMB52,615,000 derived from the
acquisition of Guangzhou Jiayu in 2015. Pursuant to the
equity transfer agreements, as part of the consideration,
the Group has committed to lease or sell certain properties
to the former shareholders of Guangzhou Jiayu at a below-
market fixed price. Such obligation is measured by reference
to the market price of the associated properties. Changes in
the fair values of these payables are credited/charged to the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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30. HAifEFIER EFTRIE 30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
4 /4

(##) (CONT'D)

Bist - (48) Notes: (Cont’d)

(o) RZE—+tFRZZT—RF+ZA (o) Details of other payables to non-controlling shareholders as
=+—H - mIEERBERZ SO EmE at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are set out by subsidiaries as
NRIBR ISR B A& AT follows:

—E—+tF ZERF

2017 2016

ARMTFT ARMFor

RMB’000 RMB’000

bl e Foshan Hongyu 1,550,689 1,587,827
WERE Zhuhai Changxin - 876,000
&N R HT Guangzhou Tiansi 17,625 497,625
N Guangzhou Fusi - 400,000
EEriS Dongguan Yujing - 370,000
BN Guangzhou Kuntai - 300,000
BEINAEOE Guangzhou Chengze 30,000 30,000
EIMNER Guangzhou Junhao 9,600 9,600
EINENEE Guangzhou Kaijun - 1,070,000
bl 28 Foshan Xinglanwan 52,494 52,494
BN Guangzhou Nanying 62,778 62,778
EN R Guangzhou Aoju 1,077,000 -
EREZE Guangdong Yingzhihuang 2,527 -
= EEsEl Huizhou Nankai 5,136 -
WeRE Zhuhai Shengjia 2,114 -
IR TF Foshan Tianyu 485,300 -
3,295,263 5,256,324

4 A E ST TR B B A B JE T IR A% BE M 2= The balances represent amounts due to non-controlling

I8 REAERTVER - B RIRER(E shareholders of the subsidiaries which are unsecured,

= o interest-free and repayable on demand.
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31. FFERITEMRRHEAMMER 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS
—E-tE —TREF
2017 2016
BEFIE EEFIE
Effective g0 28 Effective FIE 2l
interest rate Maturity Amount interest rate Maturity Amount
% AREFT % ANEETFT
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ENH Current
RITET— mILiH Bank loans - unsecured 4.8 2018 230,000 6.0-6.7 2017 248,410
BITET—BEA Bank loans - secured 5.2-8.0 2018 699,000 6.4-8.9 2017 213,898
HEiEg—HER Other borrowings - secured 7.0 2018 100,000 - - -
Hipfss— &K E Other borrowings — unsecured 7.2 2018 20,000 - - -
BEEE-BHEF Senior notes - secured
(BEE(H) (note () - - - 11.2 2017 1,493,766
REES (M) Corporate bonds (note (g)) 7.0-8.2 2018 4,981,011 - - -
6,030,011 1,956,074
JERNER Non-current
BITER— BT Bank loans - unsecured 4457 2019-2022 6,292,684 4964 20182020 2,547,856
BITET—BEA Bank loans - secured 48-49 2019-2026 4,859,312 49-81 2018-2026 3,893,509
HibfE g —2ER Other borrowings — unsecured 7.2-74 2019 64,000 - - -
Hip g —H i Other borrowings - secured 6.4-8.6 2019-2020 2,423,719 6.4 2019 144,000
BEEE-BHA Senior notes - secured
(P 7E®) (note (f)) 6.1-12.2 2019-2023 7,569,995 12.2-135  2019-2020 3,996,498
SREER (M) Syndicated loan (note (n)) 4.7-5.2 2020 1,506,085 - - -
NEIEH (M) Corporate bonds (note (g)) 8.2-9.1 2019-2022 4,543,281 7.0-8.2 2018-2020 7,950,605
27,259,076 18,532,468
33,289,087 20,488,542
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31. FFERITEMRRHEAMMER 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
(&) OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D)
—E—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
AR FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
DT Analysed into:
JEERIRTTER Bank loans repayable:
—FR Within one year 929,000 462,308
FF In the second year 3,436,397 3,309,256
E=ZFERF(AZERWF) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 7,466,835 2,859,074
BEAF Beyond five years 248,764 273,035
12,080,996 6,903,673
EiEEEER(BIEELREE - Other borrowings (including senior notes,
NEEEMEEER) ¢ corporate bonds and a syndicated loan)
repayable:
—FR Within one year 5,101,011 1,493,766
F-F In the second year 4,270,016 2,984,983
FoRETE(BEEEME) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 9,919,741 9,106,120
BiBRE Beyond five years 1,917,323 -
21,208,091 13,584,869
33,289,087 20,488,542
Kiat - Notes:
(@) N-ZE—+&F+-_A=+—H KBe=m (@) As at 31 December 2017, except for certain current bank
A AR%829,000,0007T( = E—~4F : loans and other borrowings amounting to RMB829,000,000
A R #346,308,0007T ) & Fim 8k (2016: RMB346,308,000) and non-current bank loans
TEZREMEZIARSTE A AR and other borrowings amounting to RMB12,988,082,000
12,088,082,0007C( —ZE—KF : AR (2016: RMB5,541,927,000), both bearing interest at floating
#55 541,927,0007T ) B FEENHASR 1T B =% rates, all the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans and other
BEMEZSUEBF R BN 0 AEF borrowings bear interest at fixed rates.
Fr A & BARTTE 0 R H Ath (8 XA 2 F
8
(b) R—_E—+F+—_A=+—H " Ke (o) As at 31 December 2017, except for certain senior

A ARE7569,995,0007T( —F—X
. AR#3,996,498,0007T) HE TE
EEBUET([ER]FE - 28R
AR#1,300,010,0007T( ZF — <% :
) & AR #206,075,0007T( ZZF — X
F: EmINREERSD BIAET KRBT
(IBTDFHESN - AEERIRE ERA
AT RIRITERREAETAARE
FTE °

notes amounting to RMB7,569,995,000 (2016:
RMBS3,996,498,000) denominated in United States dollars
(“USD”), syndicated loan amounting to RMB1,300,010,000
(2016: Nil) denominated in USD and RMB206,075,000 (2016:
Nil) denominated in Hong Kong dollars (‘HKD”) respectively,
all the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings were denominated in RMB as at the end of the
reporting period.
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31. FFERITERREMMER 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
(%) OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)
Hist - (#&) Notes: (Cont’d)
(© RIEHR  KEBMNETEED KM (© At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group'’s
FERITREMERA - UEEETFARE assets were pledged to banks and other lenders for securing
Eist RIRITERREMER the interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings
granted to the Group.
ZEEEMNREES The carrying values of these assets are:
—E—+F ZE—RF
2017 2016
i3 AR¥FT ARMFr
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EME Investment properties 15 726,884 1,598,076
RE BT ENER Interests in joint ventures 17 949,464 325,187
ErhyyE Properties under development 21 4,811,791 3,694,391
ME - BENR Property, plant and equipment 13 368,419 476,689
B THEH ST Completed properties held for sale 22 - 256,529
FE LA E B Prepaid land lease payments 14 946,149 17,922
7,802,707 6,368,794
() RZZT—+tF+=ZA=+—H ' K& () At 31 December 2017, a 100% equity interest in Changsha
E & A ARYS,296,207,0000T(=F Meiguiyuan, a 50% equity interest in Qingyuan Heshun Real
—/"F : AR#621,700,0007T) #E T Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Qingyuan Heshun’), a
BRI UARDBIEREH100% A - )5 100% equity interest in Foshan Baiyingda, a 100% equity
EMAIBEHERZEERAR(EREE interest in Guangzhou Libaijia, a 100% equity interest in
JIE 1) BI50% AR #E -~ #8111 H & EHI100% Guangzhou Lifeng, a 80% equity interest in Huizhou Nankai,
f&HE - BMEBAZAI100%AR%E - EIM a 80% equity interest in Guangdong Yingzhihuang, a 100%
F& 8 100% A% 1 « BN L HI80% A% equity interest in Huizhou Ruiyu, a 100% equity interest in
T BRI Z2M80%MAE « HHE Qingyuan Xilong, and a 12.48% equity interest in Dongguan
HI100% A% 4 « /&R = BEAY100% AR AE A Kaiye, where these entities are the subsidiaries of the
MR EM12.48% % (ZEEEEY Group, were pledged as securities for certain of the Group’s
AAREEKB AR IESER - borrowings with an aggregate amount of RMB3,296,207,000

(2016: RMB621,700,000).

) RZZ—tF+=RA=+—8 ' @55 (e) At 31 December 2017, a 51.15% equity interest in the joint
B A& A R ¥ 375,210,000 (= F — 7~ venture of Zhongshan Jinsha. and a 52% equity interest
F ) Rk AR¥375,000,000(=F in the joint venture of Guangzhou Fengding, were pledged
— N ¢ AR#27,800,0007T) & F as securities for certain of the Group’s borrowings with
AEEBEFAFLEIREELERN aggregate amounts of RMB375,210,000 (2016: Nil) and
5116%EREMERNEELEN RMB375,000,000 (2016: RMB27,800,000), respectively.

52% IR EVE AR -
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31.

sTERITERR HALE R
(&)

Hiet - (%)
() BRER

[0} T NFHHM12.625%F
Ef&?ﬁﬁﬁ

RZT—WME=A=+—
B ARAREBALEN
99278% EHITHR =T — 1L F
E Hi A & 8 A 225,000,000
EX(HERHARE
1,383,188,000 7t ) HJ 12.625%
BEZEB(IZE—NF=A
BAEHE]) - RNZT—MOF
AAZAH ARAFREER
© # B 100.125% %8 Hp 3 17
RZE—NFRHBEAGEA
80,000,000 7T (HHER AR
& 492,640,000 7T ) #)12.625%
BEER(=ZZ2-—NFRAE

Zgl) - —T—WE=AE
FEBER T — @iﬁﬂfﬁf‘ﬁ
ZREUHERE— R - FiF
,ﬁ:g—nﬁﬂ%Wmsx%
ERBEEREE] - —T—NF5H
H1#912.625% E TU1E K ZIHER
BT Em WH-F—F
ZAZ+—A(REZA) B
12.625% K FFIEEE - ¥
FRfF—k -

RARAEENEAERE - 1%
A S5 70 BT BE (2] 4K & %8 100% 5
MEAEBENELEE  BE2
HmIEFH —T—NF D
12.625%F LB A RE - AR
BINAEEE_E-NE=A
—+—BERHAMMETERE
HERES TRk ERE
Bl —Z— A FHH#r)12.625%
ETTBRTIR -

31.

R EE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—+F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2017

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

Notes: (Cont’d)
) Senior notes

0] USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019

On 21 March 2014, the Company issued 12.625%
senior notes due 2019 in a principal amount of
USD225,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB1,383,188,000) at 99.278% of the principal
amount of such notes (the “Senior Notes March
2014”). On 2 May 2014, the Company issued
additional 12.625% senior notes due 2019 in a
principal amount of USD80,000,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB492,640,000) at 100.125% of
the principal amount of such notes (the “Senior
Notes May 2014”). The Senior Notes March 2014
and the Senior Notes May 2014 were consolidated
to form a single series which is referred to as the
“USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019”. The USD
12.625% Senior Notes due 2019 are listed on the
SEHK and bear interest from and including 21 March
2014 at the rate of 12.625% per annum, payable
semi-annually in arrears.

At any time, the Company may at its option redeem
the USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019, in whole
but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100%
of the principal amount redeemed plus the applicable
premium. The USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019
are also redeemable at the option of the Company
at certain predetermined prices in certain specific
periods prior to the maturity date of 21 March 2019.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 267



B R M 5E NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—+F+=-HA=+—08 31 December 2017

31. FFERITERREMMER 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
(#8) OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D)
et - (4&) Notes: (Cont’d)
i BEEERE) ) Senior notes (Cont’d)
(i) T NFHEH12.625%% 0} USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019 (Cont’d)
TLEAERIR(E)
R-_ZE—+F=A=-+—8" On 21 March 2017, the Company redeemed an
78 » 7] DA BE 8] B 343,507,775 aggregate principal amount of USD305,000,000 of
En HERZSEEBALEE all of the outstanding USD 12.625% Senior Notes
106.313% & = & Bl B #H /9 due 2019 at a redemption price of USD343,507,775,
FERTRANMFIE - BEERRN which equals to 106.313% of the principal amount
—E-NFIHRASEES of such notes plus accrued and unpaid interest to
305,000,000 2 7T £ 1% 7 & [2] the redemption date.

12.625% B 21k -

(ii) —E—tFEHM10.375% A (ii) RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017

REELEE

RZTE—WmFLA+HB &K On 16 July 2014, the Company issued 10.375%
NEREBR R © EA100% % senior notes due 2017 in a principal amount of
TR-ZZE—tFHBAEE RMB900,000,000 at 100% of the principal amount
% A A R 900,000,000 7T K of such notes (the “Senior Notes July 2014”). On
10.375% B ARB(=ZF—H 14 October 2014, the Company issued additional
FLtRABEREE]) - R_Z 10.375% senior notes due 2017 in a principal
—ME+A+MEA - KRAAE amount of RMB600,000,000 at 100.125% of the
Z KN 4 58 /9 100.125% %8 Jb principal amount of such notes (the “Senior Notes
BIRZZE—tFIHLreR October 2014"). The Senior Notes July 2014 and
% & A R ¥ 600,000,000 7T K the Senior Notes October 2014 were consolidated
10.375% B A BB (=2 —H to form a single series which is referred to as the
F+ABERE] - —F—NW “RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017”. The RMB
FrAELEBRE_T—JUF 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017 are listed on the
THAERAERBAHEARE—R SEHK and bear interest from and including 16 July
5 A —E—LFIHN 2014 at the rate of 10.375% per annum, payable
10.375% ARBEEBERE] - = semi-annually in arrears.

T — - FH|EI10.375% A R
W0 S BT b 3
=B —ma+ AR (B
% 0) LA 10.375%H) 4 F = 51
B BLEFN—K -

ANAB A ERRN MR @ 17 At any time, the Company may at its option redeem
MEERFTIER AN & % 100% 5 the RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017, in
MERGEMNELE BEOx whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal
M D —_E—+FHHH to 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus
10.375% A REB L ZHE - K the applicable premium. The RMB 10.375% Senior
ARNMAERBE T —tF Notes due 2017 are also redeemable at the option
A+ BEHBRNETHEE of the Company at certain predetermined prices in
HEAEE THELEEERE certain specific periods prior to the maturity date of
O —=F—tF 3 HH10.375% 16 July 2017.

AREEBREZE -

268 ERTEZERAMRALT 2017 FERE



31.

HERTERR LR

(&)

Hist - (%)

()

BEERE)

(i)

(i)

ZZE—+FEHAY10.375% A
REBEZE(E)

RZZE—+&F+tA+x8"
NAGLLEREARE
1,577,173,5007T * HE R #ZE
ZIR AL FE100% N = 2 H
HHIR ST RARMNFIE - BE
EER Tt FEHBHASR
%8 5 A R #1,500,000,000 7T 9
10.375% B LK -

ZE T FEHIM11.450% 3%
TTREZE

RZZE—RAF=ZAFR AR
AR B IR A #E /9 99.350% B
TRZZEZZFENHASE
/£ 280,000,000 % 7T (10 & R
4 AR ¥#1,722,784,0007T ) K
11.450% B A ZH([ZB=F
FEHMW11.450% £ T B &
EE]) —E-FTFIHHY
11.450% 3 TU B 5t Z R N B
FrEm - ¥B=-ZE—RF=AH
A H(BEZBE)®ELA11.450%
RMEF KB BEFIAH—

S
IN °

AR R A EBRNMEREERE - 1%
HERFTIE R AN £ 5 100% 5
MBEAREMNERE  BEa
MDD T - TF RN
11.450% X LB A EE - XA
RINMAEEBEE T _TF=A
BB ERRTAE T8 B
WIRETHREREERERDR =
T T FEHM11.450% % 7T
BEER -

g MiEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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—ZE—+F+=-"HA=+—8 31 December 2017

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

Notes: (Cont’d)
(f) Senior notes (Cont’d)

(ii) RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017 (Cont’d)

On 16 July 2017, the Company fully redeemed an
aggregate principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000
of the RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017 at
a redemption price of RMB1,577,173,500, which
equals to 100% of the principal amount of such
notes plus the accrued and unpaid interest to the
due date.

(iii) USD 11.450% Senior Notes due 2020

On 5 March 2015, the Company issued 11.450%
senior notes due 2020 in a principal amount of
USD280,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB1,722,784,000) at 99.350% of the principal
amount of such notes (the “USD 11.450% Senior
Notes due 2020”). The USD 11.450% Senior
Notes due 2020 are listed on the SEHK and bear
interest from and including 5 March 2015 at the rate
of 11.450% per annum, payable semi-annually in

arrears.

At any time, the Company may at its option redeem
the USD 11.450% Senior Notes due 2020, in whole
but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100%
of the principal amount redeemed plus the applicable
premium. The USD 11.450% Senior Notes due 2020
are also redeemable at the option of the Company
at certain predetermined prices in certain specific
periods prior to the maturity date of 5 March 2020.
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31.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

Notes: (Cont’d)
) Senior notes (Cont’d)

(iv) USD 6.250% Senior Notes due 2020

On 23 January 2017, the Company issued 6.250%
senior notes due 2020 in a principal amount of
USD375,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB2,571,450,000) at 100% of the principal amount
of such notes (the “USD 6.250% Senior Notes due
2020"). The USD 6.250% Senior Notes due 2020
are listed on the SEHK and bear interest from and
including 23 January 2017 at the rate of 6.250% per

annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.

At any time prior to 23 January 2019, the Company
may at its option redeem the USD 6.250% Senior
Notes due 2020, in whole but not in part, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal
amount redeemed plus the applicable premium. At
any time on or after 23 January 2019, the Company
may redeem the USD 6.250% Senior Notes due
2020, in whole or in part, at a redemption price
equal to 102.0% of the principal amount redeemed.
The Company may also redeem up to 35% of the
aggregate principal amount of the USD 6.250%
Senior Notes due 2020 with the net cash proceeds
of one or more sales of common stock of the
Company in an equity offering at a redemption price
equal to 106.25% of the principal amount redeemed
at any time prior to the maturity date of 23 January
2020.
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R EE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—+F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2017

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

Notes: (Cont’d)
) Senior notes (Cont’d)

(v) USD 5.750% Senior Notes due 2022

On 26 April 2017, the Company issued 5.750%
senior notes due 2022 in a principal amount of
USD225,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB1,549,013,000) at 100% of the principal amount
of such notes (the “USD 5.750% Senior Notes due
2022”). The USD 5.750% Senior Notes due 2022
are listed on the SEHK and bear interest from and
including 26 April 2017 at the rate of 5.750% per

annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.

At any time prior to 26 April 2020, the Company
may at its option redeem the USD 5.750% Senior
Notes due 2022, in whole but not in part, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal
amount redeemed plus the applicable premium. At
any time on or after 26 April 2020, the Company
may redeem the USD 5.750% Senior Notes due
2022, in whole or in part, at a redemption price
equal to certain percentage of the principal amount
redeemed. The Company may also redeem up to
35% of the aggregate principal amount of the USD
5.750% Senior Notes due 2022 with the net cash
proceeds of one or more sales of common stock of
the Company in an equity offering at a redemption
price of 105.75% of the principal amount redeemed
at any time prior to the maturity date of 26 April
2022.
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31.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

Notes: (Cont’d)
) Senior notes (Cont’d)

(Vi) USD 6.600% Senior Notes due 2023

On 30 November 2017, the Company issued
6.600% senior notes due 2023 in a principal amount
of USD300,000,000 (approximately equivalent
to RMB1,981,020,000) at 100% of the principal
amount of such notes (the “USD 6.600% Senior
Notes due 2023"). The USD 6.600% Senior Notes
due 2023 are listed on the SEHK and bear interest
from and including 30 November 2017 at the rate
of 6.600% per annum, payable semi-annually in

arrears.

At any time prior to 30 November 2020, the
Company may at its option redeem the USD 6.600%
Senior Notes due 2023, in whole but not in part, at
a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal
amount redeemed plus the applicable premium.
At any time on or after 30 November 2020, the
Company may redeem the USD 6.600% Senior
Notes due 2023, in whole or in part, at a redemption
price equal to certain percentage of the principal
amount redeemed. The Company may also redeem
up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the
USD 6.600% Senior Notes due 2023 with the net
cash proceeds of one or more sales of common
stock of the Company in an equity offering at a
redemption price of 106.6% of the principal amount
redeemed at any time prior to the maturity date of 2
March 2023.
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31. FFERITERKRHEMER 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
(48) OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)
BiatE - (&) Notes: (Cont’d)
() BRER(E) ) Senior notes (Cont’d)
RERA SRR ERNELZRBFEDR The senior notes recognised in the consolidated financial
™~ statements are calculated as follows:

ZE-NF CBR-tE ZR2%EF 0 ZRIRF R CBCZE
HEM12.625% HHMN10.975% FIEM11.450% EIEIR96.250%  EIEEM5.750%  EIH#96.600%
AnBEAEE ARMEXRE ZnBARE  ZABARE  EnBREE  EnB%RE
USD12.625% RMB10.375% USD11.450%  USD6.250%  USD5.750%  USD 6.600%
Senior Notes  Senior Notes ~ Senior Notes  Senior Notes ~ Senior Notes ~ Senior Notes @t
due 2019 due 2017 due 2020 due 2020 due 2022 due 2023 Total
ARETE  AREFZ  AREFR  AREFR  ARETT  ARETT  AREFZ
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

W-ZE—E—-A—RHEEE  Caryingamount as at 1 January 2016 1,939,255 1,483,097 1,778,017 - - - 5,200,369
FETH Interest charged 267,192 166,294 221,345 - - - 654,831
BRFSREALENTE Interest paid and interest payable

RIEHBMENFIS included in other payables and accruals (255,797) (155,625) (212,974) - - - (624,396)
[E3aE S Exchange realignment 185,407 - 124,053 - - - 259,460
RZB-ETZR=1-H Carrying amount as at 31 December 2016

R=Z—+E-F-BHEAE  and 1 January 2017 2,086,057 1,493,766 1,910,441 - - - 5,490,264
ERET Issuance during the year - - - 2,571,450 1,549,013 1,981,020 6,101,483
RHMAE Transaction costs - - - (44,473) (23,765) (34,986) (103,224)
flegit Interest charged 89,989 90,228 226,239 161,180 62,453 11,900 641,989
BAFS R AL R FIE Interest paid and interest payable

RESBNERTIE included in other payables and acoruals (58,104) (83,994) (216,656) (149,057) (59,524) (12,205) (579,540)
el Redemption (2,100,291) (1,500,000) - - - - (3,600,291)
EiBE Exchange realignment (17,651) - (121,364) (129,514) (83,750) (28,407) (380,686)
R=Z—+&+-A=1-A Carrying amount as at 31 December 2017

ikl = - - 1,798,660 2,409,586 1,444,427 1,917,322 7,569,995
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31.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

Notes: (Cont’d)

)

Senior notes (Cont’d)

The senior notes are jointly and severally guaranteed by
certain subsidiaries of the Group which are incorporated
outside the PRC (“Subsidiary Guarantors”) and are
secured by the pledge of certain shares of such Subsidiary
Guarantors.

The effective interest rates of the USD 12.625% Senior
Notes due 2019, the RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due
2017, the USD 11.450% Senior Notes due 2020, the USD
6.250% Senior Notes due 2020,the USD 5.750% Senior
Notes due 2022 and the USD 6.600% Senior Notes due
2023 are 13.5%, 11.2%, 12.2%, 6.90%, 6.12% and 6.98%,
respectively.

Corporate bonds

On 15 July 2015, Guangzhou Times, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company established in the PRC,
issued domestic corporate bonds at a par value of
RMB2,000,000,000 in the PRC (the “RMB 6.75%
Corporate Bonds due 2020"). The RMB 6.75% Corporate
Bonds due 2020 will mature in five years from the issue date.
Upon the third anniversary of the issue date, Guangzhou
Times shall be entitled to increase the coupon rate and
the bond holders shall be entitled to sell back the whole or
part of RMB 6.75% Corporate Bonds due 2020 at par. The
RMB 6.75% Corporate Bonds due 2020 are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “SSE”) and bear interest at
the rate of 6.75% per annum, payable annually in arrears.

On 26 October 2015, Guangzhou Times issued non-
public domestic corporate bonds at a par value of
RMBS3,000,000,000 in the PRC with a term of three years
at the coupon rate of 7.85% per annum (the “RMB 7.85%
Corporate Bonds due 2018”). The RMB 7.85% Corporate
Bonds due 2018 are non-guaranteed and are listed on the
SSE.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

Notes: (Cont’d)

©)

On 18
public

Corporate bonds (Cont’d)

January 2016, Guangzhou Times issued non-

domestic corporate bonds at a par value of

RMB3,000,000,000 in the PRC with a term of three years
at the coupon rate of 7.88% per annum (the “RMB 7.88%

Corporate Bonds due 2019”), with the option to redeem by

Guangzhou Times at the end of the second year. The RMB

7.88%

Corporate Bonds due 2019 are non-guaranteed and

are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

On 8 September 2017, Guangzhou Times issued non-

public

domestic corporate bonds at a par value of

RMB1,100,000,000 in the PRC with a term of five years at
the coupon rate of 8.20% per annum (the “RMB 8.20%
Corporate Bonds due 2022"), with the option to redeem
by Guangzhou Times at the end of the third year. The RMB

8.20%

Corporate Bonds due 2022 are non-guaranteed and

are listed on the SSE.

On 8 September 2017, Guangzhou Times issued non-

public

domestic corporate bonds at a par value of

RMB500,000,000 in the PRC with a term of three years at
the coupon rate of 7.75% per annum (the “RMB 7.75%

Corporate Bonds due 2020”), with the option to redeem by

Guangzhou Times at the end of the second year. The RMB

7.75%

Corporate Bonds due 2020 are non-guaranteed and

are listed on the SSE.
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31. FFERITERREMMER 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
(&) OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D)
Hist - (#&) Notes: (Cont’d)
@) NREH(E) @) Corporate bonds (Cont’d)
RERA IR RERN R BIESFEN The corporate bonds recognised in the consolidated financial
N statements are calculated as follows:
CECRENEN CI-NENEMG CE-NFIEN C2oCENEN CToRENE
6.75% 7.85% 7.88% 8.20% 1.15%
ARBLAAES ARBLAES ARMAREZ ARBLAESF ARELAES
RMB 6.75% RMB 7.85% RMB 7.88% RMB 8.20% RMB 7.75%
Corporate Corporate Corporate Corporate Corporate Ehy
Bonds due 2020  Bonds due 2018  Bonds due 2019  Bonds due 2022  Bonds due 2020 Total
AREFR AREFR ARKTT ARKTT ARETT ARKTR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZE-~E-A-ANEEE Carrying amount as at 1 January 2016 1,977,647 2978018 - - - 4,955,665
FREELT Issuance during the year - - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
PR Transaction costs - - (24,890) - - (24,890)
MEXH Interest charged 140,684 245,800 233,176 - - 619,660
BAFIE R AL ERTER Interest paid and Interest payable included
[EtEUBHERTIS in other payables and accruals (135,606) (238,834) (225,390) - - (599,830)
RoE-AF+-F=+-BEk Canying amount s at 31 December 2016
“E-t¥-A-BNEEE and 1 January 2017 1,982,725 2,984,984 2,982,896 - - 7,950,605
FRBET Issuance during the year - - - 1,100,000 500,000 1,600,000
SRR Transaction costs - - - (34,103) (15,502) (49,605)
A Interest charged 139,665 244,137 244,981 28,589 12447 669,819
BAFIE Rt AL tERFER Interest paid and Interest payable included
[E:F AR ERTFIS in other payables and accruals (135,000) (235,500) (285,752) (28,172 (12,108) (646,527)
RZE—+F+-A=+—HMHEAE Camying amount as at 31 December 2017 1,987,390 2,993,621 2,992,125 1,066,314 484,842 9,524,292

—E-TFHHMN6.75% ARB A RE
5 - \FHHNT7.85% ARE R
AlfES « T —NFHHM7.88% AR
BRRIES - —F - —FF|Hr98.20%
ARBRARBEHF R -_T_SFIHH
7.75% A RE R BIMEF D RIHET7.0%
8.2% ~ 8.2% * 9.1% 29.1%H) B R F =
FFE o
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The effective interest rates of RMB 6.75% Corporate Bonds
due 2020, RMB 7.85% Corporate Bonds due 2018, RMB
7.88% Corporate Bonds due 2019, RMB 8.20% Corporate
Bonds due 2022 and RMB 7.75% Corporate Bonds due
2020 are 7.0%, 8.2%, 8.2%, 9.1% and 9.1% respectively.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

Notes: (Cont’d)
() Syndicated loan

On 31 July 2017, the Company entered into a facility
agreement with, among others, various financial institutions
as lenders and The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited as facility agent for USD and HKD
dual-currency transferable term loan facility in an aggregate
amount of USD204,000,000 and HKD248,000,000 for a
term of 36 months commencing from 31 July 2017 (the “2017
HSBC Facility”).

The principal amounts outstanding under the 2017 HSBC
Facility generally bear interest at floating rates calculated with
reference to the London Interbank Offered Rate or Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 25 July 2014, the Company issued convertible bonds due
2019 in the aggregate principal amount of HKD388,000,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB308,369,000) (the
“Convertible Bonds”) at the price of 100% of their principal
amount and the Convertible Bonds were listed on the SEHK.
The Convertible Bonds bear interest at the rate of 8% per
annum and are payable quarterly in arrears and jointly and
severally guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Convertible Bonds, the
bondholders have the right to convert their Convertible Bonds
into fully paid ordinary shares with a par value of HKDO0.10
each to be allotted and issued by the Company upon
conversion of the Convertible Bonds (“New Shares”) at any
time during the conversion period at the conversion price then
in effect. Based on the initial conversion price of HKD3.50 and
assuming full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the initial
conversion price, the Convertible Bonds will be convertible
into 110,857,142 New Shares, representing approximately
6.05% of the ordinary share capital of the Company, as
enlarged by the issue of New Shares. The net proceeds from
the issuance of the Convertible Bonds of HKD383,668,000
(equivalent to RMB306,213,000) were received on 25 July
2014.
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32. A#ERES(E) 32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D)
R_Z—F+ERATABR-ZZ—+EN On 19 May 2017 and on 24 August 2017, the Convertible
B=—+mA ' &% % 465000000 T & Bonds with the principal amounts of HKD65,000,000 and
323,000,000 T AT MR E S 2 » BliR ik HKD323,000,000 were converted into 18,571,428 and
f% 18 5 A% 3.50 4 JT & # ik 18,571,428 I% & 92,285,714 New Shares of the Company, respectively, at a
92285 7T14AR A RNBI KM - ZERNDES conversion price of HKD3.50 per share. These shares rank
FTHEEMPREITIRNDEZEBRESHNA - RZZE pari passu with other shares in issue in all respect. As at
—+F+-A=+—H8 "ERELFDREE 31 December 2017, the Convertible Bonds have been fully
#%110,857, 1428 AR BT I (9 » AR E S converted into 110,857,142 New Shares of the Company.
BEBRAARARNEGRMITETAREESY - The Convertible Bonds were recognised as embedded
2= (NS financial derivatives and a debt component as follows:

BAR

SRITETR

=R (Hfzth)

(Rteta) Embedded

Debt financial
component derivatives @t
(note a) (note b) Total
ARYHFT AR FT ARKFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RZE—RFE—H—H As at 1 January 2016 216,551 61,380 277,931

F B Interest expense 36,939 - 36,939

ERFE Interest paid (26,626) - (26,626)

AMRESFITET RS HH Changes in fair value of

AR EEEE (M) the derivative component of
the Convertible Bonds (note 6) - 4,388 4,388
PEE i, 2 Exchange realignment 15,490 4,440 19,930
75’:\_? ANEF-ZHA=+—H Asat31 December 2016 and
ZT—+F—H—H 1 January 2017 242,354 70,208 312,562
@Tﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ% Conversion of the Convertible
Bonds (202,389) (192,036) (394,425)

FMBERX Interest expense (6,942) - (6,942)

BRAFE Interest paid (23,684) = (23,684)

AR EHITETAS Changes in fair value of the

AR E TE'*;@J(MTHG) derivative component of the
Convertible Bonds (note 6) - 127,064 127,064
BEE 5 FF 3K Exchange realignment (9,339) (5,236) (14,575)

RZZE—+F+-_H=+—H Asat 31 December 2017 - - -
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—+F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2017

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D)

Notes:

(@

Debt component was initially recognised at its fair value,
which was the residual amount after deducting the fair value
of the embedded financial derivatives from the net proceeds
at the initial recognition, and it is subsequently carried at
amortised cost at an effective interest rate of 17.9% per

annum.

Embedded financial derivatives comprise the fair value of the
option of the holders of the Convertible Bonds to convert
the Convertible Bonds into ordinary shares of the Company
at the conversion price; the fair value of the option of the
holders of the Convertible Bonds to require the Company
to redeem the Convertible Bonds; and the fair value of the

option of the Company to redeem the Convertible Bonds.

These embedded options are interdependent as only one
of these options can be exercised. Therefore, they are not
able to be accounted for separately and a single compound

derivative was recognised.

A valuation on the Convertible Bonds has been performed
by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited, an independent qualified valuer on 19 May 2017 and
on 24 August 2017 for the fair values on conversion dates
respectively. The binomial model is used in the valuation of

the embedded financial derivatives.
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32. AR EZ (&) 32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D)

R-E—tEtFRAATAAER-Z—LFN\A
—t+mA - AnBEFERBIZTTERS
ANEUR(E3E)ME(LERINT

The quantitative information about fair value measurements
as at 19 May 2017 and 24 August 2017 using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as follows respectively:

EERTETA

MAREE TAEZBARE
L] Fair value of the Unobservable HA
Description converted derivatives inputs Adopted
RZE—+FRA+NBNEBREAXSHITETA 18,292,0007% T BEHFEE() 5.14%

Converted embedded financial derivatives as at 19 May 2017 HKD18,292,000 Credit spread (j)
R 1 i) 33.64%

Volatility (ii)
R-E—tF\AZ+HANEBRBRAASRITETA 206,585,000/ 7T BEHBE() 5.26%

Converted embedded financial derivatives as at 24 August 2017 HKD206,585,000 Credit spread (i)
B8 (il 28.62%

Volatility (ii)

) FEANERREZ2EEETARKRE
FEGRUR EM AR T A (K EF)
i R EEE o

(i) PR EERRZEQRKER (2
AR BHENE) K EEE -

BFEELATRESRARERITETANRD
ABEEM - REEMTAEESHRARNER
PTETANRABEEN -

BAREBMITETANBERE T EIBERRA
BEEBHME(L  MAEBERDEARTES
RERENRIEM-EEL -

280 BRTEZRARAT 2017 FEHRE

(i) The credit spread adopted is determined with
reference to the yield of other non-convertible
instrument (or bonds) having a similar quality rating
and similar investment characteristics.

(ii) The volatility adopted was based on the average of the
peer companies’ volatilities (including the Company’s
volatility).

An increase in credit spread may result in an increase in the
fair value of the embedded financial derivatives. An increase
in volatility may also result in an increase in the fair value of
the embedded financial derivatives.

The value of the embedded financial derivatives varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions, which
have been made by the directors of the Company based on
their best estimates.
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33. B 33. SHARE CAPITAL
—E—tF —T-RF
2017 2016
AR Authorised:
10,000,000,000/% ( ZF—7<4F : 10,000,000,000
10,000,000,0008% ) @M% - (2016: 10,000,000,000) 1,000,000,000/% 7  1,000,000,000/% T
BREEC0BT ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each HKD1,000,000,000  HKD1,000,000,000
BEITREHE Issued and fully paid:

1,833,817,0000% (ZZE—7 4 :

1,833,817,000

1,722,960,000/% ) & @M% - (2016: 1,722,960,000) 183,382,0007% T 172,296,0007 7T
BREE010E T ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each HKD183,382,000 HKD172,296,000
AER Equivalent to AE#145,260,0007t A FR#135,778,0007T
RMB145,260,000 RMB135,778,000

ARBRBALSHRETIT

as follows:

BEETIRGNOEE
Number of
shares in issue

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is

B

Share capital

RZZ—~"F—A—HB"
—E-RNFE+-A=1+—8H

At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016
and 1 January 2017

k=T—tF—HF—H 1,722,960,000 HKD172,296,000
IR E S (M 7E32) Conversion of the Convertible Bonds (note 32) 110,857,000 HKD11,086,000
RZF—+F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 1,833,817,000 HKD183,382,000
BEn Equivalent to RMB145,260,000
34. BERREFE 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

ARAETERESS(TEE])  sEHER
ROHAEEZERNNELHERNSERSH
EoFENEERSEEREAQAMEMNRE
g8 EEEKERESE  HENETE M RKE
FIREMEMEBERBHE - FEREN-F
—=FT-AThR(RHNBEH)BBNZE
AR SROR SR R AR - I H B BR A B B 104F
HRAB R ER -

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include any employee, management member or director of
the Company, or any other eligible participants upon the
terms set out in the Scheme. The Scheme was adopted
pursuant to the resolutions of all the shareholders passed on
19 November 2013 (the “Adoption Date”) and shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the
Adoption Date.
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34.

BT EI(E)

BRIEARD A MR ALESS - ANARRIR BT S
RAA B H AR ES S T RO AR
MR REITERAIBITHRO&ESEE - &4
TSBB L B HIE 1T B E ) 10% (AN
172,296,000/% J& 15 ) + B NGB TEEE T
B& 17 FR B H130% © BRIEZAR A RIRR R AL + 7
A+ B  BERTRELARARR
FTHBRE(BIERITE REARITERERE)
AT RS FRTHRG BB T EHBABE BT
B 48291 % o

ERARNRBREXBRESENODER
1.00/87C - RIBEREEABRHNBHEHRE
BERMERE - ERNEAERT - ZHE
TSR B AR IR 5 B4R A (o] 18 51 B8 AR 4 B B e
FH10%F o

RATEAR PR 5T 8145 A BB AR T 351 T ) B AR AR
MHRBERRESTGLEET - ETEER
THMESE - (PR LABRCERBRZ AT
HITHEHFEENBF)BRAE A REXRMIIA
A& U TR 5 ()N BRI B ERT A EE %
HE R TS B RERMI ARG EXFHURT
8 (i) EE -

B-E—=F+—ATNLARKIE  BiE
RBETEIR L EEBAHE -

282 ERHEZERAMRAT 2017 FERE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT'D)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
and other share option schemes of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in
issue as at the Listing Date (i.e., 172,296,000 shares) unless
the Company obtains approval from its shareholders and
must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
grantee (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue, unless approval of the Company’s
shareholders is obtained.

The amount payable by the grantee on application or
acceptance of an option shall be HKD1.00. The period within
which the shares must be taken up under an option shall
be determined by the board at its absolute discretion and
in any event, such period shall not be longer than 10 years
from the date upon which any particular option is granted in
accordance with the Scheme.

The subscription price in respect of each share issued
pursuant to the exercise of an option granted under the
Scheme shall be solely determined by the board and shall
not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing price of
the shares as stated in the SEHK’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of grant, which must be a day on which the SEHK is
open for the business of dealing in securities; (i) the average
of the official closing prices of the shares as stated in the
SEHK'’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal
value of a share.

Since the adoption of the Scheme on 19 November 2013, no
options have been granted pursuant to the Scheme.
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35. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the Group.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate of the nominal value
of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Reorganisation and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor
during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between the
cost of acquisition and the non-controlling interests
acquired in the case of acquisition of additional non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries, or, the difference
between the proceeds from disposal and the non-
controlling interests disposed of in the case of
disposal of partial equity interests in subsidiaries to
non-controlling shareholders without loss of control.

Statutory surplus funds

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the companies now comprising the Group
which are registered in the PRC shall appropriate a
certain percentage of their net profit after tax (after
offsetting any prior years’ losses) calculated under the
accounting principles generally applicable to the PRC
enterprises to reserve funds. When the balances of
this reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s capital,
any further appropriation is optional. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses or to increase capital. However, the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve must be maintained at a
minimum of 25% of the capital after those usages.
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36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-

BEHIOT - controlling interests are set out below:
W —E—+tF —EREF
Notes 2017 2016
BRI AR Percentage of equity interest held by
BAEZE DL non-controlling interests:
1L e Foshan Hongyu 25% 25%
#iILER Foshan Huatai 49% 49%
EMNEEA] Guangzhou Shichuang 40% 40%
BN S Guangzhou Kaijun () 40% 40%
1L = Foshan Dehui @) 40% -
BEMNEA Guangzhou Donghe () 31% 31%
N Zhuhai Shengjia (© 19.8% 19.8%
iiE=5=4 Foshan Ruida (b) 10% _
7N Dongguan Yujing (© 45% 45%
Roogl ¥ Dongguan Kaiye @) 48% 48%
EMNER Guangzhou Fusi () 40% 40%
BN R Guangzhou Qijun (@) = 49%
#ilLeEs Foshan Shengjing (©) = 40%
Bt - Notes:
(@) RN-E—trF+A-+H AEEHH— @ On 20 July 2017, the Group entered into a capital increment

284 ERHPEZERAR

FIBIE =TT RISILE W o BRIRZ I
E o RBEYE=RAEER 2 ENE
AR L 1R AE 15 & A R %5 400,000,000
T WHAASERFERR -

RZZFE—+tFNA—H A£EEEH
—2BUE=H(ERAEERN—F
IEERRR)EEAEFEGZENB R
AFBILEEI0%KRE  REAARE
150,000,0007T ©

PEEXEBRR  BAEAIERERDN
MEARCAREFEMNREWMS X
ZIEREMER L%Kirﬁ’] e
B BEMERMRIKE®R S

R-T—+F+—A=-+HA ~EH
) AT FE 22 AR A% B LA B M RRIR 59 49% %
# - KRB A ARK392,000,0007T (fizE
37) W& BMERBKALAEENE
)N

R_Z—+F+A=1+H8  KEE@EF
FE47E A% A% B Uk B 158 L L) B S 9 40% BRAE
RIBA AR 416,446,0007T (FFE37) -

NE 2017 FERE

agreement with an independent third party. Pursuant to
the agreement, an incremental capital of RMB400,000,000
was injected to Foshan Dehui, a previous wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, by the independent third party which
became a non-controlling shareholder of the Group.

On 1 April 2017, the Group has transferred a 10% equity
interest in Foshan Ruida, a previous wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, to an independent third party which became a
non-controlling shareholder of the Group, at a consideration
of RMB150,000,000.

With the business development, subsidiaries with material
non-controlling interests have changed from Dongguan
Yujiang, Dongguan Kaiye and Guangzhou Fusi in prior year
to Guangzhou Kaijun, Guangzhou Donghe and Zhuhai
Shengijia in the current year.

On 25 November 2017, the Group has acquired a 49%
equity interest in Guangzhou Qijun from the previous
non-controlling shareholder at a consideration of
RMB392,000,000 (note 37), after that, Guangzhou Qijun
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

On 20 October 2017, the Group has acquired a 40%
equity interest in Foshan Shengjing from the previous
non-controlling shareholder at a consideration of
RMB416,446,000 (note 37).
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36. EEMOESZMIFZERESR 36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

BEANKELT (&) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (CONT'D)
R ERBE AN ANEEMN B AT Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-
BFANT controlling interests are set out below:
—E—+tF ZERE
2017 2016
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BT IR RS Y Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to
FEFE(EE) : non-controlling interests:
#ILEE Foshan Hongyu (7,505) (587)
L ESR Foshan Huatai 518,793 (17,053)
M Al Guangzhou Shichuang 37,537 32,129
M ENEE Guangzhou Kaijun (27,640) (28,657)
L= Foshan Dehui (6,231) -
&N FN Guangzhou Donghe 7,844 11,654
eER Zhuhai Shengjia 15,903 (199)
HIlLEE Foshan Ruida (2,687) -
REWS Dongguan Yujing (2,001) -
Rl Dongguan Kaiye (6,151) (1,195)
BMER Guangzhou Fusi (11,696) (1,175)
MR R Guangzhou Qijun 242,461 (11,159)
BLER Foshan Shengijing (9,614) (5,311)
RS B BRI Y Accumulated balances of non-controlling
RETHER interests at the reporting date:
LB E Foshan Hongyu 1,591,908 1,599,413
BRILESR Foshan Huatai 1,411,992 893,199
EINEEA Guangzhou Shichuang 565,537 528,000
EINEEE Guangzhou Kaijun 136,222 163,862
BRILErE Foshan Dehui 1,181,769 =
BN Guangzhou Donghe 195,520 187,676
b2 DT Zhuhai Shengjia 28,020 12,117
BILEE Foshan Ruida 1,322,813 =
R s Dongguan Yujing 627,713 629,714
REElE Dongguan Kaiye 448,526 454,677
BINE R Guangzhou Fusi 460,729 472,425
BN RR & Guangzhou Qijun - 377,138
BRIl =R Foshan Shengijing - 348,764
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36. EEMoEEMFERES

BEXRHHEQR(E)

TR\ LA BRARNTBEERRE -

PR E & R ET T A R A 3H AT

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS (CONT'D)

36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed

MEHE are before any inter-company eliminations:
HilEe s BNEA BNEE fhueE RNFA higEE fhuge
E+E Foshan Foshan  Guangzhou  Guangzhou Foshan  Guangzhou Zhuhai Foshan
2017 Hongyu Huatai  Shichuang Kaijun Dehui Donghe Shengjia Ruida
ABETL  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFR
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
N Revenue - 4,541,731 98,118 - - 61,492 367,022 -
BEY Total expenses (30,021)  (3,482,970) (3,71) (69,099) (15,577) (36,188) (286,702) (26,874)
BIRAEEER Share of profts or losses of
joint ventures - - (508) - - - - -
EETE/(BE) Profit/loss) for the year (30,021) 1,058,761 93,844 (69,099) (15,577) 25,304 80,320 (26,874)
EERTAE/(5E)  Total comprehensive
o8 profit/loss) for the year (30,021) 1,058,761 93,844 (69,099) (15,577) 25,304 80,320 (26,874)
THEE Current assets 16,546,173 4,669,678 2,496,146 6,143,639 5741967 33,444,458 695,583 5,814,096
FRYEE Non-current assets 15,391 60,526 529,961 89,095 10202 1528404 12,152 14,078
TEEE Current liabilties (9,552,537) (911,039)  (1,470654)  (3,994,942)  (3,979,836)  (33,239,796) (313,637)  (1,885,047)
ERBEE Non-current liabities (1,991,307) (937,500) (299,183) - - (581,975) (224,510) -
BEEHHE/(BR)  Net cash fows fom/used in]
KAShEFE operating activities (4,395,722)  (1,030,277) (25,767) 199433 (1,781,422 550,469 72594  (3,733,426)
REEBHNG/ER)E  Net cash flows from/{used in
Ren2HE investing acthvties (248) (250) 100,423 (44,063) M) % - (#1)
HETHEE/(ER)  Netcash flows fromvused in
HRERE financing activities 1,918,007 (160,997) (48,938) - 1,782,275 (20,210) (90,304 3,064,275
ReRRESENY Net increase/(decrease) in
£/ (a)) 58 cash and cash equivelents (477,873 (1,191,524) 25,718 15,370 842 530,283 (17,710) 230,808
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36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (CONT'D)

Il BlUER  BAEE  RRME O FRIE BNER BB BLER

=Sy Foshan Foshan  Guangzhou Dongguan Dongguan  Guangzhou  Guangzhou Foshan

2016 Hongyu Huatai  Shichuang Yujing Kalye Fusi Qiun Shengjing

ANEETT  NRETT  AREFT  AREFT  ABETT  AEEFT  ARETT  ARETZ

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000

A Revenue - - - - - - - -

BRY Total expenses (2,349 (34,801) (1,002 (635) (2,756) (2,939) (22,773 (13.277)
ElEAEMEER Share of profits or losses of

joint ventures - - 81,002 - - - - -

FEFE/ (BR) Profit/{loss) for the year (2,349) (34,801) 80,000 (639) (2,756) (2,939) (22,779) (13,277)
EFXEAE/(BE)  Total comprehensive profit/

28 (loss) for the year (2,349) (34,801) 80,000 635) (2,756) (2,939 (22,779) (13,277)
AR Current assets 8398905 5518449 18410 3,080,799 1,219,601 1910327 3936474 3468028
FERPEE Non-current assefs 812 18209 1,344,002 23 3,647 1,076 13,628 9,338
MEER Current liabities (3352,066)  (2,678,303) (42.411) (1681658 (132005 (530,343 (2775433  (2,205,456)
FrBaE Non-current liabiliies - (1,035,500) - - (144,000) (200,000) (405,000) (400,000)
TEEHHE/((FA)  Net cash flows from/(used in)

HRERSIE operating actiities (2481758 (1,690,010) 4,194 (1395615 (1075312 (1,777,283) 729,792 211,290
REEHERN Net cash flows used in

Renese investing activities (1) (6327) (1,263,000 (12) (3,037) (203) (2,721) (1)
RETHHE/(ER)  Net cash flows from/{used in)

BWRENETE financing activities 5082830 1,885,561 1223964 1400000 1,091,329 1,784,000 (634,573) 356,597
ReRESEEN Net increase in cash and

REEmEE cash equivalents 2,601,056 189,224 2,158 4378 12,980 6,564 92,498 567,846
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37. RFEREDNEERS

W B FE 42 IR R 2
1

RZE—ttF+—A=Z+H

37. MAJOR TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

(1)

B AEBUBRSsREARE
392,000,000 7T [A) FE 12 f% i 51 Uk B

BEM B R T 490%Hm - F1

REMBRH PG R ESHE A
SEHEA ARG ERRN

On 25 November 2017, the Group acquired the
remaining 49% interest in Guangzhou Qijun at a
cash consideration of RMB392,000,000 from the
non-controlling shareholder. The effect of change
in ownership of interest of Guangzhou Qijun on the
equity attributable to owners of the Group during this

N year is summarised as follows:
AREFr
RMB’000
FrU i FE AR A R (A Carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired 287,598
A T IEERR R R (B Consideration paid to non-controlling interest (392,000)
RBIF AT R 2R EEA Deficit of consideration paid recognised in
retained earnings (104,402)

R=F—tF+—A=1+8 &&

@

B AR & KB AR %652,889,000
TRFEE R R KRB B M B A 3= 84
T40%H#Es - £ - REMNEMAZ
AR S HAEERE A

ISR ERAT -

On 30 November 2017, the Group acquired the
remaining 40% interest in Guangzhou Libaijia at a
cash consideration of RMB652,889,000 from the
non-controlling shareholder. The effect of change in
ownership interest of Guangzhou Libaijia on the equity
attributable to owners of the Group during this year is
summarised as follows:

AREFr

RMB’000

P B AR AR M e MO BR TEN (B Carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired 357,504

AT IR ER AR (E Consideration paid to non-controlling interest (652,889)

R ERME R EEAL Deficit of consideration paid recognised in equity (254,795)
RBFEF RS EEA Deficit of consideration paid recognised in

retained earmnings (40,590)

(295,385)
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37. EHFEZERESENEERSZ 37. MAJOR TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-

(#&) CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONT’D)

WS SRR AR (4E) Acquisition of non-controlling interests (Cont'd)

) R-_ZT—F+HF-+H ~&EE ) On 20 October 2017, the Group acquired the
A3 & KB A K8 416,446,000 7T remaining 40% interest in Foshan Shengjing at a
MR BEHRILERSHRT cash consideration of RMB416,446,000 from the
40% s o FA - PRFBILERREVFT non-controlling shareholder. The effect of change in
ERERESEAREEEE AL ownership interest of Foshan Shengjing on the equity
MR 2T attributable to owners of the Group during this year is

summarised as follows:

AREFr

RMB’000

P JE R AR (B Carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired 339,199
AT T IR E R (B Consideration paid to non-controlling interest (416,446)
RERERH S A EEA Deficit of consideration paid recognised in equity (77,247)
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38. WIEKHE AT 38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) KA
FR - AR BT B AR

(a) Business combination

During the year, the Group entered into sale and

AT R B R HE - purchase agreements to acquire equity interests in the
following companies:
RE
ARHFTT 1
kg A NG Consideration Equity TEEHK
Acquisition date Company name RMB’000 interest Principal activities
“E—+FHAZAH BHEE 290,000 100% e
2 May 2017 Huizhou Darun Property development
“E—tFHATER MR 20,000 100% Y ESEEE
17 May 2017 Guangzhou Lifeng Property development
—T—+FN\AZT/\R BEBENERBERARF 3,395 100%  WRFIHE
([BEEE])
28 August 2017 Qingyuan Shengye Property Property management
Management Service Co.,
Ltd. (“Qingyuan Shengye")
ZE—+F+—HA+THMA BEMEFE 200,000 100% ek
14 November 2017 Guangzhou Shilan Property development
“T—+F+—AZtEHE BEXRE 99,250 100%  WERE
24 November 2017 Qingyuan Tianfu Property development

Lt B EAREEYERERY)
KEENEBE—TEE -

290 HRTEZERAEMRLT 2017 FERE

The above acquisitions allow the Group for further
business expansion on property development and
property management.



38. WRHKIE 2= (%)

(a) RHES6H(E)
R B - ERE WA AN
BIAERAEN AL MELED

R EE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—ZE—+F+=-"HA=+—8 31 December 2017

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

(a) Business combination (Cont'd)

The aggregate fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the above companies acquired as at the

™ date of acquisition were as follows:
EhER BN BREE BNGE FRXE i
Huizhou Guangzhou Qingyuan Guangzhou Qingyuan
Darun Lifeng Shengye Shilan Tianfu Total
NEETFT NEETFT NEEFT NREFT NEETFT NEETFT
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
nE - BERRE Property, plant and equipment - 513 - - 7 588
REREEAE Deferred tax assets - 11,657 - - - 11,657
YEmyE Properties under development 365,259 206,737 - 955,970 243,442 1,771,408
BRTRELENNE Completed properties held for sale 34,001 163,393 - - - 197,304
FANFE RS REMEYWEIE  Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables 5,906 78,084 2,706 21,371 20,632 128,699
BeRIBLZEY Cash and cash equivalents 3% 13,925 1,613 1,900 689 18,163
ENBSTEREE Trade and bills payables (30,000) (1,118) - (355,994) - (387,112)
HERTE RS Other payables and accruals - (397,739) (924) (148,045) (91,834) (638,542)
HlREBEAZE Other long term payables - (45,609) - - - 45,609)
STERTERREMR Interest-bearing bank loans and
&3 other borrowings - - - (230,000 - (230,000
EREEE Deferred tax liabilities (85,202) (20,331) - (45,202) (73,754) (224,489
B EEFEN A BE Fair value of net assets acquired 290,000 9,512 3,395 200,000 99,250 602,157
WEMELHRE Goodwill on acquisition - 10,488 - - - 10,488
BRE Total consideration 290,000 20,000 3,3% 200,000 99,250 612,645
DRETH Satisfied by cash 290,000 20,000 3,3% 200,000 99,250 612,645
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38. WEEHMEAR(E) 38.

(@) HEKEOt(E)
BRLAKENRSRASEEY
FHOFEATT -

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

(a) Business combination (Cont'd)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the above acquisitions is as

follows:
EMEH AT BEEX EMEE BERE oy
Huizhou  Guangzhou Qingyuan  Guangzhou Qingyuan
Darun Lifeng Shengye Shilan Tianfu Total
AREFT AREFT ABEETT  AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BeRE Cash consideration (290,000) (20,000) (3,395) (200,000) (99,250) (612,645)
TEERARE Consideration to be paid
subsequent to
current year 30,000 - - - 49,249 79,249
FEER £ RiR1T4AE  Cashand bank balance acquired 36 13,925 1,613 1,900 689 18,163
BllEnRe R Net outflow of cash and cash
ReEEMRLEFE equivalents
in respect of the acquisitions (259,964) (6,075) (1,782) (198,100) (49,312) (515,233)

EHERNVEETZREBEMNAIED
EHEARENER G HEBEHE
)17 R e M E A A s o BB
AIERATS B R E

292 ERPEZRRERAF 2017 FERSE

The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the
expected synergies and other benefits from combining
the activities of Guangzhou Lifeng with those of the
Group. The goodwill is not deductible for income tax
puUrposes.
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(b) WEBHELR(TMEREE)

FAR - AEEFTLEEWZE - B
BUYE TE AR ME R 7S
BEIAE  WETIHRRHAE
B REARS  BWAFHARE

g MiEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

(b)  Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
businesses

During the year, the Group entered into sale and
purchase agreements to acquire assets and liabilities

through acquisition of subsidiaries that are not

businesses, acquisition of the following companies

N were material transactions to the Group which
required for detail disclosures as follows:
RE
ARHFIT R

Wi B H NG Consideration Equity IBEE

Acquisition date Company name RMB’000 interest Major assets

“T—+tF¥-A—H BT A ERREERARAA 579,330 100%  tifFFRE
(MpLEER)O

1 January 2017 Foshan Kenflo Investment Land use rights
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Foshan Kenflo”)(

“T—+tF=ANR BEAIR 173,678 100%  titfEFRRE

8 March 2017 Qingyuan Heshun Land use rights

—T—+F=A=+Z=H BMNIEEaRAR AR 157,970 100%  LitfFFRE
([EMIEE e

22 March 2017 Guangzhou Shunfu Foam Co., Land use rights
Ltd. (“Guangzhou Shunfu”)@

“T—+F=A=+ZH BMIERZBARAE] 151,110 100%  titfFFRE
([EMIER e

22 March 2017 Guangzhou Shunsheng Plastic Land use rights
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou
Shunsheng”)®

—E—+FMAZT/\R EEMARIARAE 902,714 100%  THfERE
([ =g

28 April 2017 Morning Sun Offset Printing Land use rights
Limited (“Morning Sun”)

—T—+tFXAZA BN BB HRAA] 619,597 100%  tifFFRRE
(TEMNERSE o

2 June 2017 Guangzhou Shaogang Port Land use rights
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou
Shaogang”)®

“E—+tFRAZTN\R BT 138,600 100% REELENRE

28 June 2017 Guangzhou Hengde Investment in a joint venture

—T—+tFt+A+H BNEEl 130,000 80%  LitfFFE

7 July 2017 Huizhou Nankai Land use rights
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38. WRKIE A= (%)

(b) WIEHKEQA(TERER)

(b)  Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

(%) businesses (Cont'd)
RE
ARMEFIT R 1

kg A 1 NG Consideration Equity IEEE

Acquisition date Company name RMB’000 interest Major assets

—E—+FN\ATEA BMEILRERBRAF] 188,809 100%  —iELi
(TEMRI e

14 August 2017 Guangzhou Zhanbei A piece of land
Trading Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Zhanbei”)?

—2—tENE+-H BUTKRNEERER AT 7,000 70%  THERE
(MBLkzE])

12 September 2017 Heshan Zhaoying Property Land use rights
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Heshan Zhaoying”)

—Z—+tFAANR Bl EIEREER AR 200,794 100%  tTibfFERAE
([EBLLsATRE )

8 September 2017 Heshan Hecheng Property Land use rights
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Heshan Hecheng’)

—E—+FtA+ZH BRMEERMEREERAR 581,598 100%  TibfEMARE
(EEEE])?

12 October 2017 Qingyuan Hengda Proverty Land use rights
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Qingyuan Hengda”)@

—T—+tF+AZtH BN BIRERR AT 480,000 100%  Ti{FMAE
(TEMIeE])

20 October 2017 Guangzhou Beiling Investment Land use rights
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou
Beiling”)

S S S R A= HmILTAKEEREBRAR 179,800 100% TifE R

16 November 2017

(THAERKD)

Zhongshan Shicheng Property
Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Zhongshan Shicheng”)

294 ERTPEZERAMRALT 2017 FERE

Land use rights



38. WisHIE AR ()
(b) WEBKELR(FHERER)

(%)
HisE -

Q)

REEEBEMNETHZ2EM
BARWESHRILAESRK - I
BHILSERE AEERZ
—tF+—-—A=+Bp8E—
BELE=ZFA RO EER
DA SRR P an T SR I
WA EARARIELE —
b s A =) (317 5239) ©

REEFE B EMNESLE 2 E K
BRRKEZEWERT - K
BZEMBARICTERER)
% AEER-T—tF+—
A=+B8E—Z2BIE=H]
ST R 1 85 e 17p i DA KT B N BE S
TEARE S - WEEAR
AEELE—RMHER S (T
17%39) °

m

%

)

\

$$§L@%ﬁﬁ¥%%ﬁm

A AU N B W%F
Mﬁmé REBR-T—
¢+—H:+E@—%ﬁi%
= RIS IR 1) S 5 5 LA MR
RAREITE LRI - Wi
HEARRRIELE—HHMEAR
Al (FEE17%39) °

R EE B R ENNE R A
BEE -R-_T—tF+—A
=+ H - AEEHEFEERR
KA EEHE A RIEITE
HEEHIE - BER - RIEER
EENZENBARNKAASE
EmaEt¥  RERXHAR
ARVELE M B E (i
171%39) °

8175

wEMTEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—+F+=-A=+—H 31 December 2017

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

(b)

Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
businesses (Cont'd)

Notes:

(1) The Group acquired Foshan Kenflo through its
wholly-owned subsidiary of Guangzhou Longya. On
30 November 2017, subsequent to the acquisition
of Foshan Kenflo, the Group entered into a share
transfer agreement with an independent third party
to exercise joint control over Guangzhou Longya,
which was accounted for a deemed disposal of a

subsidiary (notes 17 and 39).

2) The Group acquired these subsidiaries through its
wholly-owned subsidiary of Guangzhou Tingkai. On
30 November 2017, subsequent to the acquisition
of these subsidiaries that are not businesses, the
Group entered into a share transfer agreement with
an independent third party to exercise joint control
over Guangzhou Tingkai, which was accounted for a

deemed disposal of a subsidiary (notes 17 and 39).

©)) The Group acquired Guangzhou Shaogang through
its wholly-owned subsidiary of Times Daye. On 30
November 2017, subsequent to the acquisition of
Guangzhou Shaogang, the Group entered into a
share transfer agreement with an independent third
party to exercise joint control over Times Daye,
which was accounted for a deemed disposal of a
subsidiary (notes 17 and 39).

4) The Group acquired Morning Sun through its
subsidiary of Angel Smooth. On 30 November 2017,
the Group entered into a cooperation agreement
with the previous non-controlling shareholder to
exercise joint control over Angel Smooth. After
that, Angel Smooth along with its wholly-owned
subsidiary of Morning Sun became a joint venture of
the Group, and this transaction was accounted for a

deemed disposal of a subsidiary (notes 17 and 39).

2017 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 295



B R M 5E NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E—+F+=-HA=+—08 31 December 2017

38. WiEHE AT (&) 38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)
(b) WEKBLAI(TELER) (b)  Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
(#&) businesses (Cont'd)
FlR G AR AEBKERE AR The above transactions are accounted for acquisition
FrifE&E - BB B ARIMER of assets through acquisition of subsidiaries. Details
WEERTNEE S E RFTAEA BN of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed by the
BT material acquisition of subsidiaries are as below:

HLEE BEAIE BMEE  BEMER B ENEER  BNTE
Foshan  Qingyuan Guangzhou Guangzhou Morning Guangzhou Guangzhou
Kenflo Heshun Shunfu  Shunsheng Sun  Shaogang Hengde
ARETT ANEEFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

B TmAETE Prepaid land lease payment 609,433 173,574 191,926 240,077 907,507 545,175 -
mE - BERE Property, plant and equipment - 100 - - - 42 689 -
EthEREE Other intangible assets - = = - 486 - -
REErENER Interest in a joint venture - = = - - - 138,916
BHeRBELZEY Cash and cash equivalents 6,623 3 1 - 1,384 14,053 3
[EWE 5508 Trade receivables - - - - - 8,351 -
BETE  Be R Prepayments, deposits and

Hit YA other receivables - 14 114 - 209 31 11,597
JERHE Tax payables - - - - (4,187) - —
EthENFUEREZUE  Other payables and acoruals (36,726) (19) (34,071) (88,967) (2,685) (552) (11,916)
FIEEEFEMALER Farvalue of net assets acquired 579330 173678 157970 151,110 902714 609,747 138,600
ERub e Non-controling interest - - - - - - -

DREXNNERE Total consideration satisfied by cash 579,330 173,678 167,970 151,110 902,714 609,747 138,600

BaRE Cash consideration (79330)  (173678)  (157970)  (151,110) (902714  (B09,747)  (138,600)
WBAEERZARE  Consideration has been paid in the
prior year 96,463 - - - 228,010 - -
FREME S kRiT48  Cash and bank balances acquired 6,623 3 1 - 1,384 14,053 3
BElENRER Net outflow of cash and cash
BEEEMTLTE equivalents in respect
of the acquisitions (476,244) (173,675) (157,969) (151,110) (673,320) (595,694) (138,597
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38. WEEKE AT (&) 38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)
(b) tl%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%’&ﬁ(’ﬁ’ﬁ%%i%) (b)

B2 B AR AE BN E QR
PRRBEE - TIIBE E R AT&SE

Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not
businesses (Cont'd)

The above transactions are accounted for acquisition
of assets through acquisition of subsidiaries. Details
of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed by

ey .
ABMEEOT - the material acquisition of subsidiaries are as below:
(Cont’d)
ENmsl  BMRYX  BUKR BLWH 0 BREE O BMIE  PLAH
Huizhou  Guangzhou Heshan Heshan  Qingyuan  Guangzhou  Zhongshan
Nankai Zhanbei  Zhaoying Hecheng Hengda Beiling  Shicheng
NERFT  AEEFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFT
RMB000  RMBO00  RMBO00  RAMB000  AMB0O0  AMBO0O0  RMB000
BRHHREZE Prepaid land lease payment 135,959 276,270 61,836 230670 586,368 405,873 378,963
nE - BRERRE Property, plant and equipment - 9 - - - 74214 -
BLRBLZEY Cash and cash equivalents 1 & - 7 1,186 4 190
B ke RE Prepayments, deposts and
WA other receivables 2514 2313 165,001 250 2310 2,483 1,710
FEfIHE Tax payables - - - - (42 - -
ENESTEREE Trade and bills payables - - (164,766) - (4,455) - -
EfERFUARMESZE  Other payables and accruals (7,539) (89,876) (55,208) (39,133 (1,766) (2574 (201,063
SEEMETREAMES  Interestbearing bank loans and
other borrowings - - - - (2,008 - -
FUMEEEFENAAER  Fairvalue of net assets acquired 130,935 188,800 6363 20079 581598 480000 179,800
FepiEs Non-controling inferests (939) - 137 ; _ _ _
BT ARERE Total consideration satisfied by cash 130,000 188,809 7,000 200,794 581,598 480,000 179,800
HARE Cash consideration (1300000 (188809) 7000 (00794 (81599 (4800000  (179.800)
REAEEETARE Consideration has been paid in the
prior year - - - - 46,930 - -
REEEREARE Consideration to be paid subsequent
to current year - - 3,224 Al - 21,344 50,000
FUENEE IR Cashand bank balances acouired 1 9 - 7 1,186 4 190
ERLENRER Net outflow of cash and cash
BeZBYRLFE equivalents in respect
of the acquisitions (129,999) (188,716 (3,776) (200,576) (633,482) (452,652) (129,610)
() EELEEAKMEBALAT () Change from a joint venture to a subsidiary

In November 2017, the non-controlling shareholder
has transferred a 25% equity interest of Horizon
(Guangzhou) to the Group (note 17), of which the
controlling right has also been transferred to the
Group. Accordingly, the investment in the joint venture
is remeasured to fair value at the date when the Group

R_ZB—+F+—H  FEBRER
ERRE(EM)H25% R EEHE T
AREE(MEE17) - EHRTCEER
TAKE - At - REEEENR
BREASEEISZEHIRE BEHT

EEQAEE YREFCHENUR
1EB A RA G - EXEEELR
BENFAERRER -

obtained the control and is deemed to have been
disposed of in exchange with the consolidation of the
subsidiary. The resulting loss from the remeasurement
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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38. WiEMHE AT (&) 38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)
) BELXBANELR(E) () Change from a joint venture to a subsidiary
(Cont'd)

The following table summarises the remeasurement
loss of the investments in the joint venture and the
fair values of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the consolidation date:

TREANE G AHNEEEER
BB EBEBALMEERER
BENFAERENRABE

REGHEH
At consolidation
date
AREFT
RMB’000
Y - BB MR Property, plant and equipment 479
mREE Intangible assets 924
IEEFRIEE & Deferred tax assets 1,027
Rt desly/ES Properties under development 1,374,603
HERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 587,813
FEWE 5 kTE Trade receivables 18,618
FERTRRIE - B e M E A E Y ERTE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 90,680
JEME S RERER Trade and bills payables (67,668)
H b A FRIE K FERT FUR Other payables and accruals (525,957)
FERIRIE Tax payables (54,709)
RIERNIAE & Deferred tax liabilities (299,183)
AR B FELRR Total identifiable net assets 1,126,627
WHEFTE AR EE Goodwill on acquisition 144,047
1,270,674
LATRE AR A Satisfied by:
Re Cash 457,000
AEEREGE L EEZAREE Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the
joint venture 872,691
BT ER—EEEENR AR Remeasurement of the pre-existing interest in the
joint venture (59,017)
REERERERNANEE Fair value of the interest in the joint venture 813,674
1,270,674
ReERE Cash consideration (457,000)
FTUREE MV IR & N SR1T 4L R Cash and bank balances acquired 587,813
BRABEBERIRE R AFRE Net cash inflow in respect of the acquisition 130,813

EERNEETZRARE(EM)
B S LN SR B 0 A5 B B i TR
B R R e M B o R
RIS B A&

The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the
expected synergies and other benefits from combining
the activities of Horizon (Guangzhou) with those of the
Group. The goodwill is not deductible for income tax
purposes.
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[TTHF AT -

HHETIREE B AR EEH A EEE
E-T—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFEN
REWASF BT EEATE -

39. RIEHEHBERF

1
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SERBIUFE=TT - RIERHEZER
AL ABERAR  AREEZE
RAWNBRRD BIEZEARITRLE
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FEEBREHZFRAESE -
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BT R E R R R AERSRR
BRH10.00% B ET —RBILE=
7 KRB A AR¥S50,000,0007T °
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

(c)

Change from a joint venture to a subsidiary
(Cont'd)

Acquisition-related costs were insignificant and have
been recognised as an expense in the current year
and included in the line item “administrative expenses”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The results of above subsidiaries acquired had no
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
revenue or profit for the year ended 31 December
2017.

39. DEEMED DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(1)

On 30 November 2017, the Group entered into
share transfer agreements to transfer 9.09% equity
interests in Guangzhou Hongtai, Guangzhou Zichen,
Guangzhou Longya, Guangzhou Tingkai and Times
Daye to several independent third parties respectively.
Pursuant to the share transfer agreements and
articles of association, the Group and these
companies’ shareholders exercise joint control over
these companies respectively. The share transfer
transactions were accounted for deemed disposals of
subsidiaries and the Group has lost control over these
companies in the current year.

On 30 November 2017, the Group entered into share
transfer agreements to transfer a 10.00% equity
interest in Qingyuan Jinsheng to an independent
third party at a consideration of RMB50,000,000.
Pursuant to the share transfer agreement and articles
of association, the Group and Qingyuan Jinsheng’s
shareholder exercise joint control over Qingyuan
Jinsheng. The share transfer transaction was
accounted for a deemed disposal of a subsidiary and
the Group has lost control over Qingyuan Jinsheng in
the current year.

On 30 November 2017, the Group entered into a
cooperative agreement with Angel Smooth’s non-
controlling shareholder to exercise joint control over
Angel Smooth. The transaction was accounted for a
deemed disposal of a subsidiary and the Group has
lost control over Angel Smooth in the current year.
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39. DEEMED DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT'D)

Details of the net assets disposals as at disposal dates of are

39. RIELENBL T (FE)

P EMEEHER HE ARSI T -

as follows:
ENEE  BMRR  BMEE  EMEd FERE e
Guangzhou Guangzhou Guangzhou Guangzhou — EAA%¥  Qingyuan Angel &
Hongtai Zichen Longya Tingkai TimesDaye  Jinsheng Smooth Total
NEETT  AEREFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AEETT  AREFT  AREFI
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
%% BERRE Property, plant and equipment 20,162 80,241 - 78,705 87,735 5 - 211898
N-BREARNER Interest in an associate - 385,132 - - - - - 385,132
Téiﬁiiﬁﬁfﬁlﬁ Prepaid land lease payment - 382,702 609,433 1,114,146 545,175 - 907507 3,558,963
Hit AR Other infangiole assets - - - - - - 463 463
EREEE Deferred tax assets 54,866 607 - - - 180 - 56,663
BEmyE Properties under development - 1,628 7,157 73,154 - 1,066,984 - 1148923
BRTHEHENNE Completed properties held for sale 648,909 - - - - - - 648,909
EUE FHEREE Trade and bills receivables 105,268 79,958 - - 8,360 - - 193,586
BAFE e R Prepayments, deposits and
Bt iR other receivables 80,805 79,838 59,342 112,761 125 6,157 597 339,625
MW‘@%E@ Amounts due from joint ventures 624,754 462,626 7,330 83,348 8700 1,450,890 - 2637648
ﬁﬁ&%#fg% Cash and cash equivalents 9398 355,384 2,567 41,658 7,070 37,047 7759 461083
ENESTERER Trade and bills payables (210,378) (22,679) - (66,256) (16) (60,880) - (360,203)
HiENTB R E TR Other payables and accruals (124,653) (292,654) (14,616) (120,591) (679) (3,199 (237,747) (794,003)
ERAEMEMZE Amounts dug to joint ventures (27672 (1208974)  (266,167) (511,200 (216,563  (1,516,077) - (4,016,659)
fEfTE Tax payables (18,454) (2,569) - - - - - (21,017)
SERTERREMER Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings (600,000) (234,061) (368,292) (448,815) (350,416) (468,297) (676,616)  (3,146,487)
313,005 47,201 36,754 351,904 39,597 513,060 1,963 1303484
FrREREL Non-controling interests
transferred out - - - - - - (672 (b72)
E R KR Exchange fluctuation reserve
transferred out - - - - - - (35,380) (35,380)
i ENmEETE Net assets olsposed of 313,005 47,201 36,754 351,904 39,597 513,060 (33989 1,267,532
BefE Cash consideration - - - - - 50,000 - 50,000
RENEDRRED Fair value of the retained equity
NMEE interests in joint ventures 52,888 159,673 61,084 281,161 94,755 513,240 121028 1,283,829
it ENmEETE Net assets olsposed of 313,005 47,201 36,754 351,904 39,597 513,060 (33989 1,267,532
BIELEMBARELS  Gain/loss) on deemed disposals
Wz /(B8) of subsidiaries (260,117) 112,472 24,330 (70,743) 56,158 50,180 195,017 66,297
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DEEMED DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT'D)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the deemed disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

ENEE  EBMRR  BMEE  EMEd FRHE #E
Guangzhou Guangzhou Guangzhou Guangzhou — ERA%¥  Qingyuan Angel i
Hongtai Zichen Longya Tingkai TimesDaye  Jinsheng Smooth Total
NEETT  AREFT  AEEFT  ARETT  AREFT  AEETT  AREFT  ARETL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BeRE Cash consideration - - - - - 50,000 - 50,000
TERRENRE Consideration to be received
subsequent to the current year - - - - - (60,000) - (50,000)
AHENESRFITES  Cashand bank balances
disposed of 9,398 356,384 2,567 41,68 7,070 37,247 7,759 461,083
EBRELERRSR Net outflow of cash and cash
BeSENRLTFE equivalents in respect of the
deamed disposal 0308 (%384 @7 6% Ol (T4n (759 (461,089
40. AREE 40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

RBEMKR » AEERE TRITR TR
BEFREER  ZFRBEFZ/EAE
EYERNETRBEERENRBER - R
BERER  NREBEEEHERRBN
R AKEEERRITEEEOEESER
NHREERBASER BB KE
T BASREAREZERBEMENG LR
BREAE - AKENERYHERZS
ERHR G B HIRS - WK EM B #E
BERLBRER  BHEMBEE —RNEB
BEGAHEBRYER —EMFAEL -

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of the mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for
certain purchasers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments
by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principal together with the accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to
the banks, and the Group is entitled to take over the legal
titles and possession of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee periods start from the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and end upon the issuance of real estate
ownership certificates which is generally within one to two
years after the purchasers have taken possession of the
relevant properties.
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40. IAREE(E) 40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT'D)
RRERRBEBETAEEYEREENR The amount of guarantees given to banks for mortgage
BERMARITIRENERESBOT facilities granted to the purchasers of the Group’s properties

as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

—E—tHF —F—R
2017 2016
AREFT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PAREMEE TEEED Guarantees in respect of the mortgage
ZIBEFIRHAER facilities for certain purchasers of the
Group’s properties 20,223,518 18,098,257
BEERA BHEANFHOELT - H@EY The directors consider that in the case of default in payments,
¥R FEAEEERERIRER the net realisable value of the related properties can cover the
SEREFFNERS®  AELRETH repayment of the outstanding mortgage principal together
R HARBLERIELEE - with the accrued interest and penalty, therefore no provision

has been made in the consolidated financial statements for
the guarantees.

41. EER RO HIEKHF 41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND SHARES
RNEEFFT BIRITE &K E b5 FRATIH IR Details of the Group’s assets and shares pledged for the
MEERRKROBFEE @ ERERE U HBHRE interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings are
BI5E31 © included in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from 1 to 16 years. The terms of the
leases generally also required tenants to pay security
deposits.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling

™ due as follows:
—E—+tF —E—REF
2017 2016
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 42,482 46,359
F_EZENF(BREEMF) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 101,699 108,341
hFE After five years 136,373 149,918
280,554 304,618
(b) f{EREMEA (b) As lessee
AEBREECHELHERS The Group leases certain of the office properties and
FTHAEMEREEDE(RTX commercial properties (see (c) below) under operating
@)  EmENYEMRHENTEAE lease arrangements. Leases for the properties are
50%F o negotiated for terms ranging from 6 months to 50
years.
REEER - RIEBEAAHEEELHE At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
E - AEER TS EHRE B RR total future minimum lease payments under non-
%ﬁﬁﬂ S IEBEELNT cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:
—E—tHF —E—RF
2017 2016
AR¥TFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Within one year 133,823 121,588
F_EERFE(BFEERRE) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 468,920 466,020
hE% After five years 1,679,752 1,468,971
2,282,495 2,056,579
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42, BEHEZH(E)

(c)

BRZH

AEBR_Z——F+-AKEE
MEE - WEBEMNEEREWS
NAIFEEEMHEL  ZEMED
MBYFE=HEE A8 RE
HTINBFEF -

EWEHERE
EHETIINBELAZEHEEN T
B17F o RMEHR - RBT AT
HEM L - AEER T EREE
HAE) A P B 2R 2R A (K 78 HA FE B AR
SRIBRREEINT -

42.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(CONT'D)

(c)

Subleasing arrangements

The Group acquired Guangzhou Zhide in December
2012 and commenced its subleasing business
through Guangzhou Zhide and its subsidiaries by
refurnishing and subleasing the properties leased from
independent third parties to external tenants.

Sublease payments to be received

Terms for subleasing to external tenants are
negotiated ranging from 1 to 17 years. As at the end
of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum sublease payments expected to be received
under non-cancellable subleasing arrangements with
its tenants falling due as follows:

—B—tHF —E—R
2017 2016
AT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Within one year 186,900 179,678
E_ZERF(BEEERF) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 240,083 238,648
RFIE After five years 29,018 37,178
456,001 455,504
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43. EiIE 43. COMMITMENTS
B S s 405E il 78 A FH E R IESN - A In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
EEPNREEREA AT EARAIE in note 42 above, the Group had the following capital

commitments as at the end of the reporting period:

—E—+iF —E—RF
2017 2016
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BETHERET B - Contracted, but not provided for:
HE L Leasehold land 239,641 5,238,920
GRS 5 Properties under development 8,007,120 6,299,819
&y Equity investments 440,930 1,699,731
8,687,691 13,238,470
o REBEBBHE AR REETEN In addition, the Group’s capital commitments related to
BAESE(WARFTALSOWT - associates and joint ventures which are not included above
are as follows:
Bt —E—RF
2017 2016
AR¥FTT ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BETAEREH B Contracted, but not provided for:
FE 2 Properties under development 958,955 -
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44. BBARRS

(@ mzsms

M3 5 R AEERON -

REBER RS

WEBEB O ZEFAEATEAR

FIFS R L T R

44.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group

had the following material transactions with related

Z parties during the reporting period:
—E—+tF /AN
2017 2016
i3 AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BEMTRRERECEES Lease of office premises from
BRARRE—F2L Guangzhou Times Development
HENRAEYE Enterprise Group Company
Limited and Ms. Li Yiping (i) 1,295 1,295
Bt - Note:

)

(b}
0)

(i)

BMTERERERAXEEEGR
ARE(EFRBEREE]) T —[H
BT —FRAZEENR
BERMEEEHNRRE - F
—NHREREEENER - M
EEXRRIGMHFERH T RIS
=B R REFREE -

BEEBLNEMRS

REEFER  AEBER
ERERENER LERE
REREEEMNETH

= ©

RREFEAR » KRANE
BB ARBRERMER
SHEHLERANER EERAR
HRASEENRBE ¥R
THAN-—HREEELD
111 ITREVIE -
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(b}
0

(i)

Guangzhou Times Development Enterprise Group
Company Limited (“Times Development Group”)
is a company controlled by Mr. Cen Jiancai, father of
Mr. Shum, from year 2011 onwards. Ms. Li Yiping is
the spouse of Mr. Shum. The rates and conditions of
the lease are similar to those offered to independent

third parties.

Other transactions with related parties

The Group used certain trademarks registered
by Times Development Group on a royalty free
basis in both years.

Times Real Estate, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, used and occupied a property
with a gross floor area of approximately 111
sg.m. owned by Ms. Li Yiping, the spouse of
Mr. Shum, on a rental free basis in both years.
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

(c)

Outstanding balances with related parties

As disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position, the Group’s balances with its associates
and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

At the year end, the Group subscribed a portion
of the subordinated tranche of a trust plan, at an
amount of RMB220,500,000, which was accounted
for as an available-for-sale investment in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
trust plan in turn granted the funding from senior and
subordinated investors as a 3-year interest-bearing
loan to Shenzhen Yihao Cang, a joint venture of the
Group. The Group, as the holder of the subordinated
tranche of the trust plan, has no guaranteed return of
investment.

The Group had an outstanding balance due to a
non-controlling shareholder, which is controlled by a
director, of RMB2,114,000 (2016: Nil) as at the end
of the reporting period. This balance is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

(d) #rEErEZEBAS(RIEEE)N (d)  compensation for key management personnel
N - (including directors) of the Group:
—E—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
AR¥FT AR¥ETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e RMEKEDN= Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 64,902 44,936
FIRHMAIELT Performance related bonuses 79,279 56,362
RIREET B Pension scheme contributions 877 617
145,058 101,915

ERESHMOE - TFBHRE
B IRARMIFES -

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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45. ZERETHWERTE 45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
RIPEHFR » KBRS T EMNEEEE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
mr instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
—E2—+tH+=-A=+—8H 31 December 2017
THEE Financial assets
AHHER
EXRR SREE
PEWIRIE Available-
Loans and for-sale st
receivables financial assets Total
ARMF ARMFT AREF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWE 5508 Trade receivables 3,253,356 - 3,253,356
FPATERGR - ek Financial assets included in
HAb e FIE prepayments, deposits and
SRVBE other receivables 10,285,376 - 10,285,376

JEWA B ERZIE Amounts due from joint ventures 4,985,166 - 4,985,166

JE B & A B FIE Amounts due from associates 465,810 - 465,810

AEHERE Available-for-sale investments - 485,402 485,402

TR IR TER Restricted bank deposits 2,943,774 - 2,943,774

Be LR EED Cash and cash equivalents 14,262,982 - 14,262,982

36,196,464 485,402 36,681,866
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(CONT'D)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows: (Cont’d)

31 December 2017 (Cont’d)

THEE Financial liabilities
BARBEGIER
Heme R
RE MK Financial
STENERAE liabilities
Financial at fair value
liabilities at ~ through profit st
amortised cost or loss Total
AREFT AREFT AREF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERE SEERERE Trade and bills payables 3,837,132 - 3,837,132
FEAE AR FIE R Financial liabilities included in
JEETFUERSRAE other payables and accruals 7,750,152 52,615 7,802,767
FENAEMERNTIE Amounts due to joint ventures 4,155,306 - 4,155,306
SHERITERR Interest-bearing bank loans and
HibEmx other borrowings 33,289,087 - 33,289,087
49,031,677 52,615 49,084,292
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45. BRERE SR T A(E) 45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONT'D)
REEHIR - 2N S R T ENERE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
T (88) instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows: (Cont’d)

—E-XE+=ZHA=1+—H 31 December 2016
THEE Financial assets
AHrEEN
FEM IR Available-
Loans and for-sale 1Bt
receivables financial assets Total
AREFT ARBEFr AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
[fEUE 5708 Trade receivables 2,578,562 - 2 578,562
SPATBRFIR - ek Financial assets included in
Hib UGBS prepayments, deposits and
TREE other receivables 5,454,583 - 5,454,583
el & &b EMFIE Amounts due from joint ventures 658,593 - 658,593
FE MBS & R R FRIE Amounts due from associates 421,647 - 421,647
AREERE Available-for-sale investments - 546,558 546,558
RREIRITER Restricted bank deposits 2,958,017 - 2,958,017
BERBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 8,922,727 - 8,922,727
20,994,129 546,558 21,540,687
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THER T A (&) 45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONT'D)
REREHIR - 2RSSR T ENEEE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
wmr (&) instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows: (Cont’d)
—R"E+=ZHA=+—H(#&) 31 December 2016 (Cont’d)
THEE Financial liabilities
wARBEYIE
Hemas
REERA Financial
AENEREE liabilities
Financial at fair value
liabilities at through profit @t
amortised cost or loss Total
AREFT ARBFr ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERE SEERERE Trade and bills payables 3,195,843 - 3,195,843
ST AEMERNTIER Financial liabilities included in
EERENSRAE other payables and accruals 9,424,058 57,948 9,482,006
A& ERFIR Amounts due to joint ventures 92,337 - 92,337
HERITERR Interest-bearing bank loans and
HibEm other borrowings 20,488,542 - 20,488,542
AIARR 8 55 Convertible Bonds 242,354 70,208 312,562
33,443,134 128,156 33,571,290
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46. SRTENIABER DR 46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
BEER OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AEEMNERTAGEEARAAEERN The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
BHEERINEEERAREBERT instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

o>

—E—+tF 31 December 2017 BETEI{E AREE
+=—BA=+—H Carrying amounts Fair values
AR¥TFT AR¥FTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
G =R Financial liabilities
FTRIRITER R Interest-bearing bank loans and
HAfam other borrowings 33,289,087 33,912,377
—E—RF 31 December 2016 BETE(E NREE
+=—A=+—H Carrying amounts Fair values
AERHETFT ARHETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
G =R Financial liabilities
FTRIRITER R Interest-bearing bank loans and
HAfE R other borrowings 20,488,542 21,327,980
BEAEE Convertible Bonds 312,562 471,530
20,801,104 21,799,510
ESMEDI L - EIWE S HIE - st ATEN Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
FIE - e NEMEWRENSRIEE - receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
FERA S DEMNZTE - FEINEEE NTIRF deposits and other receivables, amounts due from joint
B ZRHETES - Re LIRS EE ventures, amounts due from associates, restricted bank
Y  FENEBSHEREE - st AHMER deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills payables,
NIENEAFEUREMESSMENTIE financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals and
NERmBEN AL BEREEREMSEEM amounts due to joint ventures approximate to their carrying
= TEANZETAESERNDIE - amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instruments could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings as at 31
December 2017 was assessed to be insignificant.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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46. TRTEMNAREBHENR2D MR 46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

EEER(E) OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
BT —BAHEEREZIN R-E—+ Except an available-for-sale investment, the Group did
FH+-—A=+—8 AEBEHESEIM not hold any financial assets carried at fair value as at 31
BAREBEIRENSREE - December 2017.
WEAREBEENEE Asset for which fair value is disclosed:

“E—-+F+=ZA=1+—H 31 December 2017 DTAARETHAABETE

Fair value measurement using

ERmE EXTRE  EXFUBE

HE BAHE BAHE
(B-%) (B=&) (B=%)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs @t
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AREF7 AREF7 AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AtHERE Available-for-sale investment - - 220,500 220,500
“Z2-XFEt=A=+—-H 31 December2016 AT VETR AR EEE

Fair value measurement using

BRI ERNAER  EATIEER

HR(E BAE BAZE
(F—H) (B=) (E=8)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AEETT AEETT AEETT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HEERE Available-for-sale investment - - 220,500 220,500
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46. EeWMITENAIAREBER DS 46. FAIRR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
)

BEEBR(E OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
BEANEBEEMNEE Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
“E-tF+ZA=t-H 31 December 2017 UTHARETHAABESE

Fair value measurement using

RS EAUEE EAFUEE

HRE BARE WARE
(5—8) (B=R) (E=4)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AREFTT ARETT ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ATARMENFIER Financial liabilities included in other
e FIBHNSREE payables and accruals - 52,615 - 52,615
HEBITERR Interest-bearing bank loans and
EftfEm other borrowings - 33,912,377 - 33,912,377
- 33,964,992 - 33,964,992
“Z-xE+=-A=1+-A 31 December 2016 UM AETN A A BEFE
Fair value measurement using
BRI EXAER  EATAER
HHRE BABIE BARE
(F—8) (F=R) (=)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs et
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SAEMENTIER Financial liabilities included in other
[EAFERNERAE payables and accruals = 57,948 = 57,948
FERTEFR Interest-bearing bank loans and
HibfEH other borrowings - 21,327,980 - 21,327,980
AR ES Convertible Bonds - - 471,530 471,530
- 21,385,928 471,530 21,857,458
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46.

47.

EMITENAABERLIA
BEEHRE)

R E-MEEH2MLED L EE
HEND  TESBEAERSBAEMEEA
AEE=M(—T R ) o

cRIEREEBFERBER

AEENESREETZEREBKE S
B AEATENROR - 2E MR EWRR
MEREE  BRAZLERFIA - B
BEQRMFIE  AIHEERE - ZRH
RITFFANRE KRR EEY - AKE
MERBBEIZRRENEZFIA - 7TA
Hip N RE R EHRIENEREE - 51
BIRITER R EMESRR AT RARES -

() FIREER
AEEEEN TSR EHRM T
R EAEEUF BN R SAIRTT
BN EAMETRAER o AEE AR
158 P A fa) ) 3 2 B 2 S e EL M) = e,

B

R-_BE—+FE+-_A=+—H &
HAR®13,817,082,000t( =&
— 7N+ AR#5,888,235,0007T)
RISRTTE R E A 18 5K LUF B F
KEFE o
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46.

47.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2016: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly include trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from joint
ventures, amounts due from associates, available-for-sale
investments, restricted bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. The financial liabilities of the Group mainly
include trade payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings and the Convertible Bonds.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank
loans and other borrowings bearing floating interest
rates. The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2017, total bank loans and
other borrowings of RMB13,817,082,000 (2016:
RMB5,888,235,000) were with floating interest rates.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D)

(a)

Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit
before tax (through the impact of floating interest rate
bank loans and other borrowings) and the properties
under development (through the capitalisation of
relevant borrowing costs) during the year. There was
no impact on the Group’s other equity.

Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax and
properties under development

—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
LN F) PR A OO E E 24 If 100 basis points decrease in
interest rates
BB A Profit before tax 24,246 8,462
FER Y Properties under development (110,575) (50,313)
WA RS 100 & E 2 If 100 basis points increase in
interest rates
BRI AT B 1R Loss before tax (24,246) (8,462)
B Properties under development 110,575 50,313
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47. sRIEREERBRRBR
(&)

(b)

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D)

SN 2 B (b)
AEBHEBURFPEAM - ZH
RHYANREHELT - KEENE
ERAEIEAAREHE A
TIRTTHE R N A T E MR R
SERRITER R EM BT R AR
BHFAARMERERTHE - AEE
REDHEINER S ©

TREPENA R R BRI T
R T - EREIR - AEER
BATFIE (A S AEREER
AEEEBNYE) RAEENB

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
China and most of the transactions are conducted in
RMB. The Group’s assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in RMB, while certain bank balances and
certain other payables, interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings and the Convertible Bonds are
denominated in other foreign currencies. The Group
has not hedged its foreign exchange risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB exchange rate against HKD,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s

BE(ARBEFIINER)HARK profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
HBTTIE RA) S IR Al L By Bk monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity
15 o (due to translation of foreign operations).
BB Al
ExL#H AELEA i A<
(FE&) (TB&) #m/
Increase/ Increase/ OR2)
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in exchange in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
% ARBFT ARKTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—E2—tF 2017
MARKE S BT E If the RMB weakens against the HKD 5 (789) 10,209
MARBHBTHE If the RMB strengthens against the HKD (5) 789 (10,209)
NG 2016
MARK A BTEE If the RMB weakens against the HKD 5 58,108 (73,312
MARKHBTIHE If the RMB strengthens against the HKD () (58,108) 73,312

* T REEEFENE
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group has no concentration of credit risk. The
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted
bank deposits are mainly deposited with state-owned
banks in Mainland China.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, amounts due from joint ventures,
amounts due from associates, available-for-sale
investments, restricted bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The Group has no other financial
assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of its property units and provided
guarantees to secure the obligations of these
purchasers for repayments. A detailed disclosure
of these guarantees is made in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT TIMES CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 319



BA TSR MIEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E—+F+=-HA=+—08 31 December 2017

47. s EMRESEEEREE 47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(£48) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D)
(d) RENERE B (d) Liquidity risk
AREENEEEEELES T ERIR Management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient
S RIREEEY  BAEBFEBET cash and cash equivalents, and the Group has
EHEAZZERBEENTRE available funding through an adequate amount of
S e B TEGE o committed credit facilities to meet its construction
commitments.
TEREMASEERRERRERD The table below summarises the maturity profile of the
AIAVERBIBEFIENEMEEND Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
HAIEN - period based on the contractual undiscounted
payments:
—EB—tE+=HA=+—H 31 December 2017
DHIEA  3E12{EA HEiB5E
RERE  Less than 3to12 1Z25F Over st
On demand 3 months months 1 to 5 years 5years Total
AREBTFT ARETT ARMTn AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ENESTBERER Trade and bills payables 3,837,132 - - - - 3,837,132
AR B FUE R Financial liabilities included in
B FIENSREE other payables and accruals 7,750,152 - - 52,615 - 7,802,767
ENALMEMZIE  Amounts due to joint ventures 4,155,306 - - - - 4,155,306
TERTEFK Interest-bearing bank loans and
Hitfa other borrowings - 645,151 7,645,553 27,778,326 2,246,557 38,315,587
15,742,590 645,151 7,645,553 27,830,941 2,246,557 54,110,792
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47. s R EREEBERIKE 47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(#48) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D)
d) FREVEREBS(E) (d) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
—E-XRE+=-A=+—H 31 December 2016
DR3EA 3E12fHA HiBsE
RERE  Lessthan 3t0 12 1555 Over st
On demand 3 months months 1105 years 5 years Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ENBSTBELERE Trade and bills payables 3,195,843 - - - - 3,195,843
STAEMENHER Financial liabilities included in
e ZIENSRAE other payables and accruals 9,424,058 - - 57,948 - 9,482,006
EAEERNTIE Amounts due to joint ventures 92,337 - - - - 92,337
FERTEFR Interest-bearing bank loans and
HibEm other borrowings - 650,421 2,946,417 20,877,042 351,633 24,825,513
AR ES Convertible Bonds - 6,641 19,924 380,820 - 407,385
12,712,238 657,062 2,966,341 21,315,810 351,633 38,003,084
EXREHE Capital management

AEBEEREANBRAREAEBER
UFRHEREEZENES - RIRREHRDR
RREMFEAEEREND W&
EEARBINRDERKA

SERRAERENRRE  AREAAEX
MEROBE - ARRBEEEAN - BITH
BRI EEEARAER

AEENE ERER LR A REERE
A o B RN B EFE RN - A
SERTRE B R RS R RS
ARSI RFTR) AT AR % 0 B 1
HHRB S RBITES(RIETR R
25 -

The Group’s objectives of capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt-to equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated based on net debt and equity.
Net debt is calculated as total interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings (as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) and the debt component of the Convertible
Bonds less cash and bank balances (including restricted
bank deposits).
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47. s EAREEBBERKE 47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D)

EXEE(RA)
RIEHR - aEFREZRLRIT

Capital management (Cont'd)

The net debt-to-equity ratios at the end of the reporting
periods are as follows:

—E—+F —ERF
2017 2016
ke AR¥TFT ARMFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

FFRIRITERR Interest-bearing bank loans and
HAbEK other borrowings 31 33,289,087 20,488,542

e ATRRESN Add: Debt component of the

aEHs Convertible Bonds 32 = 242 354
B IR MIRTTEER Less: Cash and bank balances 28 (17,206,756) (11,880,744)
BEFR Net debt 16,082,331 8,850,152
P Equity 27,945,615 16,190,932
BEFREESLL R Net debt-to-equity ratio 57.5% 54.7%

48. FERERERME 48. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) EEHFBEXRH (a)
RERN - A AREE LIRS
ETHBERREAEAREEERES
H AR #E3,496,000,0007T + I AL
LR P A FE A IR AR AR R T B (8

o amounts due to non-controlling shareholders.

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, certain subsidiaries with non-
controlling interest of the Group have transferred
a total amount of RMB3,496,000,000 to capital
reserve which was settled with the current account of

RER - AEE—HKRBARE
M — & IEERRR IR AR
215,600,000 7T B9 AL B, » LAE T 4F
BURP AN —RIFERRER account of amount due to a non-controlling
I8 o shareholder.

During the year, a subsidiary of the Group distributed
dividends of RMB215,600,000 to a non-controlling
shareholder which were settled with the current
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48. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT'D)

b) BMEZTBELENAEEEE (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities
TRHAVAEEREETHELENE The table below details changes in the Group’s
EEE  2HEERS NI S E liabilities arising from financing activities, including
B omEIDELANAGRIERN both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
ERFRARNANERGFZSIRS TR from financing activities are those for which cash flows
ERTOEARETHMENRE were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
ME ° Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.
TERITERR
HtpfE™
Interest-bearing
bank loans MERES
and other Convertible st
borrowings bonds Total
AREFT AREFT ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—Z—+F—-H—H At 1 January 2017 20,488,542 312,562 20,801,104
BEMBRERES Changes from financing cash flows 16,031,866 - 16,031,866
BRI ES Conversion of the Convertible Bonds - (394,425) (394,425)
HNEZE Foreign exchange movement (427,347) (14,575) (441,922)
FlEMY Interest expense 1,344,772 (6,942) 1,337,830
DREEREMEN Interest paid classified as
BRFE operating cash flows (1,254,358) (23,684) (1,278,042)
BB ARTEE Increase arising from acquisition
Zm of subsidiaries 232,003 - 232,003
RIEMENB A BT Decrease arising from deemed disposals
ELRD of subsidiaries (3,146,487) - (3,146,487)
ARREFITETA Changes in fair value of the
BOMDAEE derivative component of the
5 Convertible Bonds - 127,064 127,064
HiRe# Other non-cash movements 20,096 - 20,096
33,289,087 - 33,289,087
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49. HEHREIEA 49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

RZZE—NF—A++tH KARIZREH
ERASTEMI00%EITR T = —F 55
R4 /500,000,000 7T (HHE R AR
3,216,750,0007T ) B16.250% E L =& ([ =
B —FFHIM6.250% ETBAEE]) -
T —FRHIN6.250% X TTE L EE RN
BT b WA - N\FE—A++tH
(B FE:% A ) R IA6.250% M F F =&t B
B¥FIT—IR - KRAIRZET HBHE
HEBBAIE WRAGEREBIFEARE
3,167,212,0007T - BT = —F3Hx
6.250% % LB L RIBE R — FEHIFE F
RAABEBHA-Z—N\F—A+THNE

VN
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On 17 January 2018, the Company issued 6.250% senior
notes due 2021 in a principal amount of USD500,000,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB3,216,750,000) at 100%
of the principal amount of such notes (the “USD 6.250%
Senior Notes due 2021”). The USD 6.250% Senior Notes
due 2021 are listed on the SEHK and bear interest from
and including 17 January 2018 at the rate of 6.250% per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The Company has
received net proceeds of RMB3,167,212,000 by the date of
approval of these financial statements. Further details of the
USD 6.250% Senior Notes due 2021 have been set out in
the related announcement of the Company dated 10 January
2018.
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50. QBB ARI R 50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

BRARRARNBEHROMBEARRNKNOE

Information about the statement of financial position of the

BT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E—+tF —F—K
2017 2016
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEREEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BE NG Property, plant and equipment 3,876 5,567
RBARIMIEE Investments in subsidiaries = -
IERBNE EERR Total non-current assets 3,876 5,567
RENEE CURRENT ASSETS
FENFIE ek Prepayments, deposits and
E b e M zkIE other receivables 126 407
FEURET /B A BRI FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 8,285,453 5,239,036
Rl —fEA & ERMFRIE Amount due from a joint venture 664 -
IR EIRI TR Restricted bank deposits - 1,435
BERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 804,535 128,830
MENEEBT Total current assets 9,090,778 5,369,728
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
E b FE FOE K FERT RUR Other payables and accruals 181,044 228,694
FERTHI B R RIRFRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 221,338 414,737
JEN—EA & ERNRIE Amount due to a joint venture 4,069 -
FFERITER R Interest-bearing bank loans and
HMfam other borrowings = 1,493,766
mEalEERE Total current liabilities 406,451 2,137,197
REEEZRE NET CURRENT ASSETS 8,684,327 3,232,531
EERERRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 8,688,203 3,238,098
FREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FTRIRITERK Interest-bearing bank loans and
HAER other borrowings 9,076,080 3,996,498
AR ES Convertible Bonds - 312,562
JEmEN B EEEE Total non-current liabilities 9,076,080 4,309,060
BfEFE Net liabilities (387,877) (1,070,962)
= EQUITY
&7 Share capital 145,260 135,778
et (P aE) Reserves (note) (533,137) (1,2086,740)
(387,877) (1,070,962)
=8¢ +R/E
Shum Chiu Hung Niu Jimin
EE EE
Director Director
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50. ARTBWIHBAMRK(E) 50. STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)
Hist Note:
ARRIRARFENREZSHINWT The changes in reserves of the Company for the years are set out as
follows:

R BER ERRDRE

Share Exchange RitEE
premium fluctuation Accumulated st
account reserve losses Total
AREFT AREFT AEETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZF—"¥—HA—H At 1 January 2016 1,171,516 (189,461) (997,891) (15,836)
AEEREBEEE Total comprehensive loss for the year - (49,237) (872,293) (921,530)
ERZT-AFRERE Final 2015 dividend declared (269,374) - - (269,374)
RZZ—"F+=A=1+—H At31 December 2016 and
k=Z—+%—F—H 1 January 2017 902,142 (238,698) (1,870,184) (1,206,740)
REEZHEWALRE Total comprehensive income for the year - 58,858 766,827 825,685
SRR ES Conversion of the Convertible Bonds 390,760 - - 390,760
ER-ZE-NERBRE Final 2016 dividend declared (542,842) = = (542,842)
RZZE—+F+=-A=+—H At31 December 2017 750,060 (179,840) (1,103,357) (533,137)
51. BriERRAVHLE 51. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
FHHRER-_E—N\F_A=-TN\BHE The financial statements were approved and authorised for
EEHERISETIE - issue by the board of directors on 28 February 2018.
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LFEMBERE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HELCERVBRENASEEBERAEVBREE A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
HNEE  BERBEHEEYNT Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements is set out below:

BE+-HA=t+—-HLEFE

Year ended 31 December
ZE—tF —TRF IT-RF T-MFE —T—=F
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
AREFT AREFTT AREFT ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

B RESULTS
WA REVENUE 23,109,961 16,206,451 13,638,163 10,418,948 9,694,735
SHEM AR Cost of sales (16,660,052) (11,956,202) (10,091,717)  (7,232,639)  (7,354,711)
E7 GROSS PROFIT 6,449,909 4250249  3,546/446 3,186,309 2,340,024
H g A R Uz Other income and gains 818,208 362,900 130,376 104,526 78,700
THERTISHEEM A Seling and marketing costs (622,915) (657,499 (487,988) (483,398) (411,137)
TR Administrative expenses (732,284) (537,144) (342,988) (304,343) (285,629)
HhpZ Other expenses (448,485) (84,164) (49,105) (40,482) (16,493)
BUE KA Finance costs (400,874) (239,857) (175,131) (231,959) (87,706)
FEIREE R AR & Share of profits and losses
AETEER of associates and
joint ventures 224,622 66,090 (298) 4,160 2,371
BRTBE AT FI 8 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 5,288,181 3,160,575 2,621,312 2,234,813 1,620,130
Fiiefif X Income tax expense (1,947,271)  (1,178,176)  (1,070,244) (881,131) (646,200)
FERNHE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 3,340,910 1,982,399 1,551,068 1,353,682 973,930
T3 FIEFE Attributable to:
PIN/NETE YN Owners of the Company 2,667,154 1,955,020 1,420,590 1,279,026 987,022
FEPE R Non-controlling interests 673,756 27,379 130,478 74,656 (13,092)
3,340,910 1,982,399 1,551,068 1,353,682 973,930
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HEFBME FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EE -BENER ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
R+=A=+-—H
As at 31 December

—E—+tf —T—RF T—HF T—NF T—=F

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

ARETFRT AREFT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BEHA%H TOTAL ASSETS 101,379,091 69,088,944 45,870,283 33,084,552 24,839,778
BEH8HE TOTAL LIABILITIES (73,433,476) (52,898,012) (36,612,288) (27,367,497) (20,831,357
ERAE TOTAL EQUITY 27,945,615 16,190,932 9,257,995 5,717,055 4,008,421
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